Objects and Controls

Appeon PowerBuilder® 2017 R3 FOR WINDOWS

DOCUMENT ID: DC37787-01-1700-01

LAST REVISED: July 26, 2018

Copyright © 2018 by Appeon Limited. All rights reserved.

This publication pertains to Appeon software and to any subsequent release until otherwise indicated in new editions or technical notes. Information in this document is subject to change without notice. The software described herein is furnished under a license agreement, and it may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of that agreement.

Upgrades are provided only at regularly scheduled software release dates. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, or translated in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, manual, optical, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of Appeon Limited.

Appeon and other Appeon products and services mentioned herein as well as their respective logos are trademarks or registered trademarks of Appeon Limited.

SAP and other SAP products and services mentioned herein as well as their respective logos are trademarks or registered trademarks of SAP and SAP affiliate company.

Java and all Java-based marks are trademarks or registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates in the U.S. and other countries.

Unicode and the Unicode Logo are registered trademarks of Unicode, Inc.

All other company and product names mentioned may be trademarks of the respective companies with which they are associated.

Use, duplication, or disclosure by the government is subject to the restrictions set forth in subparagraph (c)(1)(ii) of DFARS 52.227-7013 for the DOD and as set forth in FAR 52.227-19(a)-(d) for civilian agencies.

Appeon Limited, 1/F, Shell Industrial Building, 12 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan District, Hong Kong.

Contents

1	PowerBuilder System Objects and Controls		1
	1.1 What are system objects?		1
	1.2 System object properties, events, and functions	····· '	1
	1.3 System object inheritance hierarchy	2	2
	1.3.1 Undocumented base class objects		
	1.4 Viewing system objects		
2	System Object Properties, Events, and Functions		
	2.1 ADOResultSet object		
	2.2 Animation control		
	2.3 Application object		
	2.4 ArrayBounds object		
	2.5 CheckBox control		
	2.6 ClassDefinition object		
	2.7 CoderObject object		
	2.8 CommandButton control		
	2.9 Connection object (obsolete)		
	2.10 ContextInformation object		
	2.11 ContextKeyword object		
	2.12 CORBACurrent object (obsolete)		
	2.13 CORBAObject object (obsolete)		
	2.14 CrypterObject object		
	2.15 DataStore object		
	2.16 DataWindow control		
	2.17 DataWindowChild object	6	2
	2.18 DatePicker control		
	2.19 DropDownListBox control		
	2.20 DropDownPictureListBox control		
	2.21 DynamicDescriptionArea object		
	2.22 DynamicStagingArea object		
	2.23 EditMask control		
	2.24 EnumerationDefinition object	10	2
	2.25 EnumerationItemDefinition object		
	2.26 Environment object		
	2.27 Error object		6
	2.28 ErrorLogging object		7
	2.29 Exception object		8
	2.30 Graph object		
	2.31 grAxis object		6
	2.32 grDispAttr object		9
	2.33 GroupBox control		
	2.34 HProgressBar control		
	2.35 HScrollBar control		
	2.36 HTrackBar control		
	2.37 HTTPClient object		
	2.38 Inet object		
	2.39 InkEdit control		

2.40	InkPicture control	144			
2.41	InternetResult object				
2.42	JSONGenerator object 151				
2.43	JSONPackage object 152				
2.44	JSONParser object				
	Line control				
	ListBox control				
	ListView control				
	ListViewItem object				
	mailFileDescription object				
	mailMessage object				
	mailRecipient object				
	mailSession object				
	MDIClient object				
	Menu object				
	MenuCascade object				
	Message object				
	MLSync object				
	MLSynchronization object				
	MonthCalendar control				
	MultiLineEdit control				
	OAuthClient object				
	•				
	OAuthRequest object				
	OLEControl control control (OCX)				
	OLECustomControl control (OCX)				
	•				
	OLEStroom object				
	OLEStream object				
	OLETxnObject object				
	Oval control				
	Picture control				
	PictureButton control				
	PictureHyperLink control				
	PictureListBox control				
	Pipeline object				
	ProfileCall object				
2.76	ProfileClass object	253			
	ProfileLine object				
2.78	ProfileRoutine object	255			
2.79	Profiling object	257			
2.80	RadioButton control	258			
2.81	Rectangle control	263			
	ResourceResponse object				
2.83	RESTClient object	265			
	ResultSet object				
	ResultSets object (obsolete)				
	RichTextEdit control				
	RoundRectangle control				

	2.88 RuntimeError object	282
	2.89 ScriptDefinition object	284
	2.90 SimpleTypeDefinition object	
	2.91 SingleLineEdit control	
	2.92 SSLCallBack object (obsolete)	
	2.93 SSLServiceProvider object (obsolete)	
	2.94 StaticHyperLink control	
	2.95 StaticText control	
	2.96 SyncParm object	
	2.97 Tab control	
	2.98 Throwable object	
	2.99 Timing object	
	2.100 TokenRequest object	
	2.101 TokenResponse object	
	2.102 TraceActivityNode object	
	2.103 TraceBeginEnd object	
	2.104 TraceError object	
	2.105 TraceESQL object	
	2.106 TraceFile object	
	2.107 TraceGarbageCollect object	
	2.108 TraceLine object	
	2.109 TraceObject object	
	2.110 TraceRoutine object	324
	2.111 TraceTree object	325
	2.112 TraceTreeError object	326
	2.113 TraceTreeESQL object	327
	2.114 TraceTreeGarbageCollect object	328
	2.115 TraceTreeLine object	329
	2.116 TraceTreeNode object	330
	2.117 TraceTreeObject object	
	2.118 TraceTreeRoutine object	
	2.119 TraceTreeUser object	
	2.120 TraceUser object	
	2.121 Transaction object	
	2.122 TransactionServer object	
	2.123 TreeView control	
	2.124 TreeViewItem object	
	2.125 TypeDefinition object	
	2.126 ULSync object	
	2.127 UserObject object	
	2.128 VariableCardinalityDefinition object	
	2.129 VariableDefinition object	
	2.130 VProgressBar control	
	2.131 VScrollBar control	
	2.132 VTrackBar control	
	2.133 Window control	
<u>.</u>	2.134 WSConnection object (Deprecated)	
ა I	Property Descriptions and Usage	385

3.1 Accelerator	385
3.2 AccessibleDescription	386
3.3 AccessibleName	386
3.4 AccessibleRole	386
3.5 Activation	388
3.6 AdditionalOpts	
3.7 Alignment	
3.8 AllowEdit	
3.9 AnimationName	
3.10 AnimationTime	
3.11 AuthenticateParms	
3.12 AutoArrange	
3.13 AutoHScroll	
3.14 Automatic	
3.15 AutoPlay	
3.16 AutoReadData	
3.17 AutoScale	
3.18 AutoSize	
3.19 AutoSkip	
3.20 AutoVScroll	
3.21 BackColor	
3.22 BeginX	
3.23 BeginY	
3.24 BoldSelectedText	
3.25 Border	
3.26 BorderColor	
3.27 BorderStyle	
3.28 BottomMargin	402
3.29 BringToTop	402
3.30 ButtonHeader	403
3.31 Cancel	
3.32 CalendarBackColor	404
3.33 CalendarTextColor	405
3.34 CalendarTitleBackColor	405
3.35 CalendarTitleTextColor	406
3.36 CalendarTrailingTextColor	406
3.37 Category	
3.38 CategorySort	408
3.39 Center	
3.40 Checked	
3.41 ClientId	
3.42 ClientSecret	
3.43 CloseAnimation	
3.44 CollectionMode	
3.45 ColumnsPerPage	
3.46 ContentsAllowed	
3.47 ControlCharsVisible	
3.48 ControlMenu	

3.49	CornerHeight	414
3.50	CornerWidth	414
3.51	CreateOnDemand	415
3.52	CustomFormat	416
3.53	DataObject	417
3.54	DataSource	418
3.55	DataType	418
3.56	DBPass	419
3.57	DBUser	419
3.58	Default	420
3.59	DeleteItems	420
3.60	Depth	421
3.61	DisabledName	421
3.62	DisableDragDrop	422
	DisableNoScroll	
3.64	DisplayEveryNLabels	423
	DisplayExpression	
	DisplayName	
	DisplayOnly	
	DisplayType	
	DocumentName	
	DragAuto	
	Draglcon	
	DropDownCalendar	
	DropDownRight	
	DropLines	
	EditLabels	
	EditMode	
	Elevation	
_	Enabled	
	EncryptionKey	
	EndX	
	EndY	
	ErrorText	
	Escapement	
	ExtendedOpts	
	ExtendedSelect	
	FaceName	
	Factoid	
	FillColor	
	FillPattern	
	FirstDayOfWeek	
	FixedLocations	
	FixedWidth	
	FocusOnButtonDown	
	FocusRectangle	
	FontCharSet	
ა.უს	FontFamily	441

3.97 F	FontPitch	442			
3.98 F	FontWeight	442			
	Format 443				
	Frame				
3.101	FreeDBLibraries	445			
3.102	GrantType	446			
3.103	GraphType	446			
3.104	HasButtons	447			
3.105	HasLines	447			
3.106	HeaderFooter	447			
3.107	Height	448			
3.108	HideSelection	449			
3.109	Host	449			
3.110	HScrollBar	449			
3.111	HSplitScroll	450			
3.112	HTextAlign	451			
3.113	lcon	451			
3.114	IgnoreCase	452			
3.115	IgnoreDefaultButton	452			
	IgnorePressure				
3.117	Increment	453			
3.118	Indent	454			
3.119	InkAntiAliased	454			
3.120	InkColor	455			
3.121	InkEnabled	455			
3.122	InkHeight	456			
3.123	InkMode	456			
	InkWidth				
	InputFieldBackColor				
	InputFieldNamesVisible				
	InputFieldsVisible				
	InsertAsText				
3.129	Invert	459			
	Italic				
3.131	Item[]	461			
	ItemPictureIndex[]				
	Label				
	LabelWrap				
	LargePictureHeight				
	LargePictureMaskColor				
	LargePictureName[]				
	LargePictureWidth				
	LayoutRTL				
	LeftMargin				
	LeftText				
	Legend				
	Limit				
	LineColor				

3.145	LinesAtRoot	469
3.146	LinesPerPage	470
	LineStyle	
3.148	LinkUpdateOptions	471
	LiveScroll	
3.150	LogFileName	472
	LogOpts	
	MajorGridLine	
	MajorDivisions	
	MajorTic	
	Map3DColors	
	Mask	
	MaskDataType	
	MaxBox	
	MaximumValue	
	MaxDate	
	MaxPosition	
	MaxSelectCount	
	MaxValDateTime	
	MenuName	
	Method	
	MinBox	
	MinDate	
	MinimumValue	
	MinMax	
	MinorDivisions	
	MinorGridLine	
	MinorTic	
	MinPosition	
_		
	MinValDateTime	
	MLPass MLServerVersion	
	MLUser	
	Modified	
	MonthBackColor	
	MultiSelect	
	Multiline	
	ObjectRevision	
	OpenAnimation	
	OriginalSize	
	OriginLine	
	OverlapPercent	
	PaperHeight	
	PaperOrientation	
	PaperWidth	
	Password	
	Password	
3.192	PerpendicularText	496

3.193	Perspective	497
3.194	PicturesAsFrame	497
3.195	PictureHeight	498
3.196	PictureIndex	498
3.197	PictureMaskColor	499
	PictureName	
	PictureName[]	
	PictureOnRight	
	PictureWidth	
	Pointer	
	PopMenu	
	Port	
	Position	
	PowerTipText	
	PowerTips	
	PrimaryLine	
	ProcessOption	
	ProgressWindowName	
	Publication	
	RaggedRight	
	RecognitionTimer	
	Render3D	
	Resizable	
	ReturnCode	
	ReturnsVisible (obsolete)	
	RightMargin	
	RightToLeft	
	Rotation	
	RulerBar	
	RoundTo	
	RoundToUnit	
3.224	ScaleType	515
3.225	ScaleValue	515
3.226	Scope	516
3.227	Scrolling	516
3.228	ScrollRate	516
3.229	SecondaryLine	517
3.230	SecureProtocol	517
3.231	SecureProtocol	518
3.232	SelectedStartPos	519
	SelectedTab	
	SelectedTextLength	
	Series	
	SeriesSort	
	SetStep	
	ShadeBackEdge	
	ShowList	
	ShowHeader	

3.241	ShowPicture	524
3.242	ShowText	524
3.243	ShowUpDown	525
3.244	SmallPictureHeight	525
	SmallPictureMaskColor	
3.246	SmallPictureName[]	526
	SmallPictureWidth	
3.248	Sorted	528
3.249	SortType	528
	SpacesVisible (obsolete)	
	Spacing	
	Spin	
	StatePictureHeight	
	StatePictureMaskColor	
	StatePictureName[]	
	StatePictureWidth	
	Status	
	StdHeight	
	StdWidth	
	SyncRegistryKey	
	TabBackColor	
	TabOrder	
	TabPosition	
	TabStop[]	
	TabTextColor	
	TabsVisible (obsolete)	
	Tag	
	Text	
	TextCase	
	TextColor	
	TextSize	
	ThreeState	
	ThirdState	
	TimeOut	
	Title	
	TitleBackColor	
	TitleBar	
	TitleTextColor	
	TodayCircle	
	TodaySection	
	TokenLocation	
	ToolbarAlignment	
	ToolbarHeight	
	ToolbarVisible	
	ToolbarWidth	
	ToolbarX	
	ToolbarY	
	ToolBar	
JUU		σ

3.289	TopMargin	550
3.290	TrailingTextColor	550
3.291	Transparency	551
3.292	Transparent	551
3.293	ULTrans	552
3.294	Underline	552
3.295	UndoDepth (obsolete)	553
3.296	UnitsPerColumn	553
3.297	UnitsPerLine	554
3.298	URL	555
3.299	UseCodeTable	555
3.300	UseLogFile	556
	UseMouseForInput	
3.302	UserName	556
3.303	UseWindow	557
3.304	Value	557
3.305	View	558
3.306	Visible	559
3.307	VScrollBar	559
3.308	VTextAlign	560
	WeekNumbers	
3.310	Weight	561
3.311	Width	561
3.312	WindowDockOptions	562
3.313	WindowDockState	562
3.314	WindowObject	563
	WindowState	
3.316	WindowType	564
3.317	WordWrap	565
3.318	X	566
3.319	Υ	566
4 About D	isplay Formats and Scrolling	568
	sing colors with display formats	
	sing date display formats	
	sing number display formats	
	sing string display formats	
	sing time display formats	
	crolling in windows and user objects	

1 PowerBuilder System Objects and Controls

About this chapter

This chapter provides overview information about PowerBuilder system objects and controls. This chapter also lists the PowerBuilder system objects not included in this book and explains why they are not included.

1.1 What are system objects?

System objects

PowerBuilder system class objects are the built-in objects you use to develop your application. PowerBuilder system objects include objects such as windows and menus, as well as graphical controls and predefined entities that you can reference in your application, such as the Message and Error objects.

Controls

PowerBuilder controls are a subset of system objects that you place in windows or user objects. Typically, they are graphical objects that allow users to interact with your application or that you use to enhance the design of your windows.

System structures

PowerBuilder system structures are a subset of system objects that contain properties that describe the state of other system objects or the system itself. For example, the Environment object is a structure that holds information about the computing platform the PowerBuilder Application object is running on.

1.2 System object properties, events, and functions

Properties

Each system object has a number of properties associated with it that define its characteristics. For example, the CheckBox control has Height and Width properties that control its size and a BackColor property that controls its background color. You can set the value of object properties within scripts or with the object's Property sheets available within the painters.

Events

PowerBuilder applications are event-driven. For example, when a user clicks a button, chooses an item from a menu, or enters data into an edit box, an event is triggered. You write scripts using PowerScript, the PowerBuilder language, that specify the processing that should happen when the event is triggered. PowerBuilder passes arguments to events, such as the coordinates of the pointer, that help your application figure out what the user did to trigger the event. For most events, you can specify a return code to affect what happens next, such as triggering another event.

Controls, with the exception of the GroupBox and the drawing objects (Line, Oval, Rectangle, and RoundRectangle), always have events related to them. Some system objects, such as system structures, have no events associated with them.

Functions

PowerScript provides a rich assortment of built-in functions you can use to act upon the objects and controls in your application. For each system object, there is a set of these built-in functions that can act on it. You use these functions in scripts to manipulate the object.

1.3 System object inheritance hierarchy

Inheritance

One of the most powerful features of PowerBuilder is inheritance. It enables you to build windows, user objects, and menus that are derived from existing objects. When you build an object that inherits from another object, you create a hierarchy (or tree structure) of ancestor and descendant objects.

Base class object

The object at the top of the hierarchy is a base class object, and the other objects are descendants of this object. Each descendant inherits its definition from its ancestor. The base class object typically implements generalized processing, and each descendant modifies the inherited processing as needed.

System object hierarchy

The PowerBuilder system objects compose such a hierarchy. At the top of the hierarchy is the PowerObject, the base class from which all the objects and controls described in this book descend. The hierarchy also contains other (generic) base class objects that are not typically used in application development but are necessary parts of the logical organization of the hierarchy.

1.3.1 Undocumented base class objects

Base class objects whose primary function is to provide generic properties and functions for descendant objects are not documented, since these objects typically are not used in applications. The base class system objects that are not documented are:

ClassDefinitionObject

ConnectObject

CPlusPlus

DragObject

DrawObject

DWObject

ExtObject

Function_Object

GraphicObject

NonVisualObject

OmControl

OmCustomControl

OmEmbeddedControl

OmObject

OmStorage

OmStream

ORB

PBtoCPPObject

PowerObject RemoteObject Service Structure WindowObject

1.4 Viewing system objects

Using the Browser

From within PowerBuilder, you can use the PowerBuilder Browser to see a complete list of system objects and their properties, events, and functions.

- To display the system objects, select the System tab of the Browser. The default display is to list the objects alphabetically.
- To see the objects displayed hierarchically, place the cursor in the left pane, press the right mouse button, and select Show Hierarchy.
- To display a specific object's properties, events, or functions, select the object in the left pane and then double-click the Properties, Events, or Functions item in the right pane.

For information about using the PowerBuilder Browser, see the Section 12.4, "Browsing the class hierarchy".

Using online Help

You can also use PowerBuilder online Help to view more descriptive Help topics about the properties, events, and functions for system objects and controls.

- If you know the name of the system object or control, use the Index tab to go directly to the correct topic.
- To see a list of the system objects and controls for which Help topics exist, select Objects and Controls from the Help contents list.
- In the Browser, select Help from the pop-up menu for the system object or control or one of its functions.

Help not available for base objects

If you select Help from the pop-up menu for a base object that descends from NonVisualObject, the Help topic for NonVisualObject displays. For other base objects, the Help topic for the Browser displays.

2 System Object Properties, Events, and Functions

About this chapter

This chapter lists the properties, events, and functions of PowerBuilder system objects and controls. This chapter does not include base class objects.

Contents

The objects and controls are listed alphabetically.

2.1 ADOResultSet object

The ADOResultSet object provides the ability to use ActiveX Data Object (ADO) record sets to return a result set to a client and to manipulate ADO Recordsets in PowerBuilder.

2.1.1 Properties

Table 2.1:

ADOResultS property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	3	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.1.2 Events

Table 2.2:

ADOResultSet event	Occurs	
Constructor	When the object is created	
Destructor	When the object is destroyed	

2.1.3 Functions

Table 2.3:

ADOResultS function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
GetRecordSe	tInteger	Returns the current ADO Recordset
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
SetRecordSet	Integer	Sets up the ADOResultSet object to get data from the passed ADO Recordset

ADOResultS function	Datatype returned	Description
SetResultSet	Integer	Populates a new ADOResultSet object with data from the passed ResultSet object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.2 Animation control

Animation controls can display Audio-Video Interleaved (AVI) clips that come from an uncompressed AVI file or from an AVI file compressed using run-length encoding (BI_RLE8).

2.2.1 Properties

Table 2.4:

Animation property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
AnimationNa	istring	Specifies the name of the file that contains the AVI clip. The AVI clip cannot have a sound channel.
AutoPlay	Boolean	Specifies whether the animation starts as soon as the AVI clip is opened. Values are:
		TRUE Control plays automatically when opened.
		FALSE Control does not play automatically when opened (default).
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:

Animation property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to put the control into Drag mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to use to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
OriginalSize	Boolean	Specifies whether the width and height properties of an animation control are set to the size of the AVI clip. Values are:
		TRUE Width and height set to original values.
		FALSE Existing width and height not changed.
		In the Window painter, setting OriginalSize to true overrides the existing width and height.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
PowerTipTextLong		Specifies a PowerTip for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the animation within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Transparent	Boolean	Specifies whether the background of the control matches the background of the window it is on, creating a transparent effect. Values are:

Animation property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Control is transparent.
		FALSE Control is not transparent.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.2.2 Events

Table 2.5:

Animation event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control
Start	When an animation has started playing
Stop	When an animation has stopped playing

2.2.3 Functions

Table 2.6:

Animation function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
Play	Integer	Starts playing the AVI clip in the control
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
Seek	Integer	Displays a specified frame in an AVI clip
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
Stop	Integer	Stops playing the AVI clip in the control
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.3 Application object

An application is a collection of PowerBuilder windows and objects that provide functionality for user activities, such as order entry or accounting activities. The Application object is the entry point into the applications.

When a user runs an application, the Open event of the Application object is fired. The Open event triggers the script that initiates all the activity in the application.

2.3.1 Properties

Table 2.7:

Application	Datatura	Description
Application property	Datatype	Description
AppName	String	Specifies the name of the Application object.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DDETimeOu	tInteger	Specifies the number of seconds PowerBuilder acting as the DDE client waits before giving up when trying to communicate with a server using DDE (the default is 20 seconds).
DisplayName	String	User-readable name for your application. This name is displayed, for example, in OLE dialog boxes that show the application's name. If you do not specify a value, the value of AppName is used for DisplayName.
DWMessage	IStille ing	Specifies the title of the message box for any runtime DataWindow errors encountered in the application. If you change the value of this property in script, the new value is recognized only for DataWindows created (or painted) after the new value is set.
FreeDBLibra	r B oolean	Specifies whether you want PowerBuilder to free database interface libraries upon disconnecting from the database. The default is FALSE (PowerBuilder does not free the libraries upon disconnecting).
MicroHelpDe	Sturi ng	Specifies the default text of the MicroHelp object (the MicroHelp text that displays when you initiate a PowerBuilder session). The default is Ready.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order in MessageBoxes displayed when you call the MessageBox function. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Message box text displays in right-to-left order. The text of the MessageBox buttons displays in the language of the RightToLeft version of Windows (Arabic or Hebrew) only if you are running a localized version of PowerBuilder. Otherwise, the text of the MessageBox buttons displays in English.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
ToolbarFram	e Stirtle g	Specifies the text that displays as the title for the FrameBar when it is floating.
ToolbarPopM	lSariTg xt	Allows you to change the toolbar location text (Left, Top, Right, Bottom, Floating) in the Application's toolbar pop-up menu. Specify the text as a comma-separated list of items.
ToolbarSheet	Tsitrle ng	Specifies the text that displays as the title for the SheetBar when it is floating.

Application property	Datatype	Description
ToolbarText	Boolean	Specifies whether the text associated with the items in the toolbar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Text displays in toolbar.
		FALSE Text does not display in toolbar.
ToolbarTips	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerTips display when text is not displayed on the buttons. Values are:
		TRUE PowerTips are displayed.
		FALSE PowerTips are not displayed.
ToolbarUser	B otrh dan	Specifies whether users can use the toolbar pop-up menu to hide or show the toolbars, move toolbars, or show text. Values are:
		TRUE Users can use pop-up menu.
		FALSE Users cannot use pop-up menu.

2.3.2 Events

Table 2.8:

Application event	Occurs
Close	When the user closes the application.
Idle	When the Idle function has been called in an Application object script and the specified number of seconds have elapsed with no mouse or keyboard activity.
Open	When the user runs the application.
SystemError	When a serious execution time error occurs (such as trying to open a nonexistent application). If there is no script for this event, PowerBuilder displays a message box with the PowerBuilder error number and error message text.
	For information about error messages, see Section 3.9.6, "Using the SystemError and Error events".

2.3.3 Functions

Table 2.9:

Application function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the Application object.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.

Application function	Datatype returned	Description
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the Application object.
SetLibraryLis	d nteger	Sets the PBD library list in an executable. This function can still be used but should be replaced by the system function SetLibraryList.
SetTransPool	Integer	Sets up a pool of database transactions for an application. SetTransPool allows you to minimize the overhead associated with database connections and also limit the total number of database connections permitted.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the Application object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the Application object.

2.4 ArrayBounds object

A structure that specifies the upper and lower bounds of a single dimension of an array. It is used in the VariableCardinalityDefinition object. ArrayBounds has no events.

2.4.1 Properties

Table 2.10:

ArrayBound property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P nowerObject	Contains information about the class definition of the object or control.
LowerBound	Long	The lower bound of the array dimension. For unbounded arrays, the value is always 0.
UpperBound	Long	The upper bound of the array dimension. For unbounded arrays, the value is always 0.

2.4.2 Functions

Table 2.11:

ArrayBound function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.5 CheckBox control

CheckBox controls are small square boxes used to set independent options. When they are selected, they display a mark (typically, either an X or a check mark). When they are not selected, they are empty.

Since check boxes are independent of each other, you can group them without affecting their behavior. Grouping check boxes makes the window easier for the user to understand and use.

Typically, check boxes have two states: on and off. You can also use a third state, unknown or unspecified. In the third state, the check is grayed.

2.5.1 Properties

Table 2.12:

CheckBox property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	Satriiptg on	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Automatic	Boolean	Specifies whether the control displays a mark when the user clicks it. Values are:
		TRUE Displays mark when clicked.
		FALSE Does not display mark when clicked.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerateu)	StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Move to the top.
		FALSE Do not move to the top.
Checked	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is selected. Values are:
		TRUE Control is selected.
		FALSE Control is not selected.
ClassDefiniti	o P nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag Mode. Values are:

CheckBox property	Datatype	Description
property		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag Mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag Mode. You have to put the control into Drag Mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be clicked). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be clicked.
		FALSE Control cannot be clicked.
FaceName	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays; for example, arial or courier.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are: AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.

CheckBox property	Datatype	Description
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
LeftText	Boolean	Specifies whether the text displays on the left of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Text displays on left.
		FALSE Text displays on right.
		Typically, you set this property to false so the text appears on the right of the control.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays next to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
ThirdState	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is in the third state when the control has been defined to have three states. Values are:
		TRUE Control is in third state.
		FALSE Control is not in third state.
ThreeState	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has three states. Typically, CheckBox controls have only two states, such as on and off. Values are:
		TRUE Control has three states.
		FALSE Control does not have three states.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:

CheckBox property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.5.2 Events

Table 2.13:

CheckBox event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected or unselected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.5.3 Functions

Table 2.14:

CheckBox function		Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control

CheckBox function	Datatype returned	Description
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its Properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.6 ClassDefinition object

A ClassDefinition object is a PowerBuilder object that provides information about the class definition of a PowerBuilder object. You can examine a class in a PowerBuilder library or the class associated with an instantiated object.

All the properties are read-only. You cannot change the class definition using the ClassDefinition object. The ClassDefinition object has no events.

The ClassDefinition object lets you check:

The name of the class

The library the class was loaded from

The class definition of its ancestor, if any

The class definition of its parent or container object, if any

Whether the class is autoinstantiated

Whether the class is a system class (defined by PowerBuilder) or a user-defined object (defined in a PowerBuilder PBL)

The classes the object contains, such as the controls contained in a window

The variables and scripts defined in the class

Class names are always reported as lowercase, as you see them in the Browser.

Global functions and variables

Call FindFunctionDefinition to get a ScriptDefinition object describing the global function. Global variables are included in the VariableList array in the ClassDefinition object for the Application object.

2.6.1 Properties

Table 2.15:

ClassDefiniti property	Datatype	Description
Ancestor	ClassDefinition	•An object that represents the ancestor class. Ancestor is NULL when the ClassDefinition is describing PowerObject.
Category	TypeCategory	Specifies whether the type is simple, enumerated, or a class or structure. For a class definition, the value is ClassOrStructureType!.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DataTypeOf	String	The system class name of the object. DataTypeOf is a string representation of a value of the Object enumerated datatype. Values are lowercase with no exclamation point. Sample values include:
		window string any dropdownlistbox
		For objects you have defined, the datatype is the system class from which your object is inherited.
IsAutoinstant	i Æte olean	Indicates whether the class is an autoinstantiated class.
IsStructure	Boolean	Indicates whether the class is a structure.
IsSystemType	eBoolean	Indicates whether the class is a system class that is, one of the classes defined within PowerBuilder as opposed to a class defined in a PBL by a user.
IsVariableLe	n Bth olean	Specifies whether the datatype has a fixed size. Values are:
		TRUE The datatype is variable length, meaning the datatype is a string, any, blob, or unbounded array.
		FALSE The datatype is a fixed length.
IsVisualType	Boolean	Indicates whether the class is a visual (displayable) or non-visual type. Values are:
		TRUE The class is visual, for example, a window or a control.
		FALSE The class is non-visual, for example, a class user object or a simple datatype.

ClassDefiniti property	Datatype	Description
LibraryName	String	The fully qualified name of the library the class was loaded from.
Name	String	The name of the class. For a nested class, the name is returned in the form of libraryEntryName`className.
NestedClassL	istassDefiniti	An unbounded array of objects representing the nested classes and local structures for the object.
		The array is empty if there are no nested classes. Call the UpperBound function to find out the number of nested classes.
ParentClass	ClassDefinition	An object that represents the parent class that this class is nested within. The value is NULL if the class is not a nested class.
ScriptList[]	ScriptDefiniti	An unbounded array of objects representing the scripts implemented or defined in the collapsed class hierarchy.
		The array is empty if there are no scripts. Call the UpperBound function to find out the number of scripts.
VariableList[VariableDefin	nAionnbounded array of objects representing the properties or shared variables in the collapsed class hierarchy.
		The array is empty if there are no variables. Call the UpperBound function to find out the number of variables.

2.6.2 Functions

Table 2.16:

ClassDefiniti function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object.
FindMatching	FariptiOe finiti	Finds a function that matches the specified name and argument list.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.7 CoderObject object

The CoderObject object encodes and decodes the blob or string data using the popular encoders such as Hex, Base64, URL etc.

2.7.1 Properties

Table 2.17:

CoderObject property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.7.2 Events

Table 2.18:

CoderObject event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.

2.7.3 Functions

Table 2.19:

CoderObject function	Datatype returned	Description
Base64Decod	l & lob	Decodes a string value using Base64 decoder.
Base64Encod	String	Encodes a blob value using Base64 encoder.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
HexDecode	Blob	Decodes a string value using Hex decoder.
HexEncode	String	Encodes a blob value using Hex encoder.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the object type of the object.
UrlDecode	Blob	Decodes a string value using URL decoder.
UrlEncode	String	Encodes a blob value using URL encoder.

2.8 CommandButton control

You use a CommandButton to carry out an action. For example, you can use an OK button to confirm a deletion or a Cancel button to cancel the requested deletion.

2.8.1 Properties

Table 2.20:

CommandBu	Datatype	Description
<u>AccessibleDe</u>	<u>Strijotģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	u Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:
		TRUE Move to the top.
		FALSE Do not move to the top.
Cancel	Boolean	Specifies whether the control acts as the Cancel button. (The Cancel button receives a Clicked event if the user presses Esc.) Values are:
		TRUE Acts as the Cancel button.
		FALSE Does not act as the Cancel button.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Default	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is the default control. The default control has a thick border and receives a Clicked event if the user presses Enter without selecting a control. Values are:
		TRUE Acts as the default.
		FALSE Does not act as the default.
		Editable controls
		Default behavior can be affected by editable controls on the window. For more information, see Users Guide.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag Mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag Mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag Mode. You have to put the control into Drag Mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Contains the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.

CommandBo property	Datatype	Description
property		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be clicked). Values are:
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FlatStyle	Boolean	Specifies that the edge of the button displays only when the mouse hovers over it. This is the button style used in the Microsoft Rebar (coolbar) control. Values are:
		TRUE Button has a flat appearance.
		FALSE Button does not have a flat appearance.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.

Command Property	Bı Datatype	Description
		FALSE Text is not italic.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer of the file containing the pointer that is used for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are: TRUE Text is underlined. FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. TRUE Control is visible. FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.8.2 Events

Table 2.21:

CommandButtor Occurs		
event		
Clicked	When the control is clicked	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window	
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window	
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control	
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control	
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control	
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control	

CommandButto	r Occurs
event	
GetFocus	Before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.8.3 Functions

Table 2.22:

CommandBu function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the control type of the control

2.9 Connection object (obsolete)

Obsolete object

Connection object is obsolete, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017. An obsolete feature is no longer eligible for technical support and will no longer be enhanced, although it is still available.

The Connection object specifies the parameters that PowerBuilder uses to connect to EAServer. You can customize the Connection object by defining a class user object inherited from the built-in Connection object. The user object has three events: Constructor, Destructor, and Error.

For more information about creating a custom Connection object, see Chapter 14, Working with User Objects.

For information about connecting to J2EE servers using the EJBConnection object, see Section 26.5, "Connecting to the server" and the Section 2.1, "EJBConnection".

2.9.1 Properties

Table 2.23:

Connection property	Datatype	Description
Application	String	(Optional) Specifies the default package to be used for EAServer components. If you specify the default package in the Application property, you do not need to specify a package in the second parameter of the CreateInstance function.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ConnectStrin (obsolete)	gString	Obsolete property. Used for distributed PowerBuilder connections.
Driver	String	The communications driver used for the connection.
ErrCode	Long	Code indicating the success or failure of the most recent operation. Values are:
		0 Success
		50 Distributed service error
		52 Distributed communications error
		53 Requested server not active
		54 Server not accepting requests
		55 Request terminated abnormally
		56 Response to request incomplete
		57 Not connected
		58 Object instance does not exist
		62 Server busy

Connection property	Datatype	Description
		75 Server forced client to disconnect
		80 Server timed out client connection
		87 Connection to server has been lost
		92 Required property is missing or invalid
ErrText	String	Text indicating the success or failure of the most recent operation.
Handle	Objhandle	Internal use only.
Location	String	Specifies the host name and port number for the EAServer server. Alternatively, the Location property can specify a fully-qualified URL that uses one of the following formats:
		iiop://host:port
		iiops://host:port
		http://host:port
		https://host:port
		To take advantage of EAServer's load balancing and failover support, you can also specify a semicolon-separated list of server locations (for example, "iiop://srv1:9000;iiop://srv2:9000").
Options	String	Specifies one or more communications options. If you specify more than one option, you need to separate the options with commas.
		EAServer clients can use the Options property of the Connection object to set ORB and SSL property values. Each ORB property value you specify must begin with ORB. For example, you can specify the path and name of the log file by specifying a value for ORBLogFile.
D 1	a. ·	See "Options" next.
Password	String	The password that will be used to connect to the server.
Trace (obsolete)	String	Obsolete property. Used for distributed PowerBuilder connections.
UserID	String	The name or ID of the user who will connect to the server.

Options

Table 2.24:

Option	Description
ORBHttp	Specifies whether the ORB should use HTTP tunneling to connect to the server. A setting of true specifies HTTP tunneling. The default is false. This parameter can also be set in an environment variable, JAG_HTTP.

Option	Description
	Some firewalls may not allow IIOP packets through, but almost all allow HTTP packets through. When connecting through such firewalls, set this property to false.
ORBIdleConnecti	When the timeout expires, the ORB closes the connection. The default is 0, which specifies that connections can never time out. The connection timeout does not affect the life of proxy instance references; the ORB may close and reopen connections transparently between proxy method calls. Specifying a finite timeout for your client applications can improve server performance. If many instances of the client run simultaneously, a finite client connection timeout limits the number of server connections that are devoted to idle clients. A finite timeout also allows rebalancing of server load in an application that uses a cluster of servers.
ORBLogIIOP	Specifies whether the ORB should log IIOP protocol trace information. A setting of true enables logging. The default is false. This parameter can also be set in an environment variable, JAG_LOGIIOP. When this parameter is enabled, you must set the ORBLogFile option (or the corresponding environment variable) to specify the file where protocol log information is written.
ORBLogFile	Sets the path and name of the file to which to log client execution status and error messages. This parameter can also be set in an environment variable, JAG_LOGFILE. The default setting is no log.
ORBCodeSet	Sets the code set that the client uses. This parameter can also be set in an environment variable, JAG_CODESET. The default setting is utf8.
ORBRetryCount	Specifies the number of times to retry when the initial attempt to connect to the server fails. This parameter can also be set in an environment variable, JAG_RETRYCOUNT. The default is 5.
ORBRetryDelay	Specifies the delay, in milliseconds, between retry attempts when the initial attempt to connect to the server fails. This parameter can also be set in an environment variable, JAG_RETRYDELAY. The default is 2000.
ORBProxyHost	Specifies the machine name or the IP address of an SSL proxy.
ORBProxyPort	Specifies the port number of the SSL proxy.
ORBWebProxyHe	Specifies the host name or IP address of an HTTP proxy server that supports generic Web tunneling, sometimes called connect-based tunneling. There is no default for this property, and you must specify both the host name and port number properties. You can also specify the property by setting the environment variable JAG_WEBPROXYHOST.
ORBWebProxyPo	When generic Web tunneling is enabled by setting ORBWebProxyHost, specifies the port number at which the HTTP proxy server accepts connections. There is no default for this property, and you must specify both a host name and port. You can also specify the property by setting the environment variable JAG_WEBPROXYPORT.

Option	Description
ORBHttpExtraHe	eaAcr optional setting to specify what extra information is appended to the header of each HTTP packet sent to a proxy server (specified with the ORBWebProxyHost parameter). You can also specify the property by setting the property JAG_HTTPEXTRAHEADER.
	There is no need to set this property unless you have configured the ORB to connect through an HTTP proxy server, and your HTTP proxy server has special protocol requirements. By default, the following line is appended to each packet:
	User-agent: Jaguar/major.minor
	where major and minor are the major and minor version numbers of your EAServer client software, respectively.
	You can set this property to specify text to be included at the end of each HTTP header. If multiple lines are included in the setting, they must be separated by carriage return and line feed characters. If the setting does not include a "User-agent: " line, then the default setting above is included in the HTTP header.
ORBsocketReuse	Spacifies the number of times a network connection can be reused to call methods from one server. The default is 0, which indicates no limit. The default is ideal for short-lived clients. The default may not be appropriate for a long-running client program that calls many methods from servers in a cluster. If sockets are reused indefinitely, the client may build an affinity for servers that it has already connected to rather than randomly distributing its server-side processing load among all the servers in the cluster. In these cases, the property should be tuned to best balance client performance against cluster load distribution. In Appeon testing, a setting of 10 to 30 proved to be a good starting point. If the reuse limit is too low, client performance degrades.
ORBcertificateLa	authentication. The label is a simple name that identifies an X.509 certificate/private key in a PKCS #11 token.
	Required for mutual authentication.
ORBqop	Specifies the name of a security characteristic to use.
	Required for SSL.
ORBcacheSize	Specifies the size of the SSL session ID cache. Default is 100.
ORBpin	Specifies the PKCS #11 token PIN. This is required for logging in to a PKCS #11 token for client authentication and for retrieving trust information.
	Required for SSL.
ORBuserdata	Optional string that can be used to provide user-specified context information.

Option	Description
ORBentrustIniFile	Specifies the path name for the Entrust INI file that provides information on how to access Entrust.
	Required when the ORBuseEntrustid property is set to true.
ORBentrustUserP	rapide if ies the full path to the file containing an Entrust user profile. Optional when the Entrust single-login feature is available, required otherwise.
ORBuseEntrustID	Specifies whether to use the Entrust ID or the Sybase PKCS #11 token for authentication. This is a Boolean property. If set to FALSE, Sybase PKCS #11 token properties are valid and Entrust-specific properties are ignored. If set to true, Entrust-specific properties are valid and Sybase PKCS #11 token properties are ignored.
ORBentrustPassw	Applecifies the password for logging in to Entrust with the specified user profile. Optional when the Entrust single-login feature is available, required otherwise.

2.9.2 Events

Table 2.25:

Connection event	Occurs
Constructor	When the Connection object is created
Destructor	When the Connection object is destroyed
Error	When a client request cannot be satisfied

2.9.3 Functions

Table 2.26:

Connection function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object
ConnectToSe (obsolete)	dven g	Connects a client application to a server application
CreateInstanc	Long	Creates an instance of a remote object on a server
DisconnectSe	dve ng	Disconnects a client application from a server application
GetContextSe	łuieger	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
GetServerInfo (obsolete)	Long	Obsolete function
Lookup (obsolete)	Long	Allows a PowerBuilder client to create an instance of an EAServer component
		Obsolete function

Connection function	Datatype returned	Description
		Lookup is an obsolete function, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
RemoteStop((obsolete)	Loome ction	Obsolete function
RemoteStopI (obsolete)	Jisteng ing	Obsolete function
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.10 ContextInformation object

The ContextInformation object provides information about an application's execution context, including current version information. Using this information, you can modify display characteristics and application behavior.

2.10.1 Properties

Table 2.27:

ContextInfor property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Handle	Long	Internal use only

2.10.2 Events

Table 2.28:

ContextInformate event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.10.3 Functions

Table 2.29:

ContextInfor function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetCompany	Natag er	Returns the company name for the current execution context.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.

ContextInfor function	Datatype returned	Description
GetFixesVers	i lon teger	Returns the fix level for the current PowerBuilder execution context.
GetHostObje	cInteger	Provides a reference to the context's host object.
GetMajorVer	s inte ger	Returns the major version for the current PowerBuilder execution context.
GetMinorVer	sliotæger	Returns the minor version for the current PowerBuilder execution context.
GetName	Integer	Returns the name for the current execution context.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetShortNam	denteger	Returns the short name for the current PowerBuilder execution context.
GetVersionN	a lmte ger	Returns complete version information for the current PowerBuilder execution context.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.11 ContextKeyword object

The ContextKeyword object provides environment information for the current context. In the default environment, the ContextKeyword object provides host workstation environment variables.

2.11.1 Properties

Table 2.30:

ContextKeyv	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Handle	Long	Internal use only

2.11.2 Events

Table 2.31:

ContextKeyword event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.11.3 Functions

Table 2.32:

ContextKey function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextK	elyntægæls	Retrieves one or more values associated with a specified keyword
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.12 CORBACurrent object (obsolete)

Obsolete object

CORBACurrent object is obsolete, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.

The CORBACurrent service object provides information about the EAServer transaction associated with a calling thread and enables the caller to control the transaction. The CORBACurrent object supports most of the methods defined by the CORBACurrent interface.

2.12.1 Properties

Table 2.33:

CORBACur property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.12.2 **Events**

Table 2.34:

CORBACurrent event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.12.3 Functions

Table 2.35:

CORBACur function	Datatype returned	Description
BeginTransac (obsolete)	Boo lean	Creates a new transaction and associates it with the calling thread.
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object.
CommitTrans (obsolete)	anteger	Commits the transaction associated with the calling thread.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetStatus (obsolete)	Integer	Returns the status of the transaction associated with the calling thread.
GetTransaction (obsolete)	SNing e	Returns a string describing the transaction associated with the calling thread.
Init (obsolete)	Integer	Initializes an instance of the CORBACurrent service object.
PostEvent	Integer	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
ResumeTrans (obsolete)	dotieger	Associates the transaction passed in with the calling thread.
RollbackOnly (obsolete)	Integer	Modifies the transaction associated with the calling thread so that the outcome is to roll back the transaction.
RollbackTran (obsolete)	dattiger	Rolls back the transaction associated with the calling thread.
SetTimeout (obsolete)	Boolean	Sets the timeout value for the top-level transaction. The transaction is rolled back if it does not complete before the timeout expires.
SuspendTran (obsolete)	s latiog nedlong	Suspends the transaction associated with the calling thread and returns a handle to the transaction.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.13 CORBAObject object (obsolete)

Obsolete object

CORBAObject object is obsolete, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.

The CORBAObject object gives PowerBuilder clients access to several standard CORBA methods. All proxy objects generated for EAServer components using the EAServer proxy generator are descendants of CORBAObject.

2.13.1 Properties

Table 2.36:

CORBAObj property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.13.2 **Events**

Table 2.37:

CORBAObject event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.13.3 Functions

Table 2.38:

CORBAObje function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
_Is_A (obsolete)	Boolean	Checks to see whether a CORBA object is an instance of a class that implements a particular interface
_Narrow (obsolete)	Long	Converts a CORBA object reference from a general super-type to a more specific sub-type
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.14 CrypterObject object

The CrypterObject object encrypts and decrypts the data using the popular algorithms.

2.14.1 Properties

Table 2.39:

CoderObject property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	U	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.14.2 Events

Table 2.40:

CoderObject event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.

2.14.3 Functions

Table 2.41:

CrypterObje	Datatype	Description
function	returned	
AsymmetricI	Bdry pt	Decrypts a blob value using asymmetric algorithm.
AsymmetricE	En Endroylept	Encrypts a blob value using asymmetric algorithm.
AsymmetricC	G emmergate Key	Generates the secret key for asymmetric algorithm.
AsymmetricS	i lg hob	Calculates the signature of the data using asymmetric algorithm.
AsymmetricV	TenritégS ign	Verifies the signature of the data using asymmetric algorithm.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the
		specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
HMAC	Blob	Calculates the HMAC value of the blob data.
MD5	Blob	Calculates the MD5 value of the blob data.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
SHA	Blob	Calculates the SHA value of the blob data.
SymmetricDe	edErlqtt	Decrypts a blob value using symmetric algorithm.
SymmetricEn	aBr)qots	Encrypts a blob value using symmetric algorithm.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the object type of the object.

2.15 DataStore object

A DataStore is a nonvisual DataWindow control. DataStores act just like DataWindow controls except that many of the visual properties associated with DataWindow controls do not apply to DataStores. Because you can print DataStores, PowerBuilder provides some events and functions for DataStores that pertain to the visual presentation of the data.

However, graph functions such as CategoryCount, CategoryName, GetData, SeriesCount, and so forth depend on the visual graph control, which is not created for a DataStore object. These functions return an error value or an empty string when used with DataStores.

2.15.1 Properties

Table 2.42:

DataStore property	Datatype	Description
DataObject	String	Specifies the name of the DataWindow or Report object associated with the control.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Object	DWObject	Used for the direct manipulation of objects within a DataWindow object from a script. These objects can be, for example, columns or text objects.

2.15.2 Events

Some but not all DataStore events have return codes that you can use to determine what action will be taken after the event occurs. You set the return codes in a RETURN statement in the event script.

Table 2.43:

DataStore event	Occurs		
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.		
DBError	When a database error occurs in the DataStore.		
	Return codes:		
	0 - (Default) Display the error message.		
	1 - Do not display the error message.		
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.		
Error	When an error is found in a data or property expression for a DataWindow object.		
ItemChanged	When the AcceptText and Update functions are called for the DataStore.		
	Return codes:		
	0 - (Default) Accept the data value.		
	1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change.		
	2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change.		

DataStore event	Occurs
ItemError	When a value imported into a DataStore from a string or file does not pass the validation rules for its column. Can also occur when the AcceptText and Update functions are called for the DataStore.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box.
	1 - Reject the data value with no message box.
	2 - Accept the data value.
	3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change.
	If the return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus.
Printend	When the printing of the DataStore ends.
PrintPage	Before each page of the DataStore is formatted for printing.
	Return codes:
	0 - Do not skip a page.
	1 - Skip a page.
PrintStart	When the printing of the DataStore starts.
RetrieveEnd	When the retrieval for the DataStore is complete.
RetrieveRow	After a row has been retrieved.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Stop the retrieval.
RetrieveStart	When the retrieval for the DataStore is about to begin.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Do not perform the retrieval.
	2 - Do not reset the rows and buffers before retrieving the data from the database.
SQLPreview	After a Retrieve, Update, or ReselectRow function call and immediately before the SQL statement is submitted to the DBMS.
	The following return codes specify the action that takes place when the event occurs after an Update function call only:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Stop.
	2 - Skip this request and execute the next request.
UpdateEnd	When all the updates from the DataStore to the database are complete.

DataStore event	Occurs
UpdateStart	After an Update function call and just before changes in the DataStore are sent to the database.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Do not perform the update.

2.15.3 Functions

Table 2.44:

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
AcceptText	Integer	Applies the contents of the DataStore's edit control to the current item in the DataStore buffer.
CategoryCou	nt integer	Returns the number of categories in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
CategoryNan	n & tring	Returns the name of the specified category in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the DataStore.
ClearValues	Integer	Deletes all items from the value list associated with the specified column in the DataStore.
Clipboard	Integer	Copies the specified graph in the DataStore to the clipboard.
CopyRTF	String	Returns the selected text, pictures, and input fields in a DataStore as a string with rich text formatting. Bitmaps and input fields are included in the string.
Create	Integer	Creates a DataWindow object using the specified source code and replaces the DataWindow object in the specified DataStore with the new DataWindow object.
CreateFrom	Integer	Creates a DataStore object from the passed ResultSet object.
DataCount	Long	Returns the number of data points in the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
DBCancel	Integer	Cancels a database retrieval in progress.
DeletedCoun	tLong	Returns the number of rows that have been deleted from the DataStore but have not yet been updated in the associated database table.
DeleteRow	Integer	Deletes the specified row from the DataStore.
Describe	String	Returns requested information about the structure of the DataStore.
ExportJson	String	Exports data from the DataWindow control, DataStore object, or DataWindowChild object to the JSON string.

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
Filter	Integer	Moves rows that do not meet the current filter criteria to the filter buffer.
FilteredCoun	tInteger	Returns the number of rows that do not meet the current filter criteria.
Find	Long	Returns the number of the first row that meets the search criteria within a specified search range in the detail area of a DataStore.
FindCategory	Integer	Returns the number of the specified category in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
FindGroupCh	alingeg	Searches starting at a specified row for the first break for the specified group in the DataStore.
FindRequired	Integer	Identifies the required columns that the user has not filled.
FindSeries	Integer	Returns the number of the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
GenerateHTM	II nfægen	Creates an HTML Form element containing columns for one or more rows. Also returns an HTML Style element containing style sheet information.
GenerateResu	ı İt. Sei g	Returns an EAServer result set from a PowerBuilder user object running as a component on EAServer.
		Obsolete function
		GenerateResultSet is an obsolete function, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.
GetBorderSty		Returns a Border enumerated datatype indicating the border style of the specified column in the DataStore. Border enumerated datatypes are:
		Box!
		Lowered!
		NoBorder!
		Raised!
		ResizeBorder!
		ShadowBox!
		Underline!
GetChanges	Long	Retrieves changes made to a DataStore into a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetChild	Integer	Stores in the specified variable the name of the child DataWindow in the specified column.

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
GetClickedCo		Obtains the number of the column the user clicked or double-clicked in a DataStore.
GetClickedRe	okvong	Obtains the number of the row the user clicked or double-clicked in a DataStore.
GetColumn	Integer	Returns the number of the current column in the DataStore.
GetColumnN	a Shhe ing	Returns the name of the current column in the DataStore.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetData	Double	Returns the value of the specified data in the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
GetDataPieE	x þitælæ r	Reports the percentage that a pie slice is exploded in a pie graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
GetDataStyle	Integer	Finds out the appearance of a data point in a graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
GetDataValu	eInteger	Returns the value of the specified data in the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
GetFormat	String	Returns the format used for display in the specified column of the DataStore.
GetFullState	Long	Retrieves the complete state of a DataStore into a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetItemDate	Date	Returns the date data in the specified row and column of the DataStore.
GetItemDate ^r	Date Time	Returns the datetime data in the specified row and column of the DataStore.
GetItemDeci	n lae cimal	Returns the decimal data in the specified row and column of the DataStore.
GetItemNum	b D rouble	Returns the numeric data in the specified row and column of the DataStore.
GetItemStatu		Returns the status of the item at the specified row and column location in the specified buffer. Values are:
		DataModified!
		New!
		NewModified!
		NotModified!
GetItemString	gString	Returns the string data in the specified row and column of the DataStore.

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
GetItemTime	Time	Returns the time data in the specified row and column of the DataStore.
GetNextMod	ifiendig	Returns the number of the first row that was modified in the specified buffer in the specified DataStore after the specified row.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRow	Long	Returns an integer containing the number of the current row in the DataStore.
GetRowFrom	Row &d	Gets the row number of a row in a DataStore from the unique row identifier associated with that row.
GetRowIdFro	o lnobrog w	Gets the unique row identifier of a row in a DataStore from the row number associated with that row.
GetSelectedR	dmteger	Returns the number of the first selected row after the specified row number in the DataStore.
GetSeriesSty	d nteger	Finds out the appearance of a series in a graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
GetSQLSelec	String	Returns the current SELECT statement for the DataStore.
GetStateStatu	Long	Retrieves the current status of the internal state flags for a DataWindow and places this information in a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetText	String	Returns the text in the edit control over the current row and column of the DataStore.
GetTrans	Integer	Returns the values in the DataStore Transaction object.
GetValidate	String	Returns the validation rule used in the specified column of the DataStore.
GetValue	String	Returns the specified item in the value list for the specified column.
GroupCalc	Integer	Recalculates the breaks in the groups in the DataStore.
ImportClipbo	drd ng	Copies data from the clipboard to the DataStore.
ImportFile	Long	Copies data from a file to the DataStore.
ImportJson	Long	Inserts data from a JSON string into the DataStore.
ImportJsonBy	у Кю уд	Inserts data from a JSON string into the DataStore according to the JSON key name.
ImportString	Long	Copies data from a string to the DataStore.
InsertDocum	elnteger	Inserts a rich text format or plain text file into a DataStore. You use a function parameter to specify how the new content is added:
		It can be inserted at the insertion point

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
		It can replace all existing content
		This function applies only to DataStores whose content has the RichText presentation style.
InsertRow	Long	Inserts a new initialized row before the specified row in the DataStore.
IsSelected	Boolean	Returns true if the specified row in the DataStore is selected; returns false if the row is not selected or is greater than the number of rows in the DataStore.
ModifiedCou	rItong	Returns the number of rows that have been modified in the DataStore but have not yet been updated in the associated database table.
Modify	String	Uses the specification contained in a string to modify the DataStore.
PasteRTF	Long	Pastes rich text data from a string into a DataStore whose content has the RichText presentation style.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the DataStore.
Print	Integer	Sends the content of the DataStore to the current printer. This function has several syntaxes.
PrintCancel	Integer	Cancels the print job and deletes the spool file (if any) when the content of the DataStore is sent to print.
		This function has two syntaxes. Use Syntax 1 when Syntax 1 of the Print function was used to send it to print.
ReselectRow	Integer	Accesses the database to reselect all columns that can be updated and refreshes all timestamp columns in a row in the DataStore.
Reset	Integer	Clears all the data from a DataStore.
ResetDataCo	l ons eger	Resets the color of a data point to the color specified for the series. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
ResetTransO	ojnæ ger	Stops the DataStore from using a programmer-defined Transaction object (thereafter, the DataStore uses its internal Transaction object).
ResetUpdate	Integer	Resets the update flags for the DataStore.
Retrieve	Long	Causes the DataStore to retrieve rows from the database.
RowCount	Long	Returns the number of rows currently available in the DataStore (all the rows retrieved minus any deleted rows plus any inserted rows minus any rows that have been filtered out).

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
RowsCopy	Integer	Copies a range of rows from one DataStore to another DataStore (or DataWindow control) or from one buffer to another within a single DataStore.
RowsDiscard	Integer	Discards a range of rows. The rows cannot be restored unless retrieved from the database.
RowsMove	Integer	Clears a range of rows from a DataStore and inserts the rows in another DataStore (or DataWindow control) or another buffer of the same DataStore.
SaveAs	Integer	Saves the content of the DataStore to the specified file, in the specified format, with or without column headings at the beginning
SaveAsAscii	Long	Saves the content of a DataStore into a standard ASCII text file.
SaveNativeP	DiritegBi lob	Saves the PDF file into a blob variable when you use the PDFlib method to save data from a DataWindow object to a PDF file.
SelectRow	Integer	Selects or deselects the specified row of the DataStore.
SeriesCount	Integer	Returns the number of series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
SeriesName	String	Returns the name of the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
SetBorderSty	l E nteger	Sets the border style of the specified column in the DataStore.
SetChanges	Long	Applies changes captured with GetChanges to a DataStore. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
SetColumn	Integer	Makes the specified column the current column in the DataStore.
SetDataPieEx	phode r	Explodes a pie slice in a pie graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
SetDataStyle	Integer	For the specified data point in the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
SetDetailHei	g ht teger	Sets the height of each row in a specified range.
SetFilter	Integer	Defines the filter criteria for the DataStore. The actual filtering is performed by the Filter function.
SetFormat	Integer	Sets the display format for the specified column of the DataStore.
SetFullState	Long	Applies the contents of a DataWindow blob retrieved by GetFullState to a DataStore. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
SetHTMLAc	t ilon eger	Accepts action and context information about user interaction with the Web DataWindow client control in a Web browser so that newly generated HTML can reflect any requested changes.

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
		Obsolete function
		SetHTMLAction is an obsolete function, because Web DataWindow technology is obsolete.
SetItem	Integer	Sets the value of the specified row and column of the specified DataStore.
SetItemStatu	Integer	Sets the status of a row in a specified column of the DataStore in the specified buffer.
SetPosition	Integer	Moves an object within the DataStore to another band or changes the front-to-back order of objects within a band.
SetRow	Integer	Makes the specified row the current row in the DataStore.
SetSeriesStyl	eInteger	For the specified series in the specified graph. (Returns an error value or an empty string for DataStores.)
SetSort	Integer	Defines the sort criteria for the DataStore. The actual sorting is performed by the Sort function.
SetSQLPrevi	elunteger	Sets the current SQL statement for the DataStore.
SetSQLSelec	tInteger	Changes the current SELECT statement for the DataStore.
SetText	Integer	Replaces the text in the edit control at the current row and column of the DataStore with the specified text.
SetTrans	Integer	Sets values in the DataStore's internal Transaction object.
SetTransObje	dnteger	Sets the Transaction object for the DataStore and provides control over the transaction, including the ability to commit from a script.
SetValidate	Integer	Changes the validation rule used for the specified column of the DataStore.
SetValue	Integer	Sets the value of the specified item in the value list or the code table of the specified column of the DataStore.
SetWSObjec	Integer	Causes a DataStore (or DataWindow control) to use a programmer-specified connection object. The connection object provides the information necessary for communicating with a Web service data source.
ShareData	Integer	Shares data between a primary DataStore (or DataWindow control) and a secondary DataStore (or DataWindow control).
ShareDataOf	fInteger	Turns off sharing for the DataStore. If the DataStore is primary, all secondary DataStores (or DataWindow controls) are disconnected and their DataWindow objects no longer contain data.
Sort	Integer	Sorts the rows of the DataStore based on its current sort criteria.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the DataStore and executes the script for the event.

DataStore function	Datatype returned	Description
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the DataStore.
Update	Integer	Sends to the database all inserts, deletes, and updates of the DataStore.

2.16 DataWindow control

You place DataWindow controls in a window or user object and then specify the DataWindow object you want to use within them to display and manipulate data in the window.

A DataWindow object allows users to display, manipulate, and update database or other information. You build DataWindow objects in the DataWindow painter.

For information about DataWindow objects, see Part VI, "Working with DataWindows".

Obsolete functions

Several DataWindow control functions are described as obsolete, which means that although the function operates as usual in this release, it will be removed in a future release. You should replace all use of these functions as soon as possible.

2.16.1 Properties

Table 2.45:

DataWindov property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Satriiptėjon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	u Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are: TRUE Control has a border. FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the border style of the control. Values are: StyleBox! StyleLowered! StyleRaised! StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order.

DataWindov property	Datatype	Description
	o r howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ControlMenu	Boolean	Specifies whether the Control Menu box displays in the control title bar. Values are:
		TRUE Control Menu box displays in the control title bar.
		FALSE Control Menu box does not display in the control title bar.
<u>DataObject</u>	String	Specifies the name of the DataWindow object associated with the control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag Mode. DragAuto has these boolean values:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag Mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag Mode. You have to put the control into Drag Mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the DataWindow control, in PowerBuilder units.
HScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays in the control when all the data cannot be displayed at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar is not displayed.
<u>HSplitScroll</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the split bar displays in the control. Values are:
		TRUE Split bar is displayed.
		FALSE Split bar is not displayed.

DataWindov	Datatype	Description
property	G. ·	
<u>Icon</u>	String	Specifies the name of the ICO file that contains the icon that displays when the DataWindow control is minimized.
LiveScroll	Boolean	Scrolls the rows in the DataWindow control while the user is moving the scroll box.
MaxBox	Boolean	Specifies whether a Maximize Box displays in the DataWindow control title bar. Values are:
		TRUE Maximize Box displays.
		FALSE Maximize Box does not display.
MinBox	Boolean	Specifies whether a Minimize Box displays in the DataWindow control title bar. Values are:
		TRUE Minimize Box displays.
		FALSE Minimize Box does not display.
Object	DWObject	Used for the direct manipulation of objects within a DataWindow object from a script. These objects can be, for example, columns or text objects.
Resizable	Boolean	Specifies whether the DataWindow control is resizable. Values are:
		TRUE DataWindow is resizable.
		FALSE DataWindow is not resizable.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the DataWindow control within the window or user object (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the DataWindow control.
<u>Title</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the DataWindow control title bar.
TitleBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a title bar displays in the DataWindow control. The user can move the DataWindow control only if it has a title bar. Values are:
		TRUE Title bar is displayed in control.
		FALSE No title bar is displayed in control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the DataWindow control is visible. Values are:

DataWindov property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar displays in the control when not all the data can be displayed at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the DataWindow control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.16.2 Events

Some but not all DataWindow events have return codes that you can use to determine what action is taken after the event occurs. You set the return codes in a RETURN statement in the event script.

Table 2.46:

DataWindow event	Occurs
ButtonClicked	When the user clicks a button.
ButtonClicking	When the user clicks a button. This event occurs before the ButtonClicked event.
Clicked	When the user clicks between fields in the DataWindow control.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue processing.
	1 - Stop processing.
Collapsed	When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has collapsed.
Collapsing	Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow collapses.
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
DBError	When a database error occurs in the DataWindow control.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.
DoubleClicked	When the user double-clicks between fields in the DataWindow control.
	For a RichText presentation style DataWindow, when the user double-clicks in the text.
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the DataWindow control.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the DataWindow control.

DragLeave When a dragged control leaves the DataWindow control. DragWithin When a dragged control is within the DataWindow control. EditChanged When a user types in an edit control in the DataWindow control. Error When an error is found in a data or property expression for a DataWindow object. Expanded When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has expanded. Expanding Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands. GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page. 1 - Skip a page.	DataWindow	Occurs	
DragWithin When a dragged control is within the DataWindow control. EditChanged When a user types in an edit control in the DataWindow control. Error When an error is found in a data or property expression for a DataWindow object. Expanded When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has expanded. Expanding Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands. GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. ItemError When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	event		
EditChanged When a user types in an edit control in the DataWindow control. Error When an error is found in a data or property expression for a DataWindow object. Expanded When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has expanded. Expanding Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands. GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the DataWindow control.	
Error When an error is found in a data or property expression for a DataWindow object. Expanded When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has expanded. Expanding Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands. GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the DataWindow control.	
Expanded When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has expanded. Expanding Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands. GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. ItemError When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChange When the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	EditChanged	When a user types in an edit control in the DataWindow control.	
Expanding Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands. GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	Error		
GetFocus Just before the DataWindow control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	Expanded	When a node in a TreeView DataWindow has expanded.	
and becomes active). Help When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	Expanding	Before a node in a TreeView DataWindow expands.	
(question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control. ItemChanged When a field in the DataWindow has been modified and loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangeeWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	GetFocus	· ·	
example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field within the DataWindow). Return codes: 0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	Help		
0 - (Default) Accept the data value. 1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChange When the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	ItemChanged	example, the user presses Enter, the Tab key, or an arrow key, or clicks	
1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change. 2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		Return codes:	
2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. ItemError When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		0 - (Default) Accept the data value.	
When a field has been modified, the field loses focus (for example, the user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChange When the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		1 - Reject the data value and do not allow focus to change.	
user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another field), and the field does not pass the validation rules for its column. Return codes: 0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		2 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change.	
0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box. 1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	ItemError	user presses Enter, Tab, or an arrow key, or clicks the mouse on another	
1 - Reject the data value with no message box. 2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		Return codes:	
2 - Accept the data value. 3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChange When the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		0 - (Default) Reject the data value and show an error message box.	
3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change. If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		1 - Reject the data value with no message box.	
If the Return code is 0 or 1 (rejects the data), the field with the incorrect data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		2 - Accept the data value.	
data regains the focus. ItemFocusChangedWhen the current item in the control changes. LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.		3 - Reject the data value but allow focus to change.	
LoseFocus When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive). Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.			
Other When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event. Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	ItemFocusChange	dWhen the current item in the control changes.	
Printend When the printing of the DataWindow ends. PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	LoseFocus	When the DataWindow control loses focus (becomes inactive).	
PrintPage Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing. Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.	
Return codes: 0 - Do not skip a page.	Printend	When the printing of the DataWindow ends.	
0 - Do not skip a page.	PrintPage	Before each page of the DataWindow is formatted for printing.	
		Return codes:	
1 - Skip a page.		0 - Do not skip a page.	
		1 - Skip a page.	

DataWindow event	Occurs
PrintStart	When the printing of the DataWindow starts.
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control.
	For a RichText presentation style DataWindow, if PopUp Menu has been turned on, this event is not triggered when the right mouse button is pressed.
Resize	When the user or a script resizes a DataWindow control.
RetrieveEnd	When the retrieval for the DataWindow is complete.
RetrieveRow	After a row has been retrieved.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Stop the retrieval.
RetrieveStart	When the retrieval for the DataWindow is about to begin.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Do not perform the retrieval.
	2 - Do not reset the rows and buffers before retrieving the data from the database.
RowFocusChange	dWhen the current row changes in the DataWindow.
RowFocusChangi	n When the current row is about the change in the DataWindow. This event occurs before the RowFocusChanged event.
ScrollHorizontal	When the user scrolls right or left in the DataWindow control with the Tab or arrow keys or the scroll bar.
ScrollVertical	When the user scrolls up or down in the DataWindow control with the Tab or arrow keys or the scroll bar.
SQLPreview	After a Retrieve, Update, or ReselectRow function call and immediately before the SQL statement is submitted to the DBMS.
	The following return codes specify the action that takes place when the event occurs after an Update function call only:
	0 - (Default) Continue.
	1 - Stop.
	2 - Skip this request and execute the next request.
UpdateEnd	When all the updates from the DataWindow to the database are complete.
UpdateStart	After an Update function call and just before changes in the DataWindow are sent to the database.
	Return codes:
	0 - (Default) Continue.

DataWindow event	Occurs
	1 - Do not perform the update.
WSError	Occurs when an error is returned for a DataWindow using the WSConnection object to connect to a Web service data source.

2.16.3 Functions

Table 2.47:

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
AcceptText	Integer	Applies the contents of the DataWindow control's edit control to the current item in the DataWindow buffer.
CanUndo	Boolean	Specifies whether the last edit can be undone with the Undo function. Applies to the edit control over the current row and column. Values are:
		TRUE Last edit can be undone.
		FALSE Last edit cannot be undone.
CategoryCou	nl tnteger	Returns the number of categories in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
CategoryNan	S tring	Returns the name of the specified category in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the DataWindow control.
Clear	Integer	Clears (deletes) the selected text in the edit control of the DataWindow control.
		For a RichText presentation style DataWindow, clears the selected text in the DataWindow.
ClearValues	Integer	Deletes all items from the value list associated with the specified column in the DataWindow control.
Clipboard	Integer	Copies the specified graph in the DataWindow control to the clipboard.
Сору	Integer	Copies the selected text in the edit control over the current row and column of the DataWindow control to the clipboard.
		For a RichText presentation style DataWindow, copies the selected text in the DataWindow control.
CopyRTF	String	Returns the selected text, pictures, and input fields in a DataWindow control as a string with rich text formatting. Bitmaps and input fields are included in the string.
Create	Integer	Creates a DataWindow object using the specified source code and replaces the DataWindow object in the specified DataWindow control with the new DataWindow object.

DataWindo function	v Datatype returned	Description
CrosstabDia	lo l nteger	Displays the Crosstab Definition dialog box so the user can modify the definition of a crosstab DataWindow object during execution.
Cut	Integer	Cuts the selected text from the edit control over the current row and column of the DataWindow and stores it in the clipboard.
		For a RichText presentation style DataWindow, cuts the selected text in the DataWindow control.
DataCount	Long	Returns the number of data points in the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
DBCancel	Integer	Cancels a database retrieval in progress.
DBErrorCoc	leLong	Returns the error code (number) generated by a database error.
		Obsolete function
		DBErrorCode is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Database error codes are now available as event arguments.
DBErrorMes	ss S geing	Returns a string containing the text of the error message generated by a database error.
		Obsolete function
		DBErrorMessage is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Database error messages are now available as event arguments.
DeletedCour	ntLong	Returns the number of rows that have been deleted from the DataWindow control but have not yet been updated in the associated database table.
DeleteRow	Integer	Deletes the specified row from the DataWindow control.
Describe	String	Returns requested information about the structure of the DataWindow control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the DataWindow control.
ExportJson	String	Exports data from the DataWindow control, DataStore object, or DataWindowChild object to the JSON string.
Filter	Integer	Displays specific rows of the DataWindow control based on its current filter.
FilteredCour	ntInteger	Returns the number of rows that are not visible because of the current filter.
Find	Long	Syntax 1: Finds the next row in a DataWindow control in which data meets a specified condition.
		Syntax 2: For Rich Text presentation style Data Windows, finds the specified text in the control and highlights the text if found.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
		You can specify search direction and whether to match whole words and case.
FindCategory	Integer	Returns the number of the specified category in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
FindGroupCl	nalmgreg	Searches starting at a specified row for the first break for the specified group in the DataWindow control.
FindNext	Integer	Finds the next occurrence of text in the control and highlights it, using criteria set up in a previous call of the Find function.
		This function applies only to DataWindow controls whose content has the RichText presentation style.
FindRequired	Integer	Identifies the required columns that the user has not filled.
FindSeries	Integer	Returns the number of the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
GenerateHTM	II n Fægen	Creates an HTML Form element containing columns for one or more rows. Also returns an HTML Style element containing style sheet information.
GenerateResi	ı It.Setg	Returns an EAServer result set from a PowerBuilder user object running as a component on EAServer.
		Obsolete function
		GenerateResultSet is an obsolete function, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.
GetBandAtPo	Stten g	Returns the string containing the band in which the pointer is currently located followed by a tab character (~t) and the number of the row associated with the band.
GetBorderSty		Returns a Border enumerated datatype indicating the border style of the specified column in the DataWindow control. Values are:
		Box!
		Lowered!
		NoBorder!
		Raised!
		ResizeBorder!
		ShadowBox!
		Underline!
GetChanges	Long	Retrieves changes made to a DataWindow into a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetChild	Integer	Stores in the specified variable the name of the child DataWindow in the specified column.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
GetClickedC	o lutag er	Returns the number of the column in the DataWindow control that the user clicked or double-clicked.
GetClickedR	okong	Returns the number of the row in the DataWindow control that the user clicked or double-clicked.
GetColumn	Integer	Returns the number of the current column in the DataWindow control.
GetColumnN	a Sme ng	Returns the name of the current column in the DataWindow control.
GetContextSe	łwieger	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetData	Double	Returns the value of the specified data in the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control. See also GetDataValue.
GetDataPieE	xpltæær	Reports the percentage that a pie slice is exploded in a pie graph.
GetDataLabe	l lintg ger	Determines whether the data at a given data point is labeled in a DirectX 3D graph.
GetDataStyle	Integer	Finds out the appearance of a data point in a graph. Each data point in a series can have individual appearance settings. There are different syntaxes, depending on what settings you want to check.
GetDataTran	s pateger y	Obtains the transparency percentage of a series in a DirectX 3D graph.
GetDataValu	eInteger	Returns the value of the specified data in the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
GetFormat	String	Returns the format used for display in the specified column of the DataWindow control.
GetFullState	Long	Retrieves the complete state of a DataWindow into a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetItemDate	Date	Returns the date data in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetItemDate ²	ID nteTime	Returns the datetime data in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetItemDecin	n lae cimal	Returns the decimal data in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetItemNum	b © rouble	Returns the numeric data in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetItemStatu		Returns the status of the item at the specified row and column location in the specified buffer. Values are:
		DataModified!

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
		New!
		NewModified!
		NotModified!
GetItemString	gString	Returns the string data in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetItemTime	Time	Returns the time data in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetMessageT	String	Obtains the message text generated by a crosstab DataWindow object in the DataWindow control.
		Obsolete function
		GetMessageText is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Message text is now available as an argument in a user-defined DataWindow event associated with the token pbm_dwnmessagetext.
GetNextMod	ifi.exhg	Returns the number of the first row that was modified in the specified buffer in the specified DataWindow control after the specified row.
GetObjectAtl	Sinteg	Returns the string containing the name of the column or graphic control under the pointer in the DataWindow control, then a tab character (~t), and then the row number.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRow	Long	Returns an integer containing the number of the current row in the DataWindow control.
GetRowFrom	Row &d	Gets the row number of a row in a DataWindow control from the unique row identifier associated with that row.
GetRowIdFro	aladarg w	Gets the unique row identifier of a row in a DataWindow control from the row number associated with that row.
GetSelectedR	dmteger	Returns the number of the first selected row after the specified row number in the DataWindow control.
GetSeriesLab	dhinger	Obtains the series labelling for a DirectX 3D graph.
GetSeriesSty	d nteger	Finds out the appearance of a series in a graph. There are several syntaxes, depending on what settings you want.
GetSeriesTra	nkptægency	Obtains the transparency percentage of a series in a DirectX 3D graph.
GetSQLPrevi	eString	Returns the current SQL statement the DataWindow control is submitting to the database.
		Obsolete function

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
		GetSQLPreview is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. SQL syntax is now available as an event argument.
GetSQLSelec	S tring	Returns the current SELECT statement for the DataWindow control.
GetStateStatu	Long	Retrieves the current status of the internal state flags for a DataWindow and places this information in a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetText	String	Returns the text in the edit control over the current row and column of the DataWindow control.
GetTrans	Integer	Returns the values in the DataWindow Transaction object.
GetUpdateSta	a Ins eger	Stores the number of the row that will be updated in a variable, and the dwBuffer enumerated datatype identifying the buffer containing the row in another variable.
		Obsolete function
		GetUpdateStatus is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Update status is now available as an argument in the DataWindow control DBError and SQLPreview events.
GetValidate	String	Returns the validation rule used in the specified column of the DataWindow control.
GetValue	String	Returns the specified item in the value list for the specified column.
GroupCalc	Integer	Recalculates the breaks in the groups in the DataWindow control.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
ImportClipbo	drd ng	Copies data from the clipboard to the DataWindow control.
ImportFile	Long	Copies data from a file to the DataWindow control.
ImportJson	Long	Inserts data from a JSON string into the DataWindow control.
ImportJsonB	у Кел уд	Inserts data from a JSON string into the DataWindow control according to the JSON key name.
ImportString	Long	Copies data from a string to the DataWindow control.
InsertDocume	elntteger	Inserts a rich text format or plain text file into a DataWindow control. You use a function parameter to specify how the new content is added:
		It can be inserted at the insertion point.
		It can replace all existing content.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
		This function applies only to DataWindow controls whose content has the RichText presentation style.
InsertRow	Long	Inserts a new initialized row before the specified row in the DataWindow control.
IsSelected	Boolean	Returns true if the specified row in the DataWindow is selected; returns false if the row is not selected or is greater than the number of rows in the DataWindow control.
LineCount	Integer	Determines the number of lines in an edit control that allows multiple lines.
ModifiedCou	rItong	Returns the number of rows that have been modified in the DataWindow control but have not yet been updated in the associated database table.
Modify	String	Uses the specification contained in a string to modify the DataWindow control.
Move	Integer	Moves the specified DataWindow control to a specified location.
ObjectAtPoir	t gr ObjectTyp	Returns the number of the series the pointer is over and the number of the data point in the graph in the DataWindow control and identifies the object type.
OLEActivate	Integer	Activates OLE for the OLE object in the specified row and column of the DataWindow control.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard into the edit control over the current row and column in the DataWindow control.
PasteRTF	Long	Pastes rich text data from a string into a DataWindow control whose content has the RichText presentation style.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the DataWindow control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the DataWindow control.
Position	Integer	Syntax 1: Reports the insertion point's position in the edit control over the current row and column of the DataWindow control.
		Syntax 2: Reports the line and column position of the insertion point or the start and end of selected text in a DataWindow control whose content has the RichText presentation style.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the DataWindow control.
Print	Integer	Sends the content of the DataWindow control to the current printer. This function has several syntaxes.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
PrintCancel	Integer	Cancels the print job and deletes the spool file (if any) when the content of the DataWindow control is sent to print.
		This function has two syntaxes. Use Syntax 1 when Syntax 1 of the Print function is used to send the content of the DataWindow control to the current printer.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the selected text in the edit control with the specified string.
ReselectRow	Integer	Accesses the database to reselect all columns that can be updated and refreshes all timestamp columns in a row in the DataWindow control.
Reset	Integer	Clears all the data from a DataWindow control.
Reset	Integer	Deletes the data, the categories, or the series from a graph within a DataWindow object with an external data source.
ResetDataCo	l ons eger	Resets the color of a data point to the color specified for the series.
ResetTransO	o Jnú ger	Stops the DataWindow control from using a programmer-defined Transaction object (thereafter, the DataWindow uses its internal Transaction object).
ResetUpdate	Integer	Resets the update flags for the DataWindow control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the width and height of the DataWindow control.
Retrieve	Long	Retrieves rows from the database for the DataWindow control.
RowCount	Long	Returns the number of rows currently available in the DataWindow control (all the rows retrieved minus any deleted rows plus any inserted rows minus any rows that have been filtered out).
RowsCopy	Integer	Copies a range of rows from one DataWindow control to another or from one buffer to another within a single DataWindow control.
RowsDiscard	Integer	Discards a range of rows. The rows cannot be restored unless retrieved from the database.
RowsMove	Integer	Clears a range of rows from a DataWindow control and inserts the rows in another DataWindow control or another buffer of the same DataWindow control.
SaveAs	Integer	Saves the data represented in the specified graph in the DataWindow control to the specified file, in the specified format.
SaveAs	Integer	Saves the content of the DataWindow control to the specified file, in the specified format, with or without column headings at the beginning.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
SaveAsAscii	Long	Saves the content of a DataWindow into a standard ASCII text file.
SaveNativePl	IntegBi ob	Saves the PDF file into a blob variable when you use the PDFlib method to save data from a DataWindow object to a PDF file.
Scroll	Integer	Scrolls the edit control of a DataWindow control in the specified direction the specified number of lines.
ScrollNextPa	g le ong	Syntax 1: Scrolls forward by the number of rows showing in the DataWindow (when the DataWindow control contents does not have the RichText presentation style).
		Syntax 2: Scrolls to the next page of the document in a DataWindow control whose content has the RichText presentation style.
ScrollNextRo	k ong	Scrolls the DataWindow control to the next row. ScrollNextRow changes the current row but not the current column.
ScrollPriorPa	gle ong	Syntax 1: Scrolls backward by the number of rows showing in the DataWindow (when the DataWindow control content does not have the RichText presentation style).
		Syntax 2: Scrolls to the prior page of the document in a DataWindow control whose content has the RichText presentation style.
ScrollPriorRo	Nong	Scrolls to the previous row. The ScrollPriorRow function changes the current row in the DataWindow control but does not change the current column.
ScrollToRow	Integer	Causes the control to scroll to the specified row. ScrollToRow changes the current row in the DataWindow control but does not change the current column.
SelectedLeng	tInteger	Reports the total number of characters and spaces (length) in the selected text in the edit control over the current row and column.
SelectedLine	Integer	Reports the line number in the edit control over the current row and column.
SelectedStart	Integer	Reports the starting position in the edit control over the current row and column.
SelectedText	String	Reports what text (if any) is selected in the edit control over the current row and column of the DataWindow control.
SelectRow	Integer	Selects or deselects the specified row in the DataWindow control.
SelectText	Integer	Syntax 1: Selects text in the edit control of a DataWindow control (other than one whose content is in the RichText

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
Tunetion	returneu	presentation style). You specify where the selection begins and how many characters to select.
		Syntax 2: Selects text beginning and ending at the specified line and character positions in a DataWindow control whose content is in the RichText presentation style.
SelectTextAl	lInteger	Selects all the content of a DataWindow control with the RichText presentation style.
SelectTextLi	n E nteger	Selects the line containing the insertion point in a DataWindow control with the RichText presentation style.
SelectTextWo	o Ind teger	Selects the word containing the insertion point in a DataWindow control with the RichText presentation style.
SeriesCount	Integer	Returns the number of series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
SeriesName	String	Returns the name of the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control.
SetActionCoo	denteger	Defines the action a DataWindow control takes following an event.
		Obsolete function
		SetActionCode is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. You now set return codes in a return statement in the event script.
SetBorderSty	l E nteger	Sets the border style of the specified column in the DataWindow control.
SetChanges	Long	Applies changes captured with GetChanges to a DataWindow. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
SetColumn	Integer	Makes the specified column the current column in the DataWindow control.
SetDataPieEx	phodg er	Explodes a pie slice in a pie graph.
SetDataLabel	l Int eger	Sets the series label for a DirectX 3D graph.
SetDataStyle	Integer	For the specified data point in the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control:
		Syntax 1: Sets the data point's color.
		Syntax 2: Sets the line style and width for the data point.
		Syntax 3: Sets the fill pattern or symbol for the data point.
SetDataTrans	plategey	Sets the transparency percentage for a data point in a series in a DirectX 3D graph.
SetDetailHei	ghtteger	Sets the height of each row in a specified range.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
SetFilter	Integer	Defines the filter criteria for the DataWindow control. The actual filtering is performed by the Filter function.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the DataWindow control.
SetFormat	Integer	Sets the display format for the specified column of the DataWindow control.
SetFullState	Long	Applies the contents of a DataWindow blob retrieved by GetFullState to a DataWindow. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
SetHTMLAc	t ilont eger	Accepts action and context information about user interaction with the Web DataWindow client control in a Web browser so that newly generated HTML can reflect any requested changes.
		Obsolete function
		SetHTMLAction is an obsolete function, because Web DataWindow technology is obsolete.
SetItem	Integer	Sets the value of the specified row and column of the specified DataWindow control.
SetItemStatus	Integer	Sets the status of a row in a specified column of the DataWindow control in the specified buffer.
SetPosition	Integer	Syntax 1: Specifies whether the DataWindow control always displays on top in the front-to-back order within the window.
		Syntax 2: Moves an object within the DataWindow to another band or changes the front-to-back order of objects within a band.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the DataWindow control after each change in its properties or contents.
SetRow	Integer	Makes the specified row the current row in the DataWindow control.
SetRowFocus	Indigator	Sets the current row indicator for the DataWindow control.
SetSeriesLab	e lhite ger	Sets the series label for a DirectX 3D graph.
SetSeriesStyl	eInteger	For the specified series in the specified graph in the DataWindow control:
		Syntax 1: Sets the series color.
		Syntax 2: Sets the linestyle and width.
		Syntax 3: Sets the fill pattern or symbol for data markers in the series.
		Syntax 4: Specifies that the series is an overlay.
SetSort	Integer	Defines the sort criteria for the DataWindow control. The actual sorting is performed by the Sort function.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
SetSeriesTran	n šptægac y	Sets the transparency percentage of a series in a DirectX 3D type graph.
SetSQLPrevi	eknteger	Sets the current SQL statement for the DataWindow control.
SetSQLSelec	tInteger	Changes the current SELECT statement for the DataWindow control.
SetTabOrder	Integer	Changes the tab value of the specified column in the DataWindow control.
SetText	Integer	Replaces the text in the edit control at the current row and column of the DataWindow control with the specified text.
SetTrans	Integer	Sets values in the DataWindow control's internal Transaction object.
SetTransObje	dnteger	Sets the Transaction object for the DataWindow control and provides control over the transaction, including the ability to commit from a script.
SetValidate	Integer	Changes the validation rule used for the specified column of the DataWindow control.
SetValue	Integer	Sets the value of the specified item in the value list or the code table of the specified column of the DataWindow control.
SetWSObject	Integer	Causes a DataWindow control to use a programmer-specified connection object. The connection object provides the information necessary for communicating with a Web service data source.
ShareData	Integer	Shares data between a primary DataWindow control and a secondary DataWindow control.
ShareDataOf	fInteger	Turns off sharing for the DataWindow control. If that control is the primary DataWindow control, all secondary DataWindow controls are disconnected and their DataWindow objects no longer contain data.
Show	Integer	Makes the DataWindow control visible.
ShowHeadFo	dnteger	In a RichText presentation style DataWindow control, displays the panels for editing the header and footer or hides the panels and returns to editing the main text.
Sort	Integer	Sorts the rows of the DataWindow control based on its current sort criteria.
TextLine	String	Reports information about the edit control over the current row and column.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the DataWindow control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
Undo	Integer	Cancels the last edit in the edit control over the current row and column.
Update	Integer	Sends to the database all inserts, deletes, and updates of the DataWindow control.

2.17 DataWindowChild object

A DataWindowChild object is a nested report or a DropDownDataWindow within a DataWindow object. For example, a DataWindow object that populates a column having the DropDownDataWindow edit style is a DataWindowChild object.

The DataWindowChild object is used for accessing DataWindow objects independently from DataWindow functionality, and it inherits from the system Structure object because it needs storage and autoinstantiation.

A DataWindowChild object has no events.

Obsolete functions

Several DataWindowChild functions are described as obsolete, which means that although the functions operate as usual in this release, they will be removed in a future release. You should replace all use of these functions as soon as possible.

2.17.1 Properties

Table 2.48:

DataWindov property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.17.2 Functions

Table 2.49:

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
AcceptText	Integer	Applies the contents of the edit control to the current item in the DataWindowChild buffer.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the DataWindowChild.
ClearValues	String	Deletes all the items from a value list or code table associated with a DataWindow column.
CrosstabDialo	olgnteger	Displays the Crosstab Definition dialog box so that the user can modify the definition of a crosstab DataWindow object during execution.
DBCancel	Integer	Cancels a database retrieval in progress.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
DBErrorCode	eLong	Returns the error code (number) generated by a database error.
		Obsolete function
		DBErrorCode is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Database error codes are now available as event arguments.
DBErrorMess	s S geing	Returns a string containing the text of the error message generated by a database error.
		Obsolete function
		DBErrorMessage is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Database error messages are now available as event arguments.
DeletedCoun	tLong	Returns the number of rows that have been deleted from the DataWindowChild but have not yet been updated in the associated database table.
DeleteRow	Integer	Deletes the specified row from the DataWindowChild.
Describe	String	Returns requested information about the structure of the DataWindowChild.
ExportJson	String	Exports data from the DataWindow control, DataStore object, or DataWindowChild object to the JSON string.
Filter	Integer	Displays specific rows of the DataWindowChild based on its current filter.
FilteredCoun	Integer	Returns the number of rows that are not visible because of the DataWindowChild's current filter.
Find	Long	Returns the number of the first row that meets the search criteria within a specified search range in the detail area of a DataWindowChild.
FindGroupCh	alingeg	Searches starting at a specified row for the first break for the specified group in the DataWindowChild.
GetBandAtPo	Stteng	Returns the string containing the band in which the pointer is currently located followed by a tab character (~t) and the number of the row associated with the band.
GetBorderSty		Returns a Border enumerated datatype indicating the border style of the specified column in the DataWindowChild. Values are:
		Box!
		Lowered!
		NoBorder!
		Raised!

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
		ResizeBorder!
		ShadowBox!
		Underline!
GetChanges	Long	Retrieves changes made to a DataWindow into a blob. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
GetChild	Integer	Provides a reference to a child DataWindow or to a report in a composite DataWindow, which you can use in DataWindow functions to manipulate that DataWindow or report.
GetClickedCo	o lutag er	Returns the number of the column in the DataWindowChild that the user clicked or double-clicked.
GetClickedRo	okong	Returns the number of the row in the DataWindowChild that the user clicked or double-clicked.
GetColumn	Integer	Returns the number of the current column in the DataWindowChild.
GetColumnN	a Sme ng	Returns the name of the current column in the DataWindowChild.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetFormat	String	Returns the format used for display in the specified column of the DataWindowChild.
GetItemDate	Date	Returns the date data in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.
GetItemDate	Tibate Time	Returns the datetime data in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.
GetItemDeci	n lae cimal	Returns the decimal data in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.
GetItemNum	b © rouble	Returns the numeric data in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.
GetItemStatu		Returns the status of the item at the specified row and column location in the specified buffer. Values are:
		DataModified!
		New!
		NewModified!
		NotModified!
GetItemString	gString	Returns the string data in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.
GetItemTime	Time	Returns the time data in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
GetNextMod	i fical g	Returns the number of the first row that was modified in the specified buffer in the specified DataWindowChild after the specified row.
GetObjectAtl	Striteg	Returns the string containing the name of the DataWindowChild column or graphic control under the pointer in the DataWindowChild, then a tab character (~t), and then the row number.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRow	Long	Returns an integer containing the number of the current row in the DataWindowChild.
GetRowFrom	Row &d	Gets the row number of a row in a DataWindow control from the unique row identifier associated with that row.
GetRowIdFro	aladang w	Gets the unique row identifier of a row in a DataWindow control from the row number associated with that row.
GetSelectedR	dmteger	Returns the number of the first selected row after the specified row number in the DataWindowChild.
GetSQLPrevi	Est ring	Returns the current SQL statement the DataWindowChild is submitting to the database.
		Obsolete function
		GetSQLPreview is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. SQL syntax is now available as an event argument.
GetSQLSelec	String	Returns the current SELECT statement for the DataWindowChild.
GetText	String	Returns the text in the edit control over the current row and column of the DataWindowChild.
GetTrans	Integer	Returns the values in the DataWindowChild Transaction object.
GetUpdateSta	a fus eger	Stores the number of the row that will be updated in a variable and the dwBuffer enumerated datatype identifying the buffer containing the row in another variable.
		Obsolete function
		GetUpdateStatus is an obsolete function and will be discontinued in a future release. Update status is now available as an argument in the DataWindow DBError and SQLPreview events.
GetValidate	String	Returns the validation rule used in the specified column of the DataWindowChild.
GetValue	String	Returns the specified item in the value list for the specified column.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
GroupCalc	Integer	Recalculates the breaks in the groups in the DataWindowChild.
ImportClipbo	drd ng	Copies data from the clipboard to the DataWindowChild.
ImportFile	Long	Copies data from a file to the DataWindowChild.
ImportJson	Long	Inserts data from a JSON string into the DataWindowChild.
ImportJsonBy	у Кю уу	Inserts data from a JSON string into the DataWindowChild according to the JSON key name.
ImportString	Long	Copies data from a string to the DataWindowChild.
InsertRow	Long	Inserts a new initialized row before the specified row in the DataWindowChild.
IsSelected	Boolean	Returns true if the specified row in the DataWindowChild is selected; returns false if the row is not selected or is greater than the number of rows in the DataWindowChild.
ModifiedCou	rltong	Returns the number of rows that have been modified in the DataWindowChild but have not yet been updated in the associated database table.
Modify	String	Uses the specification contained in a string to modify the DataWindowChild.
OLEActivate	Integer	Activates OLE for the OLE object in the specified row and column of the DataWindowChild.
ReselectRow	Integer	Accesses the database to reselect all columns that can be updated and refreshes all timestamp columns in a row in the DataWindowChild.
Reset	Integer	Clears all the data from a DataWindowChild.
ResetTransO	o Jnte ger	Stops the DataWindowChild from using a programmer-defined Transaction object (thereafter, the DataWindow uses its internal Transaction object).
ResetUpdate	Integer	Resets the update flags for the DataWindowChild.
Retrieve	Long	Causes the DataWindowChild to retrieve rows from the database.
RowCount	Long	Returns the number of rows currently available in the DataWindowChild (all the rows retrieved minus any deleted rows plus any inserted rows minus any rows that have been filtered out).
RowsCopy	Integer	Copies a range of rows from one DataWindowChild to another or from one buffer to another within a single DataWindowChild.
RowsDiscard	Integer	Discards a range of rows. The rows cannot be restored unless retrieved from the database.

DataWindov function	Datatype returned	Description
RowsMove	Integer	Clears a range of rows from a DataWindowChild and inserts the rows in another DataWindowChild or another buffer of the same DataWindowChild.
SaveAs	Integer	Saves the contents of the DataWindowChild control to the specified file, in the specified format, with or without column headings at the beginning.
SaveNativeP	DhitegBi lob	Saves the PDF file into a blob variable when you use the PDFlib method to save data from a DataWindow object to a PDF file.
ScrollNextPa	gleong	Scrolls forward by the number of rows showing in the DataWindowChild.
ScrollNextRo	www.	Scrolls the DataWindowChild to the next row. ScrollNextRow changes the current row but does not change the current column.
ScrollPriorPa	geong	Scrolls backward by the number of rows showing in the DataWindowChild.
ScrollPriorRo	Wong	Scrolls to the previous row. The ScrollPriorRow function changes the current row in the DataWindowChild but does not change the current column.
ScrollToRow	Integer	Causes the control to scroll to the specified row. ScrollToRow changes the current row in the DataWindowChild but does not change the current column.
SelectRow	Integer	Selects or deselects the specified row of the DataWindowChild.
SetBorderSty	l e nteger	Sets the border style of the specified column in the DataWindowChild.
SetChanges	Long	Applies changes captured with GetChanges to a DataWindow. This function is used primarily in distributed applications.
SetColumn	Integer	Makes the specified column the current column in the DataWindowChild.
SetDetailHei	g ht teger	Sets the height of each row in a specified range.
SetFilter	Integer	Defines the filter criteria for the DataWindowChild. The actual filtering is performed by the Filter function.
SetFormat	Integer	Sets the display format for the specified column of the DataWindowChild.
SetItem	Integer	Sets the value of the specified row and column of the specified DataWindowChild.
SetItemStatus	Integer	Sets the status of a row in a specified column of the DataWindowChild in the specified buffer.
SetPosition	Integer	Moves an object within the DataWindowChild to another band or changes the front-to-back order of objects within a band.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the DataWindowChild after each change in its properties or contents.

DataWindov		Description
function	returned	
SetRow	Integer	Makes the specified row the current row in the DataWindowChild.
SetRowFocus	Indégat or	Sets the current row indicator for the DataWindowChild.
SetSort	Integer	Defines the sort criteria for the DataWindowChild. The actual sorting is performed by the Sort function.
SetSQLPrevi	elmteger	Sets the current SQL statement for the DataWindowChild.
SetSQLSelec	tInteger	Changes the current SELECT statement for the DataWindowChild.
SetTabOrder	Integer	Changes the tab value of the specified column in the DataWindowChild.
SetText	Integer	Replaces the text in the edit control at the current row and column of the DataWindowChild with the specified text.
SetTrans	Integer	Sets values in the DataWindowChild's internal Transaction object.
SetTransObje	dnteger	Sets the Transaction object for the DataWindowChild and provides control over the transaction, including the ability to commit from a script.
SetValidate	Integer	Changes the validation rule used for the specified column of the DataWindowChild.
SetValue	Integer	Sets the value of the specified item in the value list or the code table of the specified column of the DataWindowChild.
SetWSObject	Integer	Causes a DataWindowChild to use a programmer-specified connection object. The connection object provides the information necessary for communicating with a Web service data source.
ShareData	Integer	Shares data between a primary DataWindowChild and a secondary DataWindowChild.
ShareDataOf	fInteger	Turns off sharing for the DataWindowChild. If that object is the primary DataWindowChild, all secondary DataWindowChild objects are disconnected and their DataWindow objects no longer contain data.
Sort	Integer	Sorts the rows of the DataWindowChild based on its current sort criteria.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.
Update	Integer	Sends to the database all inserts, deletes, and updates of the DataWindowChild.

2.18 DatePicker control

A DatePicker control makes it easy for users to select a date. It has two parts: a drop-down list box that displays the date in a selected format, and a grid that resembles the

MonthCalendar control. Unlike the MonthCalendar control, which can be used to select a range of dates, the DatePicker control is used to select a single date.

2.18.1 Properties

Table 2.50:

DatePicker	Datatype	Description
property		
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for a control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	Describes the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes the kind of user interface element that the control is.
AllowEdit	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can select the text string in the control and edit it. Values are:
		TRUE The user can select the text string in the control and edit it.
		FALSE The user can change the date only by modifying one part of the date at a time or by selecting a date from the dropdown calendar (default).
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border (default).
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
CalendarBack	kCohgr	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the calendar: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB". The default is Window Background.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

DatePicker	Datatype	Description
property		
CalendarFont		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the calendar. The default is ansi!. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the PowerBuilder Browser. This property cannot be set in the painter.
CalendarFont	• •	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the calendar. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
		To set this property in the painter, select the Browse button next to the FontName field on the Calendar page in the Properties view.
CalendarFont	Name	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text in the calendar displays (for example, Arial or Tahoma).
		To set this property in the painter, select the Browse button next to the FontName field on the Calendar page in the Properties view.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarFont		Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the calendar. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
		This property cannot be set in the painter.
CalendarFont	Wieight	Specifies the weight of the font in the calendar in the range 0 through 1000, where 400 is normal and 700 is bold. A default weight is used if FontWeight is 0. The default is normal.
		To set this property in the painter, select the Browse button next to the FontName field on the Calendar page in the Properties view.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarItalio	cBoolean	Specifies whether the text in the calendar is italic. Values are:

DatePicker property	Datatype	Description
property		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic (default).
		For more information, see <u>Italic</u> . To set this property in the painter, select the Browse button next to the FontName field on the Calendar page in the Properties view.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarText	Colog	Specifies the numeric value of the text color in the calendar:
		-2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB". The default is Window Text.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarText	Sixte ger	Specifies the size of text in the calendar. The default is 9. To set this property in the painter, select the Browse button next to the FontName field on the Calendar page in the Properties view.
CalendarTitle	Barlg Color	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the calendar's title: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarTitle	Textigolor	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text in the calendar's title: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarTrai	l ingifig xtColor	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for leading and trailing days in the calendar: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarUnd	e Blòio dean	Specifies that text in the calendar is underlined. The default is false. To set this property in the painter, select the Browse button next to the FontName field on the Calendar page in the Properties view.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
ClassDefiniti	o P rowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

DatePicker property	Datatype	Description
CustomForm	a S tring	Specifies a custom format for the display of the date in a DatePicker control.
DateValue	Date	Gets the date value assigned to the control. The default is the current date. This property cannot be set in the painter and should not be set in script. Use the <u>Value</u> property to set the date value.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to put the control into Drag mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
DropDownRi	₿ olean	Specifies whether the drop-down calendar is aligned with the right or left side of the DatePicker control. Values are:
		TRUE The calendar is aligned with the right side of the control.
		FALSE The calendar is aligned with the left side of the control (default).
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected (default).
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Arial or Tahoma).
FirstDayOfW	WeekDay (enumerated)	Specifies which day of the week displays on the left in the calendar.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The default is ansi!. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:

DatePicker property	Datatype	Description
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
FontWeight	Integer	Specifies the weight of the font in the control in the range 0 through 1000, where 400 is normal and 700 is bold. A default weight is used if FontWeight is 0.
Format		Repecifies the format of the date displayed in a DatePicker
	(enumerated)	control. Values are:
		DtfCustom!
		DtfLongDate!
		DtfShortDate!
		DtfTime!
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic (default).
MaxDate	Date	Specifies the latest date the user can select from the calendar. The default is December 31, 2999.
MinDate	Date	Specifies the earliest date the user can select from the calendar. The default is January 1, 1800.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order.
ShowUpDow	<u>B</u> oolean	Specifies whether the control uses an up-down control to change the date and/or time. Values are:
		TRUE The control has an up-down control.

DatePicker property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE The control has a drop-down arrow that displays a calendar (default).
		This property cannot be changed at runtime.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Text	String	Gets the text associated with the control. The string returned is equivalent to the <u>Value</u> property with the <u>Format</u> or <u>CustomFormat</u> applied. This property cannot be set in the painter and should not be set in script.
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
TimeValue	Time	Gets the time value assigned to the control. The default is the current time. This property cannot be set in the painter and should not be set in script. Use the <u>Value</u> property to set the time value.
TodayCircle	Boolean	Specifies whether the border of today's date on the calendar displays in red. Values are:
		TRUE The Today circle is displayed (default).
		FALSE The Today circle is not displayed.
TodaySection	Boolean	Specifies whether the label "Today:" followed by the current date displays at the bottom of the calendar. Values are:
		TRUE The Today section is displayed (default).
		FALSE The Today section is not displayed.
		This property does not work correctly on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined (default).
Value	DateTime	Specifies the date/time value assigned to the control. The default is the current date and time.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible (default).
		FALSE Control is not visible.

DatePicker property	Datatype	Description
WeekNumbe	rB oolean	Specifies whether a number representing the number of the week in the year displays to the left of each row in the calendar. Values are:
		TRUE Week numbers are displayed.
		FALSE Week numbers are not displayed (default).
		This property does not work correctly on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window) in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window) in PowerBuilder units.

2.18.2 Events

Table 2.51:

DatePicker event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected) with the left mouse button
CloseUp	When the user has selected a date from the drop-down calendar and the calendar closes
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is clicked twice with the left mouse button
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
DropDown	When the user has clicked the drop-down arrow in a DatePicker control before the drop-down calendar displays
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Controls message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
PreCreateWindow	This event is reserved for future use
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

DatePicker event	Occurs
UserString	When the user has edited the contents of the control and the control has lost focus
ValueChanged	When the Value property in a DatePicker control changes

2.18.3 Functions

Table 2.52:

DatePicker function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetCalendar	Long	This function is reserved for future use
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
GetText	String	Returns the text displayed in the control
GetToday	Date	Returns the date that the calendar uses as today's date
GetValue	Integer	Returns the date and time in the Value property
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the event queue for the specified object
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
SetToday	Integer	Sets the value that is used by the calendar as today's date
SetValue	Integer	Sets the date and time in the Value property
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.19 DropDownListBox control

A DropDownListBox control combines the features of a ListBox and a SingleLineEdit. In some DropDownListBoxes, the user can select an item by entering the name of the item in the text box. In other DropDownListBoxes, the user cannot modify the text box and must click the item or enter the first character of the item to select it.

Making the list display

In the development environment, if the list portion of the DropDownListBox is not displayed because ShowList is set to FALSE, the user must click the down arrow at the end of the text box to display it.

2.19.1 Properties

Table 2.53:

DropDownL property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	The ASCII value of the accelerator key you want to assign as the accelerator for the control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
AllowEdit	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can enter text in the text box portion of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Can enter text in the text box.
		FALSE Cannot enter text in the text box.
		AllowEdit must be true when ShowList is true.
AutoHScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether the text box portion of the control scrolls horizontally automatically when data is entered or deleted. Values are:
		TRUE TextBox scrolls horizontally automatically.
		FALSE TextBox does not scroll horizontally automatically.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. However, setting this property to FALSE has no effect on the DropDownListBox control.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!

DropDownL property	Datatype	Description
property		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder will move the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically put in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically put in Drag mode. You have to put the control into Drag mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!

DropDownL property	Datatype	Description
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>HScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar is displayed in the control. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar is displayed
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar is not displayed
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic
		FALSE Text is not italic
Item[]	String array	Specifies the contents of the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox.
Limit	Integer	Specifies the maximum number of characters (0 to 32,767) the user can enter in the SingleLineEdit portion of the DropDownListBox (0 means unlimited).
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer that will be used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order
ShowList	Boolean	Specifies whether the option list always displays in the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox when the control displays. Values are:
		TRUE Option list always displays.

DropDownI property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE Option list displays only when the user clicks the down arrow.
		This property is usually set to false. Note that AllowEdit must be true when ShowList is true.
Sorted	Boolean	Specifies whether the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox is automatically sorted in ascending order. Values are:
		TRUE ListBox automatically sorted.
		FALSE ListBox not sorted.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text in the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
<u>Underline</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar is displayed in the control. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.19.2 Events

Table 2.54:

DropDownListBo	Occurs
event	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Modified	When the control loses focus, the text has been changed, and Enter or Tab is pressed.
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control
SelectionChanged	When an item is selected in the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox

2.19.3 Functions

Table 2.55:

DropDownI function	Datatype returned	Description
AddItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the end of the ListBox portion of the control.
		The AddItem function does not update the Item[] property of this control.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Clear	Integer	Clears the selected text from the control (but does not place it in the clipboard).
Сору	Integer	Copies (but does not delete) the selected text from the control to the clipboard.
Cut	Integer	Cuts (deletes) the selected text (if any) from the control and places it in the clipboard.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes the item indicated by the index from the ListBox portion of the control.

DropDownL function	Datatype returned	Description
DirList	Boolean	Populates the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox with a list of the files of the specified type that match the specified file pattern.
DirSelect	Boolean	Retrieves the current selection from the specified control and puts it in the specified variable.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
FindItem	Integer	Finds the first item in the ListBox portion of the control (after the specified index) that begins with a specified string.
GetContextSe	fuieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible (hidden).
InsertItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox before the item indicated by the index.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard (if any) at the cursor location in the control.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the cursor in the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the selected text in the control with the specified string.
Reset	Integer	Deletes all items from the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectedLeng	tInteger	Returns the length of the selected text in the control.
SelectedStart	Integer	Returns the starting position of the selected text (if any) in the control.
SelectedText	String	Returns a string containing the selected text (if any) from the control (the AllowEdit property must be true).
SelectItem	Integer	Finds and highlights an item in the control. Use Syntax 1 when you know the text of the item but not its position. Use Syntax 2 when you know the position of the item in the control's list or you want to clear the current selection.
SelectText	Integer	Selects the text in the control specified by the starting position and length; when the control has focus, highlights the text.

DropDownL function	Datatype returned	Description
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus in the first item in the box.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
Text	String	Returns the text of the item in the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox that is identified by the index.
TotalItems	Integer	Returns the total number of items in the ListBox portion of the DropDownListBox.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Control	Returns the type of the control.

2.20 DropDownPictureListBox control

A DropDownPictureListBox control is similar to a DropDownListBox, but with the addition of pictures associated with the items in the list.

The pictures used in this control can be bitmaps (BMP file), icons (ICO file), cursors (CUR file), GIF (but not animated GIF) files, or JPEG files.

Making the list display

In the development environment, if the list portion of the DropDownPictureListBox is not displayed because ShowList is set to FALSE, the user must click the down arrow at the end of the text box to display it.

2.20.1 Properties

Table 2.56:

DropDownP ListBox property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	The ASCII value of the accelerator key you want to assign as the accelerator for the control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptġon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	Accessible Ro (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.

DropDownP	Datatype	Description
ListBox property		
AllowEdit	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can enter text in the text box portion of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Can enter text in the text box.
		FALSE Cannot enter text in the text box.
		AllowEdit must be true when ShowList is true.
AutoHScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether the text box portion of the control scrolls horizontally automatically when data is entered or deleted. Values are:
		TRUE Text box scrolls horizontally automatically.
		FALSE Text box does not scroll horizontally automatically.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Note that setting this property to FALSE has no effect on the control; it always has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Not applicable.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder will move the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag Mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag Mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag Mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag Mode by using the Drag function.

DropDownP ListBox	Datatype	Description
property		
<u>DragIcon</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet	FontCharSet (enumerated)	Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>HScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar is displayed in the control. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar is displayed.

DropDownP ListBox property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar is not displayed.
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Item[]	String array	Specifies the initial item strings in the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox. This array is not updated after initialization.
<u>ItemPictureIr</u>	dnteger	Initial picture index for each item in the Item property array. These values are not updated after initialization.
Limit	Integer	Specifies the maximum number of characters (0 to 32,767) the user can enter in the SingleLineEdit portion of the DropDownPictureListBox (0 means unlimited).
<u>PictureHeigh</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the picture, in pixels.
		This property can be set only when there are no images in the image list. If the value is 0 at the time the first image is added, the size of that image is used to set the size of the rest of the images added.
PictureMaskO	hlong	Specifies the numeric value of the color to be used to mask user-defined bitmaps added through the initial picture array or with the AddPicture function. System-defined bitmaps know their mask color and this color is ignored. This value is used when a picture is added, and therefore can be changed between AddPicture calls.
		Values can be: -2 to 16,777,215.
		For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
PictureName	S tring	Specifies the names of the files containing the pictures added during initialization. The file extension BMP, ICO, GIF, JPG, or JPEG is required.
		This property is not updated after initialization.
PictureWidth	Integer	Specifies the width of the picture, in pixels.
		This property can be set only when there are no images in the image list. If the value is 0 at the time the first image is added, the size of that image is used to set the size of the rest of the images added.

DropDownP	Datatype	Description
ListBox property		
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer that will be used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
ShowList	Boolean	Specifies whether the option list always displays in the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox when the control displays. Values are:
		TRUE Option list always displays.
		FALSE Option list displays only when the user clicks the down arrow.
		This property is usually set to false. AllowEdit must be true when ShowList is true.
Sorted	Boolean	Specifies whether the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox is automatically sorted in ascending order. Values are:
		TRUE ListBox automatically sorted.
		FALSE ListBox not sorted.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text in the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.

DropDownF ListBox property	Datatype	Description
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar is displayed in the control. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.20.2 **Events**

Table 2.57:

DropDownPictur	Occurs
ListBox event	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated).
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control.
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control.
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control.
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).
Modified	When the control loses focus, the text has been changed, and enter or tab is pressed.
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control.
SelectionChanged	When an item is selected in the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox.

2.20.3 Functions

Table 2.58:

DropDownP	Datatype	Description
ListBox function	returned	
AddItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the end of the ListBox portion of the
ridditeiri	integer	control.
		The AddItem function does not update the Item[] or ItemPictureIndex[] properties of this control.
AddPicture	Integer	Adds the bitmap, icon, or cursor file to the main image list. This function does not update the PictureName[] property.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Clear	Integer	Clears the selected text from the control (but does not place it in the clipboard).
Сору	Integer	Copies (but does not delete) the selected text from the control to the clipboard.
Cut	Integer	Cuts (deletes) the selected text (if any) from the control and places it in the clipboard.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes the item indicated by the index from the ListBox portion of the control.
DeletePicture	Integer	Deletes the specified picture from the image list. This function does not update the PictureName[] property.
DeletePicture	Integer	Deletes all the pictures from the image list. This function does not update the PictureName[] property.
DirList	Boolean	Populates the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox with a list of the files of the specified type that match the specified file pattern.
DirSelect	Boolean	Retrieves the current selection from the specified control and puts it in the specified variable.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
FindItem	Integer	Finds the first item in the ListBox portion of the control (after the specified index) that begins with a specified string.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible (hidden).
InsertItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox before the item indicated by the index.
		This function does not update the Item[] or ItemPictureIndex[] properties of this control.

DropDownP ListBox function	Datatype returned	Description
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard (if any) at the cursor location in the control.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the cursor in the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the selected text in the control with the specified string.
Reset	Integer	Deletes all items from the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectedLeng	tInteger	Returns the length of the selected text in the control.
SelectedStart	Integer	Returns the starting position of the selected text (if any) in the control.
SelectedText	String	Returns a string containing the selected text (if any) from the control (the AllowEdit property must be true).
SelectItem	Integer	Finds and highlights an item in the control. Use Syntax 1 when you know the text of the item but not its position. Use Syntax 2 when you know the position of the item in the control's list or you want to clear the current selection.
SelectText	Integer	Selects the text in the control specified by the starting position and length; when the control has focus, highlights the text.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus in the first item in the box.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
Text	String	Returns the text of the item in the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox identified by the index.
TotalItems	Integer	Returns the total number of items in the ListBox portion of the DropDownPictureListBox.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Control	Returns the type of the control.

2.21 DynamicDescriptionArea object

DynamicDescriptionArea is a PowerBuilder system object that stores information about the input and output parameters used in Format 4 of dynamic SQL.

PowerBuilder provides a global DynamicDescriptionArea named SQLDA that you can use when you need a DynamicDescriptionArea variable. If necessary, you can declare and create additional variables of this type using this system object as the datatype.

For more information about using dynamic SQL, see Section 8.2, "Using dynamic SQL".

2.21.1 Properties

Table 2.59:

DynamicDes property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
NumInputs	Integer	Specifies the number of input parameters found in the dynamic SQL PREPARE statement.
		PowerBuilder populates this property when the DESCRIBE statement is executed.
NumOutputs	Integer	Specifies the number of output parameters found in the PREPARE statement.
		If the database supports output parameter description, PowerBuilder populates this property when the DESCRIBE statement is executed. If the database does not support output parameter description, PowerBuilder populates this property when the FETCH statement is executed.
InParmType[* -	Array containing values specifying the datatype of each input parameter. Values are:
		TypeBoolean!
		TypeByte!
		TypeDate!
		TypeDateTime!
		TypeDecimal!
		TypeDouble!
		TypeInteger!
		TypeLong!
		TypeLongLong!
		TypeReal!
		TypeString!

DynamicDes property	Datatype	Description
		TypeTime!
		TypeUInt!
		TypeULong!
		TypeUnknown!
OutParmType	• •	Array containing values specifying the datatype of each output parameter returned.

2.21.2 Events

Table 2.60:

DynamicDescrip event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs

2.21.3 Functions

Table 2.61:

DynamicDes function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetDynamicl	Datat e	Obtains data of type Date from the DynamicDescriptionArea after you have executed a dynamic SQL statement.
		Use GetDynamicDate when the value of OutParmType is TypeDate! for the value in the array that you want to retrieve.
GetDynamicI	Data Ti in n e	Obtains data of type DateTime from the DynamicDescriptionArea after you have executed a dynamic SQL statement.
		Use GetDynamicDateTime when the value of OutParmType is TypeDateTime! for the value in the array that you want to retrieve.
GetDynamicl	Deoing Mong	Obtains numeric data from the DynamicDescriptionArea after you have executed a dynamic SQL statement.
		Use GetDynamicDecimal when the value of OutParmType is TypeDecimal! or TypeLongLong! for the value in the array that you want to retrieve.

DynamicDes function	Datatype returned	Description
GetDynamic		Obtains numeric data from the DynamicDescriptionArea after you have executed a dynamic SQL statement.
		Use GetDynamicNumber when the value of OutParmType is TypeByte!, TypeInteger!, TypeDouble!, TypeLong!, TypeReal!, or TypeBoolean! for the value in the array that you want to retrieve.
GetDynamics	Stirig g	Obtains data of type String from the DynamicDescriptionArea after you have executed a dynamic SQL statement.
		Use GetDynamicString when the value of OutParmType is TypeString! for the value in the array that you want to retrieve.
GetDynamic	Ti m e e	Obtains data of type Time from the DynamicDescriptionArea after you have executed a dynamic SQL statement.
		Use GetDynamicTime when the value of OutParmType is TypeTime! for the value in the array that you want to retrieve.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the message queue for the object.
SetDynamicF	Ante ger	Specifies a value for an input parameter in the DynamicDescriptionArea that will be used in the SQL OPEN or EXECUTE statement.
		Use SetDynamicParm to fill the parameters in the input parameter descriptor array in the DynamicDescriptionArea.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.22 DynamicStagingArea object

DynamicStagingArea is a PowerBuilder system object that stores information for use in dynamic SQL statements.

The DynamicStagingArea object is the only connection between the execution of a statement and a Transaction object and is used internally by PowerBuilder. You cannot access information in DynamicStagingArea, and there are no properties associated with DynamicStagingArea.

PowerBuilder provides a global DynamicStagingArea variable named SQLSA that you can use when you need a DynamicStagingArea variable. If necessary, you can declare and create additional variables of this type using this system object as the datatype.

For more information about using dynamic SQL, see Section 8.2, "Using dynamic SQL".

2.22.1 Properties

Table 2.62:

DynamicStag property	DataType	Description
ClassDefinition		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.22.2 Events

Table 2.63:

DynamicStaging. event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs

2.22.3 Functions

Table 2.64:

DynamicStag	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.23 EditMask control

An EditMask is a box similar to a SingleLineEdit in which the user can enter and edit one line of text. The type and number of characters entered is restricted by the edit mask, and the appearance of the text is specified by the edit mask. For example, you can use an EditMask to format a telephone number or date automatically as the user enters it.

2.23.1 Properties

Table 2.65:

EditMask property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for the control.

EditMask	Datatype	Description
property	Ctrimtica	A description of the control and/on its narross for use has
AccessibleDe	Sympig on	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a
		button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo		Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
A 1'	(enumerated)	
Alignment	Alignment (enumerated)	Specifies the alignment of text in the control. Values are:
	(Chameratea)	Center!
		Justify!
		Left!
		Right!
AutoHScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder automatically scrolls left or right when data is entered into or deleted from the control. Values are:
		TRUE Scrolls horizontally automatically.
		FALSE Does not scroll automatically.
AutoSkip	Boolean	Specifies whether to skip to the next control when the last character in the edit mask has been entered. Values are:
		TRUE Skip to the next control automatically.
		FALSE Do not skip to the next control.
AutoVScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder automatically scrolls up or down when data is entered into or deleted from the control. Values are:
		TRUE Scrolls vertically automatically.
		FALSE Scrolling not automatic.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
		-
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!

EditMask property	Datatype	Description
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
CalendarBac	k Cohg r	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the calendar: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB". The default is Window Background.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarText	Colog	Specifies the numeric value of the text color in the calendar:-2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB". The default is Window Text.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarTitle	Barlg Color	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the calendar's title: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarTitle	Text@olor	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text in the calendar's title: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
CalendarTrai	lingifigextColor	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for leading and trailing days in the calendar: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
ClassDefiniti	o li nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisplayData	String	Specifies the data that initially displays in the control.
DisplayOnly	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is display only and cannot be changed by the user. Values are:
		TRUE Text is display only.
		FALSE Text can be changed by user.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:

EditMask property	Datatype	Description
property		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
DropDownCa	Bodle an	Whether a drop-down calendar displays in a control with a Date or DateTime edit mask. Values are:
		Yes Drop-down calendar control displays.
		No (Default) Drop-down calendar control does not display.
DropDownRi	₿ øolean	Specifies whether the drop-down calendar is aligned with the right or left side of the control. Values are:
		TRUE The calendar is aligned with the right side of the control.
		FALSE The calendar is aligned with the left side of the control (default).
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected):
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!

EditMask	Datatype	Description
property		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays in the control when all the data cannot be displayed at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar displayed.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar not displayed.
HideSelection	Boolean	Specifies whether selected text stays selected (highlighted) even when the control does not have focus:
		TRUE Text does not stay highlighted.
		FALSE Text stays highlighted.
IgnoreDefaul	tBoolean	Specifies whether the Clicked event for the window's Default command button is triggered when user presses Enter. Values are:
		TRUE Do not trigger Clicked event; add new line in control.
		FALSE Trigger Clicked event; do not add new line in control (default).
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
Increment	Double	Specifies the increment of the spin.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Limit	Integer	Specifies the maximum number of characters (0 to 32,767) that can be entered in the control (0 means unlimited).
Mask	String	Specifies the mask to use to format and edit data in the control.
MaskDataTy	• •	Specifies the datatype of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	DateMask!
		DateTimeMask!
		DecimalMask!
		NumericMask!

EditMask property	Datatype	Description
property		StringMask!
		TimeMask!
MinMax	String	Specifies the minimum and maximum values for the spin.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>Spin</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether to scroll through the spin values. Values are:
		TRUE Scroll through the spin values.
		FALSE Do not scroll through the spin values.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
TabStop[]	Integer	Specifies the positions of tab stops in the control.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
<u>TextColor</u>	Long	Specifies the color to be used for the text in the control. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
<u>TextCase</u>	TextCase (enumerated)	Specifies the case used to display text the user enters. Values are:
		AnyCase!
		Lower!
		Upper!
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
UseCodeTab	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder uses the code table for the column to validate data. Values are:
		TRUE Uses code table to validate data.
		FALSE Does not use code table to validate data.

EditMask property	Datatype	Description
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar displays in the control when not all the data can be displayed at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.23.2 Events

Table 2.66:

EditMask event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters a target control.
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control.
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control.
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).
Modified	When a control has been changed and loses focus (becomes inactive).
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control.

2.23.3 Functions

Table 2.67:

EditMask function	Datatype returned	Description
CanUndo	Boolean	Returns true if the Undo function can be used to undo the last edit in the control and returns false if it cannot.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Clear	Integer	Clears the selected text (if any) from the control but does not place it in the clipboard.
Copy	Integer	Copies (but does not delete) the selected text (if any) from the control to the clipboard.
Cut	Integer	Cuts (deletes) the selected text (if any) from the control and places it in the clipboard.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
GetContextSo	e fwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetData	Integer	Obtains the unformatted data in the control.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
LineCount	Integer	Returns the number of lines in the EditMask in the window.
LineLength	Integer	Returns the length of the line in which the cursor is positioned.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to the specified location.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard at the insertion point in the specified control.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the insertion point in the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the currently selected text with the specified string. If no text is selected, inserts the text at the insertion point.
Resize	Integer	Changes the width and height of the control.
Scroll	Integer	Moves the contents of the control up or down the specified number of lines.
SelectedLeng	tInteger	Returns the total number of characters and spaces (length) in the selected text in the control.
SelectedLine	Integer	Returns the number of the line where the insertion point is located in the control.

EditMask function	Datatype returned	Description
SelectedStart	Integer	Returns the position of the first character in the selected text in the control.
SelectedText	String	Determines what if any text is selected in the control.
SelectText	Integer	Selects text in the control beginning at the specified position and continuing for the specified number of characters.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetMask	Integer	Specifies the contents and datatype of the edit mask for the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TextLine	String	Returns the entire text of the line in which the insertion point is currently located.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.
Undo	Integer	Cancels the previous editing function performed in the control.

2.24 EnumerationDefinition object

Information about the type of a variable when it is an enumerated datatype. EnumerationDefinition is inherited from TypeDefinition. It has no events.

2.24.1 Properties

Table 2.68:

Enumeration	Datatype	Description
property		
Category	TypeCategory	Specifies whether the type is simple, enumerated, or a class or structure. Values are:
		SimpleType!
		EnumeratedType!
		ClassOrStructureType!
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DataTypeOf	String	The system class name or simple datatype of the variable. DataTypeOf is a string representation of a value of the Object

Enumeration property	Datatype	Description
		enumerated datatype. Values are lowercase with no exclamation point. Sample values include:
		window
		string
		any
		dropdownlistbox
		For objects you have defined, the datatype is the system class from which your object is inherited.
Enumeration[Enumeration	tAm Definition the name-value pairs for all the items in the enumeration.
IsStructure	Boolean	Indicates whether the type is a structure. Always FALSE.
IsSystemType	eBoolean	Indicates whether the class is a system class that is, one of the classes defined within PowerBuilder as opposed to a class defined in a PBL by a user.
IsVariableLe	n Btb olean	Specifies whether the datatype has a fixed size. Always true. Values are:
		TRUE The datatype is of variable length, meaning the datatype is a string, any, blob, or unbounded array.
		FALSE The datatype is a fixed length.
IsVisualType	Boolean	Indicates whether the type is a visual or nonvisual type. Always false.
LibraryName	String	The fully qualified name of the library the class was loaded from. The library can no longer contain the class. If a program manipulates the contents of libraries, the class could have been moved or deleted after it was loaded.
Name	String	The name of the class. For a nested class, the name is returned in the form of libraryEntryName`className.

2.24.2 Functions

Table 2.69:

Enumeration function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.25 EnumerationItemDefinition object

A class that provides information about the value names and the associated numeric values for an enumerated datatype. It is used in the EnumerationDefinition class. It has no events.

2.25.1 Properties

Table 2.70:

Enumeration property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Name	String	The name of an enumerated value. For example, Left! is a named value of the enumerated datatype Alignment.
Value	Long	The numeric value associated with the name. For example, 0 is the value PowerBuilder associates with Left! The numeric value is important only if you are constructing source code for an object. Within PowerBuilder, you use the named value so that the datatype is correct.

2.25.2 Functions

Table 2.71:

Enumeration function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.26 Environment object

The Environment object is a system structure used to hold information about the computing platform the PowerBuilder application is running on. You populate the Environment object using the GetEnvironment function.

The Environment object has no events.

For more information about the GetEnvironment function, see Section 10.212, "GetEnvironment".

2.26.1 Properties

Table 2.72:

Environmen property	Datatype	Description
CharSet	CharSet (enumerated)	The international character set used by PowerBuilder. Values include:
		• CharSetAnsi!
		CharSetUnicode!
		• CharSetDBCS!
		• CharSetDBCSJapanese!
		The values CharSetAnsiArabic! and CharSetAnsiHebrew! are not valid choices in PowerBuilder 6 or later.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CPUType	CPUTypes (enumerated)	The type of CPU. For a complete list of CPUTypes values, see the Enumerated tab of the Browser.
Language	LanguageID (enumerated)	Specifies the value of the language setting for the machine. For a complete list of LanguageID values, see the Enumerated tab of the Browser.
MachineCode	eBoolean	Specifies whether the application executable is machine code (compiled). Values are:
		TRUE Executable is machine code.
		FALSE Executable is not machine code (pseudo-code).
NumberOfCo	MoongLong	Number of colors on the screen.
OSFixesRevi	sInteger	The maintenance version of the operating system.
OSMajorRev	i šioe ger	The major version of the operating system. For example, this value would be 4 for Windows 95, 98, ME, or NT 4.x, 5 for Windows 2000, XP, or 2003, 6 for Vista, Windows Server 2008, or Windows 7, and 10 for Windows 10.
OSMinorRev	iknoorger	The point release of the operating system. For example, this value would be 0 for Windows Server 2008 and Vista, 1 for Windows XP or Windows 7, 2 for Windows Server 2003 and 64-bit XP, and 10 for SunOS 5.10 (Solaris 10).
OSType	OSTypes (enumerated)	Operating system or environment. For a complete list of OSType values, see the Enumerated tab of the Browser.
PBBuildNum	Bat eger	The build number of this version of PowerBuilder.
PBFixesRevi	sInteger	The maintenance version of PowerBuilder.
PBMajorRev	isimager	The major version of PowerBuilder.

Environmen property	Datatype	Description
PBMinorRev	i šinte ger	The point release of PowerBuilder. 0 indicates GA, 1 indicates R2, and 2 indicates R3.
PBType	PBTypes (enumerated)	Version of the PowerBuilder product. For a complete list of PBType values, see the Enumerated tab of the Browser.
ProcessBitner	s i nteger	Identifies whether the application is a 32-bit or 64-bit process. Values are: 32 stands for 32-bit 64 stands for 64-bit
ScreenHeight	Long	Height of the screen in pixels.
ScreenWidth	Long	Width of the screen in pixels.
Win16 (obsolete)	Boolean	Indicates the type of the operating system in which the application executable is running. Values are:
		TRUE Executable is running under a 16-bit operating system. FALSE Executable is running under a 32-bit operating system.

2.26.2 Functions

Table 2.73:

Environmen function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.27 Error object

The Error object is used to record execution-time errors. You can access the Error object from a script (typically in the SystemError event) to learn which error occurred and where it occurred. You can also customize your own version of the Error object by defining a class user object inherited from the built-in Error object.

For more information about creating a custom Error object, see Chapter 14, *Working with User Objects*. For information on using try-catch blocks to catch runtime and user-defined exceptions, see Section 3.9, "Exception handling in PowerBuilder" and the Section 7.16, "TRY...CATCH...FINALLY...END TRY".

2.27.1 Properties

Table 2.74:

Error property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Line	Integer	Identifies the line in the script at which the error occurred.
Number	Integer	Identifies the PowerBuilder error.
Object	String	Contains the name of the object in which the error occurred. If the error occurred in a window or menu, Object will be the same as WindowMenu.
ObjectEvent	String	Contains the event in which the error occurred.
<u>Text</u>	String	Contains the text of the error message.
WindowMen	uString	Contains the name of the window or menu in which the error occurred.

2.27.2 **Events**

Table 2.75:

Error event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created.
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed.

2.27.3 Functions

Table 2.76:

Error function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object.

2.28 ErrorLogging object

The ErrorLogging object provides the ability to write messages to the log file used by the object's container, such as the NT system application log for Microsoft Transaction Server.

2.28.1 Properties

Table 2.77:

ErrorLogging property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.28.2 **Events**

Table 2.78:

ErrorLogging event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created.
Destructor	When the object is destroyed.

2.28.3 Functions

Table 2.79:

ErrorLoggin function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Log	None	Writes a string to the log file maintained by the object's container.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.29 Exception object

The Exception object inherits from the Throwable object and is the base class for user-defined or "checked" exceptions. A function or user-defined event must declare each checked exception it throws, and a caller to a function or event that throws a checked exception must either catch the exception or throw the exception itself.

Unlike RuntimeError objects, Exception objects do not have built-in properties that provide information about the location where the error occurred.

The CORBAUserException system object inherits from Exception. This object maps to the CORBA_USER_EXCEPTION object that can be thrown from CORBA applications when

user-defined exceptions have not been handled. Unlike the CORBASystemException object and its descendants, the CORBAUserException object is a checked exception and must be declared and caught like other checked exceptions.

2.29.1 Properties

Table 2.80:

Exception property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Text	String	Contains the text of the error message

2.29.2 Events

Table 2.81:

Exception event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the exception is thrown
Destructor	Immediately after the exception is thrown

2.29.3 Functions

Table 2.82:

Exception function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetMessage	String	Returns the error message from objects of type Throwable.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
SetMessage		Sets an error message for an object of type Throwable.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.30 Graph object

A graph is a representation of a series of data points (values). The graph can have a single series of values or multiple series.

2.30.1 Properties

Table 2.83:

Graph property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Satriiptėjon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	uStering	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window or DataWindow control.
Category	grAxis	Specifies the properties of the category axis of the graph.
CategorySort	grSortType	Specifies how the categories are sorted.
ClassDefiniti	of Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Depth	Integer	Specifies the percent the depth is of the width of the graph.
DragAuto	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the graph automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags a control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags a control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.

Graph	Datatype	Description
property	_	
Elevation	Integer	Specifies the angle of front-to-back elevation.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
FocusRectang	B oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (the focus rectangle) frames the control when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control will be framed when it has focus.
		FALSE Control will not be framed when it has focus.
GraphType	1 11	Specifies the type of the graph. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Area3D!
		AreaGraph!
		Bar3DGraph!
		Bar3DObjGraph!
		BarGraph!
		BarStack3DObjGraph!
		BarStackGraph!
		Col3DGraph!
		Col3DObjGraph!
		ColGraph!
		ColStack3DObjGraph!
		ColStackGraph!
		Line3D!
		LineGraph!
		Pie3D!
		PieGraph!
		ScatterGraph!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
Legend	grLegendTyp (enumerated)	Specifies the alignment of the text in the graph legend. Values are:
		AtBottom!
		AtLeft!
		AtRight!
		AtTop!

Graph property	Datatype	Description
		NoLegend!
LegendDispA	ttr DispAttr	Specifies the type style for the text in the graph legend, including the text style, size, color, and rotation.
OverlapPerce	<u>rIn</u> teger	Specifies the percent of the width of the data markers by which different series in a graph overlap.
Perspective	Integer	Specifies the distance the graph is from the front of the window.
PieDispAttr	grDispAttr	Specifies properties of the text in pie graph labels, including the text style, size, color, and rotation.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Contains the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the graph.
Render3D	Boolean	Indicates whether the 3D graph is rendered in the DirectX style.
Rotation	Integer	Specifies how much to rotate the graph from left to right.
Series	grAxis	Specifies the series in the graph.
SeriesSort	grSortType	Specifies how the series are sorted.
ShadeColor	Long	Specifies the color used for the shading in the graph.
Spacing	Integer	Specifies the space between data markers in the graph as a percent.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control in the tabbing sequence (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value of the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the color to be used for the text in the control.
<u>Title</u>	String	Specifies the text of the title for the graph.
TitleDispAttr	grDispAttr	Specifies the type style for the text in the graph title, including the text style, size, color, and rotation.
Values	grAxis	Specifies the values of the value axis of the graph.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the parent window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the parent window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.30.2 Events

Table 2.84:

Graph event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected or unselected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected or unselected)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.30.3 Functions

Table 2.85:

Tubic 2.03.	Table 2.05:		
Graph function	Datatype returned	Description	
AddCategory	Integer	Adds a category to the graph.	
AddData	Long	Adds a value to the end of the specified series for the graph.	
AddSeries	Integer	Adds a series to the graph and assigns the series a number.	
CategoryCou	nItnteger	Counts the categories in the graph.	
CategoryNam	S tring	Obtains the name of the specified category in the graph.	
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.	
Clipboard	Integer	Copies the graph in bitmap (BMP) format to the clipboard.	
DataCount	Long	Returns the number of data points in a specified series in the graph.	
DeleteCatego	ntynteger	Deletes the specified category and the data values in the series from the graph.	
DeleteData	Integer	Deletes the data value in the specified data point in the specified series in the graph.	
DeleteSeries	Integer	Deletes the specified series and the data values in the series from the graph.	
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends dragging of the control.	

Graph function	Datatype returned	Description
FindCategory	Integer	Obtains the number of the specified category in the graph.
FindSeries	Integer	Obtains the number PowerBuilder assigned to the specified series when it was added to the graph.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetData	Double	Obtains the value of the specified data point in the specified series in the graph. See also GetDataValue.
GetDataLabe	l lintg ger	Determines whether the data at a given data point is labeled in a DirectX 3D graph.
GetDataPieEx	x þiltæge r	Reports the percentage by which a pie slice is exploded in a pie graph.
GetDataStyle	Integer	Finds out the appearance of a data point in a series. Each data point in a series can have individual appearance settings.
		There are different syntaxes, depending on what settings you want to check: colors, line style, fill pattern, or symbol.
GetDataTrans	s patregery	Obtains the transparency percentage of a series in a DirectX 3D graph.
GetDataValu	eInteger	Returns the value of the specified data in the specified series in the specified graph.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetSeriesLab	dHinger	Obtain the series labelling for a DirectX 3D graph.
GetSeriesStyl	d nteger	Finds out the appearance of a series in a graph. The appearance settings for individual data points can override the series setting, so the values obtained from this function may not reflect the current state of the graph.
		There are several syntaxes, depending on what you want to get: colors; line style, fill pattern, or symbol; or whether the series is an overlay.
GetSeriesTra	nkptægency	Obtains the transparency percentage of a series in a DirectX 3D graph.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
ImportClipbo	drd ng	Copies the contents of the clipboard to the graph, starting in the specified column.
ImportFile	Long	Copies the contents of the specified file to the graph, starting in the specified column.
ImportString	Long	Imports the contents from the specified string to the graph, starting in the specified column.
InsertCategor	yInteger	Inserts a new category before an existing category in the graph.

Graph function	Datatype returned	Description
InsertData	Long	Inserts a new data point into the graph before a specified data point and moves existing data points to the right.
InsertSeries	Integer	Inserts a new series before an existing series in the graph.
ModifyData	Integer	Changes the value of the specified data point in the specified series in the graph to the specified value, and optionally modifies the data for the specified tick mark.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
ObjectAtPoin	t ©ir ObjectTy _l	peStores the number of the series the pointer is over in the graph and the number of the specified data point in reference values, and identifies the object type.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Reset	Integer	Deletes data in the graph as specified.
ResetDataCo	l ons eger	Resets the color of a data point to the series color.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SaveAs	Integer	Saves the contents of the graph to a file in the specified format.
SeriesCount	Integer	Determines how many series there are in the graph.
SeriesName	String	Obtains the name of the specified series in the graph.
SetDataPieEx	phoelg er	Explodes a pie slice in a pie graph.
SetDataLabel	lInteger	Set the data label for a DirectX 3D graph.
SetDataStyle	Integer	Specifies the appearance of a data point in a graph.
		There are several syntaxes, depending on what you want to set: colors, line style and width, or fill pattern or symbol.
SetDataTrans	plategey	Sets the transparency percentage of a data point in a series in a DirectX 3D.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after a change in its properties.
SetSeriesLab	e lhiteg er	Set the series label for a DirectX 3D graph.
SetSeriesStyl	eInteger	Specifies the appearance of a series in a graph.

Graph function	Datatype returned	Description
		There are several syntaxes, depending on what you want to change: colors, line style and width, fill pattern or symbol, or whether the series is an overlay.
SetSeriesTran	n špæge cy	Sets the transparency percentage of a series in a DirectX 3D graph.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.31 grAxis object

The PowerBuilder class grAxis is used as part of a graph control. Each graph has three grAxis objects: Category, Series, and Values.

To refer to a property of an axis, use this syntax:

graphcontrolname.axisname.property

For example:

gr_1.Series.AutoScale

A grAxis object has no events.

2.31.1 Properties

Table 2.86:

grAxis	Datatype	Description
property		
<u>AutoScale</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder scales the axis automatically.
		Values are:
		TRUE Automatically scale.
		FALSE Do not automatically scale.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the
		class definition of the object or control.
<u>DataType</u>		Specifies the datatype of the axis. Values are:
	(enumerated)	AdtDate!
		AdtDateTime!
		AdtDefault!
		AdtDouble!
		AdtText!
		AdtTime!

grAxis property	Datatype	Description
DispAttr	grDispAttr (object)	Settings that control the appearance of the text that labels the axis divisions.
DisplayEvery	Mitageis	Specifies which major axis divisions to label. For example, 2 means label every other tick mark. Use 0 to let the graph select the optimum number of labels to use. If the labels are too long, they are clipped.
DropLines	LineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the type of drop line for the axis. Values are: Transparent! No line appears. Continuous! A solid line.
		Dash! Dot! DashDot! DashDotDot!
Frame	LineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the type of line used for the frame. See DropLines in this table for the list of values.
Label	String	Specifies the axis label.
LabelDispAtt	ngrDispAttr (object)	Settings that control the appearance of the axis label text.
MajorDivisio	rlsnteger	Specifies the number of major divisions on the axis.
MajorGridLi	<u>h</u> EineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the type of line for the major grid. See DropLines in this table for the list of values.
MajorTic	grTicType (enumerated)	Specifies the type of the major tick marks. Values are: NoTic! Inside! Outside! Straddle!
<u>MaximumVa</u>	l D ouble	Specifies the maximum value for the axis when its datatype is numeric.
MaxValDate'	ID ateTime	Specifies the maximum value for the axis when its datatype is date or time.
MinimumVal	№ ouble	Specifies the minimum value for the axis when its datatype is numeric.
MinorDivisio	<u>In</u> teger	Specifies the number of minor divisions on the axis.
MinorGridLi		Specifies the type of line for the minor grid. See DropLines in this table for the list of values.
MinorTic	grTicType (enumerated)	Specifies the type of the minor tick marks. Values are:

grAxis property	Datatype	Description
		NoTic!
		Inside!
		Outside!
		Straddle!
MinValDate1	Dat eTime	Specifies the minimum value for the axis when its datatype is date or time.
OriginLine	LineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the type of origin line for the axis. See DropLines in this table for the list of values.
PrimaryLine	•	Specifies the type of primary line for the axis. See DropLines in this table for the list of values.
RoundTo	Double	Specifies the value to which you want to round the axis values.
RoundToUni		Specifies the units for the rounding value. The units must be appropriate for the axis datatype. Values are listed below.
		For an axis of any datatype:
		RndDefault!
		For an axis of any numeric datatype:
		RndNumber!
		For an axis of type date or DateTime:
		RndYears!
		RndMonths!
		RndDays!
		For an axis of type time or DateTime:
		RndHours!
		RndMinutes!
		RndSeconds!
		RndMicroseconds!
ScaleType	•	Specifies the type of scale used for the axis. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Linear!
		Log10!
		Loge!
ScaleValue	_	Specifies the scale of values on the axis. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Actual!
		Cumulative!
		Percentage!

grAxis property	Datatype	Description
		CumPercent!
SecondaryLin		Specifies the type of secondary line for the axis. See DropLines in this table for the list of values.
ShadeBackEd	l B ∞olean	Specifies whether the back edge of the axis is shaded. Values are: TRUE Shaded. FALSE Not shaded.

2.31.2 Functions

Table 2.87:

grAxis function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.32 grDispAttr object

The PowerBuilder class grDispAttr is used to specify the appearance of text objects on a graph. There are grDispAttr objects for graph Titles, Legends, Pie Graph text, and two (DispAttr and LabelDispAttr) for each of the three axes (Category, Series, and Value) in a graph.

To refer to a property of a grDispAttr property, use this syntax:

graphcontrolname.axisname.grdispattrname.property

For example:

```
gr_1.Series.DispAttr.Italic
gr_1.Category.LabelDispAttr.DisplayExpression
```

A grDispAttr object has no events.

2.32.1 Properties

Table 2.88:

grDispAttr property	Datatype	Description
Alignment	Alignment (enumerated)	Specifies the alignment of the text. Values are: Center! Justify! Left!

grDispAttr property	Datatype	Description
1 1 3		Right!
Alignment	Boolean	Specifies whether the text element should be autosized according to the amount of text being displayed. Values are:
		TRUE Autosize.
		FALSE Do not autosize.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisplayExpre	<u>String</u>	An expression whose value is the label for the graph component. The default expression is the property containing the text for the graph component. The expression can include the text property and add other variable text.
Escapement	Integer	Specifies the rotation for the baseline of the text in tenths of a degree. 0 is horizontal. A value of 900 rotates the text 90 degrees; a value of 2700 rotates the text 270 degrees.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies a typeface name (for example, arial or courier) to use for the text.
<u>FillPattern</u>	FillPattern	Specifies the fill pattern for the text. Values are:
	(enumerated)	BDiagonal!
		Diamond!
		FDiagonal!
		Horizontal!
		Solid!
		Square!
		Vertical!
		FDiagonal! is lines going from the lower-left to the upper-right. BDiagonal! is lines going from the upper-left to the lower right.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set to be used. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) for the text. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!

grDispAttr property	Datatype	Description
		Script!
		Swiss!
FontPitch	FontPitch	Specifies the pitch (character spacing) for the text. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Format	String	Specifies the display format for the text.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the color of the text. The color is a numeric value:
		-2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the point size of the text. For backward compatibility,
		the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text. Sample values are 400
		for normal or 700 for bold.

2.32.2 Functions

Table 2.89:

grDispAttr function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object.

2.33 GroupBox control

A GroupBox is a box used to group related controls. For example, you can use a GroupBox to group a series of RadioButtons or CommandButtons. The user cannot select the GroupBox but can select controls within the GroupBox. If the GroupBox contains RadioButtons, the user can select only one RadioButton in the GroupBox at a time.

When you hide or show a GroupBox, PowerBuilder does not automatically hide or show the controls in the GroupBox.

2.33.1 Properties

Table 2.90:

GroupBox property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleLowered!
BringToTop	Boolean	StyleRaised! Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the text of the GroupBox is visible or grayed. Values are:
		TRUE Text is visible.
		FALSE Text is grayed.

GroupBox property	Datatype	Description
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Indicates whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0
_		means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control title.

GroupBox property	Datatype	Description
<u>TextColor</u>	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Indicates whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.33.2 Events

Table 2.91:

GroupBox event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event

2.33.3 Functions

Table 2.92:

GroupBox function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
GetContextSo	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.

GroupBox function	Datatype returned	Description
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers the specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.34 HProgressBar control

You can use a progress bar to indicate the progress of a lengthy operation, such as an installation program that copies a large number of files. The HProgressBar control is a horizontal rectangle that fills with the system highlight color as the operation progresses.

2.34.1 Properties

Table 2.93:

HProgressB: property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Satriiptėjon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.

HProgressBs property	Datatype	Description
	o P nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
MaxPosition	Unsigned Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the progress bar is at the right edge of the control. This value can be different from the end of the control's range, set with the SetRange function.
MinPosition	Unsigned Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the progress bar is at the left edge of the control. This value can be different from the start of the control's range, set with the SetRange function.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or file containing the pointer used for the control.
Position	Integer	Specifies the value of the current position within the range of the control (set with the SetRange function). The control uses the range and the current position to determine the percentage of the progress bar to fill with the highlight color.
<u>SetStep</u>	Integer	Specifies a step increment for the progress bar. The default is 10.
SmoothScrol	Boolean	Specifies that the control displays as a smooth scrolling bar instead of the default segmented bar.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.

HProgressl property	Batatype	Description
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units).
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.34.2 Events

Table 2.94:

HProgressBar event	Occurs
Clicked	When the left mouse button is pressed on the control
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the left mouse button is double-clicked on the control
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.34.3 Functions

Table 2.95:

HProgressBa function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.

HProgressBa function	Datatype returned	Description
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
OffsetPos	Integer	Moves the control's current position by the amount specified.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets the focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRange	Integer	Sets the range of the control. The control uses the range and the current position to determine the percentage of the progress bar to fill with the highlight color.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
StepIt	Integer	Moves the control's current position by the amount specified by the value of the SetStep property.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.35 HScrollBar control

An HScrollBar is a horizontal bar with arrows at either end and a scroll box. Typically, you use an HScrollBar control as a slider control employed by users to specify a value on a continuous scale, or as a way to display graphically information to the user.

Usage note

The HScrollBar control is not the horizontal scroll bar that displays to allow the user to scroll through information in a control.

2.35.1 Properties

Table 2.96:

HScrollBar property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.

HScrollBar	Datatype	Description
property		
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	A ccessibleRo	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
	(enumerated)	
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	olinower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
MaxPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the scroll box is at the right edge of the control.
MinPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the scroll box is at the left edge of the control.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or file containing the pointer used for the control.
Position	Integer	Specifies a value between MinPosition and MaxPosition specifying the position of the scroll box.
StdHeight	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder uses the standard height for the control. Values are:
		TRUE Standard height used for control.
		FALSE Standard height not enforced for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).

HScrollBar property	Datatype	Description
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.35.2 Events

Table 2.97:

HScrollBar event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LineLeft	When the left arrow of the control is clicked
LineRight	When the right arrow of the control is clicked
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Moved	When the scroll box is moved (use the Position property to determine the new location)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
PageLeft	When the open space to the left of the scroll box is clicked
PageRight	When the open space to the right of the scroll box is clicked
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.35.3 Functions

Table 2.98:

HScrollBar function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets the focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.36 HTrackBar control

Like a scroll bar, a trackbar is used as a scrolling control, but clicking on the trackbar slider moves it in discrete increments instead of continuously. The HTrackBar control has a series of tick marks along the bottom of the trackbar channel.

To enable this control to be used properly from the keyboard, you must add code to the LineLeft, LineRight, PageLeft, and PageRight events. The code you add should change the slider Position property by the appropriate value and then pass the new slider position to the object or objects you associate with the trackbar control. You must code the Moved event if you want the trackbar control to pass on the slider position after the slider is dragged with a mouse.

Usage note

Use a trackbar when you want the user to select a discrete value. For example, you can use a trackbar to enable a user to select a timer interval or the size of a window.

2.36.1 Properties

Table 2.99:

HTrackBar property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	Striptg on	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	olinower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
LineSize	Integer	Specifies how far the slider moves in response to keyboard input from the arrow keys. Setting LineSize to 1 indicates moving 1 increment in the range of values specified by the MaxPosition and MinPosition properties.
MaxPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the slider is at the right edge of the control.

HTrackBar	Datatype	Description
property		
MinPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the slider is at the left edge of the control.
PageSize	Integer	Specifies how far the slider moves in response to clicking in the slider channel area or pressing the Page keys. The default size is the difference between the MaxPosition and MinPosition properties divided by 5.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or file containing the pointer used for the control.
<u>Position</u>	Integer	Specifies a value between MinPosition and MaxPosition specifying the position of the slider.
Slider	Boolean	Specifies whether or not the trackbar contains a slider.
SliderSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the slider on the trackbar. A value of 0 makes the slider the default size.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TickFrequenc	ynteger	Specifies tick mark frequency. Setting TickFrequency to 1 indicates 1 tick mark for each increment in the trackbar range of values.
TickMarks	HTickMarks	Specifies where tickmarks should be displayed. Values are:
	(enumerated)	HTicksOnBottom!
		HTicksOnTop!
		HTicksOnBoth!
		HTicksOnNeither!
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.36.2 Events

Table 2.100:

14010 2.100.	
HTrackBar event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window

HTrackBar event	Occurs
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LineLeft	When the left arrow key is clicked
LineRight	When the right arrow key is clicked
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Moved	When the slider is moved (use the Position property to determine the new location)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
PageLeft	When the Page Up key is clicked or when mouse clicks are made to the left of the slider in the trackbar channel
PageRight	When the Page Down key is clicked or when mouse clicks are made to the right of the slider in the trackbar channel
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.36.3 Functions

Table 2.101:

HTrackBar function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.

HTrackBar function	Datatype returned	Description
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectionRan	gknteger	Sets a selection range for the trackbar. When you select a range, a blue line is drawn in the channel of the trackbar and two arrows are drawn where the tickmarks are placed to indicate the beginning and end of the selection range.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets the focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.37 HTTPClient object

The HTTPClient object is a base object for sending HTTP requests and receiving HTTP responses from a resource identified by a URI. Compared to the Inet object, the HTTPClient object is easier to use and supports more methods (Get/Post/Put/Delete) and more SSL protocols (TLS 1.0, TLS 1.1, TLS 1.2, SSL 2.0, and SSL 3.0).

Note

This object cannot be referenced in .NET Web Service and .NET Assembly components, otherwise the component will fail to be deployed.

2.37.1 Properties

Table 2.102:

HTTPClient	Datatype	Description
property		
AutoReadDat	Boolean	Whether the program reads the response body automatically.
SecureProtoc	dInteger	The secure protocol.
TimeOut	Long	The timeout seconds.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.37.2 Events

Table 2.103:

HTTPClient	Occurs
event	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.

2.37.3 Functions

Table 2.104:

HTTPClient function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
ClearRequest	Hhetadæns	Clears the headers of the request.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRequestH	eSattleing	Gets the request header by name.
GetRequestH	estrieng	Gets all of the request headers' information.
GetResponsel	Hott ger	Gets the response body.
GetResponsel	Staite	Gets the response header by name.
GetResponsel	Staite rs	Gets all of the response headers' information.
GetResponse	StatugCode	Gets the response status code.
GetResponse	SSatins Text	Gets the response status description.
PostData	Integer	Sends the data with POST method.
PostDataEnd	Integer	Finishes sending the data with POST method.
PostDataStart	Integer	Starts sending the data with POST method.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
ReadData	Integer	Reads the response body.
SendRequest	Integer	Sends the request to the server.
SetRequestHe	eAndtenger	Sets the request header.
SetRequestHe	e Andrewser	Sets all of the request headers' information.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.38 Inet object

The Inet object provides the ability to display a Web page in the default browser, access the HTML for a specified page, and send data to a CGI, ISAPI, or NSAPI program.

2.38.1 Properties

Table 2.105:

Inet property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	3	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.38.2 Events

Table 2.106:

Inet event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.

2.38.3 Functions

Table 2.107:

Inet function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetURL	Integer	Returns HTML for the specified URL.
HyperLinkTo	Urrager	Opens the default Web browser, displaying the specified URL.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
PostURL	Integer	Performs an HTTP Post, allowing a PowerBuilder application to send a request through CGI, NSAPI, or ISAPI.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.39 InkEdit control

An InkEdit control collects pen input (ink) on a Tablet PC and converts it to text. It is used with the handwriting recognition engine ("recognizer") that is part of the Tablet PC platform.

Using with animation features

InkEdit controls may not paint correctly when you use animation features.

2.39.1 Properties

Table 2.108:

InkEdit property	Datatype	Description
	Chimin	A description of the control and/on its grown as for use by
AccessibleDe	zzamibil gon	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a
		button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Alignment	Alignment	Specifies the alignment of text in the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Center!
		Justify!
		Left!
		Right!
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2
		to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see
		Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the border style of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisplayOnly	Boolean	Specifies whether the text is display only and cannot be changed by the user. Values are:
		TRUE Text cannot be changed by user.
		FALSE Text can be changed by user.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.

InkEdit property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be clicked.
		FALSE Control cannot be clicked.
FaceName	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Arial or Courier).
Factoid	String	Specifies a context for ink recognition. Set this property if the input data is of a known type, such as a date or Web address, to constrain the search for a recognition result.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet enumerated datatype on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the font pitch used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!

InkEdit property	Datatype	Description
Height Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar does not display.
IgnorePressur	B oolean	A drawing attribute that specifies whether the drawn ink gets wider as the pressure of the pen tip on the tablet surface increases. Values are:
		TRUE Pressure from the pen tip is ignored.
		FALSE The width of the ink increases with the pressure of the pen tip (default).
InkAntiAliaso	e B oolean	A drawing attribute that specifies whether the foreground and background colors along the edge of the drawn ink are blended (antialiased) to make the stroke smoother and sharper. Values are:
		TRUE The ink stroke appears smoother and sharper (default).
		FALSE The ink stroke is not antialiased.
InkColor	Long	A drawing attribute that specifies the current ink color. The default color is black.
InkHeight	Integer	A drawing attribute that specifies the height of the side of the rectangular pen tip in pixels. The default is 1pixel.
InkMode	InkMode (enumerated)	Specifies whether ink collection is enabled and whether ink only or ink and gestures are collected. Values are:
		CollectInk! Only ink is collected.
		CollectInkAndGestures! Ink and gestures are collected (default).
		InkDisabled! Ink collection is disabled (the control behaves like a multiline edit control).
InkTranspare	nknyteger	A drawing attribute that specifies the transparency of drawn ink. The range of values is from 0 for totally opaque (the default) to 255 for totally transparent.
InkWidth	Integer	A drawing attribute that specifies the width of the pen in pixels. The default is 53 pixels. If the IgnorePressure property is not set, the actual width varies between .5 times the value of the Width property for minimum pressure and 1.5 times its value for maximum pressure.
InsertAsText	Boolean	Specifies whether the ink is inserted as text or as ink. Values are:
		TRUE The ink is inserted as text (default).

InkEdit	Datatype	Description
property		FALSE The ink is inserted as ink.
Italia	Boolean	
<u>Italic</u>	Doolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
	_	FALSE Text is not italic (default).
<u>Limit</u>	Integer	Specifies the maximum number of characters (0 to 32,767) that can be entered in the control (0 means unlimited).
Modified	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control has been modified since it was opened or last saved. Modified is the control's "dirty" flag, indicating that the control is in an unsaved state. Values are:
		TRUE The control has been modified.
		FALSE The control has not been modified.
		When the first change is made to a newly opened or saved control, PowerBuilder sets the Modified property to true and triggers the Modified event.
PenTip	InkPenTip (enumerated)	A drawing attribute that specifies whether the pen tip is round or rectangular. Values are:
		PenTipBall! The pen tip is round (default).
		PenTipRectangle! The pen tip is rectangular.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RecognitionT	ihon g	Specifies the time period in milliseconds between the last ink stroke and the start of text recognition. The default is 2000 (two seconds).
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
Status		A read-only property available at runtime that provides the current status of the control so that the user does not need to monitor the Stroke event. Values are CollectingInk!, RecognizingInk!, and Idle!.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Text	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.

InkEdit property	Datatype	Description
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215.
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points.
		For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
<u>Underline</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined (default).
<u>UseMouseFo</u>	r Bool ean	Specifies whether the mouse can be used for input on a Tablet PC. Values are:
		TRUE The mouse can be used for input.
		FALSE The mouse cannot be used for input (default).
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible (default).
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar is displayed on the right of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal (default) or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.39.2 Events

Table 2.109:

InkEdit event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created, immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	When the object is destroyed, immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control.

InkEdit event	Occurs
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control.
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control.
Gesture	When a gesture has occurred.
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).
Moved	When a control has been changed and loses focus.
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control.
RecognitionResul	When a recognition has occurred.
Stroke	When a stroke has occurred.

2.39.3 Functions

Table 2.110:

InkEdit function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name of the control.
Clear	Integer	Clears the selected text (if any) from the control (but does not place it in the clipboard).
Сору	Integer	Copies (but does not delete) the selected text (if any) from the control to the clipboard.
Cut	Integer	Cuts (deletes) the selected text (if any) from the control to the clipboard.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of an InkEdit item.
GetContextSe	e fwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Hides the specified InkEdit item.
Move	Integer	Moves a control or object to a specified location.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard (if any) at the insertion point in the control.
PointerX	Integer	Determines the distance from the left edge of an object to the pointer location.
PointerY	Integer	Determines the distance from the top edge of an object to the pointer location.
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the insertion point in the control.

InkEdit function	Datatype returned	Description
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the event to the end of the event queue of an object.
Print	Integer	Includes this object in a print job. Only the part visible on the screen is printed.
Resize	Integer	Resizes a control to the specified dimensions.
RecognizeTe	xInteger	Specifies that ink recognition should occur.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the currently selected text (if any) with the specified string. If no text is selected, the ReplaceText function inserts the text at the insertion point.
SelectedLeng	thnteger	Returns the length of the selected text (if any) in the control.
SelectedText	String	Returns a string with the selected text (if any) from the control.
SelectText	Long	Selects the text specified by the starting position and length.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus for a specified object or control.
SetPosition	Integer	Sets the position of the InkEdit control in the front-to-back order within a window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls the automatic redraw of an object after its properties have changed.
Show	Integer	Makes an object or control visible if it is hidden. If the object is already visible, Show brings it to the top.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.40 InkPicture control

An InkPicture control collects pen input ("ink") on a Tablet PC and layers it on a picture. It is used to collect ink annotations to a picture or signatures. It has no handwriting recognition capability.

Using with animation features

InkPicture controls may not paint correctly when you use animation features.

2.40.1 Properties

Table 2.111:

InkPicture property	Datatype	Description
AutoErase	Boolean	Specifies whether the auto erase feature available on some styluses is turned on. Values are:
		TRUE AutoErase is turned on.
		FALSE AutoErase is turned off (default).

InkPicture	Datatype	Description
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
<u>BorderStyle</u>	BorderStyle	Specifies the border style of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order.
ClassDefiniti	olinower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CollectionMo		Mondaifies whether ink only, gestures only, or ink and gestures
	(enumerated)	are collected. Values are:
		GestureOnly! Only gestures are collected.
		InkOnly! Only ink is collected (default).
		InkAndGesture! Ink and gestures are collected.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
DynamicRen	d Brin lean	Specifies whether the ink is rendered (displayed in the control) as it is drawn. The default is true.
EditMode	InkPicEditMo	o Sp ecifies whether the editing mode of the control is set for drawing ink, editing ink, or deleting ink. Values are:

InkPicture property	Datatype	Description
		InkPicDeleteMode! Ink is deleted.
		InkPicInkMode! Ink can be drawn (default).
		InkPicSelectMode! Ink is selected for editing.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be clicked.
		FALSE Control cannot be clicked.
EraserMode	Integer	Specifies whether ink is removed by stroke or point. Values are:
		0 Ink is removed by stroke (default).
		1 Ink is removed by point.
EraserWidth	Integer	Specifies the width of the eraser pen tip in pixels. The default is 212 pixels.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HighContrast	IBk olean	Specifies whether ink is rendered in a single color when the system is in high contrast mode and draws the selection rectangle and handles in high contrast. Values are:
		TRUE Ink is rendered in a single color in high contrast mode (default).
		FALSE Ink is not rendered in a single color in high contrast mode.
IgnorePressur	B oolean	A drawing attribute that specifies whether the drawn ink gets wider as the pressure of the pen tip on the tablet surface increases. Values are:
		TRUE Pressure from the pen tip is ignored.
		FALSE The width of the ink increases with the pressure of the pen tip (default).
InkAntiAliaso	B oolean	A drawing attribute that specifies whether the foreground and background colors along the edge of the drawn ink are blended (antialiased) to make the stroke smoother and sharper. Values are:
		TRUE The ink stroke appears smoother and sharper (default).
		FALSE The ink stroke is not antialiased.
InkColor	Long	A drawing attribute that specifies the current ink color. The default color is black.
InkEnabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the InkPicture control collects pen input. Values are:
		TRUE The control collects pen input (default).

InkPicture property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE The control does not collect pen input and no pen- related events fire.
InkFileName	String	Specifies the name of the file that the ink was loaded from.
InkHeight	Integer	A drawing attribute that specifies the height of the side of the rectangular pen tip in pixels. The default is 1.
InkTranspare	nknyteger	A drawing attribute that specifies the transparency of drawn ink. The range of values is from 0 for totally opaque (the default) to 255 for totally transparent.
InkWidth	Integer	A drawing attribute that specifies the width of the pen in pixels. The default is 53. If the IgnorePressure property is not set, the actual width varies between .5 times the value of the Width property for minimum pressure and 1.5 times its value for maximum pressure.
MarginX	Integer	Specifies the x-axis margin around the control in PowerBuilder units. The default value is 0.
MarginY	Integer	Specifies the y-axis margin around the control in PowerBuilder units. The default value is 0.
PenTip	InkPenTip (enumerated)	A drawing attribute that specifies whether the pen tip is round or rectangular. Values are:
		PenTipBall! The pen tip is round (default).
		PenTipRectangle! The pen tip is rectangular.
PictureFileNa	a Stering	Specifies the name of a file that contains the picture for the control. The default is an empty string. Supported formats are BMP, GIF, JPEG, PNG, and TIF.
PictureSizeM	d Display Size N	Specifies how the picture is displayed in the control. Values are:
		InkPicAutoSize! The control is resized to display the entire picture.
		InkPicCentered! The picture is centered in the control.
		InkPicNormal! The picture is displayed in the upper-left corner of the control and any part of the picture that does not fit in the control is clipped (default).
		InkPicStretched! The picture is stretched to fill the control.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
PowerTipTex	String	Specifies a PowerTip for the control.
Status	InkPicStatus	Read-only property available at runtime that provides the current status of the control so that the user does not need to monitor the Stroke event. Values are CollectingInk! and Idle!.

InkPicture property	Datatype	Description
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are: TRUE Control is visible (default). FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.40.2 Events

Table 2.112:

InkPicture event	Occurs	
Clicked	When the left mouse button is clicked in the control	
Constructor	When the object is created, immediately before the Open event occurs in the window	
Destructor	When the object is destroyed, immediately after the Close event occurs in the window	
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control	
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control	
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control	
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control	
Gesture	When a gesture has occurred	
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)	
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control	
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)	
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event	
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control	
SelectionChanged When an item in the control is selected		
SelectionChangin	gWhen the selection is changing. Return 1 to prevent the selection from changing or 0 to allow it	
SizeChanged	When the control has been resized	

InkPicture event	Occurs
Stroke	When a stroke has occurred

2.40.3 Functions

Table 2.113:

InkPicture function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name of the control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of a InkEdit item.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Hides the specified InkEdit item.
LoadInk	Integer	Loads ink from a file or blob.
LoadPicture	Integer	Loads a picture from a file or blob.
Move	Integer	Moves a control or object to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Determines the distance from the left edge of an object to the pointer location.
PointerY	Integer	Determines the distance from the top edge of an object to the pointer location.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the event to the end of the event queue of an object.
Print	Integer	Includes this object in a print job. Only the part visible on the screen is printed.
ResetInk	Integer	Clears ink from the control.
ResetPicture	Integer	Clears a picture from the control.
Resize	Integer	Resizes a control to the specified dimensions.
Save	Integer	Saves a picture and optionally any overlay ink to a file or blob in one of the following formats: bitmap, JPEG, GIF, TIF, or PNG.
SaveInk	Integer	Saves ink to a file or blob in one of the following formats: Ink Serialized Format (ISF), GIF, Base-64 encoded ISF, or Base-64 encoded GIF.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus for a specified object or control.
SetPosition	Integer	Sets the position of the InkEdit control in the front-to-back order within a window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls the automatic redraw of an object after its properties have changed.
Show	Integer	Makes an object or control visible if it is hidden. If the object is already visible, Show brings it to the top.

InkPicture function	Datatype returned	Description
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.41 InternetResult object

The InternetResult object acts as a buffer, receiving and caching asynchronous data, as it is returned using the Internet in response to the GetURL and PostURL function calls. The InternetResult object also provides the ability to process this data.

To use an InternetResult object, create a standard class user object that defines an InternetData function to process the passed HTML.

2.41.1 Properties

Table 2.114:

InternetRest property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.41.2 Events

Table 2.115:

InternetResult event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.41.3 Functions

Table 2.116:

InternetResu function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
InternetData	Integer	Processes the HTML data returned by a GetURL or PostURL function
InternetStatus	Integer	Not used

InternetResu function	Datatype returned	Description
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.42 JSONGenerator object

The JSONGenerator object provides the ability to construct the JSON objects with the root item being either an object or an array. It supports adding values, objects, or arrays to the constructed JSON object.

Note

This object cannot be referenced in .NET Web Service and .NET Assembly components, otherwise the component will fail to be deployed.

2.42.1 Properties

Table 2.117:

JSONGenera property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	•	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.42.2 Events

Table 2.118:

JSONGenerator event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.42.3 Functions

Table 2.119:

JSONGenera function	Datatype returned	Description
AddItemArra	y Long	Adds the child item of JSONArrayItem type.
AddItemBlob	Long	Adds the child item of JSONStringItem type.
AddItemBoo	l e Laonng	Adds the child item of JSONBooleanItem type.
AddItemDate	Long	Adds the child item of JSONStringItem type.

JSONGenera function	Datatype returned	Description
AddItemDate	Tiong	Adds the child item of JSONStringItem or JSONNumberItem type.
AddItemNull	Long	Adds the child item of JSONNullItem type.
AddItemNum	b eong	Adds the child item of JSONNumberItem type.
AddItemObje	dtong	Adds the child item of JSONObjectItem type.
AddItemStrin	L ong	Adds the child item of JSONStringItem type.
AddItemTime	eLong	Adds the child item of JSONStringItem type.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
CreateJSONA	Atranyg	Creates the array as root item to initialize instance.
CreateJSONC	Object	Creates the object as root item to initialize instance.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetJSONBlo	bBlob	Gets the JSON blob data.
GetJSONStri	nString	Gets the JSON string data.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
SaveToFile	Integer	Saves the JSON data to the local file.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.43 JSONPackage object

The JSONPackage object provides the ability to merge data in a JSON object or extract data from a JSON object. Merging and extracting can occur at both the client side and the server side. The resulted JSON can be posted from the client to the server via HTTPClient, or retrieved from the server to the client via RESTClient.

The JSON string that can be loaded by the JSONPackage object must be an object (cannot be an array) and the item must be a string, object, or array.

Note

This object cannot be referenced in .NET Web Service and .NET Assembly components, otherwise the component will fail to be deployed.

Note

The data to be merged can be from DataWindow, DataStore, DataWindowChild, or from an existing JSON. Composite, Crosstab, OLE 2.0, and RichText DataWindows are unsupported.

2.43.1 Properties

Table 2.120:

JSONPackag property	Datatype	Description
<u>IgnoreCase</u>	Boolean	A boolean value that specifies whether to ignore the case for key.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.43.2 **Events**

Table 2.121:

JSONPackage event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created.
Destructor	When the object is destroyed.

2.43.3 Functions

Table 2.122:

JSONPackaş function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
Clear	Integer	Deletes all of the keys.
ContainsKey	Boolean	Checks if the key name exists.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetJSONBlo	bBlob	Gets the JSON blob data.
GetJSONStri	n§tring	Gets the JSON string data.
GetKey	String	Gets the key name.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetValue	String	Gets the value of the key.
KeyCount	Long	Gets the total number of keys.
LoadFile	String	Loads a JSON file.
LoadString	String	Loads a JSON string.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
Remove	Integer	Removes a key.
SaveToFile	Integer	Saves the JSON data to the local file.
SetValue	Boolean	Sets the value of the key.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.

JSONPackas function	Datatype returned	Description
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.44 JSONParser object

The JSONParser object provides the ability to load the JSON-formatted data from a string or from a TXT file into a JSON object.

Note

This object cannot be referenced in .NET Web Service and .NET Assembly components, otherwise the component will fail to be deployed.

2.44.1 Properties

Table 2.123:

JSONParser property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.44.2 Events

Table 2.124:

JSONParser event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.44.3 Functions

Table 2.125:

JSONParser function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetChildCou	ntong	Gets the child item count.
GetChildItem	Long	Gets the child item handle.
GetChildKey	String	Gets the key name of child item.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetItemArray	Long	Gets the handle value of the child array item.
GetItemBlob	Blob	Gets the blob value of the item.
GetItemBool	e Bro olean	Gets the boolean value of the item.

JSONParser function	Datatype returned	Description
GetItemDate		Gets the date value of the item.
GetItemDate		Gets the datetime value of the item.
GetItemNum		Gets the double value of the item.
GetItemObje	cLong	Gets the handle value of the child object item.
GetItemString	_	Gets the string value of the item.
GetItemTime	Time	Gets the time value of the item.
GetItemType	JSONItemTy	peets the type of item. Values are:
	(enumerated)	JsonStringItem! Type of the JSON node whose key value pair is a string, such as "name":"evan".
		JsonNumberItem! Type of the JSON node whose key value pair is a number, such as "id":1001.
		JsonBooleanItem! Type of the JSON node whose key value pair is a boolean, such as "active":true.
		JsonNullItem! Type of the JSON node whose key value pair is null, such as "remark": null.
		JsonObjectItem! Type of the JSON node whose key value pair is an object, such as "date_object": {"datetime":7234930293, "date": "2017-09-21", "time": "12:00:00"}.
		JsonArrayItem! Type of the JSON node whose key value pair is an array, such as "department_array": [999999, {"name":"Website"}, {"name":"PowerBuilder"}, {"name":"IT"}].
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRootItem	Long	Gets the root item handle.
LoadFile	String	Loads a JSON file. The JSON file cannot contain special characters such as ~r~n or ~t, otherwise, LoadFile will throw the error "Invalid encoding in string".
LoadString	String	Loads a JSON string. The JSON string cannot contain special characters such as ~r~n or ~t, otherwise, LoadString will throw the error "Invalid encoding in string".
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.45 Line control

A line drawing object is a single straight solid or dashed line.

2.45.1 Properties

Table 2.126:

Line property	Datatype	Description
<u>BeginX</u>	Integer	Specifies the X position of one end of the line (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
BeginY	Integer	Specifies the Y position of one end of the line (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>EndX</u>	Integer	Specifies the X position of the other end of the line (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
EndY	Integer	Specifies the Y position of the other end of the line (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
LineColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the line color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
LineStyle	LineStyle	Specifies the style of the line. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Continuous!
		Dash!
		DashDot!
		DashDotDot!
		Dot!
		Transparent!
LineThicknes	sInteger	Specifies the thickness of the line, in PowerBuilder units. If LineThickness is greater than one pixel (about three PowerBuilder units), the LineStyle is Continuous!.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.

2.45.2 Events

Table 2.127:

Error event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created.
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed.

2.45.3 Functions

Table 2.128:

Line function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
Resize	Integer	Changes the length of the control (changes the settings of the BeginX BeginY, EndX, and EndY properties)
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.46 ListBox control

A ListBox displays available options or values. If more options or values exist than can display in the ListBox at one time or the text exceeds the width of the ListBox, the ListBox has one or two (vertical or horizontal) scroll bars.

2.46.1 Properties

Table 2.129:

ListBox property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for a control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striiptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are: TRUE Control has a border. FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleBox!

ListBox property	Datatype	Description
proporty		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisableNoSc	r <mark>Blo</mark> olean	Specifies behavior of a scroll bar. Values are:
		TRUE The scroll bar is always visible but is disabled when all the items can be accessed without it.
		FALSE The scroll bar is displayed only if it is necessary (based on the number of items and the height of the list box).
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
ExtendedSele	∆B oolean	Specifies whether users can select multiple items in the list box at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Users can select multiple items by clicking on an item and dragging the mouse up or down to select items; using Click or Shift+ Click to select a sequential group of items; or using Ctrl+ Click on multiple items.

ListBox property	Datatype	Description
property		FALSE Users cannot select multiple items.
		Used with MultiSelect
		The MultiSelect property allows users to select multiple items in a list box by simply clicking on the items. If MultiSelect = true and ExtendedSelect = true, then the behavior of ExtendedSelect takes precedence.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
FontPitch	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>HScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar does not display.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Item[]	String	Specifies the items in the control.
MultiSelect	Boolean	Specifies whether users can select multiple items in the ListBox at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Users can select multiple items.

ListBox property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE Users cannot select multiple items.
		Used with ExtendedSelect
		The MultiSelect property allows users to select multiple items in a list box by simply clicking on the items. If MultiSelect = true and ExtendedSelect = true, then the behavior of ExtendedSelect takes precedence.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
Sorted	Boolean	Specifies whether the items in the ListBox are sorted. Values are:
		TRUE Items are sorted.
		FALSE Items are not sorted.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
TabStop[]	Integer array	Specifies the positions of the tab stops in the ListBox. The tab stops are in character positions, and the tab stop delimiter is a space. If you assign a value to only the first tab stop, TabStop[1], the tab stops are equally spaced using the number of character positions specified for the first tab stop. If more than one tab stop is entered, tab stops are located in the positions specified. You can define 16 tab stops in the control; the default array is TabStop[8], with a tab stop every eight character positions.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.

ListBox property	Datatype	Description
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar is displayed on the right of the ListBox. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.46.2 Events

Table 2.130:

ListBox event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Controls message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control
SelectionChanged	When an item in the control is selected

2.46.3 Functions

Table 2.131:

ListBox function	Datatype returned	Description
AddItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the end of the ListBox. If the Sorted property of the control is true, the items are sorted again after the item is added.
		The AddItem function does not update the Item[] property of this control.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes the item indicated by the index from the ListBox.
DirList	Boolean	Populates the ListBox with a list of the files of the specified type that match the specified file pattern.
DirSelect	Boolean	Returns the current selection for the control and puts it in the specified variable.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of a control.
FindItem	Integer	Finds the first item in the ListBox (after the specified index) that begins with the specified string.
GetContextSo	e fwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
InsertItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the ListBox before the item indicated by the index. If the Sorted property of the control is true, the items are sorted again after the item is added.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Reset	Integer	Removes all items from the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectedIndex	xInteger	Returns the index of the item in the ListBox that is currently selected. If more than one item is selected, returns the index of the first selected item.
SelectedItem	String	Returns the text of the first selected item.
SelectItem	Integer	Finds and highlights an item in the control. Use Syntax 1 when you know the text of the item but not its position. Use Syntax 2

ListBox function	Datatype returned	Description
		when you know the position of the item in the control's list or you want to clear the current selection.
		SelectItem has no effect on a ListBox whose MultiSelect property is true. Instead, use SetState to select items without affecting the selected state of other items in the list.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
SetState	Integer	Sets the state (highlighted or not highlighted) of the item indicated by the specified index. SetState works only for multiselect controls (those for which the MultiSelect property is true).
SetTop	Integer	Scrolls the items in the control so that the item indicated by the specified index is at the top of the control.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
State	Integer	Returns 1 if the item specified by the specified index is selected (highlighted) and 0 if the item is not selected.
Text	String	Returns the text of the item in the control identified by the specified index.
Тор	Integer	Returns the index number of the item currently at the top of the control.
TotalItems	Integer	Returns the total number of items in the control.
TotalSelected	Integer	Returns the total number of items selected in the control.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.47 ListView control

A ListView displays list information to the user. Each item of the ListView consists of text and pictures, which can be manipulated during application runtime.

2.47.1 Properties

Table 2.132:

ListView property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the accelerator key assigned for the control.

ListView property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	Striptg on	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
AutoArrange	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder arranges icons automatically in large and small icon views.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
<u>BorderStyle</u>	BorderStyle	Specifies the border style of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order.
ButtonHeade	rBoolean	Specifies whether the column titles in report view appear as buttons.
CheckBoxes	Boolean	Specifies whether the state images are replaced by check boxes. The check boxes are set to unchecked by default. The ListView control processes mouse and keyboard input to toggle the checked state. Values are:
		• TRUE Check boxes are displayed.
		• FALSE Check boxes are not displayed.
		The state of an item's check box can be determined by checking the state picture index for the item:
		Unchecked = 1
		Checked = 2
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

ListView property	Datatype	Description
DeleteItems	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can delete a ListView item from a ListView control by pressing Delete.
DragAuto	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
EditLabels	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can edit the labels in a control by clicking on a selected item. Note that the item must be selected first, by clicking on it.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be clicked). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be clicked.
		FALSE Control cannot be clicked.
ExtendedSele	B oolean	Specifies whether users can select multiple items in the list box at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Users can select multiple items by selecting outside all items and dragging to create a rectangle enclosing the desired items; by using Click or Shift+ Click to select a sequential group of items; or by using Ctrl+ Click on multiple items.
		FALSE Users cannot select multiple items.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Arial or Courier).
FixedLocatio	n B oolean	Specifies whether the user cannot drag items to new positions in a control.
FontCharSet	FontCharSet (enumerated)	Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.

ListView property	Datatype	Description
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the font pitch used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
FullRowSele	cBoolean	Specifies whether an entire row can be selected in report view. Values are:
		• TRUE In report view, an entire row can be selected.
		• FALSE In report view, just the item in the first column can be selected.
GridLines	Boolean	Specifies whether the report view displays gridlines:
		• TRUE In report view, gridlines are displayed.
		• FALSE In report view, gridlines are not displayed.
HeaderDragD	B opolean	Specifies whether column headers can be dragged to move columns in report view:
		• TRUE In report view, column headers can be dragged.
		• FALSE In report view, dragging column headers does not move the columns.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HideSelection	Boolean	Specifies whether selected text stays selected (highlighted) even when the control does not have focus. Values are:
		TRUE Text does not stay highlighted.
		FALSE Text stays highlighted.
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.

ListView property	Datatype	Description
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Item[]	String	Specifies the items in the control. Not updated after initialization.
ItemPictureIn	dnt e[g]er	Identifies the picture associated with the item. The picture index itself is associated with a specific icon, bitmap, or cursor. Not updated after initialization.
LabelWrap	Boolean	Specifies whether long labels wrap under the ListView item in a large icon view. Values are:
		TRUE Labels wrap.
		FALSE Labels do not wrap.
		LabelWrap does not apply to list, report, or small icon views.
LargePicture	Hnitelgter	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the height of the picture used in the large icon view.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a large picture has been added to the large picture index list.
		If the large picture height is 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture added to the large picture index.
LargePicture	Mank@olor	Specifies the color to be transparent when used in a large icon view. This color is used when the picture is added at initialization or with the function AddLargePicture.
LargePicture	String]	Specifies the name of the picture used in large icon view. The picture can be an icon, cursor, or bitmap supplied by the user or a stock picture from the PowerBuilder library. Not updated after initialization.
LargePicture	Windelger	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the width of the picture used in the large icon view.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a large picture has been added to the large picture index list.
		If the large picture width is 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture added to the large picture index.
LayoutRTL	Boolean	Specifies that the layout of the control should be a mirror image of the standard layout. Values are:
		TRUE Elements in the control are right justified.
		FALSE Elements in the control are left justified (default).
OneClickAct	i B at e lean	Specifies whether one click initiates the ItemActivate event:

ListView	Datatype	Description
property		• TRUE One click fires the ItemActivate event, causes the item to change color as the mouse moves over it (hot tracking), and causes the mouse to change to a hand cursor when it is over the item.
		• FALSE The item does not turn color as the mouse moves over it (assuming that TrackSelect = false) and the mouse does not change to a hand cursor when it is over the item (assuming that TwoClickActivate = false).
		However, the ItemActivate event is always initiated when an item is double-clicked, even though OneClickActivate = false and TwoClickActivate = false.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order (default).
Scrolling	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can scroll vertically when not all of the items in a control are visible. Values are:
		TRUE Scrolling is enabled.
		FALSE Scrolling is disabled.
ShowHeader	Boolean	Specifies whether column titles appear in a report view. Values are:
		TRUE Titles appear in a report view.
		FALSE Titles do not appear in a report view.
SmallPicture	Hoitelg er	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the height of the picture used in the small icon view.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a small picture has been added to the small picture index list.
		If the small picture height is 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture added to the small picture index.
SmallPicture	Mank@olor	Specifies the color to be transparent when used in a small icon view. Used when the picture is added at initialization or with the function AddSmallPicture.
SmallPicture	String]	Specifies the name of the picture used in small icon view. The picture can be an icon, cursor, or bitmap supplied by the user or

ListView	Datatype	Description
property		a stock picture from the PowerBuilder library. Not updated after initialization.
SmallPicture	Wnde ger	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the width of the picture used in the small icon view.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a small picture has been added to the small picture index list.
		If the small picture width is 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture added to the small picture index.
<u>SortType</u>	grSortType	Specifies whether items are sorted alphabetically based on the item label. Values are:
		Ascending!
		Descending!
		UserDefinedSort!
		Unsorted!
StatePictureI	ldingb ger	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the height of the state picture.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a state picture has been added to the state picture index list.
		If the state picture height is 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture added to the state picture index list.
StatePicture	Aladrígolor	Specifies the color to be transparent when used in a state picture. Used when the picture is added at initialization or with the function AddStatePicture.
StatePicture	String	Specifies the name of the picture used as the state picture. The picture can be an icon, cursor, or bitmap supplied by the user or a stock picture from the PowerBuilder library. Not updated after initialization.
StatePicture	Vinte ger	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the width of the state picture.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a state picture has been added to the state picture index list.
		If the state picture width is 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture added to the state picture index list.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215.
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points.

ListView property	Datatype	Description
		For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
TrackSelect	Boolean	Specifies whether items appear in a different color when the mouse moves over them (hot tracking) and whether an item is selected if the mouse pauses over it. Values are:
		TRUE An item changes color when the mouse moves over it, and an item is selected if the mouse pauses over it.
		FALSE An item does not change color nor is it selected when the mouse moves over or pauses on it.
TwoClickAct	i Bate lean	Specifies whether two clicks initiate the ItemActivate event:
		TRUE Clicking twice (one click to select the item, one click to activate) fires the ItemActivate event, causes the item to change color as the mouse moves over it (hot tracking), and causes the mouse to change to a hand cursor when it is over the item.
		FALSE The item does not turn color as the mouse moves over it (assuming that TrackSelect = false) and the mouse does not change to a hand cursor when it is over the item (assuming that OneClickActivate = false).
		However, the ItemActivate event is always initiated when an item is double-clicked, even though TwoClickActivate = false.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
UnderlineCo	Boolean	When the OneClickActivate property is true, this property specifies whether hot tracking (color of items changes when mouse moves over them) is turned on and items not highlighted are underlined.
		TRUE Hot tracking is turned on and nonhighlighted items are underlined.
		FALSE Nonhighlighted items are not underlined.
UnderlineHo	t Boolean	When either the OneClickActivate or TwoClickActivate property is true, this property specifies whether hot tracking (color of items changes when mouse moves over them) is turned on and items that are highlighted are underlined.
		TRUE Hot tracking is turned on and highlighted items are underlined.
		FALSE Highlighted items are not underlined.

ListView property	Datatype	Description
<u>View</u>	ListViewVie	Specifies the layout of the ListBox. Valid values are:
		ListViewLargeIcon! Items are arranged from left to right. Uses large pictures.
		ListViewSmallIcon! Items are arranged from left to right. Uses small pictures.
		ListViewList! Items are arranged from top to bottom. Uses small pictures.
		ListViewReport! Items are arranged from top to bottom. Uses small pictures. Additional columns of information can be associated with each item. At least one column must be created to view data in this view.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.47.2 Events

Table 2.133:

ListView event	Occurs
BeginDrag	When the user begins a drag operation with the left mouse button. If the DragAuto property is set to true, the drag begins automatically. If the DragAuto property is set to false, the drag operation must be done programmatically.
BeginLabelEdit	When the user starts to edit a ListView item label. Return 1 to prevent setting to the new text. Return 0 to accept the new text.
BeginRightDrag	When the user begins a drag operation with the right mouse button. If the DragAuto property is set to true, the drag begins automatically. If the DragAuto property is set to false, the drag operation must be done programmatically.
Clicked	When the control is clicked.
ColumnClick	When the column is clicked
Constructor	When the object is created, immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.

ListView event	Occurs	
DeleteAllItems	When all items in a ListView are deleted.	
DeleteItem	When a ListView item is deleted.	
Destructor	When the object is destroyed, immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.	
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked.	
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the ListView control.	
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control, including entering the narrow border around the display area.	
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control, including leaving by crossing into the tab page display area.	
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control but not on a ListView item.	
EndLabelEdit	When the user finishes editing a ListView item label. Return 1 to prevent setting to the new text. Return 0 to accept the new text.	
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).	
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.	
InsertItem	When an item is being inserted.	
ItemActivate	When an item is double-clicked, or when the item is single-clicked if the property OneClickActivate = true, or when the item is clicked twice if the property TwoClickActivate = true.	
ItemChanged	When an item has changed.	
ItemChanging	When an item is changing. Return 1 to prevent the change, or 0 to accept the change.	
Key	When the user presses a key.	
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).	
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.	
RightClicked	When the control is right-clicked.	
RightDoubleClicked.		
Sort	When two items are compared.	
	Return codes:	
	1 if item 1 > item 2.	
	0 if item 1 = item 2 .	
	-1 if item 1 < item 2.	

2.47.3 Functions

Table 2.134:

ListView function	Datatype returned	Description
AddColumn	Integer	Adds a column to a ListView control report view.
AddItem	Integer	Adds an item to a ListView control.
AddLargePic	t Imt eger	Adds an icon, cursor, or bitmap to the large image list.
AddSmallPic	t Imt eger	Adds an icon, cursor, or bitmap to the small image list.
AddStatePict	ulneteger	Adds an icon, cursor, or bitmap to the state image list.
Arrange	Integer	Arranges the items in a ListView control large or small icon view.
ClassName	String	Returns the name of the control.
DeleteColum	nInteger	Deletes a column from a ListView control.
DeleteColum	nInteger	Deletes all columns from a ListView control.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes an item from a ListView control.
DeleteItems	Integer	Deletes all items from a ListView control.
DeleteLargel	iktteg er	Deletes a specified icon, cursor, or bitmap from the large image list.
DeleteLargel	Piktterger	Deletes all icons, cursors, and bitmaps from the large image list.
DeleteSmalll	iktteg er	Deletes a specified icon, cursor, or bitmap from the small image list.
DeleteSmalll	Piktterger	Deletes all icons, cursors, and bitmaps from the small image list.
DeleteStateP	id næ ger	Deletes a specified icon, cursor, or bitmap from the state image list.
DeleteStateP	id ntre ser	Deletes all icons, cursors, and bitmaps from the large state list.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of a ListView item.
EditLabel	Integer	Starts editing a specific ListView item label.
FindItem	Integer	Searches for the next item that satisfies the specified search criteria.
GetColumn	Integer	Syntax 1: Does not apply to a ListView control.
		Syntax 2: Returns the properties of a specified column in a ListView control report view.
GetContextS	e łмieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetItem	Integer	Retrieves information for a specified item.
GetOrigin	Integer	Finds the X and Y coordinates of the upper-left corner of the ListView item.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Hides the specified ListView item.

ListView function	Datatype returned	Description
InsertColumn	Integer	Inserts a column into a ListView control report view.
InsertItem	Integer	Inserts an item into a ListView control.
Move	Integer	Moves a control or object to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Determines the distance from the left edge of an object to the pointer location.
PointerY	Integer	Determines the distance from the top edge of an object to the pointer location.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the event to the end of the event queue of an object.
Print	Integer	Includes this object in a print job. Only the part visible on the screen is printed.
Resize	Integer	Resizes a control to the specified dimensions.
SelectedIndex	xInteger	Returns the number of the selected item in a ListView control.
SetColumn	Integer	Syntax 1: Does not apply to a ListView control.
		Syntax 2: Sets the properties of a particular column in a ListView control report view.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus for a specified object or control.
SetItem	Integer	Sets the values for a given ListView item.
SetOverlayPi	c intæ ger	Maps a picture index to an overlay picture index. Only four overlay picture indexes are available.
SetPosition	Integer	Sets the position of the ListView control in the front-to-back order within a window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls the automatic redraw of an object after its properties have changed.
Show	Integer	Makes an object or control visible if it is hidden. If the object is already visible, Show brings it to the top.
Sort	Integer	Sorts the items in a ListView control.
TotalColumn	sInteger	Returns the number of columns in a ListView control report view.
TotalItems	Integer	Returns the number of items in a ListView control.
TotalSelected	Integer	Returns the number of selected items in a ListView control.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.48 ListViewItem object

A ListViewItem object is a system structure that populates a ListView control. ListViewItems have no events.

2.48.1 Properties

Table 2.135:

ListViewIter property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CutHighlight	e B oolean	Specifies whether the item is the target of a cut operation. Values are:
		TRUE The item is the target of a cut operation.
		FALSE The item is not the target of a cut operation.
Data	Any	Assigns any user-defined data to a ListView item.
DropHighligh	n &d olean	Specifies whether the item is the target of a DragDrop operation. Values are:
		TRUE The item is the target of a DragDrop operation.
		FALSE The item is not the target of a DragDrop operation.
HasFocus	Boolean	Specifies whether the item has focus. Values are:
		TRUE The item has focus.
		FALSE The item does not have focus.
ItemX	Integer	Identifies the X location of the item relative to the upper-left corner of the control.
ItemY	Integer	Identifies the Y location of the item relative to the upper-left corner of the control.
Label	String	Identifies the string label associated with the item.
OverlayPictu	rennelgeer	Identifies the overlay picture associated with the item.
<u>PictureIndex</u>	Integer	Identifies the large and small picture associated with the item.
Selected	Boolean	Specifies whether the item is selected. Values are:
		TRUE The item is selected.
		FALSE The item is not selected.
StatePictureIn	n liete ger	Identifies the state picture associated with the item.

2.48.2 Functions

Table 2.136:

ListViewIter function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the parent of the object.

ListViewIter function	Datatype returned	Description
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.49 mailFileDescription object

The mailFileDescription object is a system structure containing information about an attachment file to a mail message. A mailFileDescription object has no events.

2.49.1 Properties

Table 2.137:

mailFileDeso property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P lowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
FileType	• •	Specifies the type of the attachment file. Values are: mailAttach! data file. mailOLE! embedded OLE object. mailOLEStatic! static OLE object. Only mailAttach! is supported for Extended MAPI. If you specify the other value (mailOLE! or mailOLEStatic!), it will work as mailAttach!
Filename	String	Specifies the name of the attachment file.
Pathname	String	Specifies the full path of the attachment file including the file name.
Position	Unsignedlong	Specifies the position of the attachment file within the message body. Required when sending multiple attachments.

2.49.2 Functions

Table 2.138:

mailFileDesc function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of an object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.50 mailMessage object

The mailMessage object is a system structure containing information about a specific mail message. A mailMessage object has no events.

2.50.1 Properties

Table 2.139:

mailMessage property	Datatype	Description
AttachmentF	l æ [a]lFileDesc	raptionifies the file attachment for the current message. A mailFileDescription array contains information about an attachment file.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Conversation	IS tring	Specifies the conversation thread ID for the current message.
DateReceived	String	Indicates the date on which the current message was received.
MessageSent	Boolean	Indicates whether the current message has been sent to the mail server. (Read-only at runtime only.)
		TRUE Message has been sent to mail server.
		FALSE Message has not yet been sent.
MessageType	String	Indicates the type of the current message. A value other than null or an empty string indicates use by an application other than interpersonal mail. (Runtime only.)
NoteText	String	Specifies the content of the message body. (Runtime only.)
ReceiptReque	Bed lean	Indicates whether a return receipt is requested for the current message. (Runtime only.)
		TRUE Return receipt requested.
		FALSE Return receipt not requested.
Recipient[]	mailRecipien	tSpecifies the recipient of the current message. For mailSend, mailOriginator! is not a valid value for the Recipient property. The valid values are mailto!, mailcc!, and mailbcc!. To specify that the sender receive a copy of the message, use mailcc!.
Subject	String	Specifies the subject line, displayed in the message header, for the current message.
Unread	Boolean	Indicates whether or not the message has been read. (Read-only at runtime only.)
		TRUE Message has not been read.
		FALSE Message has been read.

2.50.2 Functions

Table 2.140:

mailMessage function	_	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object

mailMessage function	Datatype returned	Description
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.51 mailRecipient object

The mailRecipient object is a system structure containing information about the recipient of a mail message. You populate the mailRecipient structure using the mailAddress function. A mailRecipient object has no events.

For information about the mailAddress function, see Section 10.380, "mailAddress".

2.51.1 Properties

Table 2.141:

mailRecipier property	Datatype	Description
Address	String	Specifies the electronic mail address of the current mail recipient. (Runtime only.)
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
EntryID	Blob	Binary entry identifier information used internally.
Name	String	Specifies the name of the current mail recipient. (Runtime only.)
RecipientTyp	emailRecipien (enumerated)	tSpecifies the type of the current mail recipient. Values are: mailBCC! mailCC! mailOriginator! mailTo!

2.51.2 Functions

Table 2.142:

mailRecipier function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object
GetContextSo	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.52 mailSession object

The mailSession nonvisual object signs on and establishes a messaging application program interface (MAPI) session.

2.52.1 Properties

Table 2.143:

mailSession property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
MessageID[]	String	Contains the IDs of the messages in a user's mail inbox
SessionID	Long	Contains the handle of the current messaging session

2.52.2 Events

Table 2.144:

mailSession event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.52.3 Functions

Table 2.145:

14010 2.143.		
mailSession	~ ~	Description
function	returned	
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the object
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
mailAddress	mailReturnCo	pulpdates the mailRecipient array for a mail message
mailDeleteM	ensaidReturnCo	Deletes a mail message from the user's electronic mail inbox
mailGetMess	a na ilReturnCo	Repulates the MessageID array of a mailSession object with the message IDs in the user's inbox
mailHandle	UnsignedLon	Description object Description of a mailSession object
mailLogoff	mailReturnCo	Heads the mail session, breaking the connection between the PowerBuilder application and mail
mailLogon	mailReturnCo	Establishes a mail session for the PowerBuilder application
mailReadMes	sngilReturnCo	Opens a mail message whose ID is stored in the mail session's message array
mailRecipien	t DæidRe turnCo	Desplays a dialog box with the specified recipient's address information

mailSession function	Datatype returned	Description
mailResolveF	R ecajlike t urn Co	Obtains a valid electronic mail address based on a partial or full user name and optionally updates information in the system's address list if the user has privileges to do so
mailSaveMes	s mgċ lReturnCo	Greates a new message in the user's inbox or replaces an existing message
mailSend	mailReturnCo	Sends a mail message
PostEvent	Integer	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.53 MDIClient object

An MDI window is a frame window in which you can open multiple document windows (sheets) and move among the sheets.

An MDIClient object is the area in which open sheets display in a standard MDI frame. In a standard MDI window, PowerBuilder sizes the MDIClient so that it fills the space inside the frame. For example, if the frame has a menu bar and MicroHelp, the MDIClient fills the space between the sides of the frame and the space below the menu bar and above the MicroHelp.

In a custom MDI window, you determine the size of the client area. For example, when a frame has buttons below the menu bar in the frame, you size the client area so it begins below the buttons.

An MDIClient object has no associated events.

2.53.1 Properties

Table 2.146:

MDIClient property	Datatype	Description
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numerical value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the MDIClient object to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Object moved to top.
		FALSE Object not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the MDIClient object, in PowerBuilder units.

MDIClient property	Datatype	Description
MicroHelpHe	Ighte ger	Holds the height of the MicroHelp in the MDIClient object.
		If the style of the MDI window is MDI Frame (no MicroHelp), MicroHelpHeight is 0; otherwise, it is the height of the MicroHelp.
		You cannot set the value of this property.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the MDIClient object.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the MDIClient object is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Object is visible.
		FALSE Object is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the MDIClient object, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the MDI frame window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the MDI frame window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.53.2 Functions

Table 2.147:

MDIClient function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the MDIClient object.
GetContextSo	łwieger	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the MDIClient object invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the MDIClient object to a specified location.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the MDIClient object.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the MDIClient object after each change in its properties. To reduce flicker when the user closes all the sheets, set SetRedraw to FALSE.
Show	Integer	Makes the MDIClient object visible.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.54 Menu object

In PowerBuilder, you use the Menu painter to create menus and toolbars. Typically, menus are lists of items (usually commands or options) that a user can select in the currently active window. Menus can display in a menu bar, in a drop-down or cascading menu, or as pop-

up menus. A toolbar is associated with a menu, and its toolbar buttons act as shortcuts for choosing items from the menu.

PowerBuilder provides a Menu system object used to develop menus. A Menu object can contain other Menu objects that appear, for example, as the items in a drop-down or cascading menu. When the user clicks a Menu object, a Clicked event is triggered. If there is a drop-down or cascading menu under the clicked object, the script for the Clicked event for the object is executed, and then the menu displays. If there is no menu under the object, the script for the Clicked event for the object is executed.

Menus that you import or migrate from earlier versions of PowerBuilder use the Traditional menu style by default. Menus with a Contemporary style have a three-dimensional menu appearance similar to those in Microsoft Office 2003 and Visual Studio 2005, and can include bitmap and menu title bands.

2.54.1 Properties

Table 2.148:

Menu property	Datatype	Description
BitmapBackC	Chlorg	Background color of the bitmap band of the menu. (Default is silver.)
BitmapGradie	e B toolean	Background of the bitmap band to a gradient style.
Checked	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object is selected. The state of the checked property is reflected in the toolbar button. Values are:
		TRUE Object is selected.
		FALSE Object is not selected.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Default	Boolean	Specifies whether the menu item is the default and appears in a bold typeface. Only one item within a menu should be set to default.
		In context menus, the Default property is used to indicate the action that would have been performed if the user had double-clicked on the object rather than right-clicked on it.
		The property is also used to indicate which operation would have been performed if the item had been dragged with the left mouse button rather than the right mouse button.
		Values are:
		TRUE Menu item is bolded.
		FALSE Menu item is not bolded.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object is enabled (can be clicked). The state of the enabled property is reflected in the toolbar button. Values are:

Menu property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Object is enabled.
		FALSE Object is not enabled.
FaceName	String	Font face name.
Italic	Boolean	Italic font.
Item[]	Menu	Specifies the Menu objects under a Menu object.
MenuAnimat	i Bro olean	Visual sizing cue to the menu item bitmap when the associated menu item is selected. This property is ignored if the MenuImage property is not assigned.
MenuBackCo	Moong	Background color of the menu.
MenuBitmap	sBoolean	Bitmap band for the menu.
MenuHighlig	Ht6 n gor	Menu highlight color. The default is the default Windows highlight color.
MenuImage	String	Bitmap image to be used with the menu item. This property is ignored if the MenuBitmaps property for the menu object is not selected or is set to false. If you change MenuImage at runtime, the height of the image does not change, therefore you should avoid assigning a larger or smaller bitmap dynamically.
MenuItemTy	•	pAllows you to identify special Menu objects that are used differently on different platforms. Values are:
		MenuItemTypeAbout!
		MenuItemTypeExit!
		MenuItemTypeHelp!
		MenuItemTypeNormal!
MenuStyle	MenuStyle (enumerated)	Overall menu style. Values are: contemporarymenu! and traditionalmenu!
MenuTextCo	lbong	Menu text color. (Default is the Windows menu text color.)
MenuTitles	Boolean	Menu title band.
MenuTitleTe	x S tring	Label for a menu item that has a cascading submenu. The label text is set vertically in a column to the left of the submenu items and the bitmaps for submenu items, if any. If the vertical label text is longer than the height of all the submenu items, the label text is cut from the end. This property is ignored if the MenuTitles property for the menu object is not selected.
MergeOption	_	Specifies how the object is affected when an OLE object is activated. Values are:
		EditMenu!
		Exclude!
		FileMenu!

Menu property	Datatype	Description
property		HelpMenu!
		Merge!
		WindowMenu!
		For more information about MergeOption, see Chapter 21, <i>Using OLE in an Application</i> .
MicroHelp	String	Specifies the text of the MicroHelp for the object.
ParentWindo	wWindow	Specifies the window that owns the Menu object.
ShiftToRight	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object shifts down or to the right when other Menu objects are added in a descendant menu. Values are:
		TRUE Object shifts to right.
		FALSE Object shifts down.
Shortcut	Integer	Specifies the shortcut key for the Menu object. This property should be set only in the Menu painter. It cannot be set at runtime.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the Menu object.
Text	String	Specifies the text in the Menu object.
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Font character size in points for menu items. This property does not apply to the Traditional menu style, and it does not apply to the main menu bar, which has a fixed height of 8 points.
TitleBackCol	drong	Background color of the title panel.
TitleGradient	Boolean	Background gradient style for the title panel.
ToolbarAnim	a Bioo olean	Specifies animation for the toolbar image. You can select the ToolbarAnimation check box on the Toolbar tab in the Properties view for each menu item unless you are using the traditional toolbar style for the current menu object. If you do not select an image for the ToolbarItemName property of a menu item, the selection you make for the ToolbarAnimation property is ignored.
ToolbarBack	Dobong	Background color of the menu toolbar.
ToolbarGradi		Gradient of the menu toolbar background.
ToolbarHighl		Highlight color for the toolbar buttons when they are selected.
ToolbarItemF	-	Specifies which toolbar the Menu object is on when multiple toolbars exist. If setting this index results in the object being the first item on a new toolbar, the toolbar is implicitly created. If setting this index results in emptying a toolbar, the toolbar is implicitly destroyed.
ToolbarItemI	DBwol ean	Specifies how the toolbar button appears. Values are:

Menu property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Toolbar button appears down.
		FALSE Toolbar button appears up.
		This property is automatically reset when any button is pressed using the mouse.
ToolbarItemI	Strim ly ame	Specifies the name of the toolbar icon associated with the Menu object when it is down.
ToolbarItem	Natnien g	Specifies the name of a stock toolbar picture you want to use to represent an item in the toolbar or a string containing the name of a bitmap file.
ToolbarItem(Ordte ger	Specifies the order of the item in the toolbar.
ToolbarItemS	patæ ger	Specifies the amount of empty space before the item in the toolbar.
ToolbarItemT	Stat ing	Specifies the text that displays in the toolbar item when the display text option is on for toolbars.
ToolbarItemV	/Biololle an	Specifies whether the toolbar item displays. Values are:
		TRUE The toolbar item is visible.
		FALSE The toolbar item is not visible.
		If any toolbar item has a ToolbarItemName assigned, an empty toolbar displays even if this property has been set to false for all toolbar items. To control display of the toolbar, use the ToolbarVisible property of the window.
ToolbarStyle	•	Overall style of the menu toolbar. Values are: contemporarytoolbar! and traditionaltoolbar!
ToolbarTextO	Chlong	Color of the text in menu toolbar.
Underline	Boolean	Underline font.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Object is visible.
		FALSE Object is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Font weight.

2.54.2 Events

Table 2.149:

Menu event	Occurs
Clicked	When the Menu object is clicked (selected or unselected)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control

Menu event	Occurs
Selected	When the user moves to the Menu object using the arrow keys or the
	mouse

2.54.3 Functions

Table 2.150:

Menu function	Datatype returned	Description
Check	Integer	Displays a check mark next to the Menu object and sets the Checked property.
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the Menu object.
Disable	Integer	Disables (and grays) the Menu object so that it cannot be selected and unsets the Enabled property.
Enable	Integer	Enables the Menu object so that it can be selected and displays it normally (not grayed) and sets the Enabled property.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the Menu object invisible.
PopMenu	Integer	Displays the Menu object at the specified location.
PostEvent	Integer	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the Menu object.
Show	Integer	Makes the Menu object visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the Menu object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.
Uncheck	Integer	Removes the check mark next to the Menu object and sets the Checked property to FALSE.

2.55 MenuCascade object

Menu objects contained within a MenuCascade object appear as a drop-down button palette.

2.55.1 Properties

Table 2.151:

MenuCascao property	Datatype	Description
Checked	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object is selected. The state of the checked property is reflected in the toolbar button. Values are:
		TRUE Object is selected.
		FALSE Object is not selected.

MenuCasca	Datatype	Description
property ClassDefiniti	o P rowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Columns	Integer	Specifies the number of columns in the drop-down button palette.
CurrentItem	Menu	Specifies the Menu object that is currently displayed on the main toolbar as the representative (active) button for the dropdown button palette.
Default	Boolean	Specifies whether the menu item is the default and appears in a bold typeface. Only one item within a menu should be set to default.
		In context menus, the Default property is used to indicate the action that would have been performed if the user had double-clicked on the object rather than right-clicked on it.
		The property is also used to indicate which operation would have been performed if the item had been dragged with the left mouse button rather than the right mouse button.
		Values are:
		TRUE Menu item is bolded.
		FALSE Menu item is not bolded.
DropDown	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu objects contained in the MenuCascade object display as a drop-down button palette. Values are:
		TRUE Menu objects contained in the MenuCascade object are displayed as a drop-down button palette.
		FALSE Menu objects contained in the MenuCascade object are displayed as normal toolbar items.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object is enabled (can be clicked). The state of the enabled property is reflected in the toolbar button. Values are:
		TRUE Object is enabled.
		FALSE Object is not enabled.
Item[]	Menu	Specifies the Menu objects under a Menu object.
MenuItemTy	MenuItemTy (enumerated)	Allows you to identify special menu items that are used differently on different platforms. Values are:
	(chamerateu)	MenuItemTypeAbout!
		MenuItemTypeExit!
		MenuItemTypeHelp!
		MenuItemTypeNormal!

MenuCascac property	Datatype	Description
	MenuMerge- Option	Specifies how the object is affected when an OLE 2.0 object is activated. Values are:
	(enumerated)	EditMenu!
		Exclude!
		FileMenu!
		HelpMenu!
		Merge!
		WindowMenu!
		For more information about MergeOption, see Chapter 21, <i>Using OLE in an Application</i> .
MicroHelp	String	Specifies the text of the MicroHelp for the object.
ParentWindo	wWindow	Specifies the window that owns the Menu object.
ShiftToRight	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object shifts down or to the right when other Menu objects are added in a descendant menu. Values are:
		TRUE Object shifts to right.
		FALSE Object shifts down.
Shortcut	Integer	Specifies the shortcut key for the object. This property should be set only in the Menu painter. It cannot be set at runtime.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the Menu object.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text in the Menu object.
ToolbarItemI	DBwol lean	Specifies how the toolbar button appears. Values are:
		TRUE Toolbar button appears down.
		FALSE Toolbar button appears up.
		This property is automatically reset when any button is pressed using the mouse.
ToolbarItemI	Strim y ame	Specifies the name of the toolbar icon associated with the Menu object when it is down.
ToolbarItemE	Blurfaglerx	Specifies which toolbar the object is on when multiple toolbars exist. If setting this index results in the item being the first item on a new toolbar, the toolbar is implicitly created. If setting this index results in emptying a toolbar, the toolbar is implicitly destroyed.
ToolbarItemN	Vatnie ng	Specifies the name of a stock toolbar picture you want to use to represent an item in the toolbar or a string containing the name of a bitmap file.
ToolbarItemC	Ohdte rger	Specifies the order of the item in the toolbar.

MenuCascao property	Datatype	Description
ToolbarItemS	phatæger	Specifies the amount of empty space before the item in the toolbar.
ToolbarItem	Ext ing	Specifies the text that displays in the toolbar item when the display text option is on for toolbars.
ToolbarItemV	/ B:òlolke an	Specifies whether the toolbar item displays. Values are: TRUE Toolbar item is visible. FALSE Toolbar item is not visible.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the Menu object is visible. Values are: TRUE Object is visible. FALSE Object is not visible.

2.55.2 Events

Table 2.152:

MenuCascade event	Occurs
Clicked	When the Menu object is clicked (selected or unselected)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
Selected	When the user moves to the Menu object using the arrow keys or the mouse

2.55.3 Functions

Table 2.153:

MenuCascac function	Datatype returned	Description
Check	Integer	Displays a check mark next to the Menu object and sets the Checked property
ClassName	String	Returns the class of the Menu object
Disable	Integer	Disables (and grays) the Menu object so that it cannot be selected and unsets the Enabled property
Enable	Integer	Enables the Menu object so that it can be selected, displays it normally (not grayed), and sets the Enabled property
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the Menu object invisible

MenuCascac function	Datatype returned	Description
PopMenu	Integer	Displays the Menu object at the specified location
PostEvent	Integer	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the Menu object
Show	Integer	Makes the Menu object visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the Menu object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control
Uncheck	Integer	Removes the check mark next to the Menu object and sets the Checked property to FALSE

2.56 Message object

The Message object is used to process events that are not defined by PowerBuilder, to communicate parameters between windows when you open and close them, and to specify whether optional parameters are used in TriggerEvent or PostEvent.

You can also customize your own version of the Message object by defining a class user object inherited from the built-in Message object.

For more information about creating a custom Message object, see Chapter 14, Working with User Objects.

2.56.1 Properties

The first four properties of the Message object correspond to the first four properties of the Microsoft Windows message structure:

Table 2.154:

Message	Datatype	Description
property		
Handle	Long	The handle of the window or control.
Number	UnsignedInt	The number that identifies the event (this number comes from Windows).
WordParm	Long	The word parameter for the event (this parameter comes from Windows). The parameter's value and meaning are determined by the event.
LongParm	Long	The long parameter for the event (this number comes from Windows). The parameter's value and meaning are determined by the event.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DoubleParm	Double	A numeric or a numeric variable.
StringParm	String	A string or a string variable.

Message property	Datatype	Description
PowerObject	P An werObject	Any PowerBuilder object type including structures.
Processed	Boolean	A boolean value set in the script for the user-defined event or the Other event. Values are:
		TRUE The script processed the event; do not call the default window process (DefWindowProc) after the event has been processed.
		FALSE (Default) Call DefWindowProc after the event has been processed.
ReturnValue	Long	When Message.Processed is true, specifies the value you want returned to Windows. This property is ignored when Message.Processed is false.

2.56.2 Events

Table 2.155:

Message event	Occurs	
Constructor	When the user object is created	
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed	

2.56.3 Functions

Table 2.156:

Message function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object

2.57 MLSync object

An MLSync object is derived from the MLSynchronization object base class. Its primary function is to launch dbmlsync.exe, a separate process that synchronizes a SQL Anywhere remote database with a consolidated database. The MLSync properties control the options used for the synchronization. MLSync events represent callbacks that are automatically triggered by dbmlsync.exe at specific times during the synchronization process.

2.57.1 Properties

Table 2.157:

MLSync	Datatype	Description
property Additional Or	49 tuin o	Used to mass additional displaying antique
AdditionalOp	_	Used to pass additional dbmlsync options.
Authenticate	Patrina g	Used with authenticate_parameters connection script. Equivalent to the -ap "parm1,parm2" dbmlsync option.
<u>DataSource</u>	String	The ODBC data source name used to connect to a SQL Anywhere remote database. Equivalent to the -c "dsn=myDSN" dbmlsync option, where myDSN is the data source name.
<u>DBPass</u>	String	Password for the SQL Anywhere remote database. Equivalent to the -c "pwd=myPassword" dbmlsync option, where myPassword is the password for the database connection.
DBUser	String	User ID for the SQL Anywhere remote database. Equivalent to the -c "uid=myUserID" dbmlsync option, where myUserID is the user ID for the database connection.
EncryptionKo	§ tring	Encryption key for SQL Anywhere remote database. Equivalent to the -c "dbkey=myKey" dbmlsync option, where myKey is the encryption key for the database.
ErrorText	String	Contains error and diagnostic messages generated when an MLSync function is called incorrectly.
ExtendedOpt	sString	Extended dbmlsync options. Equivalent to the -e "extops" dbmlsync option.
Host	String	The machine name for the synchronization server. Equivalent to the -e "adr='host=machineName'" dbmlsync option, where machineName is the host machine.
LogFileName	String	Creates a log file at this path if UseLogFile=true. Equivalent to the -o logfilename dbmlsync option, where logfilename is the full name of the log file you want to create.
LogOpts	String	Additional dbmlsync options to control logging output.
MLPass	String	The MobiLink password needed to connect to the synchronization server. Equivalent to the -mp password dbmlsync option.
MLServerVe	r lion g	The version of the SQL Anywhere remote database and synchronization server.
MLUser	String	The MobiLink user name needed to connect to the synchronization server. Equivalent to the -u username dbmlsync option.
ObjectRevisi	o <u>h</u> ong	You increment this value each time you rebuild the MLSync object with new default property values. At runtime, if a new ObjectRevision value is detected, the default property values are

MLSync property	Datatype	Description
		written to the Windows registry and used to initialize MLSync. For subsequent synchronizations, MLSync is initialized using the property values obtained from the Windows registry.
Port	String	The port number for the synchronization server. Equivalent to the -e "adr='port=portno'" dbmlsync option, where portno is the number of the port you use for synchronization.
ProcessOptio	_	Spts the direction for synchronization. Values are DownloadOnly!, UploadOnly!, and Bidirectional! (default).
ProgressWind	d Stvi Ngme	Specifies the class name of a progress window generated by the MobiLink Synchronization Wizard. The progress window is an optional selection in the synchronization wizard, or a customized user-defined window. It should contain the same callback events as the MLSync object. An MLSync object that is generated by the wizard automatically triggers the appropriate window event in order to display synchronization progress.
Publication	String	The publication to be processed. If more than one publication is specified, you must separate each name with a comma. Equivalent to the -n pub1,pub2 dbmlsync option.
SyncRegistry	<u>Kstrj</u> ng	Location in the Windows registry where MLSync property values from a previous synchronization are stored. The MobiLink Synchronization Wizard generates a synchronization options window that allows an end user to customize the MLSync properties at runtime and save these settings when the SetSyncRegistryProperties function is triggered.
<u>UseLogFile</u>	Boolean	If true, creates a synchronization log.
UseWindow	Boolean	Used at runtime by the objects that are generated by the synchronization wizard. When set to true, the generated functions create a progress window to display status information about the synchronization process.
WindowObje	W indow	Instance of a synchronization progress window. The class name of WindowObject must match the ProgressWindowName value.

2.57.2 Events

Table 2.158:

MLSync event	Occurs
BeginDownload	At the beginning of the download procedure
BeginLogScan	Before dbmlsync scans the transaction log to assemble the upload
BeginSync	At the beginning of the synchronization
BeginUpload	At the beginning of the upload procedure
ConnectMobiLink	When dbmlsync connects to the MobiLink server

MLSync event	Occurs	
DisconnectMobiL	inhamediately after disconnecting from the synchronization server	
DisplayMessage	On display of an informational message	
EndDownload	At the end of download processing	
EndLogScan	After the scan of the transaction log completes for upload	
EndSync	At the end of synchronization	
EndUpload	After transmission of the upload to the synchronization server	
ErrorMessage	On display of an error message	
FileMessage	On display of a file message	
ProgressIndex	Periodically whenever the synchronization triggers updates to a progress bar	
SyncPreview	Returns generated dbmlsync command arguments immediately prior to launching the process	
UploadAck	On completion of upload processing	
WaitForUploadA	When the synchronization process starts a new waiting period for upload acknowledgement	
WarningMessage	Message On display of a warning message	

2.57.3 Functions

Table 2.159:

MLSync function	Datatype returned	Description
CancelSync	Integer	Cancels a synchronization that is in progress
GetCommand	lString	Returns the command string that is generated from the current MLSync property values
GetDbmlsync	: Bat mg	Returns the full path and file name of dbmlsync.exe that is installed on the workstation.
GetObjectRe	v IntegEr omRe	Rettyrns the current synchronization build number from the Windows registry
GetSyncRegi	s InyPgop erties	Retrieves the ObjectRevision property saved in the Windows registry by a previous call to SetSyncRegistryProperties
SetNewMobi	Lintk@as sword	Changes the MobiLink password on the consolidated database
SetParm	Integer	Passes SyncParm object properties to an MLSync object
SetSyncRegis	strytPgoperties	Writes synchronization property values to the Windows registry
Synchronize	Integer	Launches a synchronization process using the MLSync command string properties that have been set

2.58 MLSynchronization object

The MLSynchronization object is an abstract class from which MLSync objects are derived.

2.58.1 Properties

Table 2.160:

MLSynchron property	Datatype	Description
AdditionalOp	S tring	Used to pass additional dbmlsync options.
Authenticatel	String	Used with authenticate_parameters connection script.
ErrorText	String	Contains error and diagnostic messages generated when a function is called incorrectly.
ExtendedOpt	String	Extended dbmlsync options.
<u>Host</u>	String	The machine name for the synchronization server.
LogFileName	String	Creates a log file at this path if UseLogFile=true.
LogOpts	String	Additional dbmlsync options to control logging output.
MLPass	String	The MobiLink password passed to the synchronization server.
MLServerVe	rtiong	The version of the SQL Anywhere remote database and synchronization server.
MLUser	String	The MobiLink user name passed to the synchronization server.
ObjectRevision	o <u>h</u> ong	At runtime, if a new ObjectRevision value is detected, the default property values are written to the Windows Registry and used to initialize objects of type MLSync. For subsequent synchronizations, MLSync is initialized using the property values obtained from the Windows registry.
<u>Port</u>	String	The port number for the synchronization server.
ProcessOptio	_	Spts the direction for synchronization. Values are DownloadOnly!, UploadOnly!, and Bidirectional! (default).
ProgressWine	dSwiNgme	Name of a user-defined customized window or a window generated by the MobiLink synchronization wizard to indicate synchronization progress.
Publication	String	The publication to be processed.
SyncRegistry	IStr ing	Location in the Windows registry where MLSync property values from a previous synchronization are stored.
<u>UseLogFile</u>	Boolean	If true, creates a synchronization log.
UseWindow	Boolean	Used by the synchronization wizard to determine whether to create a progress window to display status information about the synchronization process.
WindowObje	₩ indow	Synchronization progress window.

2.58.2 Events

Table 2.161:

MLSynchronizat	Occurs
event	
BeginDownload	At the beginning of the download procedure
BeginSync	At the beginning of the synchronization
BeginUpload	At the beginning of the upload procedure
ConnectMobiLink	When the MobiLink synchronization server connects to the consolidated database server
DisconnectMobiL	ihhmediately after disconnecting from the synchronization server
DisplayMessage	On display of an informational message
EndDownload	At the end of download processing
EndSync	At the end of synchronization
EndUpload	After transmission of the upload to the synchronization server
ErrorMessage	On display of an error message
FileMessage	On display of a file message
ProgressIndex	Periodically during synchronization after updates to a synchronization progress bar
SyncPreview	Returns generated dbmlsync command arguments immediately prior to launching the process
UploadAck	On completion of upload processing
WaitForUploadAd	When the synchronization process starts a new waiting period for upload acknowledgement
WarningMessage	On display of a warning message

2.58.3 Functions

Table 2.162:

MLSynchron function	Datatype returned	Description
CancelSync	Integer	Cancels a synchronization that is in progress
GetObjectRe	v IniegEr omRe	gReatryieves the ObjectRevision property saved in the Windows registry by a previous call to SetSyncRegistryProperties
GetSyncRegi	s InyPgop erties	Retrieves synchronization property values from the Windows registry
SetNewMobi	∐intk₽as sword	Changes the MobiLink password on the consolidated database
SetParm	Integer	Passes SyncParm object properties to a synchronization object
SetSyncRegis	sturytPgoperties	Writes synchronization property values to the Windows registry
Synchronize	Integer	Launches a synchronization process using the command string properties that have been set

2.59 MonthCalendar control

A MonthCalendar control provides a calendar-like user interface that makes it easy for users to enter or select dates.

2.59.1 Properties

Table 2.163:

MonthCalen	Datatype	Description
property		
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for a control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striiptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
AutoSize	Boolean	Specifies whether the calendar is sized automatically to hold a single month. Values are:
		TRUE The calendar sizes to hold a single month (default).
		FALSE The calendar does not size to hold a single month.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the control: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o li nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:

MonthCalen property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to put the control into Drag mode manually by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
FirstDayOfW	<u>tweekDay</u> (enumerated)	Specifies which day of the week displays on the left in the calendar.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!

MonthCalen property	Datatype	Description
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
MaxSelectCo	<u>unt</u> eger	Specifies the maximum number of days the user can select from the calendar. The default is 1.
MonthBackC	d lon g	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of a month: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order.
ScrollRate	Integer	Specifies the number of months the calendar scrolls when the user clicks a scroll button.
TabOrder	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text within a month: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
TitleBackCol	<u>dr</u> ong	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the calendar's title: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

MonthCalen	Datatype	Description
property		
TitleTextCol	o <u>L</u> ong	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text in the calendar's title: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
TodayCircle	Boolean	Specifies whether the border of today's date on the calendar displays in red. Values are:
		TRUE The Today circle is displayed (default).
		FALSE The Today circle is not displayed.
TodaySection	Boolean	Specifies whether the label "Today:" followed by the current date displays at the bottom of the calendar. Values are:
		TRUE The Today section is displayed (default).
		FALSE The Today section is not displayed.
		This property does not work correctly on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
TrailingText	Libng	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for leading and trailing days in the calendar: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
<u>Underline</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether text is underlined.
		This property does not work in MonthCalendar controls on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
WeekNumbe	Boolean	Specifies whether a number representing the number of the week in the year displays to the left of each row in the calendar. Values are:
		TRUE Week numbers are displayed.
		FALSE Week numbers are not displayed (default).
Weight	Integer	This property is not relevant in MonthCalendar controls.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.59.2 Events

Table 2.164:

MonthCalendar event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected) with the left mouse button
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
DateChanged	Immediately after a date is selected
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is clicked twice with the left mouse button
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Controls message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.59.3 Functions

Table 2.165:

MonthCalen function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
ClearBoldDa	t e nteger	Clears bold format of dates in calendar
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetDateLimi	tsInteger	Retrieves the maximum and minimum date limits specified for the calendar
GetDisplayRa	a hge ger	Retrieves the date range of displayed months and returns the number of displayed months
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
GetSelectedD	anteger	Retrieves the selected date
GetSelectedR	Ange ger	Retrieves the range of selected dates
GetToday	Date	Returns the date that the calendar uses as today's date

MonthCalen function	Datatype returned	Description
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the event queue for the specified object
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetBoldDate	Integer	Displays the specified date in bold
SetDateLimit	sInteger	Sets the maximum and minimum date limits for the calendar
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
SetSelectedD	altocteger	Selects a specified date
SetSelectedR	a Inge ger	Sets the range of selected dates
SetToday	Integer	Sets the value that is used by the calendar as today's date
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.60 MultiLineEdit control

A MultiLineEdit control is a box in which the user can enter and edit more than one line of text. You typically use a MultiLineEdit as an input field.

2.60.1 Properties

Table 2.166:

MultiLineEd	Datatype	Description
property		
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for a control.
AccessibleDe	Satriiptė on	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.

MultiLineEd	Datatype	Description
property	lA agassible De	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Accessioienc	(enumerated)	
Alignment	Alignment	Specifies the text alignment in the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Center!
		Justify!
		Left!
		Right!
AutoHScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether the control automatically scrolls horizontally when data is entered or deleted. Values are:
		TRUE Control automatically scrolls horizontally.
		FALSE Control does not automatically scroll horizontally.
AutoVScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether the control automatically scrolls vertically when data is entered or deleted. Values are:
		TRUE Control automatically scrolls vertically.
		FALSE Control wraps.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o r howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DisplayOnly</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text is display only and cannot be changed by the user. Values are:
		TRUE Text cannot be changed by user.

MultiLineEd property	Datatype	Description
property		FALSE Text can be changed by user.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Arial or Tahoma).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!

MultiLineEo	Datatype	Description
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HideSelection	nBoolean	Specifies whether selected text stays selected (highlighted) even when the control does not have focus. Values are:
		TRUE Text does not stay highlighted.
		FALSE Text stays highlighted.
<u>HScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar does not display.
IgnoreDefaul	tBotilean	Specifies whether the Clicked event for the window's Default command button is triggered when user presses Enter. Values are:
		TRUE Do not trigger Clicked event; add new line in MultiLineEdit control.
		FALSE (Default) Trigger Clicked event; do not add new line in MultiLineEdit control.
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
<u>Limit</u>	Integer	Specifies the maximum number of characters (0 to 32,767) that can be entered in the control (0 means unlimited).
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
TabStop[]	Integer	Specifies the positions of the tab stops in the control. The tab stops are in character positions, and the tab stop delimiter is a space. If you assign a value to only the first tab stop, TabStop[1], the tab stops are equally spaced using the number of character positions specified for the first tab stop. If more

MultiLineE property	Datatype	Description
		than one tab stop is entered, tab stops are located in the positions specified. You can define 16 tab stops in the control; the default array is TabStop[8], with a tab stop every eight character positions.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
<u>TextCase</u>	TextCase (enumerated)	Specifies the case in which text entered in the control displays. Values are:
		AnyCase!
		Lower!
		Upper!
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
<u>Underline</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar is displayed on the right of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.60.2 Events

Table 2.167:

MultiLineEdit event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Modified	When a control has been changed and loses focus
Other	When a Controls message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.60.3 Functions

Table 2.168:

MultiLineEd function	Datatype returned	Description
CanUndo	Boolean	Returns true if the Undo function can be used to undo the last edit in the control and returns false if it cannot
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Clear	Integer	Clears the selected text (if any) from the control (but does not place it in the clipboard)
Сору	Integer	Copies (but does not delete) the selected text (if any) from the control to the clipboard
Cut	Integer	Cuts (deletes) the selected text (if any) from the control to the clipboard
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
LineCount	Integer	Returns the number of lines in the MultiLineEdit

MultiLineEd function	Datatype returned	Description
LineLength	Integer	Returns the length of the line in which the insertion point is positioned
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard (if any) at the insertion point in the control
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the insertion point in the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the event queue for the specified object
Print	Integer	Prints the control
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the currently selected text (if any) with the specified string. If no text is selected, the ReplaceText function inserts the text at the insertion point
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
Scroll	Integer	Moves the contents of the control up or down by the specified number of lines
SelectedLeng	tInteger	Returns the length of the selected text (if any) in the control
SelectedLine	Integer	Returns the number of the line in which the insertion point is currently located
SelectedStart	Integer	Returns the starting position of the selected text (if any) in the control
SelectedText	String	Returns a string with the selected text (if any) from the control
SelectText	Integer	Selects the text specified by the starting position and length
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TextLine	String	Returns the entire text of the line in which the insertion point is currently located
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control
Undo	Integer	Cancels the previous editing function performed in the control

2.61 OAuthClient object

The OAuthClient object provides interfaces for obtaining the access token and protected resources.

2.61.1 Properties

Table 2.169:

OAuthClient property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.61.2 Events

Table 2.170:

OAuthClient event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.

2.61.3 Functions

Table 2.171:

OAuthClient function	Datatype returned	Description
AccessToken	Integer	Sends a request to get token information.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the specified event to the end of the event queue for the specified object.
RequestResor	ulnteger	Sends a request to get resource.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.62 OAuthRequest object

The OAuthRequest object can use the access token to obtain each property of the HTTP request of the protected resource, including the server address, the request header, the secure protocol, the timeout value etc.

2.62.1 Properties

Table 2.172:

OAuthReque property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o li nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Method	String	HTTP method for sending authentication requests. Values are: GET – HTTP get method;
		POST – HTTP post method.
SecureProtoc	denteger de la companyation de l	Specifies the secure protocol with the integer value. Values are:
		0 – All secure protocols. This is a default value;
		1 – TLS1.0;
		2 – TLS1.1;
		3 – TLS1.2.
Timeout	Long	Specifies the timeout seconds. The default value is 60 and 0 indicates no timeout.
<u>URL</u>	String	Specifies the request URL.

2.62.2 Functions

Table 2.173:

OAuthReque function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
ClearHeaders	Integer	Clears the headers of the request.
GetBody	Integer	Gets the body into string.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetHeader	String	Gets the request header by name.
GetHeaders	String	Gets the header of all of the requests.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
SetAccessTol	klmteger	Sets the access token.
SetBody	Integer	Sets the request body.
SetHeader	Integer	Sets the request header.
SetHeaders	Integer	Sets the header information of all of the requests.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.63 OLEControl control

An OLEControl placed in a window can contain an object, such as a spreadsheet or word processing document, that was created by an OLE-aware application. The PowerBuilder application's user can activate the object and edit it in the application in which it was created (the server application).

OLE controls are displayed in the OLE tab of the Browser as Insertable Objects.

For more information about using OLE in an application, see Chapter 21, *Using OLE in an Application*.

2.63.1 Properties

Table 2.174:

OLEControl property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Activation	omActivation	Specifies how the OLE object will be activated.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BinaryIndex	Integer	Internal use only.
BinaryKey	String	Internal use only.
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
<u>BorderStyle</u>	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

OLEControl	Datatype	Description
property ClassLongNa	n Sit ring	(Read-only) The long name for the server application associated with the OLE object in the control.
ClassShortNa	Ste ring	(Read-only) The short name for the server application associated with the OLE object in the control.
ContentsAllo	word Contents A	Epacid ies whether the OLE object in the control must be embedded or linked or whether either method is allowed when Insert is called at runtime.
DisplayName	String	User-readable name for your OLE control when the control is activated in place. This name is displayed in OLE dialog boxes and windows that show the object's name. If you do not specify a value, the name of the control (such as ole_1) is used for DisplayName.
DisplayType	omDisplayTy	Specifies how the OLE object will be displayed in the control. The control can display the actual contents or an icon to represent the object, or the document can be displayed as an ActiveX document.
DocFileNamo	String	(Read-only) The name of the file containing the object. If the object has never been saved to a disk file, then the value of this property is " ".
DragAuto	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
E B	D 1	FALSE Control cannot be selected.
FocusRectan	B oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (the focus rectangle) frames the control when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control framed when it has focus.

OLEControl property	Datatype	Description
rry		FALSE Control not framed when it has focus.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
IsDragTarget	Boolean	Specifies whether an OLE object can be dropped on the control. Values are:
		TRUE OLE object can be dropped on control.
		FALSE OLE object cannot be dropped on control.
LinkItem	String	(Read-only) The entire link name of the item to which the object is linked. For example, if the object is linked to C: \FILENAME.XLS!A1:B2, then LinkItem would contain C: \FILENAME.XLS!A1:B2.
LinkUpdateC	ptiiol hinkUpda	temperations how a linked object in the control is updated. If automatic, the link is updated when the object is opened and whenever the object changes in the server application. If manual, the link is not updated.
Object	omObject	Used in scripts to apply server commands to the linked or embedded OLE object within the control.
ObjectData	Blob	If the object is embedded, the object itself is stored as a blob in the ObjectData property.
		If the object is linked, this property contains the link information and the cached image (for display).
ParentStorage	omStorage	(Read-only) Specifies the parent storage.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
Resizable	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is resizable. Values are:
		TRUE Control is resizable.
		FALSE Control is not resizable.
SizeMode	SizeMode	Specifies the size mode for the OLE document. Choices are:
	(enumerated)	Clip! The object's image displays full size. If it is larger than the OLE control, the image is clipped by the control's borders.
		Stretch! The object's image is resized to fit into and fill the OLE container control. This is the default value.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.

OLEContro property	Datatype	Description
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.63.2 Events

Table 2.175:

OLEControl event	Occurs	
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected or unselected)	
Close	Just before a window is removed from display (closed)	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window	
DataChange	When the server application notifies the control that data has changed	
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window	
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (and possibly activated)	
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control	
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control	
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control	
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control	
Error	During OLE automation when an error occurs	
ExternalException	During OLE automation when the OLE server generates an exception during command execution (getting and setting properties, calling functions)	
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (and possibly becomes activated)	
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control	
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).	
Other	When an operating environment message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event	
PropertyChanged	When an OLE Server supporting notifications sends this message to the control	
PropertyRequestE	When an OLE Server supporting notifications sends this message to the control	
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed in the control	
Rename	When the server application notifies the control that the object has been renamed	

OLEControl event	Occurs
Save	When the server application notifies the control that the data has been saved
SaveObject	When the server application saves the object in the control
ViewChange	When the server application notifies the control that the view shown to the user has changed

2.63.3 Functions

Table 2.176:

OLEControl function	Datatype returned	Description
Activate	Integer	Activates the object server either in place or offsite
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Clear	Integer	Releases the OLE object and deletes references to it without updating storage
Copy	Integer	Copies the contents of the control to the clipboard
Cut	Integer	Copies the contents of the control to the clipboard and clears the control
DoVerb	Integer	Executes the specified verb
Drag	Integer	Puts the object into drag mode
GetContextSe	e fwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetData	Integer	Returns data in a caller-supplied format from an OLE server that supports Uniform Data Transfer
GetNativePo	ılteteger	Returns a pointer to the underlying OLE object
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
InsertClass	Integer	Inserts a new object created from a class ID
InsertFile	Integer	Inserts a new object where the source is a template file
InsertObject	Integer	Presents the user with a standard dialog box and inserts based on the selection
LinkTo	Integer	Links to a file and (optionally) an item within the file
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
Open	Integer	Opens a document file and loads the object into the control or opens a substorage within the previously opened storage and loads an object
Paste	Integer	Pastes the contents of the clipboard into the control
PasteLink	Integer	Pastes a link to the contents of the clipboard into the control

OLEControl function	Datatype returned	Description
PasteSpecial	Integer	Presents a dialog box allowing the user to select Paste or PasteLink
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
ReleaseNativ	ellPhoèigteir	Releases the pointer to the underlying OLE object
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
Save	Integer	Saves an object previously loaded from a storage
SaveAs	Integer	Saves the contained object as a member in the requested storage or saves the contained object to the requested storage file
SelectObject	Integer	Sets the internal state of the control (updates menu)
SetData	Integer	Sends data in a caller-supplied format to an OLE server that supports Uniform Data Transfer
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event for the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control
UpdateLinksl	Diatlege r	Invokes the OLE dialog to update link information if the file has moved

2.64 OLECustomControl control (OCX)

The PowerBuilder class OLECustomControl is a container for OLE custom controls, also known as ActiveX controls or OCXs. When you create a PowerBuilder OLE custom control container, the Insert Object dialog prompts you to select the control to insert in the container. Your choices are the controls that have been registered in the system registry. If a control is not registered by its install process, you can register it in the Insert Object dialog box.

The Browser also displays registered controls. Select the OLE tab of the Browser and double-click OLE Custom Controls.

2.64.1 Properties

In OLE terminology, font information and the display name are called ambient properties. Ambient properties provide default information that the custom control can use, if it is programmed to recognize and use such information.

PowerBuilder does not display text for the control, so it does not use the font and display name properties directly. If the control is programmed to recognize ambient properties, it can use the values PowerBuilder provides when the control displays text or needs a name to display in a title bar.

Table 2.177:

OLECustom	Datatype	Description
property		
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Alignment	Alignment (enumerated)	Specifies the text alignment in the control. Values are: Center! Justify! Left! Right!
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BinaryIndex	Integer	Internal use only.
BinaryKey	String	Internal use only.
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are: TRUE Control has a border. FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleBox! StyleLowered! StyleRaised! StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order (set at runtime only). Values are: TRUE Control moved to top.

OLECustom	Datatype	Description
property		FALSE Control not moved to top.
Cancel	Boolean	Specifies whether the control acts as the Cancel button in the window (the Cancel button receives a Clicked event if the user presses Esc). Values are:
		TRUE Control is the Cancel button.
		FALSE Control is not the Cancel button.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClassLongNa	a Ste ring	Specifies the long name for the server application associated with the OLE object in the control (read-only).
ClassShortNa	uSatering	Specifies the short name for the server application associated with the OLE object in the control (read-only).
DisplayName	String	Specifies a user-readable name for your OLE control. This name is displayed in OLE dialog boxes and windows that show the object's name. If you do not specify a value, the name of the control (such as ole_1) is used for DisplayName.
Default	Boolean	Specifies whether the button-style OLE control is the default control in the window (the default control has a thick border and receives a Clicked event if the user presses Enter without selecting a control).
		This property applies only to controls that act like command buttons.
		Values are:
		TRUE Control is the default control.
		FALSE Control is not the default control.
		Editable controls
		Default behavior can be affected by editable controls on the window. For more information, see the Users Guide.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.

OLECustom property	Datatype	Description
Proposition		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies a typeface name (for example, arial or courier) that you want the control to use for text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property).
FocusRectan	<u>R</u> oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (the focus rectangle) frames the control when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control framed when it has focus.
		FALSE Control not framed when it has focus.
<u>FontCharSet</u>	FontCharSet (enumerated)	Specifies the font character set that you want the control to use for text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) that you want the control to use for text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (character spacing) that you want the control to use for text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
IsDragTarget	Boolean	Specifies whether data can be dropped on the control. Values are:

OLECuston property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Data can be dropped on control.
		FALSE Data cannot be dropped on control.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies that you want the control to display text in italic (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Object	omObject	Specifies the link information that connects the control to the server's data.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the color that you want the control to use for text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). The color is a numeric value: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the point size that you want the control to use for displaying text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies that you want the control to underline text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). Values are: TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight that you want the control to use for text (when the control is designed to use this ambient property). Sample values are 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.64.2 **Events**

The PowerBuilder Script painter displays PowerBuilder events and events defined by the control inserted in the control.

To get information about an event that does not appear in this list, check the documentation for the control.

Table 2.178:

OLECustomCon event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected or unselected).
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
DataChange	When the server application notifies the control that data has changed.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (and possibly activated).
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control.
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control.
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control.
Error	During OLE automation when an error occurs.
ExternalException	During OLE automation when the OLE server generates an exception during command execution (getting and setting properties, calling functions).
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (and possibly becomes activated).
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).
Other	When an operating environment message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.
PropertyChanged	When an OLE Server supporting notifications sends a message that a property value has been changed.
PropertyRequestE	When an OLE Server supporting notifications sends a message that a property value is about to be changed.
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed in the control.

2.64.3 Functions

Table 2.179:

OLECustom function	V -	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control

OLECustom function	Datatype returned	Description
Drag	Integer	Puts the object into drag mode
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetData	Integer	Returns data in a format you specify from an OLE server that supports Uniform Data Transfer
GetNativePoi	ıltıteger	Returns a pointer to the underlying OLE object
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
ReleaseNativ	e ll'hoèigte ir	Releases pointer to underlying OLE object
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetData	Integer	Sends data in a caller-supplied format to an OLE server that supports Uniform Data Transfer
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event for the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.65 OLEObject object

The OLEObject object acts as a proxy for a remote OLE object.

You can customize your own version of the OLEObject object by defining a standard class user object inherited from the built-in OLEObject. You can then access the OLEObject Constructor, Destructor, Error, and ExternalException events by writing scripts that contain code for the events.

Coding Error and ExternalException events

If you code the Error and ExternalException events, any active exception handler for a RuntimeError will not be processed. However, you can throw an exception in the

scripts for these events, and you can make the arguments of these events available for exception handling by putting the arguments in a string in a throw statement that passes the string to the exception handler.

OLEObject objects are displayed in the OLE tab of the Browser as Programmable Objects.

For more information about creating a custom OLEObject object, see Chapter 14, Working with User Objects.

For more information about using the OLEObject object in an application, see Chapter 21, *Using OLE in an Application*.

OLEObject is a dynamic object

In order to support OLE, OLEObject is a dynamic object. The PowerBuilder compiler accept property names and function names and parameter lists that are not already defined for the object. If the properties or functions do not exist during execution, you get a runtime error.

2.65.1 Properties

Table 2.180:

OLEObject property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Handle	Objhandle	Internal use only.

2.65.2 Events

Table 2.181:

OLEObject event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created.
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed.
Error	When an error is found in a data or property expression for an external object.
ExternalException	When the evaluation of an expression involving properties of an external object causes an error. This type of event occurs before the Error event.

2.65.3 Functions

Table 2.182:

OLEObject function		Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object

OLEObject function	Datatype returned	Description
ConnectToNe	e Im Celgjærct	Creates a new instance of the class and connects to it
ConnectToNe	e lmRægen oteObj	eCtreates a new OLE object in the specified remote server application and associates the new object with a PowerBuilder OLEObject variable
ConnectToOl	o Jete ger	Opens a specified file and connects to the corresponding server application
ConnectToRe	e ilmoteg© ibject	Associates an OLE object with a PowerBuilder OLEObject variable and starts the server application
DisconnectOl	o jete ger	Releases all objects previously connected
GetAutomatio	olnNegierePoint	eReturns a pointer to the underlying OLE object
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
IsAlive	Boolean	Determines whether a server object is defunct
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object
ReleaseAutor	n lanticgneN ativeP	References the pointer to the underlying OLE object
SetAutomatic	olih togale	Sets the language locale to be used for automation programming on the object
SetAutomatic	Mogater	Sets the automation pointer of an OLEObject object to the value of the automation pointer of another object
SetAutomatic	Millinge out	Sets the number of milliseconds that a PowerBuilder client waits before canceling an OLE procedure call to the server
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object

2.66 OLEStorage object

The OLEStorage object acts as a proxy for an open OLE storage.

You can customize your own version of the OLEStorage object by defining a class user object inherited from the built-in OLEStorage object.

For more information about creating a custom OLEStorage object, see Chapter 14, Working with User Objects.

For more information about using the OLEStorage object in an application, see Chapter 21, *Using OLE in an Application*.

2.66.1 Properties

Table 2.183:

OLEStorage	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DocumentNa	r Se ring	Specifies the name of the storage currently open. For a root level storage, this is the name of the file containing the storage. For substorages, this is the member name of the substorage.

2.66.2 Events

Table 2.184:

OLEStorage event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created.
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed.

2.66.3 Functions

Table 2.185:

OLEStorage function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object
Clear	Integer	Releases any storage previously opened
Close	Integer	Saves the storage and any controls and streams open on the storage, commits the changes, then releases the storage. (Same as calling Save, then Clear.)
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
MemberDele	t e nteger	Deletes the specified member
MemberExist	Anteger	Specifies whether the specified member exists
MemberRena	ımteger	Renames the specified member
Open	Integer	Opens the storage from a file or opens a substorage within the specified storage object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object
Save	Integer	Saves the storage and any controls open on that storage and commits the changes
SaveAs	Integer	Copies the storage and any controls open on that new storage to a new file or substorage, commits the changes, then releases original storage

OLEStorage function	Datatype returned	Description
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object

2.67 OLEStream object

The OLEStream object acts as a proxy for an OLE stream.

You can customize your own version of the OLEStream object by defining a class user object inherited from the built-in OLEStream object.

For more information about creating a custom OLEStream object, see Chapter 14, Working with User Objects.

For more information about using the OLEStream object in an application, see Chapter 21, *Using OLE in an Application*.

2.67.1 Properties

Table 2.186:

OLEStream	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Name	String	Specifies the member name of the stream within its parent storage.
Storage	OMStorage	(Read-only) Specifies the storage containing the stream. Streams are always opened from within an OLEStorage object.

2.67.2 Events

Table 2.187:

OLEStream event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created.
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed.

2.67.3 Functions

Table 2.188:

OLEStream function	· -	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object.

OLEStream function	Datatype returned	Description
Close	Integer	Releases any stream previously opened.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Length	Integer	Obtains the length of the open stream.
Open	Integer	Opens the specified stream from the storage.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object.
Read	Integer	Reads from the stream.
Seek	Integer	Moves within the stream.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object.
Write	Long	Writes to the stream.

2.68 OLETxnObject object

The OLETxnObject object provides explicit control of MTS transactions to PowerBuilder clients using the SetComplete and SetAbort functions. OLETxnObject inherits from the OLEObject object.

2.68.1 Properties

Table 2.189:

OLETxnOb	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Handle	Objhandle	Internal use only

2.68.2 Events

Table 2.190:

OLETxnObject event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created.
Destructor	When the object is destroyed.
Error	When an error is found in a data or property expression for an external object.

OLETxnObject event	Occurs
ExternalException	When the evaluation of an expression involving properties of an external object causes an error. This type of event occurs before the Error event.

2.68.3 Functions

Table 2.191:

OLETxnObj function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object.
ConnectToNe	e lm@gec t	Creates a new instance of the class within the transaction context it is associated with and connects to it.
ConnectToNe	ManagemoteObj	eNot used.
ConnectToOl	o Ject eger	Not used.
ConnectToRe	e ilmoteg© ibject	Not used.
DisconnectOl	o jete ger	Releases all objects previously connected.
GetAutomatio	olm Regiere Point	eReturns a pointer to the underlying OLE object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
IsAlive	Boolean	Determines whether a server object is defunct.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object.
ReleaseAutor	n lanticgneN ativeP	Rutenses the pointer to the underlying OLE object.
SetAbort	Integer	Aborts the current transaction.
SetAutomatic	ohhtegale	Sets the language locale to be used for automation programming on the object.
SetAutomatic	Mogater	Sets the automation pointer of the OLETxnObject object to the value of the automation pointer of another object.
SetAutomatic	Millinge out	Sets the number of milliseconds that a PowerBuilder client waits before canceling an OLE procedure call to the server.
SetComplete	Integer	Attempts to commit the current transaction.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object.

2.69 Oval control

An oval is a filled or outlined round or elliptical drawing object that you typically use for design effects (for example, you can put a CommandButton or a picture in an oval). The grouping does not affect the behavior of the controls in the oval.

2.69.1 Properties

Table 2.192:

Oval	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
FillColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used to fill the control: 2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
<u>FillPattern</u>	FillPattern	Specifies the hatch pattern used to fill the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	BDiagonal!
		Diamond!
		FDiagonal!
		Horizontal!
		Solid!
		Square!
		Vertical!
		FDiagonal! is lines going from the lower-left to the upper-right. BDiagonal! is lines going from the upper-left to the lower right.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
LineColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the line color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
LineStyle	LineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the line used to draw the control. Values are:
		Continuous!
		Dash!
		DashDot!
		DashDotDot!
		Dot!
		Transparent!
LineThicknes	Integer	Specifies the thickness of the line used to draw the control, in PowerBuilder units. If LineThickness is greater than one pixel (about four PowerBuilder units), the LineStyle is Continuous!.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.

Oval property	Datatype	Description
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.69.2 Events

Table 2.193:

Oval event	Occurs
Constructor	When the control is created
Destructor	When the control is destroyed

2.69.3 Functions

Table 2.194:

Oval function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.70 Picture control

Picture controls can contain images in the following formats:

- Bitmaps, with .BMP or .RLE extensions
- Windows metafiles, with the .WMF extension
- GIF or animated GIF files, with the .GIF extension
- JPEG files, with .JPEG or .JPG extensions
- Portable Networks Graphics, with .PNG extension

You can create the image in another application or use a scanner to create it.

2.70.1 Properties

Table 2.195:

Picture	Datatype	Description
property		
AccessibleDe	<u>Satriptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	olinower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.

Picture property	Datatype	Description
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
FocusRectang	B oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (focus rectangle) frames the picture when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control is framed when it has focus.
		FALSE Control is not framed when it has focus.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
Invert	Boolean	Specifies whether the control displays with its colors inverted. Values are:
		TRUE Colors are inverted.
		FALSE Colors are not inverted.
Map3DColor	<u>s</u> Boolean	Specifies whether the system 3D colors are mapped to the control. Values are:
		TRUE Colors are mapped.
		FALSE Colors are not mapped.
OriginalSize	Boolean	Specifies whether the width and height properties of a bitmap image (picture) are set to their original values. Values are:
		TRUE Width and height are set to original values.
		FALSE Existing width and height are not changed.
		In the Window painter, setting OriginalSize to true overrides the existing width and height.
<u>PictureName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the file that contains the picture.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
PowerTipTex	Long	Specifies a PowerTip for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the picture within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

Picture property	Datatype	Description
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.70.2 Events

Table 2.196:

Picture event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.70.3 Functions

Table 2.197:

Picture function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
Draw	Integer	Draws a picture in the parent window at a specified location.
GetContextSo	e fwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.

Picture function	Datatype returned	Description
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetPicture	Integer	Constructs a new bitmap for the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.71 PictureButton control

A PictureButton displays a picture and, like a CommandButton, is used to carry out an action. For example, you can use a button with a picture of a file to save a file, or a button with a picture of a stop sign to cancel a requested deletion.

The picture image can be in the following formats:

- Bitmaps, with .BMP or .RLE extensions
- Windows metafiles, with the .WMF extension
- GIF or animated GIF files, with the .GIF extension
- JPEG files, with .JPEG or .JPG extensions
- Portable Networks Graphics, with .PNG extension

2.71.1 Properties

Table 2.198:

PictureButto	Datatype	Description
property		
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.

PictureButto property	Datatype	Description
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numerical value of the background color of the window. Values are -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window.
Cancel	Boolean	Specifies whether the control acts as the Cancel button (the Cancel button receives a Clicked event if the user presses Esc). Values are:
		TRUE Control acts as Cancel button.
		FALSE Control does not act as Cancel button.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Default	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is the default PictureButton (the default PictureButton has a thick border and receives a Clicked event if the user presses Enter without selecting an control). Values are:
		TRUE Control is default PictureButton.
		FALSE Control is not default PictureButton.
		Editable controls
		Default behavior can be affected by editable controls on the window. For more information, see the Users Guide.
DisabledNam	String	Specifies the name of the picture (bitmap image) that displays when the control is disabled. If the string has no extension, PowerBuilder adds an appropriate extension.
DragAuto	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.

PictureButto property	Datatype	Description
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FlatStyle	Boolean	Specifies that the edge of the button displays only when the mouse hovers over it. This is the button style used in the Microsoft Rebar (coolbar) control. Values are:
		TRUE Button has a flat appearance.
		FALSE Button does not have a flat appearance.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HTextAlign	Alignment (enumerated)	Specifies how the text in the control is aligned. Values are:
		Center!
		Justify!
		Left!
		Right!
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:

PictureButto property	Datatype	Description
property		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Map3DColor	<u>s</u> Boolean	Specifies whether the system 3D colors are mapped to the control. Values are:
		TRUE Colors are mapped.
		FALSE Colors are not mapped.
OriginalSize	Boolean	Specifies whether the width and height properties of a bitmap image (picture) are set to their original values. Values are:
		TRUE Width and height are set to original values.
		FALSE Existing width and height are not changed to original values.
		In the Window painter, setting OriginalSize to true overrides the existing width and height.
<u>PictureName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the file that contains the picture.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
PowerTipTex	Long	Specifies a PowerTip for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
<u>TextColor</u>	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the text color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property applies only when the UserObject is a tab page.
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VTextAlign	VTextAlign	Specifies how the text in the control is aligned. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Bottom!

PictureButto property	Datatype	Description
		MultiLine!
		Top!
		VCenter!
		All these values except MultiLine! assume there is only one line of text.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.71.2 Events

Table 2.199:

PictureButton event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.71.3 Functions

Table 2.200:

PictureButto function	· -	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.

PictureButto function	Datatype returned	Description
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.72 PictureHyperLink control

The PictureHyperLink control is a descendant of the Picture control. The URL property of the PictureHyperLink control enables you to provide a hot link to a Web page. When the user clicks the control, the user's Web browser opens to display the page you specify.

PictureHyperLink controls can contain images in the following formats:

- Bitmaps, with .BMP or .RLE extensions
- Windows metafiles, with the .WMF extension
- GIF or animated GIF files, with the .GIF extension
- JPEG files, with .JPEG or .JPG extensions
- Portable Networks Graphics, with .PNG extension

Usage note

If you know that your users have Web browsers that support URL completion, you can enter a partial address, such as:

appeon.com

You can, of course, enter a complete address, such as:

http://www.appeon.com

2.72.1 Properties

Table 2.201:

PictureHype property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	u Sitr ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
<u>BorderStyle</u>	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.

PictureHype property	Datatype	Description
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
FocusRectan	B oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (focus rectangle) frames the picture when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control will be framed when it has focus.
		FALSE Control will not be framed when it has focus.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
Invert	Boolean	Specifies whether the control displays with its colors inverted. Values are:
		TRUE Colors are inverted.
		FALSE Colors are not inverted.
Map3DColor	sBoolean .	Specifies whether the system 3D colors are mapped to the control. Values are:
		TRUE Colors are mapped.
		FALSE Colors are not mapped.
OriginalSize	Boolean	Specifies whether the width and height properties of a bitmap image (picture) are set to their original values. Values are:
		TRUE Width and height set to original values.
		FALSE Existing width and height not changed.
		In the Window painter, setting OriginalSize to true overrides the existing width and height.
PictureName	String	Specifies the name of the file that contains the picture. The file extension BMP, RLE, WMF, JPG, JPEG, or GIF is required.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
PowerTipTex	t Long	Specifies a PowerTip for the control.
TabOrder	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the picture within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
URL	String	Specifies the URL to open in the user's Web browser when the picture is clicked, provided no Clicked event is coded. The

PictureHype property	Datatype	Description
		status text displays the URL when the mouse passes over the control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.72.2 Events

Table 2.202:

PictureHyperLinevent	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.72.3 Functions

Table 2.203:

PictureHype function		Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.

PictureHype function	Datatype returned	Description
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
Draw	Integer	Draws a picture in the parent window at a specified location.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetPicture	Integer	Constructs a new bitmap for the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.73 PictureListBox control

A PictureListBox displays available options or values, which can include pictures. If more options or values exist than can display in the PictureListBox at one time or the text exceeds the width of the PictureListBox, the PictureListBox has one or two (vertical or horizontal) scroll bars.

PictureListBox controls can contain images in the following formats:

- Bitmaps, with the .BMP extension
- Icons, with the .CUR extension
- Cursors, with the .ICO extension
- GIF files, with the .GIF extension, but not animated GIF files
- JPEG files, with .JPEG or .JPG extensions

• Portable Networks Graphics, with .PNG extension

2.73.1 Properties

Table 2.204:

PictureListB	Datatype	Description
property		
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for a control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisableNoSc	r <mark>Blo</mark> olean	Specifies behavior of scroll bar. Values are:
		TRUE The scroll bar is always visible, but is disabled when all the items can be accessed without it.
		FALSE The scroll bar is displayed only if it is necessary (based on the number of items and the height of the list box).
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:

PictureListB property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
ExtendedSele	B oolean	Specifies whether users can select multiple items in the list box at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Users can select multiple items by clicking on an item and dragging the mouse up or down to select items; using Click or Shift+ Click to select a sequential group of items; or using Ctrl+ Click on multiple items.
		FALSE Users cannot select multiple items.
		Used with MultiSelect
		The MultiSelect property allows users to select multiple items in a list box by simply clicking on the items. If MultiSelect = true and ExtendedSelect = true, then the behavior of ExtendedSelect takes precedence.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
	,	AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!

PictureListB property	Datatype	Description
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
FontPitch	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar does not display.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Item[]	String	Specifies the items in the control. Not updated after initialization.
ItemPictureIn	dnt eger	Specifies the picture index for each item in the Item property array. Not updated after initialization.
MultiSelect	Boolean	Specifies whether users can select multiple items in the PictureListBox at one time. Values are:
		TRUE Users can select multiple items.
		FALSE Users cannot select multiple items.
		Used with ExtendedSelect
		The MultiSelect property allows users to select multiple items in a list box by simply clicking on the items. If MultiSelect = true and ExtendedSelect = true, then the behavior of ExtendedSelect takes precedence.
PictureHeigh	Integer	Specifies height of the picture, in pixels.
		In a script, this property can be set only when there are no images in the image list. If the value is 0 at the time the first image is added, the size of that image is used to set the size of the rest of the images added.
Picture Mask (Chbng	Specifies the numeric value of the color to be used to mask user-defined bitmaps added through the initial picture array or with the AddPicture function. System-defined bitmaps know their mask color so this color is ignored. This value is used

PictureListB property	Datatype	Description
property		when a picture is added, and therefore can be changed between AddPicture calls.
		Values can be: -2 to 16,777,215.
		For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
PictureName	String	Specifies the names of the files containing the pictures added during initialization. The file extension BMP, ICO, GIF, JPG or JPEG is required.
		Not updated after initialization.
<u>PictureWidth</u>	Integer	Specifies width of the picture, in pixels.
		In a script, this property can be set only when there are no images in the image list. If the value is 0 at the time the first image is added, the size of that image is used to set the size of the rest of the images added.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
Sorted	Boolean	Specifies whether the items in the PictureListBox are sorted. Values are:
		TRUE Items are sorted.
		FALSE Items are not sorted.
TabOrder	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
TabStop[]	Integer array	Specifies the positions of the tab stops in the PictureListBox. The tab stops are in character positions, and the tab stop delimiter is a space. If you assign a value to only the first tab stop, TabStop[1], the tab stops are equally spaced using the number of character positions specified for the first tab stop. If more than one tab stop is entered, tab stops are located in the positions specified. You can define 16 tab stops in the control; the default array is TabStop[8], with a tab stop every eight character positions.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".

PictureListE property	Datatype	Description
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are: TRUE Text is underlined. FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are: TRUE Control is visible. FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar is displayed on the right of the PictureListBox. Values are: TRUE Vertical scroll bar is displayed. FALSE Vertical scroll bar is not displayed.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.73.2 Events

Table 2.205:

PictureListBox event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control

PictureListBox event	Occurs
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Control message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control
SelectionChanged	When an item in the control is selected

2.73.3 Functions

Table 2.206:

PictureListB function	Datatype returned	Description
AddItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the end of the PictureListBox. If the Sorted property of the control is true, the items are sorted again after the item is added.
		The AddItem function does not update the Item[] or ItemPicture[] properties of this control.
AddPicture	Integer	Adds the bitmap, icon, or cursor file to the main image list. Does not update PictureName[].
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes the item indicated by the index from the PictureListBox.
DeletePicture	Integer	Deletes the specified picture from the image list. Does not update PictureName[].
DeletePicture	Anteger	Deletes all the pictures from the image list. Does not update PictureName[].
DirList	Boolean	Populates the PictureListBox with a list of the files of the specified type that match the specified file pattern.
DirSelect	Boolean	Returns the current selection for the control and puts it in the specified variable.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of a control.
FindItem	Integer	Finds the first item in the PictureListBox (after the specified index) that begins with the specified string.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
InsertItem	Integer	Adds a new item to the PictureListBox before the item indicated by the index. If the Sorted property of the control is true, the items are sorted again after the item is added.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.

PictureListB function	Datatype returned	Description
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Reset	Integer	Removes all items from the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectedIndex	xInteger	Returns the index of the item in the PictureListBox that is currently selected. If more than one item is selected, it returns the index of the first selected item.
SelectedItem	String	Returns the text of the first selected item.
SelectItem	Integer	Finds and highlights an item in the control. Use Syntax 1 when you know the text of the item but not its position. Use Syntax 2 when you know the position of the item in the control's list or you want to clear the current selection.
		SelectItem has no effect on a PictureListBox whose MultiSelect property is true. Instead, use SetState to select items without affecting the selected state of other items in the list.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
SetState	Integer	Sets the state (highlighted or not highlighted) of the item indicated by the specified index. SetState works only for multiselect controls (that is, those for which the MultiSelect property is true).
SetTop	Integer	Scrolls the items in the control so that the item indicated by the specified index is at the top of the control.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
State	Integer	Returns 1 if the item specified by the specified index is selected (highlighted) and 0 if the item is not selected.
Text	String	Returns the text of the item in the control that is identified by the specified index.
Тор	Integer	Returns the index number of the item currently at the top of the control.
TotalItems	Integer	Returns the total number of items in the control.
TotalSelected	Integer	Returns the total number of items selected in the control.

PictureListB function	Datatype returned	Description
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.74 Pipeline object

A Pipeline system object is used to manage a data pipeline during execution. You use a Pipeline object by defining a standard class user object inherited from the built-in Pipeline object in the User Object painter. You can then access the Pipeline events by writing scripts that contain code for the events.

For more information about piping data, see Chapter 17, Piping Data Between Data Sources.

2.74.1 Properties

Table 2.207:

Pipeline property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
DataObject	String	The name of the pipeline object (the object created in the Data Pipeline painter, but that you must assign dynamically at runtime)
RowsInError	Long	The number of rows the pipeline found in error (for example, rows containing a duplicate key)
RowsRead	Long	The number of rows read by the pipeline
RowsWritten	Long	The number of rows written by the pipeline
Syntax	String	The syntax used to create the pipeline object (the object created in the Data Pipeline painter)

2.74.2 **Events**

Table 2.208:

Pipeline event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created.
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed.
PipeEnd	When Start or Repair is completed.
PipeMeter	After each block of rows is read or written. The Commit factor specified for the pipeline determines the size of each block.
PipeStart	When a Start or Repair is started.

2.74.3 Functions

Table 2.209:

Pipeline function	Datatype returned	Description
Cancel	Integer	Stops execution of a pipeline.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object.
Repair	Integer	Updates the target database with corrections that have been made in the pipeline user object's Error DataWindow.
Start	Integer	Executes a pipeline.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object.

2.75 ProfileCall object

The ProfileCall object provides information about the calls in the performance analysis model, including information about the called routine and the calling routine, the number of times the call was made, and the elapsed time (in seconds). You use the ProfileCall object in conjunction with the ProfileRoutine and Profiling objects.

The ProfileCall object has no events.

2.75.1 Properties

Table 2.210:

ProfileCall	Datatype	Description
property		
AbsoluteSelf	IDec imal	The time (in seconds) spent in the called routine.
AbsoluteTota	ID exi cal	The time (in seconds) spent in the called routine and in subsequent called routines.
CalledRoutin	eProfileRoutin	eAn object of datatype ProfileRoutine containing the destination of the call.
CallingLine	ProfileLine	An object of datatype ProfileLine containing the initiating line of the call. If the call object represents an aggregation of multiple calls from a routine, an invalid object is returned.
CallingRoutin	n P rofileRoutin	eAn object of datatype ProfileRoutine containing the routine that initiated the call.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

ProfileCall property	Datatype	Description
HitCount	Long	The number of times the calling routine called the called routine.
PercentCalled	S edfib i me	AbsoluteSelfTime as a percentage of the total time (in seconds) the calling routine was active.
PercentCalled	Dotable me	AbsoluteTotalTime as a percentage of the total time (in seconds) the calling routine was active.
PercentCaller	Totable me	The total time (in seconds) spent in the calling routing as a percentage of the total time the calling routine was active.

2.75.2 Functions

Table 2.211:

ProfileCall function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSo	łwieger	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.76 ProfileClass object

The ProfileClass object provides information about the classes in the performance analysis model, including the routines that exist within a class. You use the ProfileClass object in conjunction with the Profiling object.

The ProfileClass object has no events.

2.76.1 Properties

Table 2.212:

ProfileClass	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
LibraryName	String	The name of the library that contains the class. The value is " " for system classes and embedded SQL statements.
Name	String	The name of the class or the string Embedded SQL to represent all embedded SQL activities. Nested classes (like controls on a window) have a name of the form class name>embedded class name.

2.76.2 Functions

Table 2.213:

ProfileClass function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
RoutineList		Provides a list of the routines (defined as ProfileRoutine objects) that exist in the model within a class
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.77 ProfileLine object

The ProfileLine object provides information about the lines in each routine in the performance analysis model, including the number of times the line was hit, any calls made from the line, and the time (in seconds) spent on the line and in any called functions. You use the ProfileLine object in conjunction with the ProfileRoutine and Profiling objects.

The ProfileLine object has no events.

2.77.1 Properties

Table 2.214:

ProfileLine property	Datatype	Description
AbsoluteSelf	IDœ imal	The time (in seconds) spent on this line itself. If the line executed more than once, this is the total time spent on the line.
AbsoluteTota	l ID isc ional	The time (in seconds) spent on this line and on lines called from this line. If the line executed more than once, this is the total time spent on the line and on called lines.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
HitCount	Long	The number of times the line was called.
LineNumber	Long	The line number. Line 0 is a special line that represents the time (in seconds) taken to initialize the local variables (including calling constructors for autoinstantiated objects).
MaxSelfTime	Decimal	The longest time (in seconds) spent just on this line. If the line executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteSelfTime.
MaxTotalTin	n D ecimal	The longest time (in seconds) spent on this line and on called lines. If the line executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteTotalTime.
MinSelfTime	Decimal	The shortest time (in seconds) spent just on this line. If the line executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteSelfTime.

ProfileLine property	Datatype	Description
MinTotalTim	eDecimal (The shortest time (in seconds) spent on this line and on called lines. If the line executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteTotalTime.
PercentSelfT	i no euble	AbsoluteSelfTime as a percentage of the total time (in seconds) tracing was active.
PercentTotal	Γ D noαble	AbsoluteTotalTime as a percentage of the total time (in seconds) tracing was active.
Routine	ProfileRoutin	eThe routine that the line is in.

2.77.2 Functions

Table 2.215:

ProfileLine function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
OutgoingCall		Provides a list of the calls (defined as ProfileCall objects) to other routines from a line
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.78 ProfileRoutine object

The ProfileRoutine object provides information about the routines in the performance analysis model. It includes the time (in seconds) spent in the routine, any called routines, the number of times each routine was called, and the class to which the routine belongs. You use the ProfileRoutine object in conjunction with the Profiling and ProfileCall or ProfileLine objects.

The ProfileRoutine object has no events.

2.78.1 Properties

Table 2.216:

ProfileRouti Dat property	tatype	Description
AbsoluteSelf III) ac	eimal	The time (in seconds) spent in this routine. If the routine executed more than once, this is the total time spent in the routine.
AbsoluteTotalDing		The time (in seconds) spent in this routine and in routines called from this routine. If the routine executed more than once, this is the total time spent in the routine and in called routines.

ProfileRouti property	Datatype	Description
Class	ProfileClass	The class the routine is in. For embedded SQL activities, the value is Embedded SQL. For global and system functions, the value is an invalid object.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
HitCount	Long	The number of times this routine was called or the number of objects created or destroyed.
Kind		elkindind of routine node. Values are:
	(enumerated)	RoutineESQL! Represents an embedded SQL statement.
		RoutineEvent! Represents an event.
		RoutineFunction! Represents a function.
		RoutineGarbageCollection! Represents a garbage collection phase.
		RoutineObjectCreation! Represents object creation.
		RoutineObjectDestruction! Represents object destruction.
		RoutineRoot! Represents the windowing system.
MaxSelfTime	Decimal	The longest time (in seconds) spent in the routine itself. If the routine executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteSelfTime.
MaxTotalTin	n Đ ecimal	The longest time (in seconds) spent in the routine and in called routines. If the routine executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteTotalTime.
MinSelfTime	Decimal	The shortest time (in seconds) spent in the routine itself. If the routine executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteSelfTime.
MinTotalTim	eDecimal	The shortest time (in seconds) spent in the routine and in called routines. If the routine executed only once, this is the same as AbsoluteTotalTime.
Name	String	The name of the routine including the argument datatypes and return value. For embedded SQL activities, the value is the name of the statement (for example, SELECT). For object creation or destruction, the value is Object Create or Object Destroy.
PercentSelfTi	i nbe uble	AbsoluteSelfTime as a percentage of the total time (in seconds) tracing was active.
PercentTotal	Πολοναble	AbsoluteTotalTime as a percentage of the total time (in seconds) tracing was active.

2.78.2 Functions

Table 2.217:

ProfileRouti function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
IncomingCall	EistorReturn (enumerated)	Provides a list of the callers (defined as ProfileCall objects) of this routine
LineList		Provides a list, in line order, of the lines (defined as ProfileLine objects) in the routine
OutgoingCall		Provides a list of the calls (defined as ProfileCall objects) to other routines from within this routine
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.79 Profiling object

The Profiling object is used to analyze the performance of a PowerBuilder application. It provides a performance analysis model listing all the routines (both functions and events) logged in a given trace file. It includes the functions you call to name the trace file to be analyzed, build the model, and list the classes and routines included in the model. You use the Profiling object in conjunction with the ProfileCall, ProfileClass, ProfileLine, and ProfileRoutine objects.

The Profiling object has no events.

2.79.1 Properties

Table 2.218:

Profiling property	Datatype	Description
ApplicationN	aStreing	The name of the application used to generate the trace file.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CollectionTir	n l ecimal	The amount of time taken (in seconds) by the collection of trace data. This time has already been accounted for in the timestamps from the trace file (that is, the proper amount of time is subtracted from the timestamps before they are put in the trace file). If no model has been created, NULL is returned.
NumberOfAc	tLxitig s	The total number of activities that exist in the trace file. The value is 0 if this property is called before the trace file name is set.

Profiling property	Datatype	Description
TraceFileNar	n & tring	The name of the trace file to use to build the model. The value is an empty string if the name has not been successfully set.

2.79.2 Functions

Table 2.219:

Profiling function	Datatype returned	Description
BuildModel	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Builds a performance analysis model based on the previously specified trace file
ClassList	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Provides a list of the classes (defined as ProfileClass objects) included in the model
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
DestroyMode	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Destroys the current performance analysis model
GetContextSo	łwieger	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
RoutineList		Provides a list of the routines (defined as ProfileRoutine objects) included in the model
SetTraceFilel	Tarne rReturn	Indicates the name of the trace file to use for analysis and validates the header format
SystemRoutin	n P rofileRoutin	Provides the routine node (defined as a ProfileRoutine object) representing the system root
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.80 RadioButton control

A RadioButton is a small round button that is used to turn an option on and off. When the option is on, the button has a dark center. When the option is off, the center is blank.

In a GroupBox

RadioButtons are often grouped in a GroupBox. In this case, the user can select only one button in the group, and the group usually has a default button.

2.80.1 Properties

Table 2.220:

RadioButton property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	Striptgon	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Automatic	Boolean	Specifies whether the control becomes dark when it is clicked. Values are:
		TRUE Control becomes dark when clicked.
		FALSE Control does not become dark when clicked.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
Checked	Boolean	Specifies whether the item is selected (the center is dark). Values are:
		TRUE Control is selected.
		FALSE Control is not selected.
ClassDefiniti	om o	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.

RadioButtor	Datatype	Description
property		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control is enabled.
		FALSE Control is not enabled.
FaceName	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Helv or Courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
<u>LeftText</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text displays to the left of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Text displays to the left.
		FALSE Text does not display to the left.

RadioButtor property	Datatype	Description
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control (0 means the user cannot tab to the control). In a GroupBox, the up and down arrow keys are used to move among RadioButtons in a specified sequence.
		To permit tabbing in a GroupBox, change the tab value of the GroupBox to 0 and assign nonzero tab values to the RadioButtons (the default tab value for the RadioButtons in a GroupBox is 0).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
Text	String	Specifies the text that displays next to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.80.2 Events

Table 2.221:

RadioButton	Occurs
event	
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected or unselected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.80.3 Functions

Table 2.222:

RadioButton function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window

RadioButton function	Datatype returned	Description
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event for the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.81 Rectangle control

A rectangle is a filled or outlined rectangular form within a window and is typically used for design purposes. For example, you can put a CommandButton or a picture in a rectangle, or you can use a rectangle behind and slightly offset from another control to create a shadow effect. When you use a rectangle to group controls, the grouping does not affect the behavior of the controls in the rectangle.

2.81.1 Properties

Table 2.223:

Rectangle property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
FillColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used to fill the control: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
FillPattern	FillPattern	Specifies the hatch pattern used to fill the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	BDiagonal!
		Diamond!
		FDiagonal!
		Horizontal!
		Solid!
		Square!
		Vertical!
		FDiagonal! is lines going from the lower-left to the upper-right. BDiagonal! is lines going from the upper-left to the lower-right.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
LineColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the line color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
LineStyle	LineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the pattern of the line used to draw the control. Values are:

Rectangle	Datatype	Description
property		
		Continuous!
		Dash!
		DashDot!
		DashDotDot!
		Dot!
		Transparent!
LineThickne	sdnteger	Specifies the thickness of the line used to draw the control, in PowerBuilder units. If LineThickness is greater than one pixel (about four PowerBuilder units), the LineStyle is forced to Continuous!
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.81.2 Events

Table 2.224:

Rectangle event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.81.3 Functions

Table 2.225:

Rectangle function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control

Rectangle function	Datatype returned	Description
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.82 ResourceResponse object

The ResourceResponse object can obtain the response information of the protected resource request, including the HTTP response headers and the protected resource returned from the server.

2.82.1 Properties

Table 2.226:

ResourceRes property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.82.2 Functions

Table 2.227:

ResourceRes function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetBody	Integer	Gets the response body into string.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetHeader	String	Gets the response header by name.
GetHeaders	String	Gets the header of all responses by name.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetStatusCoc	l & ong	Gets the response status code.
GetStatusTex	tString	Gets the response status description.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.83 RESTClient object

The RESTClient object provides the ability to access the RESTful Web APIs. It loads the JSON-formatted string returned from the RESTful Web Service APIs into the DataWindow object. The JSON string returned from the RESTFul Web Service APIs must have no more than 2 levels, and the top-level must be arrays, the second-level must be objects.

Note

This object cannot be referenced in .NET Web Service and .NET Assembly components, otherwise the component will fail to be deployed.

Note

DataWindow object with the following presentation styles are unsupported: Composite, Crosstab, OLE 2.0, and RichText.

2.83.1 Properties

Table 2.228:

RESTClient property	Datatype	Description
SecureProtoc	dlnteger	The secure protocol.
TimeOut	Long	The timeout seconds.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.83.2 **Events**

Table 2.229:

RESTClient event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.83.3 Functions

Table 2.230:

RESTClient function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
ClearRequest	Hietedgens	Clears headers of the request.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
GetRequestH	eSatrien g	Gets the request header by name.
GetRequestH	eStrieng	Gets all of the request headers information.
GetResponse	l Staile g	Gets the response header by name.
GetResponse	l Staile grs	Gets all of the response headers information.
GetResponse	StatugCode	Gets the response status code.
GetResponse	SSantins Text	Gets the response status description.

RESTClient function	Datatype returned	Description
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
Retrieve	Long	Retrieves data to the DataWindow.
SetRequestHe	e hoker ger	Sets the request header.
SetRequestHe	e Andhengser	Sets all of the request headers information.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.84 ResultSet object

The ResultSet object provides the ability to use ActiveX Data Object (ADO) record sets to return a result set to a client. Use ResultSet objects with the CreateFrom and GenerateResultSet DataStore functions.

2.84.1 Properties

Table 2.231:

ResultSet property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.84.2 **Events**

Table 2.232:

ResultSet event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.84.3 Functions

Table 2.233:

ResultSet function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.85 ResultSets object (obsolete)

Obsolete object

ResultSets object is obsolete, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.

The ResultSets object provides the ability to handle multiple result sets returned from EAServer.

2.85.1 Properties

Table 2.234:

ResultSets property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
ResultSetList	ResultSet object	An array of ResultSet objects

2.85.2 Events

Table 2.235:

ResultSets event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.85.3 Functions

Table 2.236:

ResultSets function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.86 RichTextEdit control

A RichTextEdit control contains a document that it displays as formatted text. It can include input fields that are linked to a DataWindow control. When a DataWindow's data is shared with the RichTextEdit control, there is one instance of the document in the control that can

be displayed multiple times with different occurrences of row data. Input fields whose names match columns in the DataWindow are filled with data from the current row.

New RichTextEdit control in PowerBuilder 2017 and later

Staring from PowerBuilder 2017, a new RichTextEdit control is implemented. The properties/functions/events are exactly the same for the new control and the old control, except for those specified in the following tables.

By default the new control is used. The new control is applicable to the RichTextEdit control, RichText DataWindow Object, and the RichText edit style column. You can switch the control in the application's Additional Properties window.

Using with animation features

RichTextEdit controls may not paint correctly when you use animation features.

2.86.1 Properties

Table 2.237:

RichTextEd property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the accelerator key you want to assign as the accelerator for the control.
AccessibleDe	Satriiptgon	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Sitring	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color of the text editing area of the RichTextEdit. Values are -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, if you set a negative value for the BackColor property, the returned value will be 0 and the color will be black.
		For the old control, if you set a negative value for the BackColor property, the returned value will be 16777215 and the color will be white.
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Has a border.
		FALSE Does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleBox!

RichTextEdi property	Datatype	Description
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BottomMargi	<u>rl</u> Long	Specifies the width of the bottom margin on the printed page.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, if you set a negative value, the returned value will be 0.
		For the old control, if you set a negative value, the returned value will be the negative value.
		This difference also exists in the other margin properties, such as TopMargin, LeftMargin, and RightMargin.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Moves it to the top.
		FALSE Does not move it to the top.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ControlChars	<u>Wioddlea</u> n	Specifies whether control characters (carriage returns, spaces, and tabs) are visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control characters are visible.
		FALSE Control characters are hidden.
DisplayOnly	Boolean	Specifies whether users can make changes to the content. Values are:
		TRUE The content, including text and input files, is protected (the user cannot edit it).
		FALSE The user can edit the content.
<u>DocumentNa</u>	r St ring	Specifies the name that displays in the print queue when the user prints the contents of the control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	(Obsolete) This property is no longer supported by the RichTextEdit control since PowerBuilder 12.6.
		Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.

RichTextEdi property	Datatype	Description
<u>DragIcon</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Can be selected.
		FALSE Cannot be selected.
FaceName	String	Specifies the typeface used for text in the control.
FontCharSet	FontCharSet (enumerated)	1
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family for text in the control.
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the spacing of the font used for text in the control.
HeaderFooter	Boolean	Specifies whether the RichTextEdit control has a header/footer section. This property must be set in the painter and cannot be changed during execution. Values are:
		TRUE The control has a header/footer section.
		FALSE The control does not have a header/footer section.
		If a document has a header or footer and is opened in a control that does not support a header/footer section, then header/footer information in the document is ignored. If the document is then saved in the same file, the header/footer information is lost.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>HScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the RichTextEdit control has a horizontal scroll bar. Values are:
		TRUE A scroll bar displays.
		FALSE A scroll bar does not display.
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
InputFieldBa	<u>ck6ngor</u>	Specifies default background color for all input fields: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".

RichTextEdi	Datatype	Description
property		Limitation with the new control: For the new control, this property will not take effect until you save the data into a PDF file or print the data; which means, when you preview the UI in the design view or when you run the UI, you will always see the background color is gray, only when you run the UI and save the data to a PDF file or print the data, you will see the background color is changed to what you set.
InputFieldNa	nBooVéaithle	Specifies whether input field names are displayed in input fields, rather than the input field values. Values are: TRUE Input fields display their names.
		FALSE Input fields display their data.
InputFieldsV	Bha lean	Specifies whether input fields are visible. Values are:
Input leids v	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	TRUE Input fields are visible.
		FALSE Input fields are hidden.
Italic	Boolean	Specifies default text formatting. Values are:
	20010	TRUE Text displays in italic format.
		FALSE Text displays in standard format.
		Maintained for forward compatibility with PowerBuilder .NET. In PowerBuilder applications, use the check box on the Font tab of the Properties view to set this property at initialization.
LeftMargin	Long	Specifies the width of the left margin on the printed page.
Modified	Boolean	Specifies whether the document has been modified since it was opened or last saved. Modified is the control's "dirty" flag, indicating that the document is in an unsaved state. Values are:
		TRUE The document has been modified.
		FALSE The document has not been modified.
		When the first change is made to a newly opened or saved document, PowerBuilder sets the Modified attribute and triggers the Modified event.
PaperHeight	Long	Specifies the value for the display height of pages in the control.
PaperOrienta	Pa perOrienta	Sopereifien that endige orientation in the control.
<u>PaperWidth</u>	Long	Specifies the value for the display width of pages in the control.
<u>PicturesAsFra</u>	a B oolean	(Obsolete) This property is no longer supported by the RichTextEdit control since PowerBuilder 12.6.
		When the value is true, graphics (bitmaps) are displayed as frames.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer of the file containing the pointer that is used for the control.

RichTextEdi property	Datatype	Description
PopMenu PopMenu	Boolean	Specifies whether the user has access to a pop-up menu by clicking the right mouse button on the control. The menu allows the user to cut and paste, insert a file, and select formatting options. Values are:
		TRUE Pop-up menu is enabled.
		FALSE Pop-up menu is disabled.
Resizable	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can resize the control. Values are:
		TRUE Control is resizable.
		FALSE Control is not resizable.
RightMargin	Long	Specifies the width of the right margin on the printed page.
RulerBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a ruler bar is visible above the editing area. If visible, the user can use it to see measurements while setting tabs and margins on the tab bar (see the TabBar (obsolete) property). Values are:
		TRUE Ruler bar is visible.
		FALSE Ruler bar is hidden.
		If the RichTextEdit pop-up menu is enabled, the user can use it to turn ruler bar display on and off (see the PopMenu property).
SelectedStart	Hoo ng	Specifies the starting position in a selected text string. Typically, you use this property to set the starting position of a selected text string to the first letter of a word flagged by a supported ActiveX spell checker control.
SelectedText	Leoggh	Specifies the length of text you want to highlight in a selected text string. Typically you use this property to obtain the length of a misspelled word that is flagged after passing the selected text string to a supported ActiveX spell checker control.
StatusBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a status bar is visible below the editing area. Values are:
		TRUE Status bar is visible.
		FALSE Status bar is hidden.
		If the pop-up menu is enabled, the user can use it to turn the status bar display on and off (see the PopMenu property).
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
		Note that because a RichTextEdit allows tabs within its content, the user cannot tab away from the control.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the point size of text in the control.

RichTextEd property	i Datatype	Description
ToolBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a tool bar for formatting text is visible above the editing area. Values are:
		TRUE Tool bar is visible.
		FALSE Tool bar is not visible.
		If the pop-up menu is enabled, the user can use it to turn tool bar display on and off (see the PopMenu property).
TopMargin	Long	Specifies the width of the top margin on the printed page.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies default text formatting. Values are:
		TRUE Text displays with underlines.
		FALSE Text displays without underlines.
		Maintained for forward compatibility with PowerBuilder .NET. In PowerBuilder applications, use the check box on the Font tab of the Properties view to set this property at initialization.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether the RichTextEdit control has a vertical scroll bar. Values are:
		TRUE A scroll bar displays.
		FALSE A scroll bar does not display.
Weight	Integer	Specifies default text weight formatting for the control. Maintained for forward compatibility with PowerBuilder .NET. In PowerBuilder applications, use the Bold check box on the Font tab of the Properties view to set bold text weight formatting at initialization.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
WordWrap	Boolean	Determines whether large blocks of text that do not contain spaces wrap automatically to the next line when the line reaches the margin. Values are:
		TRUE Automatic word wrap is enabled.
		FALSE Automatic word wrap is disabled. Users cannot enter characters beyond the right margin, and must move the cursor to a new line to continue entering text. If an inserted document contains a block of text too large to fit on a line, the nonfitting characters are hidden.
		Limitation with the new control: For the new control, this property is always true (even when it is set to false, it is treated as true).

RichTextEdi property	Datatype	Description
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.86.2 Events

Table 2.238:

RichTextEdit event	Occurs			
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.			
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.			
DoubleClicked	When the user double-clicks anywhere in the RichTextEdit control.			
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control.			
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control.			
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control.			
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control.			
FileExists	When the document in the RichTextEdit is saved to a file, but a file of the specified name already exists.			
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).			
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.			
InputFieldSelecte	When the user selects an input field by double-clicking it.			
Key	When the user presses a key.			
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).			
Modified	When the first change is made to the contents of the RichTextEdit control, and it has not been saved.			
	In the Modified event script, you can set a flag indicating that the document needs to be saved.			
MouseDown	When the left or middle mouse button is pressed on the control.			
MouseMove	When the mouse has moved within the control.			
MouseUp	When the left or middle mouse button is released on the control.			
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.			
PictureSelected	When the user selects a picture by clicking it.			
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control. If the pop-up menu is enabled, this event does not occur.			
RButtonUp	When the right mouse button is released on the control.			

2.86.3 Functions

Table 2.239:

RichTextEd function	Datatype returned	Description
CanUndo	Boolean	Returns true if there is an editing function that can be undone.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Clear	Long	Clears selected text (if any) from the control, but does not place it in the clipboard.
ClearAll	Long	Clears all content from the specified control, but does not place it in the clipboard.
Сору	Long	Copies (but does not delete) the selected contents of the RichTextEdit control (if any) to the clipboard.
CopyRTF	String	Copies the selected contents of the RichTextEdit control to a string in rich text format.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: The new control will return a longer string which contains more types of information, compared to the old control.
Cut	Long	Cuts (deletes) the selected contents from the RichTextEdit control (if any) to the clipboard.
DataSource	Integer	Associates a DataWindow with the RichTextEdit control, matching columns with input fields of the same name.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends dragging of the control.
Find	Integer	Finds text in the control.
		Enhancement of the new control: For the new control, the Find function can not only find the text string, but also can find the carriage return characters and some special characters.
FindNext	Integer	Finds the next occurrence of text specified with the Find function.
GetAlignmer	tAlignment	Obtains the alignment of the selected text.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, this property will return the alignment of the paragraph where the insertion point is located if more than one paragraph are selected.
		For the old control, this property will return empty if more than one paragraph with different alignments are selected.
GetContextS	e łиteg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParagraph	Sættig g	Gets the size of the indentation, left margin, or right margin of the paragraph containing the insertion point.
		The returned value is different between the new control and the old control due to the different units used.

RichTextEdi function	Datatype returned	Description
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, this property will return the settings of the paragraph where the insertion point is located if more than one paragraph are selected.
		For the old control, this property will return empty if more than one paragraph with different settings are selected.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetSpacing	Spacing	Obtains the line spacing of the selected text.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, this property will return the spacing of the paragraph where the insertion point is located if more than one paragraph are selected.
		For the old control, this property will return empty if more than one paragraph with different spacing are selected.
GetTextColor	rLong	Returns the color of the selected text.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, this function will return the text color of the first character of the selected text if the selected text contains more than one text colors.
		For the old control, this property will return empty if the selected text contains more than one text color.
GetTextStyle	Boolean	Obtains font settings for the selected text.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: For the new control, this function will return the font settings of the first character of the selected text if the selected text contains more than one type of font settings.
		For the old control, this property will return empty if the selected text contains more than one type of font settings.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
InputFieldCh	a lnge Da ta	Modifies the data value for all input fields of the given input field name.
InputFieldCu	r StniuN game	Gets the name of the selected input field.
InputFieldDe	l ent E genrent	Deletes the current occurrence of the selected input field. (That is, this function does not delete all input fields of the same name, only the current occurrence.)
InputFieldGe	t Dain g	Obtains the data in the specified input field.
InputFieldIns	d ıntteger	Inserts the named input field at the insertion point.
InputFieldLo	c Ste ing	Locates an input field. You can find any occurrence of an input field or an input field with a specific name.

RichTextEdi		Description
function InsertDocume	returned eIntteger	Inserts the named file in the RichTextEdit control. The file can replace the current contents or be added at the insertion point. The file can be in rich text (RTF), ASCII, HTML, or Word (DOC) format.
InsertPicture	Integer	Inserts the specified bitmap or picture file at the insertion point.
		The inserted WMF image file will fail to be saved in to a Word document, although it can be saved in to a rich text file.
IsPreview	Boolean	Checks whether the RichTextEdit control is in preview mode.
LineCount	Integer	Returns the total number of lines in the document.
LineLength	Integer	Returns the length of the current line.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PageCount	Integer	Returns the number of pages in the document.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard (if any) at the insertion point in the control.
PasteRTF	Long	Inserts a string at the insertion point when the string contains text in rich text format. You can specify whether to insert the string in the header or footer band, as well as the main body (detail band).
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the insertion point or selected text in the control.
PostEvent	Integer	Adds the specified event to the end of the event queue for the specified object
Preview	Integer	Flips between Preview of the document (where header/footer, page size, and so on, are shown) and normal RTE control display.
Print	Integer	Prints the contents of the control. You can specify a range of pages and other settings.
PrintEx	Integer	Prints the contents of the control. You can specify whether a Print dialog box displays.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces selected text with given string. If no text has been selected, insert given string at cursor location.
		Limitation with the new control: In the new control, the text after replaced will take over the settings (such as font name, font size etc.) carried over by the given string.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.

RichTextEdi function	Datatype returned	Description
SaveDocume	nItnteger	Saves the current document in a file in either rich text (RTF), ASCII, HTML, PDF, or Word (DOC) format.
		When saving multi-byte characters to a TXT file, use the UTF8 encoding rather than the ANSI encoding.
		Limitation with the new control: In the new control, when saving to HTML, the image will lose some quality and will be saved as individual files separately from the document and the reference to the image file uses the absolute path.
Scroll	Integer	Scrolls the RichTextEdit the specified direction the specified number of lines.
ScrollNextPa	glonteger	Scrolls forward to the next page in the RichTextEdit document. If the current page is the last page of a document instance, scrolls to the next instance.
ScrollNextRo	Wong	Scrolls the RichTextEdit to the next row and document instance.
ScrollPriorPa	gleong	Scrolls back to the prior page in the RichTextEdit document. If the current page is the first page of a document instance, scrolls to the prior instance.
ScrollPriorRo	wong	Scrolls the RichTextEdit to the prior row and document instance.
ScrollToRow	Long	Causes the control to scroll to the specified row and document instance.
SelectedColu	n hm teger	Returns the number of the character column just after the insertion point.
SelectedLeng	thong	Returns the length of the selected text.
SelectedLine	Long	Returns the number of the line in which the insertion point is currently located within the document instance.
SelectedPage	Long	Returns the number of the page in which the insertion point is currently located within the document instance.
		Limitation with the new control: For the new control, the SelectedPage function returns the number of the page which is being viewed (rather than where the insertion point is placed).
SelectedStart	Integer	Returns the starting position of the selected text (if any) from the beginning of the line.
SelectedText	String	Returns a string containing the selected text from the control.
SelectText	Long	Selects text in the RichTextEdit control.
SelectTextAl	Integer	Selects all text in the control.
SelectTextLi	n & nteger	Selects all text in the line in which the insertion point is currently located.

RichTextEdi function	Datatype returned	Description
SelectTextWo	o Ind teger	Selects the word in which the insertion point is currently located.
SetAlignmen	tInteger	Sets the alignment for the selected paragraphs.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the RichTextEdit control.
SetParagraph	Settleg gr	Specifies the size of the paragraph's indentation, left margin, or right margin.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the control's position in the front-to-back order within the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control.
SetSpacing	Integer	Sets the line spacing for the selected paragraphs.
SetTextColor	Integer	Sets the color of the selected text.
SetTextStyle	Integer	Sets the font properties of the selected text.
Show	Integer	Makes the RichTextEdit control visible.
ShowHeadFo	dnteger	Allows editing of the header and footer in the RichTextEdit document.
		Difference between the new control and the old control: When the document is in preview mode, the old control returns 1; while the new control returns 1 and closes the preview mode, and when the parameter is true, the insertion point is placed to the header area; when the parameter is false, the insertion point is placed to the detail area.
TextLine	String	Returns the entire text of the line in which the insertion point is currently located.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.
Undo	Integer	Cancels the previous editing function performed in the control, if the editing function can be undone. (Some editing functions cannot be undone.)

2.87 RoundRectangle control

A RoundRectangle is a filled or outlined rectangular drawing object with rounded corners that you typically use for design purposes (for example, you can put a CommandButton or a picture in a RoundRectangle). When you use a RoundRectangle to group controls, the grouping does not affect the behavior of the controls in the RoundRectangle.

2.87.1 Properties

Table 2.240:

RoundRecta	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefinition	o P nowerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CornerHeight	Integer	Specifies the radius of the vertical part of the corners of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
CornerWidth	Integer	Specifies the radius of the horizontal part of the corners of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
FillColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used to fill the control: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
<u>FillPattern</u>	FillPattern	Specifies the hatch pattern used to fill the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	BDiagonal!
		Diamond!
		FDiagonal!
		Horizontal!
		Solid!
		Square!
		Vertical!
		FDiagonal! is lines going from the lower-left to the upper-right. BDiagonal! is lines going from the upper-left to the lower right.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
LineColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the line color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
LineStyle	LineStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the line used to draw the control. Values are:
		Continuous!
		Dash!
		DashDot!
		DashDotDot!
		Dot!
		Transparent!
LineThicknes	Anteger	Specifies the thickness of the line used to draw the control, in PowerBuilder units. If LineThickness is greater than one pixel (about four PowerBuilder units), the LineStyle is Continuous!.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.

RoundRect property	a Datatype	Description
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.87.2 Events

Table 2.241:

RoundRectangle event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.

2.87.3 Functions

Table 2.242:

RoundRecta function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.88 RuntimeError object

The RuntimeError object inherits from the Throwable object and is used by the PowerBuilder virtual machine (PBVM) to throw runtime errors. Runtime errors are also called unchecked exceptions. You do not need to declare where they might be thrown and you do not need to catch them as you do checked exceptions.

When a RuntimeError is thrown, its properties are populated automatically with the runtime information associated with the line where the error occurred. If a RuntimeError is not

handled, the Application object SystemError event is triggered and the global Error object is populated with the runtime information.

The following derived types provide more robust error-handling capabilities:

- DivideByZeroError -- thrown when an attempt is made to divide by zero.
- NullObjectError -- thrown when an attempt is made to access an object using a null reference.
- PBXRuntimeError -- thrown when an unknown error occurs in a PowerBuilder extension.
- CORBASystemException -- thrown when a CORBA system exception is thrown from EAServer.
- DWRuntimeError -- thrown when a DataWindow error occurs that is not handled by an Error event script.
- OLERuntimeError -- thrown when an OLE error occurs that is not handled by an ocx_error, ExternalException, or Error event script

Additional objects that map to standard CORBA exception types inherit from CORBASystemException. The PowerBuilder exception class name is the same as the CORBA exception name without underscore characters. For example, CORBAFreeMem maps to CORBA_FREE_MEM. You can view the list of CORBASystemException types in the PowerBuilder System Tree or in the Browser.

The descendants of RuntimeError allow you to handle specific runtime errors. For example, you can catch only NullObjectError exceptions in a specific block of code. Alternatively, you can catch all runtime errors with a single CATCH statement. Except for PBXRuntimeError, the error information available in the descendant objects is also available in the RuntimeError object.

PBXRuntimeError has an additional property, DLLName, that identifies the name of the PowerBuilder extension DLL in which the error occurred.

2.88.1 Properties

Table 2.243:

RuntimeErroperty	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Class	String	Name of the class where the exception occurred
Description	String	(OLERuntimeError only) Textual description of the exception
DLLName	String	(PBXRuntimeError only) Name of the PowerBuilder extension DLL where the exception occurred
HelpFile	String	(OLERuntimeError only) Full file name of Help file containing information about the exception
HelpContext	UnsignedLon	gOLERuntimeError only) Help context ID of the topic in the Help file containing information about the exception

RuntimeErro property	Datatype	Description
Line	Integer	Line number where the exception occurred
Number	Integer	Number of the PowerBuilder error
ObjectName	String	Name of the object where the exception occurred
RoutineName	String	Name of the event or routine where the exception occurred
Source	String	(OLERuntimeError only) Source of the exception
Text	String	Text associated with the type of exception

2.88.2 **Events**

Table 2.244:

RuntimeError event	Occurs
Constructor	When the exception is thrown
Destructor	Immediately after the exception is thrown

2.88.3 Functions

Table 2.245:

RuntimeErr function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetMessage	String	Returns the error message from objects of type Throwable
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
SetMessage		Sets an error message for an object of type Throwable
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.89 ScriptDefinition object

Information about a script associated with a class definition. ScriptDefinition is used in the ClassDefinition object.

You cannot instantiate a ScriptDefinition object for a particular script independently of a ClassDefinition object. Instead you access the ScriptDefinition instances that are elements of the ScriptList array of a ClassDefinition instance.

The ScriptDefinition object has information about:

• The script's name and whether it is a function or an event

- The return type, arguments, and local variables
- The source code
- Whether the script is defined locally or in an ancestor
- External function declarations

A ScriptDefinition object has no events.

2.89.1 Properties

Table 2.246:

ScriptDefinit property	Datatype	Description
Access	VarAccess	The access level of the script (what objects can call the script). Values are:
		Private!
		Public!
		Protected!
		System!
AliasName	String	The alias value for an external function. The value is an empty string ("") for scripts that are not aliased external functions. Corresponds to the ALIAS FOR keyword in the external function declaration.
ArgumentLis	tVariableDefi	Aion nbounded array whose elements are VariableDefinition objects, one object per argument. The array is empty if there are no arguments.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
EventId	Long	The numeric event ID for an event. For events that do not have an ID, the value is -1.
EventIdName	String	The event ID name for an event. For events that do not have an ID, the value is an empty string ("").
ExternalUser	FSturiation	The file name of the DLL containing the external user function. The value is an empty string ("") for scripts that are not external user functions. Corresponds to the LIBRARY keyword in the external function declaration.
IsExternalEve	e B toolean	Indicates whether this is an external event. External events are automatically generated events that get dispatched elsewhere.
IsLocallyDef	i n eorblean	Indicates whether the event is defined at this level in the inheritance hierarchy. Values are:
		TRUE The event is defined at this level of the object's inheritance hierarchy.

ScriptDefini property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE The event is defined at an ancestor level.
		IsLocallyDefined is not applicable to functions.
IsLocallyScri	rBcd lean	Indicates whether the script is implemented at this level in the inheritance hierarchy. Values are:
		TRUE There is code for the event or function at this level of the object's inheritance hierarchy.
		FALSE There is no code for the event or function at this level.
IsRPCFunction	B oolean	Whether this is an RPC function. Values are:
		TRUE Is an RPC function.
		FALSE Is not an RPC function.
		Corresponds to the RPCFUNC keyword in a declaration for a stored procedure.
IsScripted	Boolean	Whether the event has a definition but no code at any level of the collapsed inheritance hierarchy. Values are:
		TRUE The event has a script at some level of the object's inheritance hierarchy.
		FALSE The event does not have a script.
		Only events can be defined but not scripted. For functions, IsScripted is always true.
Kind	ScriptKind	Whether the script is a function or event. Values are:
		ScriptEvent!
		ScriptFunction!
LocalVariabl	e V ixtiableDefi	n Aiou nbounded array whose elements are VariableDefinition objects, one object per local variable. The array is empty if there are no local variables.
Name	String	The name of the script.
ReturnType	TypeDefinition	The type information of the return value. For scripts that do
		not return anything, ReturnType is an invalid object. Use the IsValid function to test the value.
Source	String	The source code for the script. Source is an empty string ("") if the source is not available (for example, when running an executable).
SystemFunct	i Sit ring	For built-in PowerBuilder functions, the file name of the DLL containing the function. The value is an empty string ("") for scripts that are not built-in PowerBuilder functions.

2.89.2 Functions

Table 2.247:

ScriptDefinit function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.90 SimpleTypeDefinition object

Information about the type of a scalar variable. SimpleTypeDefinition is inherited from TypeDefinition and has no additional properties or functions.

For the list of properties and functions, see the <u>TypeDefinition object</u>.

2.91 SingleLineEdit control

A SingleLineEdit is a box in which the user can enter a single line of text. You typically use a SingleLineEdit as an input field.

2.91.1 Properties

Table 2.248:

SingleLineEd property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the key you want to assign as the accelerator key for a control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
AutoHScroll	Boolean	Specifies whether the control automatically scrolls horizontally when data is entered or deleted. Values are: TRUE Control automatically scrolls horizontally. FALSE Control does not automatically scroll horizontally.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are: TRUE Control has a border.

SingleLineEcoproperty	Datatype	Description
P-SP-SJ		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisplayOnly	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is display only and cannot be changed by the user. Values are:
		TRUE Text cannot be changed by user.
		FALSE Text can be changed by user.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).

SingleLineE	Datatype	Description
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HideSelection	Boolean	Specifies whether selected text stays selected (highlighted) even when the control does not have focus. Values are:
		TRUE Text does not stay highlighted.
		FALSE Text stays highlighted.
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Limit	Integer	Specifies the maximum number of characters (0 to 32,767) that can be entered in the control (0 means unlimited).
Password	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is a password field (whether asterisks appear when the user types characters). Values are:
		TRUE Control is a password field.
		FALSE Control is not a password field.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.

SingleLineE property	Datatype	Description
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
<u>TextCase</u>	TextCase (enumerated)	Specifies the case in which text entered in the control displays. Values are:
		AnyCase!
		Lower!
		Upper!
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.91.2 Events

Table 2.249:

SingleLineEdit	Occurs
event	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Modified	When the control text has been changed and the user presses Enter or Tab or changes focus to another control
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.91.3 Functions

Table 2.250:

SingleLineEcfunction	Datatype returned	Description
CanUndo	Boolean	Returns true if the Undo function can be used to undo the last edit in the control and returns false if it cannot.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Clear	Integer	Clears the selected text (if any) from the control (but does not place it in the clipboard).
Сору	Integer	Copies (but does not delete) the selected text (if any) from the control to the clipboard.
Cut	Integer	Cuts (deletes) the selected text (if any) from the control and places it in the clipboard.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of a control.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.

SingleLineEd function	Datatype returned	Description
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
Paste	Integer	Inserts the contents of the clipboard (if any) at the insertion point in the control and replaces the selected text (if any).
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
Position	Integer	Returns the position of the insertion point in the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
ReplaceText	Integer	Replaces the currently selected text (if any) with the specified string. If no text is selected, inserts the text at the current insertion point.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectedLeng	tInteger	Returns the length of the selected text (if any) in the control.
SelectedStart	Integer	Returns the starting position of the selected text (if any) in the control.
SelectedText	String	Returns a string with the selected text (if any) from the control.
SelectText	Integer	Selects the text in the control specified by the starting position and length.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.
Undo	Integer	Cancels the previous editing function performed in the control.

2.92 SSLCallBack object (obsolete)

Obsolete object

SSLCallBack object is obsolete, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.

The SSLCallBack object provides PowerBuilder clients with the ability to handle SSL callbacks from EAServer.

2.92.1 Properties

Table 2.251:

SSLCallBack	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the
		class definition of the object or control.

2.92.2 Events

Table 2.252:

SSLCallBack event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.92.3 Functions

Table 2.253:

SSLCallBack function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetCertificate (obsolete)	e.S.tarboog	Allows an SSL client to select a certificate label to use from a list of certificate labels passed as an argument to the function
GetCredentia (obsolete)	l Attitinilg ute	Allows an SSL client to supply user credentials dynamically
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
GetPin (obsolete)	String	Obtains a PIN for use with an SSL connection
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TrustVerify (obsolete)	Long	Allows an SSL client to approve a certificate chain for use
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.93 SSLServiceProvider object (obsolete)

Obsolete object

SSLServiceProvider object is obsolete, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.

The SSLServiceProvider object allows you to establish a Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) connection from a PowerBuilder client to EAServer.

2.93.1 Properties

Table 2.254:

SSLServiceP	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefinition	ol Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the
		class definition of the object or control

2.93.2 Events

Table 2.255:

SSLServiceProvi event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.93.3 Functions

Table 2.256:

SSLServiceP function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetGlobalPro (obsolete)	String	Returns the value of an SSL global property
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
SetGlobalPro (obsolete)	pleonyg	Sets the value of an SSL global property
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.94 StaticHyperLink control

The StaticHyperLink control is a descendant of the StaticText control. The URL property of the StaticHyperLink control enables you to provide a hot link to a Web page. When the user clicks the control, the user's Web browser opens to display the page you specify.

Usage note

If you know that your users have browsers that support URL completion, you can enter a partial address, such as appeon.com. You can always enter a complete address, such as http://www.appeon.com.

2.94.1 Properties

Table 2.257:

StaticHyper property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striiptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	uStering	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Alignment	Alignment (enumerated)	Specifies the text alignment in the control. Values are: Left! Center! Right!
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are: TRUE Control has a border. FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderColor	Long	Specifies the numerical value of the border color: -2 to 16,777,215.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are: StyleBox! StyleLowered! StyleRaised! StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are: TRUE Control moved to top. FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

StaticHyper property	Datatype	Description
DisabledLool	kBoolean	Specifies whether the control appears to be enabled.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Arial or Courier).
FillPattern	FillPattern	Specifies the hatch pattern used to fill the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	BDiagonal!
		Diamond!
		FDiagonal!
		Horizontal!
		Solid!
		Square!
		Vertical!
		FDiagonal! is lines going from the lower-left to the upper-right. BDiagonal! is lines going from the upper-left to the lower right.
FocusRectang	g B oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (focus rectangle) frames the control when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control framed when it has focus
		FALSE Control not framed when it has focus
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties

StaticHyper:	Datatype	Description
property		for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
<u>FontFamily</u>	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the rectangular box that contains the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
TabOrder	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 is the default and means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the text color in the control: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
<u>TextSize</u>	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.

StaticHyper: property	Datatype	Description
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are: TRUE Text is underlined. FALSE Text is not underlined.
URL	String	Specifies the URL to open in the user's Web browser when the text control is clicked, provided no Clicked event is coded. The status text displays the URL when the mouse passes over the control.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are: TRUE Control is visible. FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the rectangular box that contains the control, in pixels.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.94.2 Events

Table 2.258:

StaticHyperLink Occurs		
event		
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected)	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window	
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window	
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)	
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control	
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control	
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control	
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control	
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)	
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control	
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)	

StaticHyperLink event	Occurs
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.94.3 Functions

Table 2.259:

StaticHyperl function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the rectangular box that contains the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.95 StaticText control

StaticText is display text that the user can select but cannot modify with the keyboard. You can explicitly modify the StaticText in a script.

2.95.1 Properties

Table 2.260:

G	5	
StaticText property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Alignment	Alignment (enumerated)	Leit!
		Center! Right!
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Control has a border.
		FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderColor	Long	Specifies the numerical value of the border color: -2 to 16,777,215.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DisabledLool	kBoolean	Specifies whether the control appears to be enabled.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.

StaticText property	Datatype	Description
property		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be selected.
		FALSE Control cannot be selected.
FaceName	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, Arial or Courier).
<u>FillPattern</u>	FillPattern	Specifies the hatch pattern used to fill the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	BDiagonal!
		Diamond!
		FDiagonal!
		Horizontal!
		Solid!
		Square!
		Vertical!
		FDiagonal! is lines going from the lower-left to the upper-right. BDiagonal! is lines going from the upper-left to the lower right.
FocusRectang	<u>B</u> oolean	Specifies whether a dotted rectangle (focus rectangle) frames the control when it has focus. Values are:
		TRUE Control framed when it has focus.
		FALSE Control not framed when it has focus.
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!

StaticText property	Datatype	Description
proporty		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font used for the text in the control. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the rectangular box that contains the control, in PowerBuilder units.
Italic	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
TabOrder	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 is the default and means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the text color in the control: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
Underline	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.

StaticText property	Datatype	Description
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the rectangular box that contains the control, in pixels.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.95.2 Events

Table 2.261:

G	
StaticText event	Occurs
Clicked	When the control is clicked (selected)
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked (selected and activated)
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.95.3 Functions

Table 2.262:

StaticText function	V -	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control

StaticText function	Datatype returned	Description
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the rectangular box that contains the control.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.96 SyncParm object

A SyncParm object is a system structure that you can use to obtain runtime properties from a synchronization option window, and then pass these property values to an MLSync object. The SyncParm object has no events or functions.

2.96.1 Properties

Table 2.263:

SyncParm property	Datatype	Description
Authenticatel	String	Used to pass parameters to an authenticate_parameters connection script.
DBPass	String	Password for the SQL Anywhere remote database.
DBUser	String	User ID for the SQL Anywhere remote database.
EncryptionKe	string	Encryption key for SQL Anywhere remote database.
MLPass	String	The MobiLink password passed to the synchronization server.
MLUser	String	The MobiLink user name passed to the synchronization server.

SyncParm property	Datatype	Description
ReturnCode	Long	Return code from the synchronization options window (generated by the MobiLink synchronization wizard). Values are: • 0 = Success. • -1 = Error. • 100 = Cancel.
UlTrans	Transaction	Not currently used. Reserved for the connected transaction object to an UltraLite remote database.

2.97 Tab control

A Tab control contains tab pages, which are user objects that contain controls. Tab pages can be defined within the Tab control or they can be defined in the User Object painter and inserted into the Tab control.

Each tab page can have its own label, picture, and background color.

All tab pages share the same font settings.

Tab Position controls where the tabs on the tab pages are displayed. Tabs can be displayed on any one of the four edges of the Tab control. They can also be displayed on opposite edges with the tabs before or after the selected tab jumping to the other edge.

2.97.1 Properties

Table 2.264:

Tab property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	uStering	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
Alignment	Alignment (enumerated)	Specifies the alignment of the text labeling all the tabs. Values are:
		Left!
		Center!
		Right!
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".

Tab	Datatype	Description
BoldSelected	®øølean	Specifies whether the text for the selected tab is bold. Values are:
		TRUE The text on the selected tab is bold.
		FALSE The text on the selected tab has the same setting as the other tabs.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order in the window. Values are:
		TRUE Moves to the top.
		FALSE Does not move to the top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CreateOnDer	n <mark>Boo</mark> lean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder creates graphical representations of controls on all tab pages when the Tab control is created. Values are:
		TRUE Graphical representations of tab pages are not created until the tab page is selected.
		FALSE (Default) Graphical representations of tab pages are created when the Tab control is created.
Control[]	UserObject	Specifies the array of tab pages within the Tab control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Can be selected.
		FALSE Cannot be selected.

Tab	Datatype	Description
property		
<u>FaceName</u>	String	Specifies the name of the typeface used for the text labels on tabs (for example, Arial or Courier). Only TrueType fonts display correctly on vertical tabs.
<u>FixedWidth</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether tabs have a fixed width, meaning they do not shrink to the length of their text labels. Values are:
		TRUE Tab width is fixed; the width is determined by the longest text label.
		FALSE Tab width adjusts to the length of the text labels.
FocusOnButt	o B Ood ean	Specifies whether each tab gets focus when the user clicks on it. Values are:
		TRUE The tab the user clicks on gets focus; a dotted rectangle marks the tab.
		FALSE The tab does not get focus.
		In either case, the selected tab page comes to the front.
		The dotted focus rectangle appears on the tab when the user clicks on it a second and subsequent times even if this property is set to false.
FontCharSet		Specifies the character set for the text labels on the tabs. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) for the text labels on the tabs. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
FontPitch	FontPitch (enumerated)	Specifies the pitch (spacing) of the font for text labels on the tabs. Values are:
		Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text on the tabs is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text labels are italic.

Tab property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE Text labels are not italic.
Multiline	Boolean	Specifies whether the tabs can appear in more than one row. Values are:
		TRUE If there is not room for all the tabs in a single row, the tabs are arranged in multiple rows.
		FALSE If there is not room for all the tabs in a single row, a dual arrow control displays to allow the user to scroll to tabs that do not fit.
Perpendicula	'Bod lean	Specifies whether the tab labels are drawn perpendicular to the tab page. Values are:
		TRUE Text is perpendicular to the edge of the tab page, resulting in narrower tabs.
		FALSE Text runs along the edge of the tab page, resulting in wider tabs.
PictureOnRig	B oolean	Specifies whether a picture that is part of the tab label is to the right or left of the text. Values are:
		TRUE The picture is on the right.
		FALSE The picture is on the left.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
PowerTips	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerTipText for a tab page is displayed as a PowerTip (a pop-up label for the tab) when the mouse pointer pauses over the tab. PowerTips are useful if the tabs are labeled with pictures. Values are:
		TRUE PowerTipText, if any, displays as a pop-up label for each tab.
		FALSE No PowerTips are displayed.
RaggedRight	Boolean	Specifies whether tabs are stretched so that they fill space along the edge of the control. Values are:
		TRUE Tabs remain the size determined by their label text and the FixedWidth property.
		FALSE Tabs are stretched to fill the edge.
SelectedTab	Integer	Specifies the index number of the selected tab. The default value is 1, and the integer must be in the range 1 to N, where N is the number of tab pages.
ShowPicture	Boolean	Specifies whether the picture selected for each tab is displayed. Values are:
		TRUE The picture for each tab, if any, is displayed.

Tab	Datatype	Description
property		
		FALSE No pictures are displayed.
ShowText	Boolean	Specifies whether the text specified for each tab label is displayed. Values are:
		TRUE The text for each tab is displayed.
		FALSE The text for each tab is not displayed.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0
		means the user cannot tab to the control).
<u>TabPosition</u>	TabPosition (enumerated)	Specifies where the tabs appear around the Tab control. Values are:
		• TabsOnBottom! Tabs are at the bottom.
		• TabsOnBottomAndTop! Tabs before the selected tab are on top; the selected tab itself and tabs after it are on the bottom.
		• TabsOnLeft! Tabs are on the left.
		• TabsOnLeftAndRight! Tabs before the selected tab and the selected tab itself are on the left; tabs after the selected tab are on the right.
		TabsOnRight! Tabs are on the right.
		• TabsOnRightAndLeft! Tabs before the selected tab are on the left; the selected tab and tabs after it are on the right.
		• TabsOnTop! Tabs are on top.
		• TabsOnTopAndBottom! Tabs before the selected tab and the selected tab itself are on top; tabs after the selected tab are on the bottom.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points. For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
<u>Underline</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text on the tabs is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text labels are underlined.
		FALSE Text labels are not underlined.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Is visible.
		FALSE Is not visible.

Tab property	Datatype	Description
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.97.2 Events

Table 2.265:

Tab Event	Occurs	
Clicked	When the user clicks in the Tab control, except in the display area of the tab page. For the tab page, the Clicked event (pbm_bnclicked) for the user object is triggered instead.	
Constructor	When the object is created, immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.	
Destructor	When the object is destroyed, immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.	
DoubleClicked	When the user double-clicks in the Tab control, except in the display area of the tab page. For the tab page, the DoubleClicked event (pbm_bndoubleclicked) for the user object is triggered instead.	
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped in the tab area of the control.	
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control, including entering the narrow border around the display area.	
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control, including leaving by crossing into the tab page display area.	
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control, but not within the tab page display area.	
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).	
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.	
Key	When the user presses a key.	
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).	
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.	
RightClicked	When the user clicks with the right mouse button in the Tab control, except in the display area of the tab page. If the user right-clicks on the tab page, the controls or user objects on the tab page get an RButtonDown event.	

Tab Event	Occurs
RightDoubleClick When the user double-clicks with the right mouse button in the Tab control, except in the display area of the tab page. For the tab page, the RightDoubleClicked event (pbm_rbuttondblclk) for the user object is triggered instead.	
SelectionChanged	Just after the selection changes to another tab. SelectionChanged is triggered when the tab is created and the initial selection is established.
SelectionChangin	Just before the selection changes to another tab. To prevent the selection from changing, return 1 in the event script. SelectionChanging is triggered when the tab is created and the initial selection is established.

2.97.3 Functions

Table 2.266:

Tab function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
CloseTab	Integer	Closes a tab page that was opened with the OpenTab function.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends dragging of the control.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the parent of the Tab control.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
MoveTab	Integer	Moves a tab to a new position in the order of tabs.
OpenTab	Integer	Opens the specified user object as a tab page, making its properties available to scripts.
OpenTabWith	nPateger	Opens the user object as a tab page, making its properties available to scripts, and stores a parameter in the Message object.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Integer	Adds the specified event to the end of the event queue for the specified object.
Print	Integer	Prints the contents of the control. You can specify a range of pages and other settings.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the tab page to the size specified in the width and height arguments.
SelectTab	Integer	Selects a tab page.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the Tab control.

Tab function	Datatype returned	Description
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the control's position in the front-to-back order within the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TabPostEven	tInteger	Adds an event to the end of the message queues for each of the tab pages.
TabTriggerE	v Em tteger	Sends an event to every tab page and, for each page, executes the script associated with the event.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.98 Throwable object

The Throwable datatype is the base class for all throwable objects. These include exceptions and error objects.

2.98.1 Properties

Table 2.267:

Throwable	Datatype	Description
property		
ClassDefiniti	olinower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
		class definition of the object of control.
Text	String	Contains the text of the error message.

2.98.2 **Events**

Table 2.268:

Throwable event	Occurs
Constructor	When the exception is thrown.
Destructor	Immediately after the exception is thrown.

2.98.3 Functions

Table 2.269:

Throwable function	~ ~	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.

Throwable function	Datatype returned	Description
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetMessage	String	Returns the error message from objects of type Throwable.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
SetMessage		Sets an error message for an object of type Throwable.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.99 Timing object

Timing is a nonvisual system object that can be used when a Timer event cannot be associated with a window. To use a timing object, create a standard class user object that inherits from the Timing system class, and then create an instance of the inherited timing object.

2.99.1 Properties

Table 2.270:

Timing property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Interval	Double	(Read-only) The minimum number of seconds the timing object waits between calls to the Timer event. This property is initially set to NULL and is modified whenever the Start function is called.
Running	Boolean	(Read-only) True if the timing object has been started and is currently running. False if the timing object is not running.

2.99.2 Events

Table 2.271:

Timing event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
Timer	When a specified number of seconds elapses after the Start function has been called

2.99.3 Functions

Table 2.272:

Timing function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object
Start	Integer	Activates the timing object using a specified interval
Stop	Integer	Deactivates the timing object
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.100 TokenRequest object

The TokenRequest object can get or set the properties for the access token request, including the address of the authorization server, the OAuth 2.0 authorization process, the scope of the access request, the secure protocol, the timeout value etc.

2.100.1 Properties

Table 2.273:

TokenReque property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClientId	String	Identifier of the registered client issued by the authorization server. If the program sets the "Authorization" request header, this property will be ignored.
ClientSecret	String	Password of the registered client issued by the authorization server. If the program sets the "Authorization" request header, this property will be ignored.
GrantType	String	The type of the authorization process. Values are: • password – Resource Owner Password Credentials Grant; • client_credentials – Client Credentials Grant; • placeholder string – Extension Grant.
Method	String	HTTP method for sending the authentication request. Values are:

TokenReque	Datatype	Description
property		
		GET – HTTP get method;
		POST – HTTP post method.
Password	String	The password of the resource owner.
Scope	String	The scope of the access request.
SecureProtoc	<u>d</u> Integer	Specifies the secure protocol with the integer value. Values are:
		0 – All secure protocols. This is a default value;
		1 - TLS1.0;
		2 – TLS1.1;
		3 – TLS1.2.
Timeout	Long	Specifies the timeout seconds. The default value is 60 and 0 is no timeout.
TokenLocation	S tring	The URL of the authorization server.
<u>UserName</u>	String	The name of the resource owner.

2.100.2 Functions

Table 2.274:

TokenReque function	Datatype returned	Description
AppendParan	ıInteger	Appends the parameter to the request for Extension Grant only.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
ClearHeaders	Integer	Clears the header of the request.
ClearParams	Integer	Clears all of the parameters appended by the AppendParam function.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetHeader	String	Gets the request header by name.
GetHeaders	String	Gets the header of all of the requests.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
SetHeader	Integer	Sets the request header by name.
SetHeaders	Integer	Sets the header information of all of the requests.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.101 TokenResponse object

The TokenResponse object can get the information of the access token response returned by the authorization server, including the access token, the refresh token, the HTTP response header etc.

2.101.1 Properties

Table 2.275:

TokenRespo property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti		An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

2.101.2 Functions

Table 2.276:

TokenRespo function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetAccessTo	k Setur ing	Gets the access token returned by authorization server.
GetBody	Integer	Gets the response body into string.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetExpiresIn	Long	Gets lifetime of the access token returned by authorization server.
GetHeader	String	Gets the response header by name.
GetHeaders	String	Gets the header of all responses by name.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRefreshTo	Sterring	Gets the refresh token returned by authorization server.
GetStatusCoc	l & Long	Gets the response status code.
GetStatusTex	tString	Gets the response status description.
GetTokenErr	String	Gets the error information returned by the Authorization Server if the request privilege grant failed.
GetTokenTyp	String	Gets the access token type returned by authorization server.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.102 TraceActivityNode object

The TraceActivityNode object provides information about the nodes in a trace file, including the type of activity represented by a node. You use the TraceActivityNode object in conjunction with the TraceFile object.

The TraceActivityNode object has no events.

2.102.1 Properties

Table 2.277:

TraceActivit	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityType	_	A value of the enumerated datatype TraceActivity that identifies the activity represented by the node. Values are:
		ActBegin! Start and finish of logging.
		ActError! Occurrences of system errors and warnings.
		ActESQL! Embedded SQL statement entry and exit.
		ActGarbageCollect! Start and finish of garbage collection
		ActLine! Routine line hits.
		ActObjectCreate! Object creation.
		ActObjectDestroy! Object destruction.
		ActRoutine! Routine entry and exit.
		ActUser! Occurrences of an activity you selected.
Category	_	The category of the activity represented by the node. Values are:
	(enumerated)	TraceAtomic! The node is an activity that occurred in a single statement.
		TraceIn! The node is the beginning of an activity that spans several statements.
		TraceOut! The node is the end of an activity that spanned several statements.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.102.2 Functions

Table 2.278:

TraceActivit function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSo	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.103 TraceBeginEnd object

The TraceBeginEnd object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of a logging start or finish. To access the extra properties of the TraceBeginEnd object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActBegin! to the TraceBeginEnd object.

The TraceBeginEnd object has no events.

2.103.1 Properties

Table 2.279:

TraceBeginF property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType		The value ActBegin! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a logging start or finish.
Category	TraceCategor (enumerated)	TraceIn! The node is the beginning of an activity that spans several statements. TraceOut! The node is the end of an activity that spanned several statements.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Message	String	The message passed in for the TraceBegin function. For the TraceEnd function, the value is " ".
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.103.2 Functions

Table 2.280:

table 2.200.		
TraceBeginF function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.104 TraceError object

The TraceError object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of a system error or warning, including the error message and severity level. To access the extra properties of the TraceError object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActError! to the TraceError object.

The TraceError object has no events.

2.104.1 Properties

Table 2.281:

TraceError property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType		The value ActError! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a system error or warning
Category	_	yThe value TraceAtomic! which indicates that the node is an activity that occurred in a single statement
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Message	String	The system error message or the message passed to the TraceError function
Severity	Long	The system error severity or the severity argument passed to the TraceError function
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred

2.104.2 Functions

Table 2.282:

TraceError function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.105 TraceESQL object

The TraceESQL object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of an Embedded SQL (ESQL) statement. To access the extra properties of the TraceESQL object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActESQL! to the TraceESQL object.

The TraceESQL object has no events.

2.105.1 Properties

Table 2.283:

TraceESQL	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityNode	TraceActivity	The value ActESQL! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of an ESQL statement entry or exit.

TraceESQL property	Datatype	Description
Category	TraceCategor	The category of the activity represented by the node. Values are:
		TraceIn! The node is the beginning of an activity that spans several statements.
		TraceOut! The node is the end of an activity that spanned several statements.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Name	String	The name of the ESQL statement.
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.105.2 Functions

Table 2.284:

TraceESQL function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.106 TraceFile object

The TraceFile object is used to access the contents of a trace file created from a PowerBuilder application. Unlike the Profiling and TraceTree objects, the TraceFile object does not provide properties and functions to create an analysis model. You use the TraceFile object in conjunction with the TraceActivityNode, TraceBeginEnd, TraceError, TraceESQL, TraceGarbageCollect, TraceLine, TraceObject, TraceRoutine, and TraceUser objects.

The TraceFile object has no events.

2.106.1 Properties

Table 2.285:

TraceFile property	Datatype	Description
ApplicationN	aStreing	The name of the application used to generate the trace file.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

TraceFile property	Datatype	Description
CollectionTir	n ∂ ecimal	The amount of time (in seconds) taken by the collection of trace data. This time has already been accounted for in the timestamps from the trace file, that is, the proper amount of time has been subtracted from the timestamps before they are put in the trace file. The value is NULL if the file is not open.
LastError	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	The error code for the last error that occurred.
NumberOfAc	tixitigs	The number of activities that exist in the trace file.
FileName	String	The name of the opened trace file. The value is an empty string if the file is not open.

2.106.2 Functions

Table 2.286:

TraceFile function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
Close	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Closes the open trace file.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
NextActivity	TraceActivity	Notice the next activity in the trace stream. If there are no more activities, or if the file is not open, an invalid object is returned. Use the LastError property to determine what kind of error occurred.
Open	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Opens for reading the trace file with the passed name.
Reset	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Resets the stream to the beginning of the trace file.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.107 TraceGarbageCollect object

The TraceGarbageCollect object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of garbage collection. To access the extra properties of the TraceGarbageCollect object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActGarbageCollect! to the TraceGarbageCollect object.

The TraceGarbageCollect object has no events.

2.107.1 Properties

Table 2.287:

TraceGarba property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType	•	The value ActGarbageCollect! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of garbage collection start or finish.
Category		TraceIn! The node is the beginning of an activity that spans several statements.
		TraceOut! The node is the end of an activity that spanned several statements.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.107.2 Functions

Table 2.288:

TraceGarba function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.108 TraceLine object

The TraceLine object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of a routine line hit. To access the extra properties of the TraceLine object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActLine! to the TraceLine object.

The TraceLine object has no events.

2.108.1 Properties

Table 2.289:

TraceLine property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType		The value ActLine! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a routine line hit
Category	_	yThe value TraceAtomic! which indicates that the node is an activity that occurred in a single statement

TraceLine property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
LineNumber	UnsignedLon	gThe line number
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred

2.108.2 Functions

Table 2.290:

TraceLine function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	łwieger	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.109 TraceObject object

The TraceObject object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as the creation or destruction of an object. To access the extra properties of the TraceObject object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActObjectCreate! or ActObjectDestroy! to the TraceObject object. The TraceObject object has no events.

2.109.1 Properties

Table 2.291:

TraceObject	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityType	•	The value ActObjectCreate! or ActObjectDestroy! which identifies the activity represented by the node as the creation or destruction of an object.
Category	TraceCategor (enumerated)	TraceIn! The node is the beginning of an activity that spans several statements. TraceOut! The node is the end of an activity that spanned several statements.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClassName	String	The name of the class that is the type of the object. Nested classes (like controls in windows) have a name of the form class name`embedded class name.

TraceObject property	Datatype	Description
IsCreate	Boolean	True if the node represents the creation of an object and false if the node represents the destruction of an object.
LibraryName	String	The name of the library that contains the class of the object. The value is " " for system classes.
ObjectID	UnsignedLon	gA unique identifier for the object.
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.109.2 Functions

Table 2.292:

TraceObject function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.110 TraceRoutine object

The TraceRoutine object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of a routine. To access the extra properties of the TraceRoutine object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActRoutine! to the TraceRoutine object. The TraceRoutine object has no events.

2.110.1 Properties

Table 2.293:

TraceRoutin property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType	•	The value ActRoutine! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a routine entry or exit.
Category	_	TraceIn! The node is the beginning of an activity that spans several statements. TraceOut! The node is the end of an activity that spanned several statements.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.

TraceRoutin property	Datatype	Description
ClassName	String	The name of the class that contains the routine. The value is " " for system functions. Nested classes (like controls in windows) have a name of the form class name`embedded class name.
IsEvent	Boolean	True if the routine is an event and false if the routine is a function.
LibraryName	String	The name of the library that contains the class that includes the routine. The value is " " for system classes.
Name	String	The name of the routine including the parameter datatypes and return value.
ObjectID	UnsignedLon	The object ID for the object on which the routine is executing. The ID is 0 if the routine executing is a global or system routine.
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.110.2 Functions

Table 2.294:

TraceRoutin function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.111 TraceTree object

The TraceTree object is used to analyze the performance of a PowerBuilder application. It provides a tree model listing all the nodes logged in a given trace file. It includes the functions you call to name the trace file to be analyzed, build the tree model, and list the top-level entries in the tree model. You use the TraceTree object in conjunction with the TraceTreeNode, TraceTreeError, TraceTreeESQL, TraceTreeGarbageCollect, TraceTreeLine, TraceTreeObject, TraceTreeRoutine, and TraceTreeUser objects.

The TraceTree object has no events.

2.111.1 Properties

Table 2.295:

TraceTree property	Datatype	Description
ApplicationN	aStreing	The name of the application used to generate the trace file.

TraceTree property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefinition	or Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CollectionTir	d ∂ ecimal	The amount of time (in seconds) taken by the collection of trace data. This time has already been accounted for in the timestamps from the trace file (the proper amount of time has been subtracted from the timestamps before they are put in the trace file). The value is NULL if no model was built.
NumberOfAc	tivatig s	The total number of activities that exist in the trace file. The value is 0 if this is called before the trace file name is set.
TraceFileNan	S tring	The name of the trace file to use to build the model. The value is an empty string if the name has not been successfully set.

2.111.2 Functions

Table 2.296:

TraceTree function	Datatype returned	Description
BuildModel	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Builds a tree model based on the previously specified trace file
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
DestroyMode	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Destroys the current tree model
EntryList	ErrorReturn (enumerated)	Provides a list of top-level entries (defined as TraceTreeNode objects) included in the model
GetContextSo	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
SetTraceFilel	Taroe Return	Indicates the name of the trace file to use for analysis and creates the format of the file header
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.112 TraceTreeError object

The TraceTreeError object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of a system error or warning, including the error message and severity level. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeError object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActError! to the TraceTreeError object.

The TraceTreeError object has no events.

2.112.1 Properties

Table 2.297:

TraceTreeEn property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType	•	The value ActError! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a system error or warning
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Message	String	The system error message or the message passed to the TraceError function
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node
Severity	Long	The system error severity or the severity argument passed to the TraceError function
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred

2.112.2 Functions

Table 2.298:

TraceTree- Error function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.113 TraceTreeESQL object

The TraceTreeESQL object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of an Embedded SQL (ESQL) statement. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeESQL object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActESQL! to the TraceTreeESQL object.

The TraceTreeESQL object has no events.

2.113.1 Properties

Table 2.299:

TraceTreeE	Datatype	Description
ActivityNode	TraceActivity	The value ActESQL! which identifies the activity represented
	(enumerated)	by the node as an occurrence of an ESQL statement entry and
		exit

TraceTreeE	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
EnterTimerV	a Dre cimal	The timer value (in seconds) of the entry for this statement
ExitTimerVa	luDecimal	The timer value (in seconds) of the exit for this statement
Name	String	The name of the ESQL statement
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node

2.113.2 Functions

Table 2.300:

TraceTreeE	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.114 TraceTreeGarbageCollect object

The TraceTreeGarbageCollect object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of garbage collection, including the children or classes and routines called by that node. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeGarbageCollect object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActGarbageCollect! to the TraceTreeGarbageCollect object.

The TraceTreeGarbageCollect object has no events.

2.114.1 Properties

Table 2.301:

TraceTreeG	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityType	_	The value ActGarbageCollect! which identifies the activity represented by the node as garbage collection start and finish.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
EnterTimerV	a Dec imal	The timer value (in seconds) of the entry for the garbage collector.
ExitTimerVa	liDecimal	The timer value (in seconds) of the exit for the garbage collector.
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node.

2.114.2 Functions

Table 2.302:

TraceTreeG function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetChildrenL		Provides a list of the children (defined as TraceTreeNode objects) of this routine
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.115 TraceTreeLine object

The TraceTreeLine object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of a routine line hit. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeLine object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActLine! to the TraceTreeLine object.

The TraceTreeLine object has no events.

2.115.1 Properties

Table 2.303:

TraceTreeLi property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType	•	The value ActLine! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a routine line hit
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
LineNumber	UnsignedLon	gThe line number
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred

2.115.2 Functions

Table 2.304:

TraceTreeLi function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.

TraceTreeLi function	Datatype returned	Description
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.116 TraceTreeNode object

The TraceTreeNode object provides information about the nodes in the tree model, including the type of activity represented by the node. You use the TraceTreeNode object in conjunction with the TraceTree object.

The TraceTreeNode object has no events.

2.116.1 Properties

Table 2.305:

TraceTreeNo	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityType		A value of the enumerated datatype TraceActivity that identifies the activity represented by the node. Values are:
		ActBegin! Start and finish of logging.
		ActError! Occurrences of system errors and warnings.
		ActESQL! Embedded SQL statement entry and exit.
		ActGarbageCollect! Start and finish of garbage collection.
		ActLine! Routine line hits.
		ActObjectCreate! Object creation.
		ActObjectDestroy! Object destruction.
		ActRoutine! Routine entry and exit.
		ActUser! Occurrences of an activity you selected.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dehe parent of this node. If the parent is a top-level node, that is, a node returned by the EntryList function, the value is an invalid object.

2.116.2 Functions

Table 2.306:

TraceTreeNo function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service

TraceTreeNo function	Datatype returned	Description
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.117 TraceTreeObject object

The TraceTreeObject object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of an object. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeObject object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActObjectCreate! or ActObjectDestroy! to the TraceTreeObject object.

The TraceTreeObject object has no events.

2.117.1 Properties

Table 2.307:

TraceTreeO	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityType	_	The value ActObjectCreate! or ActObjectDestroy! which identifies the activity represented by the node as object creation or destruction.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClassName	String	The name of the class that is the object type.
EnterTimerV	a Dec imal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity began.
ExitTimerVa	liDecimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity ended.
IsCreate	Boolean	True if the node represents the creation of an object and false if it represents the destruction of an object.
ObjectID	UnsignedLon	The internal identifier for the object.
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node.

2.117.2 Functions

Table 2.308:

TraceTreeO	V I	Description
function	returned	
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetChildrenL	Æ rrorReturn	Provides a list of the children (defined as TraceTreeNode
	(enumerated)	objects) of this object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.

TraceTreeO function	Datatype returned	Description
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.118 TraceTreeRoutine object

The TraceTreeRoutine object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of a routine. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeRoutine object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActRoutine! to the TraceTreeRoutine object.

The TraceTreeRoutine object has no events.

2.118.1 Properties

Table 2.309:

TraceTreeRo property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType	-	The value ActRoutine! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of a routine entry and exit.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClassName	String	The name of the class that contains the routine. The value is " " for system functions. Nested classes (like controls on a window) have a name of the form class name`embedded class name.
EnterTimerV	a De cimal	The timer value (in seconds) of the entry for this call.
ExitTimerVa	liDecimal	The timer value (in seconds) of the exit for this call.
IsEvent	Boolean	True if the routine is an event and false if the routine is a function.
LibraryName	String	The name of the library that contains the class that contains the routine. The value is " " for system classes.
Name	String	The name of the routine including the argument datatypes and return value.
ObjectID	UnsignedLon	gThe internal ID for the object on which the routine is executing. The value is 0 for global and system functions.
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node.

2.118.2 Functions

Table 2.310:

TraceTreeRefunction		Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.

TraceTreeRo function	Datatype returned	Description
GetChildrenL		Provides a list of the children (defined as TraceTreeNode objects) of this routine.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.119 TraceTreeUser object

The TraceTreeUser object provides information about a tree model node identified as an occurrence of an activity you selected for logging, including the activity argument and message. To access the extra properties of the TraceTreeUser object, you assign a TraceTreeNode object whose activity type is ActUser! to the TraceTreeUser object.

The TraceTreeUser object has no events.

2.119.1 Properties

Table 2.311:

TraceTreeUs	Datatype	Description
property		
ActivityType	•	The value ActUser! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of an activity you selected
Argument	Long	The argument passed to the TraceUser function
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control
Message	String	The message passed to the TraceUser function
ParentNode	TraceTreeNo	dEhe parent of this node
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred

2.119.2 Functions

Table 2.312:

TraceTreeUs function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object

2.120 TraceUser object

The TraceUser object provides information about a node in a trace file identified as an occurrence of an activity you selected for logging, including the activity argument and message. To access the extra properties of the TraceUser object, you assign a TraceActivityNode object whose activity type is ActUser! to the TraceUser object.

The TraceUser object has no events.

2.120.1 Properties

Table 2.313:

TraceUser property	Datatype	Description
ActivityType		The value ActUser! which identifies the activity represented by the node as an occurrence of an activity you selected.
Argument	Long	The argument passed to the TraceUser function.
Category	_	The value TraceAtomic! which indicates that the node is an activity that occurred in a single statement.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Message	String	The message passed to the TraceUser function.
TimerValue	Decimal	The timer value (in seconds) when the activity occurred.

2.120.2 Functions

Table 2.314:

14010 210 111		
TraceUser function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object (enumerated)	Returns the type of the object.

2.121 Transaction object

The Transaction object specifies the parameters that PowerBuilder uses to connect to a database.

You can customize your own version of the Transaction object by defining a class user object inherited from the built-in Transaction object.

For more information about creating a custom Transaction object, see Chapter 14, Working with User Objects.

For more information about using the Transaction object in an application, see Chapter 12, *Using Transaction Objects*.

2.121.1 Properties

Table 2.315:

Transaction property	Datatype	Description
AutoCommit	Boolean	The automatic commit indicator. Values are:
		TRUE Commit automatically after every database activity.
		FALSE Do not commit automatically after every database activity.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
Database	String	The name of the database with which you are connecting.
DBMS	String	PowerBuilder vendor identifier.
DBParm	String	DBMS-specific parameters.
DBPass	String	The password used to connect to the database.
Lock	String	The isolation level.
LogID	String	The name or ID of the user who logs in to the server.
LogPass	String	The password used to log in to the server.
ServerName	String	The name of the server on which the database resides.
SQLCode	Long	The success or failure code of the most recent operation.
		Return codes:
		0 Success
		100 Not found
		-1 Error (use SQLDBCode or SQLErrText to obtain the details)
SQLDBCode	Long	The database vendor's error code.
SQLErrText	String	The database vendor's error message.
SQLNRows	Long	The number of rows affected (the database vendor supplies this number, so the meaning might not be the same in every DBMS)
SQLReturnD	a Sa ring	DBMS-specific information
UserID	String	The name or ID of the user who will connect to the database

2.121.2 Events

Table 2.316:

Transaction event	Occurs
Constructor	When the user object is created
DBNotification	When an Oracle 10g server sends a notification that a database operation has occurred

Transaction event	Occurs
DBError	When a database error occurs in the transaction
Destructor	When the user object is destroyed
SQLPreview	Occurs immediately before a SQL statement is submitted to the DBMS

2.121.3 Functions

Table 2.317:

Transaction function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the user object
DBHandle	Long	Returns the handle for your DBMS
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue of the user object
SyntaxFromS	Q Izing	Generates DataWindow source code based on a SQL SELECT statement
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the user object and executes the script associated with the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the user object

2.122 TransactionServer object

The TransactionServer object provides information about the current transaction context and enables a component running in a transaction server to control the transaction and its own life cycle.

2.122.1 Properties

Table 2.318:

Transaction property	Datatype	Description
ClassDefiniti	o r howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control

2.122.2 Events

Table 2.319:

TransactionServ event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created

TransactionServ event	Occurs
Destructor	When the object is destroyed

2.122.3 Functions

Table 2.320:

1 able 2.320.			
Transactions function	Datatype returned	Description	
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.	
CreateInstanc	e d nteger	Creates an instance of a component running on the COM+ server. This function is called from within a component instance running on COM+.	
DisableComr	n lit iteger	Declares that the component's transaction updates are inconsistent and cannot be committed in their present state.	
EnableComm	i l integer	Declares that the component's work might be incomplete but its transaction updates are consistent and can be committed.	
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.	
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.	
ImpersonateC	C lietet ger	Allows the component to take on the security attributes of the client for the duration of a call.	
IsCallerInRol	dnteger	Indicates whether an object's direct caller is in a specified role (either individually or as part of a group).	
IsImpersonati	n B oolean	Queries whether the component is impersonating the client.	
IsInTransacti (obsolete)	o B oolean	Indicates whether the component is executing in a transaction.	
IsSecurityEna	a Ble dlean	Indicates whether or not security is enabled for the component	
IsTransaction (obsolete)	Ælooriteach	Determines whether the current transaction has already been aborted.	
Lookup (obsolete)	Long	Allows a component to create an instance of another component running on the same EAServer host.	
		Obsolete function	
		Lookup is an obsolete function, because EAServer is no longer supported since PowerBuilder 2017.	
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.	
RevertToSelf	Integer	If the component is impersonating the client, restores the component's security attributes.	
SetAbort	Integer	Declares that the component cannot complete its work for the current transaction and that the transaction should be rolled back. The component instance will be deactivated when the method returns.	

Transaction function	Datatype returned	Description
SetComplete	Integer	Declares that the transaction in which a component is participating should be committed and the component instance should be deactivated.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specific event in the object and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.
Which	Integer	Returns 0 if the object is not running in a transaction server, 1 if running in EAServer, or 2 if running in Microsoft MTS or IIS4.

2.123 TreeView control

A TreeView control is a hierarchical display of information. Each item in a TreeView control consists of text and pictures, which can be manipulated during program runtime.

2.123.1 Properties

Table 2.321:

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
Accelerator	Integer	Specifies the ASCII value of the accelerator key you want to use for the control.
AccessibleDe	<u>Saturipnigon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	S tring	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the control has a border. Values are: TRUE Control has a border. FALSE Control does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle (enumerated)	Specifies the border style of the control. Values are: StyleBox! StyleLowered! StyleRaised! StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Control is on top of other controls.
		FALSE Control is not on top of other controls.
CheckBoxes	Boolean	Specifies whether the state images are replaced by check boxes. The check boxes are set to unchecked by default. The TreeView control processes mouse and keyboard input to toggle the checked state. Values are:
		TRUE Check boxes are displayed.
		FALSE Check boxes are not displayed.
		The state of an item's check box can be determined by checking the state picture index for the item:
		Unchecked = 1
		Checked = 2
ClassDefiniti	omnower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DeleteItems</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can delete a TreeView item from a TreeView control using the Delete key. Values are:
		TRUE The user can delete items from the control.
		FALSE The user cannot delete items from the control.
DisableDragI	Bo plean	Disable Drag Drop determines whether events for dragging, such as BeginDrag, are triggered when the user clicks on an item and drags. Values are:
		TRUE Drag events are not triggered.
		FALSE Drag events are triggered.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
		In either case, DisableDragDrop must be set to false for dragging to occur.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
proporty		valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
EditLabels	Boolean	Specifies whether the user can edit the item labels in a control by clicking on a selected item. Values are:
		TRUE The user can edit item labels.
		FALSE The user cannot edit item labels.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is enabled (can be clicked). Values are:
		TRUE Control can be clicked.
		FALSE Control cannot be clicked.
FaceName	String	Specifies the name of the typeface in which the text of the control displays (for example, arial or courier).
FontCharSet		Specifies the font character set used for the text in the control. The application must be running on an appropriate version of PowerBuilder under an operating system that supports the selected character set. For a complete list of possible values, see the list of properties for the FontCharSet variable on the Enumerated tab page of the Browser.
FontFamily	FontFamily (enumerated)	Specifies the font family (type style) used for the text in the control. Values are:
		AnyFont!
		Decorative!
		Modern!
		Roman!
		Script!
		Swiss!
<u>FontPitch</u>	FontPitch	Specifies the font pitch for the text in the control. Values are:
	(enumerated)	Default!
		Fixed!
		Variable!
FullRowSele	cBoolean	Specifies whether full row selection is enabled. Values are:
		TRUE Clicking anywhere on a row causes the entire row to be selected, and selecting any item in the row causes the entire row to be highlighted.
		FALSE Selecting one item in a row does not cause the entire row to be highlighted or selected.

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
		This property cannot be used in conjunction with HasLines = TRUE.
HasButtons	Boolean	Specifies whether TreeView parent items have + and - buttons associated with them to indicate whether they are expanded (-) or collapsed (+). Values are:
		TRUE Parent items have buttons.
		FALSE Parent items do not have buttons.
		If SingleExpand is set to true to specify that only one item can be expanded, more than one item can be expanded by clicking on the item buttons if HasButtons is also true.
<u>HasLines</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether TreeView items are connected by lines. Values are:
		TRUE Items are connected by lines.
		FALSE Items are not connected by lines.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
HideSelection	nBoolean	Specifies whether selected text stays selected (highlighted) even when the control does not have focus. Values are.
		TRUE Text does not stay highlighted.
		FALSE Text stays highlighted.
ImeMode	Integer	Specifies the input method editor mode. This property is relevant only to applications running on a Japanese version of PowerBuilder.
Indent	Integer	Specifies the size, in PowerBuilder units, that TreeView items are indented. Negative values are accepted but the items are outdented beyond the left edge of the control.
		Room is always reserved for the regular picture, whether or not it is displayed. An indent of less than 90 has no effect for the standard picture width. Set PictureWidth to 0 to remove extra space.
<u>Italic</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is italic. Values are:
		TRUE Text is italic.
		FALSE Text is not italic.
LayoutRTL	Boolean	Specifies that the layout of the control should be a mirror image of the standard layout. Values are:
		TRUE Elements in the control are right justified
		FALSE Elements in the control are left justified (default).
LinesAtRoot	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder will connect TreeView root items with lines. Values are:

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
property		TRUE TreeView control connects root items with lines when HasLines is also true.
		FALSE Control does not connect root items with lines.
<u>PictureHeigh</u>	Integer	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the height of the TreeView item picture.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a picture has been added to the picture index list.
		If the picture height is 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture added to the picture index list.
PictureMaskO	hlong	Specifies the color to be transparent when used in a TreeView item picture. Used when the picture is added at initialization or with the function AddPicture, and can be changed between adds.
PictureName	S tring	Specifies the names of the files containing the pictures added during initialization. The file extension BMP, ICO, GIF, JPG or JPEG is required.
		Not updated after initialization.
<u>PictureWidth</u>	Integer	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the width of the TreeView item picture.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a picture has been added to the picture index list.
		If the picture width is 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture added to the picture index list.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.
		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order (default).
SingleExpand	Boolean	Specifies whether only the selected TreeView item is allowed to be expanded. A single mouse click selects an item.
		TRUE When an item is selected, it is automatically expanded and the previously selected item is automatically collapsed.
		FALSE More than one item can be expanded at a time.
		Note that if HasButtons = true, more than one item can be expanded at a time by clicking on the item buttons.
SortType	grSortType	Selects the sort method. Values are:

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
		Ascending! Alphabetic by label.
		Descending! Reverse-alphabetic by label.
		UserDefinedSort! According to the script in the Sort event.
		Unsorted! Not sorted.
		When SortType specifies sorting, sorting happens automatically. For Unsorted!, you can call functions for alphabetic sorting.
StatePicture	H dinte ger	Specifies the size, in pixels, for the height of the state picture.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a state picture has been added to the state picture list.
		If the state picture height is 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture added to the state picture index list.
StatePicture	Maksingolor	Specifies the color to be transparent when used in a state picture. Used when the picture is added at initialization or with the function AddStatePicture, and can be changed between adds.
StatePicture	N Sitreng	Specifies the name of the picture used as the state picture. The state picture is displayed to the left of the regular picture. The item is shifted right to make room for it.
		The picture can be an icon, cursor, or bitmap supplied by the user or a stock picture from the PowerBuilder library. Not updated after initialization.
StatePicture'	Winte ger	Specifies the size in pixels for the width of the state picture.
		In a script, this value can be set only before a state picture has been added to the state picture list.
		If the state picture width is 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture added to the state picture index list.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TextColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the color used for text: -2 to 16,777,215.
TextSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the text in the control, in points.
		For backward compatibility, the size is stored as a negative number; for example, 10-point text size is stored as -10.
ToolTips	Boolean	Specifies whether an item's label should be displayed in a tooltip if the label is cut off by the right edge of the control. Values are:

TreeView property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Tooltips displaying the label text are displayed when the label is cut off on the right side. This is the default.
		FALSE Tooltips are not displayed.
TrackSelect	Boolean	Specifies whether items appear in a different color when the mouse moves over them (hot tracking). Values are:
		TRUE An item changes color when the mouse moves over it.
		FALSE An item does not change color when the mouse moves over or pauses on it.
<u>Underline</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the text in the control is underlined. Values are:
		TRUE Text is underlined.
		FALSE Text is not underlined.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Weight	Integer	Specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control; for example, 400 for normal or 700 for bold.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.123.2 Events

Table 2.322:

TreeView event	Occurs
BeginDrag	When the user begins a drag operation with the left mouse button. If the DragAuto property is set to true, the drag begins automatically. If the DragAuto property is set to false, the drag operation must be done programmatically.
BeginLabelEdit	When the user starts to edit a TreeView item label. Return 1 to prevent setting to the new text. Return 0 to accept the new text.
BeginRightDrag	When the user begins a drag operation with the right mouse button. If the DragAuto property is set to true, the drag begins automatically. If the DragAuto property is set to false, the drag operation must be done programmatically.
Clicked	When the control is clicked.

TreeView event	Occurs
Constructor	When the object is created, immediately before the Open event occurs in the window.
DeleteItem	When a TreeView item is deleted.
Destructor	When the object is destroyed, immediately after the Close event occurs in the window.
DoubleClicked	When the control is double-clicked.
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the TreeView control.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control, including entering the narrow border around the display area.
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control, including leaving by crossing into the tab page display area.
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control, but not on a TreeView item.
EndLabelEdit	When the user finishes editing a TreeView item label. Return 1 to prevent setting to the new text. Return 0 to accept the new text.
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active).
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.
ItemCollapsed	When an item has collapsed.
ItemCollapsing	When an item is collapsing. Return 1 to prevent collapsing or 0 to allow it.
ItemExpanded	When an item has expanded.
ItemExpanding	When an item is expanding. Return 1 to prevent expansion or 0 to allow it.
	If you want to populate the children each time an item expands, do it in the ItemExpanding event.
	If no children are created during the ItemPopulate or Item Expanding events, the item does not expand.
ItemPopulate	When an item is expanding for the first time. Return 1 to prevent expansion or 0 to allow it.
	If no children are created during the ItemPopulate or Item Expanding events, the item does not expand.
Key	When the user presses a key.
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive).
Notify	When a TreeView control sends a wm_notify message to its parent.
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.
RightClicked	When the control is right-clicked.
RightDoubleClicl	AWhen the control is right double-clicked.

TreeView event	Occurs
SelectionChanged	When the selection has changed.
SelectionChangin	gWhen the selection is changing. Return 1 to prevent the selection from changing or 0 to allow it.
Sort	When sorting occurs and the SortType property is set to UserDefinedSort! The event occurs for each pair of items being sorted.

2.123.3 Functions

Table 2.323:

TreeView function	Datatype returned	Description
AddPicture	Integer	Adds an icon, cursor, or bitmap to the image list. Does not update PictureName.
AddStatePict	ulneteger	Adds an icon, cursor, or bitmap to the state image list. Does not update StatePictureName.
ClassName	String	Returns the name of the control.
CollapseItem	Integer	Collapses the specified TreeView item.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes the specified TreeView item and all its children, if any.
DeletePicture	Integer	Deletes the specified icon, cursor, or bitmap from the image list.
DeletePicture	Integer	Deletes all icons, cursors, or bitmaps from the image list.
DeleteStatePi	dntæger	Deletes the specified icon, cursor, or bitmap from the state image list.
DeleteStatePi	dnntæger	Deletes all icons, cursors, or bitmaps from the state image list.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of a TreeView item.
EditLabel	Integer	Starts the editing of a specific TreeView item label.
ExpandAll	Integer	Expands the children and subsequent levels for the specified TreeView item.
ExpandItem	Integer	Expands the specified TreeView item.
FindItem	Long	Returns the handle for the specified TreeView item.
GetContextSe	e fnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetItem	Integer	Retrieves information for a specified item.
GetItemAtPo	i hner ger	Gets the handle or the index of the item under the cursor.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Hides the specified TreeView item.
InsertItem	Long	Inserts a specified item at a specified position and level in a TreeView control.
InsertItemFir	sŁong	Inserts a specified item as the first item at a specified level.
InsertItemLas	Long	Inserts a specified item as the last item at a specified level.

TreeView	Datatype	Description
function	returned	Description
InsertItemSor	L ong	Inserts a specified item at a specified level in the correct alphabetic position, if possible.
Move	Integer	Moves a control or object to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Determines the distance from the left edge of an object to the pointer location.
PointerY	Integer	Determines the distance from the top edge of an object to the pointer location.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds the event to the end of the event queue of an object.
Print	Integer	Includes an object or lines of text in a print job.
Resize	Integer	Resizes a control to the specified dimensions.
SelectItem	Integer	Highlights an item in the control, making it the current item.
SetDropHigh	l ight ger	Designates the specified TreeView item as the target of a DragDrop operation.
SetFirstVisib	l & nteger	Sets the specified TreeView item as the first item visible in a TreeView control. If there are enough items to allow it, the specified item scrolls to the top of the control. If not, it is selected.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets the focus for a specified object or control.
SetItem	Integer	Sets the information for the specified TreeView item.
SetLevelPict	ı fas eger	Specifies a picture index for all TreeView items at a specific level in a TreeView control.
SetOverlayPi	c intæ ger	Maps a picture index to an overlay picture index. Only four overlay picture indexes are available.
SetPosition	Integer	Sets the position of the TreeView control in the front-to-back order within a window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls the automatic redraw of an object after its properties have changed.
Show	Integer	Makes an object or control visible, if it is hidden. If the object is already visible, Show brings it to the top.
Sort	Integer	Sorts the children of a specified TreeView item according to the method of the SortType property or alphabetically if SortType is Unsorted!.
SortAll	Integer	Sorts the children of an item and all subsequent levels according to the method of the SortType property or alphabetically if SortType is Unsorted!.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.124 TreeViewItem object

A TreeViewItem is a system structure that populates the properties for individual items in a TreeView control. A TreeViewItem has no events.

2.124.1 Properties

Table 2.324:

TreeViewIte property	Datatype	Description
Bold	Boolean	Specifies whether the item is bold. Values are:
		TRUE The item is bold.
		FALSE The item is not bold.
Children	Boolean	Specifies whether the item has children. Values are:
		TRUE The item has children.
		FALSE The item does not have children.
		You can use this property to make the TreeView behave as though it has children, even when it does not. You can do this to get ItemPopulate and ItemExpanding events when the item does not yet have any children.
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
CutHighLigh	t E tbolean	Specifies whether the item is the target of a cut operation. Values are:
		TRUE The item is the target of a cut operation.
		FALSE The item is not the target of a cut operation.
Data	Any	Assigns any user-defined data to a TreeView item.
DropHighLig	l Bed lean	Specifies whether the item is the target of a DragDrop operation. Values are:
		TRUE The item is the target of a DragDrop operation.
		FALSE The item is not the target of a DragDrop operation.
Expanded	Boolean	Specifies whether the item is expanded. Values are:
		TRUE The item is expanded.
		FALSE The item is not expanded.
ExpandedOne	c B oolean	Specifies whether the item has been expanded at least once, also meaning the item has been populated with children. Values are:
		TRUE The item has been expanded once.
		FALSE The item has not been expanded once.
HasFocus	Boolean	Specifies whether the item has focus. Values are:
		TRUE The item has focus.

TreeViewIte property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE The item does not have focus.
ItemHandle	Long	Identifies the handle associated with the item.
Label	String	Identifies the string label associated with the item.
Level	Integer	Indicates the level of the item in the TreeView control.
OverlayPictu	rentalger	Identifies the overlay picture associated with the item. The overlay picture is displayed on top of the item's picture. If 0, no overlay is displayed.
PictureIndex	Integer	Identifies the picture displayed to the left of the item label. If 0, no picture appears and the space specified by the TreeView's PictureWidth property is blank.
SelectedPictu	nteltædæx	Identifies the picture associated with the item when it is selected. If 0, no picture is displayed when selected.
Selected	Boolean	Specifies whether the item is selected. Values are: TRUE The item is selected. FALSE The item is not selected.
StatePictureI	n Hete ger	Identifies the state picture associated with the item. The state picture appears to the left of the regular picture. If 0, no state picture appears and no space is reserved for the picture.

2.124.2 Functions

Table 2.325:

TreeViewIte function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.125 TypeDefinition object

TypeDefinition is used in the VariableDefinition class.

Information about the type of a variable. The variable can be a single value, an object, or an array. TypeDefinition is an abstract class that is the ancestor of ClassDefinition, SimpleTypeDefinition, and EnumerationDefinition. It has no events.

2.125.1 Properties

Table 2.326:

TypeDefiniti property	Datatype	Description
Category	TypeCategory	Specifies whether the type is simple, enumerated, or a class or structure. Values are:
		SimpleType!
		EnumeratedType!
		ClassOrStructureType!
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
DataTypeOf	String	The system class name or simple datatype of the variable. DataTypeOf is a string representation of a value of the Object enumerated datatype. Values are lowercase with no exclamation point. Sample values include:
		window
		string
		any
		dropdownlistbox
		For objects you have defined, the datatype is the system class from which your object is inherited.
IsStructure	Boolean	Indicates whether the type is a structure.
IsSystemType	eBoolean	Indicates whether the type is defined by PowerBuilder as opposed to a type defined in a PBL by a user.
IsVariableLe	n Bth olean	Specifies whether the datatype has a fixed size. Values are:
		TRUE The datatype is variable length, meaning the datatype is a string, any, blob, or unbounded array.
		FALSE The datatype is a fixed length.
IsVisualType	Boolean	Indicates whether the type is a visual (displayable) or nonvisual type. Values are:
		TRUE The type is visual, for example, a window or a control.
		FALSE The type is non-visual, for example, a class user object or a simple datatype.
LibraryName	String	The fully qualified name of the library the type was loaded from. The library might no longer contain the type. If a program manipulates the contents of libraries, its class could have been moved or deleted after it was loaded.
Name	String	The name of the type. For a nested type, the name is returned in the form of libraryEntryName`typeName

2.125.2 Functions

Table 2.327:

TypeDefiniti function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.126 ULSync object

The ULSync object is derived from the MLSynchronization base class but is not supported in the current release.

2.127 UserObject object

UserObjects are custom visual objects that you can build to supplement the standard PowerBuilder objects. UserObjects can display information, request information from a user, and respond to mouse or keyboard actions. You can also create a TabPage UserObject. Use the User Object painter to build UserObjects.

When you place a visible UserObject in a window, you are actually placing a UserObject control in the window. The control holds an instance of the UserObject you select for the window.

2.127.1 Properties

Table 2.328:

UserObject	Datatype	Description
property		
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numeric value of the background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the object has a border. Values are:
		TRUE Object has a border.
		FALSE Object does not have a border.
BorderStyle	BorderStyle	Specifies the style of the border of the object. Values are:
(enum	(enumerated)	StyleBox!
		StyleLowered!
		StyleRaised!
		StyleShadowBox!
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the object to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:

UserObject property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Object moved to top.
		FALSE Object not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClassName	String	(External user objects only) Returns the name assigned to the object.
ColumnsPerF	dgteger	Specifies the number of columns on a scroll page. The default is 0 (10 columns per page). For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerColumn by ColumnsPerPage to determine how many PowerBuilder units to scroll the object horizontally when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
Control[]	WindowObje	Specifies the control's objects. You cannot change the contents of this array in a script.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the object automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the object is clicked, it is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the object is clicked, it is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the object into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the object (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the object.
		When the user drags the object, the icon displays when the object is over an area in which the object can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the object is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the object is enabled (can be selected). Values are:
		TRUE Object can be selected.
		FALSE Object cannot be selected.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the object, in PowerBuilder units.
<u>HScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Horizontal scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Horizontal scroll bar does not display.
LibraryName	String	(External user objects only) The name of the dynamic-link library (DLL) that contains an external user object class.

UserObject property	Datatype	Description
LinesPerPage	Integer	Specifies the number of lines on a page. The default is 0 (10 lines per page). For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerLine by LinesPerPage to determine how many PowerBuilder units to scroll the object vertically when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
ObjectType	UserObjects	Specifies the type of user object. Valid values are:
	(enumerated)	CustomVisual!
		ExternalVisual!
Picture Mask (Chbng	Specifies the numeric value of the color in the picture that is changed to the background color. Values can be: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property applies only when PictureName is a bitmap and only when the UserObject is a tab page.
<u>PictureName</u>	String	Specifies a value of the Pointer enumerated datatype or the filename of the bitmap, cursor, or icon or to be displayed on the tab.
		This property applies only when the UserObject is a tab page.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the object.
PowerTipTex	S tring	Specifies text to be displayed as a PowerTip for the tab when the Tab control's PowerTips property is true. This property applies only when the UserObject is a tab page.
Style	Long	Specifies any additional style bits you want to use to control how the object displays (external user object only).
TabBackColo	o <u>L</u> ong	Specifies the numeric value of the tab background color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property applies only when the UserObject is a tab page. It is not supported on Windows XP because the current XP theme controls the appearance of the tab.
TabTextColo	rLong	Specifies the numeric value of the tab text color: -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
		This property applies only when the UserObject is a tab page.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies tab value of the control within the user object (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the object.

UserObject property	Datatype	Description
<u>Text</u>	String	Specifies the text that displays in the object.
UnitsPerColu	<u>ıInt</u> eger	Specifies the number of PowerBuilder units to be scrolled right or left when a user clicks the left or right arrow in the horizontal scroll bar in a window or user object. The default is 0 (1/100 of the width of the window).
		To make the end of the scroll bar match the content, UnitsPerLine must be set according to the content width. For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerColumn by ColumnsPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window horizontally when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
UnitsPerLine	Integer	Specifies the number of PowerBuilder units to be scrolled up or down when a user clicks the up or down arrow in the vertical scroll bar in a window or user object. The default is 0 (1/100 of the window height).
		To make the end of the scroll bar match the content, UnitsPerLine must be set according to the content length. For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerLine by LinesPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window vertically when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the object is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Object is visible.
		FALSE Object is not visible.
VScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Vertical scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Vertical scroll bar does not display.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the object, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (distance from the left edge of screen) of the object, in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (distance from the top of screen) of the object, in PowerBuilder units.

2.127.2 Events

Table 2.329:

UserObject event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window

UserObject event	Occurs
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the object
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the object
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the object
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the object
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the object

2.127.3 Functions

Table 2.330:

UserObject function	Datatype returned	Description
AddItem	Integer	Adds item to list.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object.
CloseUserOb	j ect eger	Removes the specified user object from view, closes it, and executes its Destructor event.
CreatePage	Integer	Creates a tab page if it has not already been created.
DeleteItem	Integer	Deletes item from list.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the object.
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the object invisible.
InsertItem	Integer	Inserts item in list.
Move	Integer	Places the object in a new location specified by the X and Y arguments.
OpenUserOb	dent eger	Displays the specified user object, making its properties available to scripts.
OpenUserOb	j &nt∛g≀th Parm	Displays the specified user object, making its properties available to scripts, and stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
PageCreated	Boolean	Reports whether a tab page has been created.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance from the left edge of the screen to the pointer, in PowerBuilder units.

UserObject function	Datatype returned	Description
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance from the top of the screen to the pointer, in PowerBuilder units.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the object.
Print	Integer	Prints the object.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the object based on the width and height.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the object.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the object in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Turns on or off automatic redrawing of the object after every change.
Show	Integer	Makes the object visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to the object and executes the script associated with the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object.

2.128 VariableCardinalityDefinition object

A class that provides information about the cardinality of a variable. It reports whether the associated variable is a single instance or an array. If it is an array, you can get information about the dimensions. VariableCardinalityDefinition is used in the VariableDefinition object. It has no events.

2.128.1 Properties

Table 2.331:

VariableCar Definition	Datatype	Description
property		
ArrayDefiniti	oAnfrahyBounds	When the associated variable's Cardinality is BoundedArray!, an array with an ArrayBounds object for each dimension in the array being described.
		When Cardinality is UnboundedArray!, ArrayDefinition has a single ArrayBounds object with LowerBound and UpperBound properties both set to 0. The extent of the array is not part of the class definition.
		Not valid when Cardinality is ScalarType!
Cardinality	VariableCard	in the tydiy preality of the associated variable. Values are:
		ScalarType!
		UnboundedArray!
		BoundedArray!

VariableCar	Datatype	Description
Definition		
property		
ClassDefiniti	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the
		class definition of the object or control.

2.128.2 Functions

Table 2.332:

VariableCar function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.129 VariableDefinition object

A class describing the characteristics of a variable, property, or argument. VariableDefinition is used as a property in the ClassDefinition and ScriptDefinition objects. It has no events.

You cannot start with a variable in your application and get a VariableDefinition object for it. Instead, you access the VariableDefinition instances that are elements of the VariableList array of a ClassDefinition instance or the ArgumentList array of a ScriptDefinition instance.

The VariableDefinition object has information about:

- The variable's name and type
- Whether the variable is a scalar or an array and information about the array
- The variable's initial value, whether the value overrides an ancestor's value, and whether the variable is a constant
- The read and write access levels for the variable
- The scope of the variable (global, shared, instance, local, argument), including whether the variable is an argument and how the argument is passed

2.129.1 Properties

Table 2.333:

VariableDefi property	Datatype	Description
CallingConve	e rAtings CallingCo	Variable Argument! Values are:
		ByReferenceArgument!
		ByValueArgument!

VariableDefi property	Datatype	Description
property		ReadOnlyArgument!
		VarListArgument!
		VarListArgument! applies only to arguments for built-in PowerBuilder functions. They are shown as ellipses in the Browser. For an example, see Section 9.98, "ImportString".
Cardinality	VariableCard	i Galidyi Dad füy iitin on the variable.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
InitialValue	Any	The initial value of the variable. Not valid when Kind is VariableArgument!.
IsConstant	Boolean	Indicates whether the variable is a constant. Not valid when Kind is VariableArgument!.
IsControl	Boolean	Indicates whether the variable is a control defined as a nested class within its parent, rather than an instance variable with a control class as its datatype. Valid only when Kind is VariableInstance!.
IsUserDefine	dBoolean	Indicates whether the variable is a user-defined variable, instead of a property or variable defined by PowerBuilder.
		Always true for local variables. True for arguments if the function was also user-defined.
Kind	VariableKind	The scope of the variable. Values are:
		VariableGlobal!
		VariableShared!
		VariableInstance!
		VariableArgument!
		VariableLocal!
		Global variables are found only in the Application object. Argument and local variables are found only in scripts.
Name	String	The name of the variable.
OverridesAnd	c Bsoort /varlue	Indicates whether the current initial value overrides an ancestor's initial value. Valid only when Kind is VariableInstance!
ReadAccess	VarAccess	The read access to the variable. Values are:
		Private!
		Public!
		Protected!
		System!

VariableDefi property	Datatype	Description
		Not valid when Kind is VariableArgument! or VariableLocal!
TypeInfo	TypeDefinition	Type information for the variable.
WriteAccess	VarAccess	The write access to the variable. Values are:
		Private!
		Public!
		Protected!
		System!
		Not valid for VariableArgument! or VariableLocal!

2.129.2 Functions

Table 2.334:

VariableDefi function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the object
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the object

2.130 VProgressBar control

You can use a progress bar to indicate the progress of a lengthy operation, such as an installation program that copies a large number of files. The VProgressBar control is a vertical rectangle that fills with the system highlight color as the operation progresses.

2.130.1 Properties

Table 2.335:

VProgressBa property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	.Str ing	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.

VProgressBa	Datatype	Description
proporty		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefinition	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
Height	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
MaxPosition	Unsigned Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the progress bar is at the top of the control. This value can be different from the end of the control's range, set with the SetRange function.
		The default value is 100.
MinPosition	Unsigned Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the progress bar is at the bottom of the control. This value can be different from the start of the control's range, set with the SetRange function.
Pointer	String	The default value is 0. Specifies the name of the stock pointer or file containing the
	6	pointer used for the control.
Position	Integer	Specifies the value of the current position within the range of the control (set with the SetRange function). The control uses the range and the current position to determine the percentage of the progress bar to fill with the highlight color.
SetStep	Integer	Specifies a step increment for the progress bar. The default is 10.
SmoothScroll	Boolean	Specifies that the control displays as a smooth scrolling bar instead of the default segmented bar.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.

VProgressI property	Batatype	Description
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.130.2 Events

Table 2.336:

VProgressBar event	Occurs
Clicked	When the left mouse button is pressed on the control
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DoubleClicked	When the left mouse button is double-clicked on the control
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.130.3 Functions

Table 2.337:

VProgressBa function	V I	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control

VProgressBa function	Datatype returned	Description
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
OffsetPos	Integer	Moves the control's current position by the amount specified
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets the focus to the control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRange	Integer	Sets the range of the control. The control uses the range and the current position to determine the percentage of the progress bar to fill with the highlight color
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
StepIt	Integer	Moves the control's current position by the amount specified by the value of the SetStep property
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.131 VScrollBar control

A VScrollBar is a vertical bar with arrows at either end and a scroll box. Typically, you use a VScrollBar control as a slider control for users to specify a value on a continuous scale, or as a way to display information graphically to the user.

Usage note

The VScrollBar control is not the vertical scroll bar that displays to allow the user to scroll through information in a control or window.

2.131.1 Properties

Table 2.338:

VScrollBar property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Strijntgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order of the window. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	om o	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
MaxPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the scroll box is at the bottom of the scroll bar.
MinPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the scroll box is at the top of the scroll bar.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or the file containing the pointer used for the control.
Position	Integer	Specifies the value between MinPosition and MaxPosition that indicates the position of the scroll box.
StdWidth	Boolean	Specifies whether the standard scroll bar width is used for the VScrollBar. Values are:

VScrollBar property	Datatype	Description
		TRUE Standard width used.
		FALSE Standard width not enforced for the control.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
<u>Visible</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.131.2 Events

Table 2.339:

VScrollBar event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LineDown	When the down arrow of the control is clicked
LineUp	When the up arrow of the control is clicked
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Moved	When the scroll box is moved (use the Position property to determine the new location)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.
PageDown	When the open space below the scroll box is clicked
PageUp	When the open space above the scroll box is clicked

VScrollBar event	Occurs
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.131.3 Functions

Table 2.340:

VScrollBar function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control
GetContextSe	e łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the control
Print	Integer	Prints the control
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified control
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

2.132 VTrackBar control

Like a scroll bar, a trackbar is used as a scrolling control, but clicking on the trackbar slider moves it in discrete increments instead of continuously. The VTrackBar control has a series of tick marks to the right of the trackbar channel.

To enable this control to be used properly from the keyboard, you must add code to the LineDown, LineUp, PageDown, and PageUp events. The code you add should change the slider Position property by the appropriate value and then pass the new slider position to the object or objects you associate with the trackbar control. You must code the Moved event if

you want the trackbar control to pass on the slider position after the slider is dragged with a mouse.

Usage note

Use a trackbar when you want the user to select a discrete value. For example, you might use a trackbar to enable a user to select a timer interval or the size of a window.

2.132.1 Properties

Table 2.341:

VTrackBar property	Datatype	Description
AccessibleDe	<u>Striiptģon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	uStering	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	AccessibleRo (enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		TRUE Control moved to top.
		FALSE Control not moved to top.
ClassDefiniti	o P howerObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
<u>DragAuto</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder puts the control automatically into Drag mode. Values are:
		TRUE When the control is clicked, the control is automatically in Drag mode.
		FALSE When the control is clicked, the control is not automatically in Drag mode. You have to manually put the control into Drag mode by using the Drag function.
DragIcon	String	Specifies the name of the stock icon or the file containing the icon you want to display when the user drags the control (the ICO file). The default icon is a box the size of the control.
		When the user drags the control, the icon displays when the control is over an area in which the control can be dropped (a valid drop area). When the control is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the No-Drop icon displays.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
LineSize	Integer	Specifies how far the slider moves in response to keyboard input from the arrow keys.

VTrackBar property	Datatype	Description
MaxPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the slider is at the bottom of the control.
MinPosition	Integer	Specifies the value of the Position property when the slider is at the top of the control.
PageSize	Integer	Specifies how far the slider moves in response to keyboard or mouse input. Setting PageSize to 1 indicates moving 1 increment in the range of values.
Pointer	String	Specifies the name of the stock pointer or file containing the pointer used for the control.
Position	Integer	Specifies a value between MinPosition and MaxPosition specifying the position of the slider.
Slider	Boolean	Specifies whether or not the trackbar contains a slider.
SliderSize	Integer	Specifies the size of the slider on the trackbar.
<u>TabOrder</u>	Integer	Specifies the tab value of the control within the window (0 means the user cannot tab to the control).
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the control.
TickFrequenc	ynteger	Specifies tick mark frequency. Setting TickFrequency to 1 indicates 1 tick mark for each increment in the trackbar range of values.
TickMarks	VTickMarks	Specifies where tickmarks should be displayed. Values are:
	(enumerated)	VTicksOnRight!
		VTicksOnLeft!
		VTicksOnBoth!
		VTicksOnNeither!
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the control is visible. Values are:
		TRUE Control is visible.
		FALSE Control is not visible.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the control, in PowerBuilder units.
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (the distance from the left edge of the window), in PowerBuilder units.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (the distance from the top of the window), in PowerBuilder units.

2.132.2 Events

Table 2.342:

VTrackBar	Occurs
event	
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the control
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the control
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the control
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the control
GetFocus	Just before the control receives focus (before it is selected and becomes active)
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control
LineDown	When the down arrow key is clicked
LineUp	When the up arrow key is clicked
LoseFocus	When the control loses focus (becomes inactive)
Moved	When the slider is moved (use the Position property to determine the new location)
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event
PageDown	When the Page Down key is clicked or when mouse clicks are made below the slider in the trackbar channel
PageUp	When the Page Up key is clicked or when mouse clicks are made above the slider in the trackbar channel
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed on the control

2.132.3 Functions

Table 2.343:

VTrackBar function	Datatype returned	Description
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control.
Drag	Integer	Starts or ends the dragging of the control.
GetContextSo	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
Hide	Integer	Makes the control invisible.
Move	Integer	Moves the control to a specified location.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the left edge of the control.

VTrackBar function	Datatype returned	Description
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance of the pointer from the top of the control.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control.
Print	Integer	Prints the control.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the control.
SelectionRan	gk nteger	Sets a selection range for the trackbar. When you select a range, a blue line is drawn in the channel of the trackbar and two arrows are drawn where the tickmarks are placed to indicate the beginning and end of the selection range.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets the focus to the control.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the control in the front-to-back order of the window.
SetRedraw	Integer	Controls automatic redrawing of the control after each change in its properties.
Show	Integer	Makes the control visible.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control.

2.133 Window control

Windows are the main interface between the user and a PowerBuilder application. Windows can display information, request information from a user, and respond to the user's mouse or keyboard actions.

The definition of a window includes properties, events, and functions. The properties determine the style of the window -- how it looks. The events are actions in the window; when an event is triggered, the associated script is executed. The functions can trigger events in the window, manipulate or change the window, or provide information about the window.

2.133.1 Properties

Every window has a style that determines how it looks to the user. That style is governed by values assigned to the properties of the window.

Table 2.344:

Window	Datatype	Description
property		
AccessibleDe	<u>Striptgon</u>	A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.
AccessibleNa	String	A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item.
AccessibleRo	(enumerated)	Describes what kind of user interface element the control is.

Window	Datatype	Description
property		
AnimationTi	n In teger	Specifies how long an animation specified with the OpenAnimation or CloseAnimation property plays. Value is a positive integer in the range 1 to 5000 milliseconds. The default is 200 milliseconds.
BackColor	Long	Specifies the numerical value of the background color of the window. Values are -2 to 16,777,215. For more information about color, see Section 10.523, "RGB".
Border	Boolean	Specifies whether the window has a border. Values are:
		• TRUE Has a border.
		• FALSE Does not have a border.
BringToTop	Boolean	Specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the window to the top of the front-to-back order. Values are:
		• TRUE Moves to the top.
		• FALSE Does not move to the top.
Center	Boolean	Causes the window to be centered when it is created or sized. Values are:
		• TRUE Window is centered.
		FALSE Window is not centered.
ClassDefiniti	om/werObject	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClientEdge	Boolean	Specifies whether the client area of the window appears sunken within the frame.
		• TRUE Client area appears sunken.
		• FALSE Client area does not appear sunken.
CloseAnimat		nStieniSteplean optional animation effect that displays when the window closes.
ColumnsPerF	dgteger	Specifies the number of columns on a page. The default is 0 (10 columns per page). For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows</u> and <u>user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerColumn by ColumnsPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window horizontally when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
ContextHelp	Boolean	When WindowType = Response!, this property specifies whether the small question mark button appears in the title bar. The question mark button can fire the Help event on the control that is clicked next.

Window	Datatype	Description
property		 TRUE Question mark button is displayed in title bar next to minimize button in Response windows. FALSE Question mark button is not displayed.
Control[]	WindowObje	Contains the controls in the window. You should not change the contents of this array in a script.
ControlMenu	Boolean	Specifies whether the Control Menu box displays in the title bar. Values are: • TRUE Displays in title bar.
		• FALSE Does not display in title bar.
Enabled	Boolean	Specifies whether the window is enabled (can send and receive messages). Values are:
		 TRUE Can send/receive messages. FALSE Cannot send/receive messages.
<u>Height</u>	Integer	Specifies the height of the window, in PowerBuilder units.
	C	You cannot resize minimized or maximized windows at runtime.
HScrollBar	Boolean	Specifies whether a horizontal scroll bar displays in the window. Values are: • TRUE A scroll bar displays. • FALSE A scroll bar does not display.
Icon	String	Specifies a stock icon or an ICO file that displays when the window is minimized.
		The default value is AppIcon!, which is the icon selected for the Application object. If no icon is selected for the Application object, the Windows logo is used.
LinesPerPage	Integer	Specifies the number of lines on a page. The default is 0 (10 lines per page). For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerLine by LinesPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window vertically when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
MaxBox	Boolean	Specifies whether a Maximize Box displays in the title bar. Values are:
		TRUE Maximize Box displays.

Window property	Datatype	Description
		FALSE Maximize Box does not display.
MenuID	Menu	Specifies the ID of a menu.
		PowerBuilder uses MenuID internally. To change the menu for a window from a script, use the ChangeMenu function; to display a pop-up menu, use the PopMenu function. In both functions, enter the fully qualified name to identify the menu or Menu object.
<u>MenuName</u>	String	Specifies the name of a menu.
		PowerBuilder uses MenuName internally. To change the menu for a window from a script, use the ChangeMenu function; to display a pop-up menu, use the PopMenu function. In both functions, enter the fully qualified name to identify the menu or Menu object.
MinBox	Boolean	Specifies whether a Minimize Box displays in the title bar. Values are:
		TRUE Minimize Box displays.
		• FALSE Minimize Box does not display.
<u>OpenAnimat</u>		nation effect that displays when the window opens.
PaletteWindo	,	When WindowType = Popup!, this property specifies that the window has an appearance appropriate for small palette windows that display over the application.
		• TRUE Pop-up window displays as the topmost window with a smaller Close button in the title bar and no Minimize or Maximize buttons.
		• FALSE No change in appearance.
<u>Pointer</u>	String	Specifies the name of the file containing the pointer that is used for the window.
Resizable	Boolean	Specifies whether the window is resizable. Values are:
		TRUE Window is resizable.
		• FALSE Window is not resizable.
RightToLeft	Boolean	Specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:
		TRUE Characters display in right-to-left order.

Window property	Datatype	Description
r r y		FALSE Characters display in left-to-right order.
Tag	String	Specifies the tag value assigned to the window.
Tabs	Enumerated	Properties for the shapes of the tabs:
		windowdocktabslanted!
		windowdocktabrectangular!
		windowdocktabsingleslanted!
		Location of the close button on a tab, if any:
		• windowdocktabclosebuttonnone!
		windowdocktabclosebuttononactive!
		• windowdocktabclosebuttonshared!
		Colors of tabs:
		gradients are available
		default to theme colors is available
		Icon and Scroll Button for tabbed windows or documents:
		TabbedWindowTabIcon / TabbedDocumentTabIcon
		TabbedWindowTabScroll / TabbedDocumentTabScroll
Tabbed Window and	Enumerated	Colors of tabbed window and document title bars:
Document Title Bars		TabbedWindowActiveTabBackColor / TabbedDocumentActiveTabBackColor
		TabbedWindowActiveTabGradientBackColor / TabbedDocumentActiveTabGradientBackColor
		TabbedWindowActiveTabTextColor / TabbedDocumentActiveTabTextColor
		TabbedWindowInActiveTabBackColor / TabbedDocumentInActiveTabBackColor
		TabbedWindowInActiveTabGradientBackColor / TabbedDocumentInActiveTabGradientBackColor
		TabbedWindowInActiveTabTextColor / TabbedDocumentInActiveTabTextColor

Window	Datatype	Description
property		TabbedWindowMouseoverTabBackColor / TabbedDocumentMouseoverTabBackColor
		TabbedWindowMouseoverTabGradientBackColor / TabbedDocumentMouseoverTabGradientBackColor
		TabbedWindowMouseoverTabTextColor / TabbedDocumentMouseoverTabTextColor
		TabbedWindowTabsAreaColor / TabbedDocumentTabsAreaColor
		TabbedWindowTabsAreaGradientColor / TabbedDocumentTabsAreaGradientColor
		TabbedWindowTabsAreaGradientVert / TabbedDocumentTabsAreaGradientVert
		Title bar states:
		TitleBarActiveColor / TitleBarInActiveColor
		TitleBarActiveGradientColor / TitleBarInActiveGradientColor
		TitleBarActiveGradientVert / TitleBarInActiveGradientVert
		TitleBarActiveaTextColor / TitleBarInActiveTextColor
<u>Title</u>	String	Specifies the text of the window title.
<u>TitleBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a title bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Title bar displays.
		FALSE No title bar displays.
		The user can move a window only if it has a title bar.
ToolbarAlig	n nTeol barAlign	when MDI frame window, specifies where the toolbar displays.
	(enumerated)	Values are:
		AlignAtBottom!
		AlignAtLeft!
		AlignAtRight!
		AlignAtTop!
		• Floating!

Window property	Datatype	Description
ToolbarHeigh	1Integer	In an MDI frame window, specifies the height of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar.
ToolbarVisib	lB oolean	 In an MDI frame window, specifies whether the toolbar displays. Values are: TRUE Toolbar displays. FALSE Toolbar does not display.
ToolbarWidth	Integer	In an MDI frame window, specifies the width of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar.
ToolbarX	Integer	In an MDI frame window, specifies the X coordinate (distance from the left edge of the window, in PowerBuilder units) of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar.
ToolbarY	Integer	In an MDI frame window, specifies the Y coordinate (distance from the top of the window, in PowerBuilder units) of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar.
Transparency	Integer	Specifies the transparency of a window. Value is a percentage in the range 0 (opaque) to 100 (completely transparent).
<u>UnitsPerColu</u>	<u>ılmt</u> eger	Specifies the number of PowerBuilder units to be scrolled right or left when a user clicks the left or right arrow in the horizontal scroll bar in a window or user object. The default is 0 (1/100 of the width of the window). To make the end of the scroll bar match the content,
		UnitsPerLine must be set according to the content width. For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerColumn by ColumnsPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window horizontally when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
UnitsPerLine	Integer	Specifies the number of PowerBuilder units to be scrolled up or down when a user clicks the up or down arrow in the vertical scroll bar in a window or user object. The default is 0 (1/100 of the window height).
		To make the end of the scroll bar match the content, UnitsPerLine must be set according to the content length. For information, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u> .
		PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerLine by LinesPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window vertically when the user clicks in the scroll bar.
Visible	Boolean	Specifies whether the window is visible. Values are:
		• TRUE Window is visible.

Window	Datatype	Description
property		
		FALSE Window is not visible.
<u>VScrollBar</u>	Boolean	Specifies whether a vertical scroll bar displays. Values are:
		TRUE Scroll bar displays.
		FALSE Scroll bar does not display.
Width	Integer	Specifies the width of the window, in PowerBuilder units.
		You cannot resize minimized or maximized windows at runtime.
WindowDocl	W itidow Docl	Mitidas DockOptions are for child windows to specify how
	(enumerated)	they can be opened:
		WindowDockOptionAll!
		WindowDockOptionTabbedDocumentOnly!
		WindowDockOptionDockedOnly!
		WindowDockOptionFloatOnly!
		WindowDockOptionTabbedDocumentAndDockedOnly!
		WindowDockOptionTabbedDocumentAndFloatOnly!
		WindowDockOptionDockedAndFloatOnly!
WindowDocl		Spateifies the docking behaviors for the sheets that open in the MDI (multiple document interface) frame window. Values are:
		WindowDockStateDocked!
		WindowDockStateFloating!
		WindowDockStateTabbedDocument!
		WindowDockStateTabbedWindow!
WindowState		Specifies the state in which you want to run a window. Values
	(enumerated)	are:
		Maximized!
		Minimized!
		• Normal!
		Do not change the WindowState property in the Open event of a window opened as a sheet.

Window property	Datatype	Description
	WindowType	Specifies the type of window. Values are:
	(enumerated)	• Child!
		• Main!
		• MDI!
		• MDIHelp!
		• MDIDock!
		MDIDockHelp!
		• Popup!
		• Response!
X	Integer	Specifies the X position (distance from left edge of screen) of the window, in PowerBuilder units.
		The values of the X coordinates in all windows except child windows are measured from the left side of the screen. In child windows, they are measured from the left side of the workspace of the parent window.
		The workspace is the area between the sides of the window (not including the thickness of the frame, toolbar, or scroll bar, if any) and the top and bottom of the window (not including the thickness of the border or the title bar, menu bar, toolbar, or scroll bar, if any).
		You cannot move a maximized window at runtime.
Y	Integer	Specifies the Y position (distance from the top of the screen) of the window, in PowerBuilder units.
		The values of the Y coordinates in all windows except child windows are measured from the top of the screen. In child windows, they are measured from the top of the workspace of the parent window.
		The workspace is the area between the sides of the window (not including the thickness of the frame, toolbar, or scroll bar, if any) and the top and bottom of the window (not including the thickness of the border or the title bar, menu bar, toolbar, or scroll bar, if any).
		You cannot move a maximized window at runtime.

2.133.2 Events

Scripts for events in a window and the controls in the window determine how the window behaves. Scripts control the action that is initiated when an event occurs within the window.

Table 2.345:

Window event	Occurs
Activate	Just before the window becomes active. When an Activate event occurs, the first object in the tab order for the window gets focus. If there are no enabled objects in the window, the window gets focus.
Clicked	When the user clicks in an unoccupied area of the window (any area with no visible, enabled object).
Close	When the window is closed.
CloseQuery	When you remove a window from display (close it). When you close a window, PowerBuilder triggers the CloseQuery event and then inspects the value of Message.ReturnValue. If the Message.ReturnValue is 1, the window cannot be closed.
	Closing any window causes PowerBuilder to close all child and popup windows that it opened, and closing an MDI Frame window causes PowerBuilder to close all sheet windows within it. Any window thus closed can set Message.ReturnValue to cancel the close operation.
Deactivate	When the window becomes inactive.
DoubleClicked	When the user double-clicks in an unoccupied area of the window (any area with no visible, enabled object).
DragDrop	When a dragged control is dropped on the window.
DragEnter	When a dragged control enters the window.
DragLeave	When a dragged control leaves the window.
DragWithin	When a dragged control is within the window.
Help	When the user presses the F1 key or drags the context help button (question mark) from the title bar to a menu item or control.
Hide	Just before the window is hidden.
HotLinkAlarm	After a Dynamic Data Exchange (DDE) server application has sent new (changed) data and the client DDE application has received it.
Key	When the user presses a key and the insertion point is not in a RichTextEdit or DataWindow edit control.
MouseDown	When the user presses the left mouse button in an unoccupied area of the window (any area with no visible, enabled object).
MouseMove	When the pointer is moved within the window.
MouseUp	When the user releases the left mouse button in an unoccupied area of the window (any area with no visible, enabled object).
Open	When a script executes the Open function for a window. The event occurs after the window has been opened but before it is displayed.
Other	When a Windows message occurs that is not a PowerBuilder event.

Window event	Occurs
RButtonDown	When the right mouse button is pressed in an unoccupied area of the window (any area with no visible, enabled object).
RemoteExec	When a DDE client application has sent a command.
RemoteHotLinkS	When a DDE client application wants to start a hot link.
RemoteHotLinkS	When a DDE client application wants to end a hot link.
RemoteRequest	When a DDE client application requests data.
RemoteSend	When a DDE client application has sent data.
Resize	When the user or a script opens or resizes a window.
Show	When a script executes the Show function for this window. The event occurs just before the window is displayed.
SystemKey	When the user presses Alt or Alt plus another key, except when the insertion point is in a DataWindow control or RichTextEdit control.
Timer	When a specified number of seconds elapses after the Timer function has been called.
ToolbarMoved	In an MDI frame window, when the user moves the FrameBar or SheetBar.

2.133.3 Functions

The following functions can trigger events in a window, manipulate or change a window, or provide information about a window.

PowerScript system functions

You can also use the PowerScript system functions in scripts for a window. For a list of the PowerScript system functions, see the Browser.

Opening and closing a window

Use the Open function to open a window and the Close function to close a window. Open and Close are system functions and are not listed here.

Table 2.346:

Window function	Datatype returned	Description
ArrangeShee	Integer	Arranges the sheets or icons in the specified MDI frame window.
ChangeMenu	Integer	Changes the menu associated with a window.
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the window.
CloseChanne	lInteger	Closes a DDE channel.
CloseUserOb	j e cteger	Removes the specified user object from view, closes it, and executes its Destructor event.

Window function	Datatype returned	Description
CommitDock	ilngeger	After all persisted sheets are opened, this function arranges them and makes them visible.
ExecRemote	Integer	Asks a DDE server application to execute the specified command.
GetActiveSho	W indow	Returns the currently active sheet in the specified MDI frame window.
GetCommand	l DiDe ger	Obtains the command sent by the client application when your application is a DDE server.
GetCommand	l DD @Origin	When called by the DDE server application, obtains the application name parameter used by the DDE client sending the command.
GetContextSe	łwieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the specified service.
GetDataDDE	Integer	Obtains data sent from another DDE application and stores it in the specified string variable.
GetDataDDE	Omigiger	Determines the origin of data from a hot-linked DDE server application or a DDE client application and, if successful, stores the application's DDE identifiers in the specified strings.
GetFirstSheet	Window	Returns the top sheet in the MDI frame.
GetNextShee	tWindow	Returns the sheet that is behind the specified sheet in the MDI frame.
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object.
GetRemote	Integer	Asks a DDE server application to provide data and stores that data in the specified variable.
GetToolbar	Integer	Gets the values of the Visible, Alignment, and Title properties of the toolbar.
GetToolbarPo	Integer	Gets position information (coordinates) for a floating toolbar.
Hide	Integer	Makes the window invisible.
LoadDocking	Snae ger	Loads two arrays of equal size: type names of persisted sheets and the corresponding IDs.
Move	Integer	Places the window in a new location specified by the X and Y arguments.
		The Move function does not move a maximized or minimized window.
OpenChannel	Long	Opens a channel to a DDE server application.
OpenSheet	Integer	Opens a sheet within an MDI (multiple document interface) frame window and creates a menu item for selecting the sheet on the specified menu.

Window function	Datatype returned	Description
OpenSheetA	Dutegar ent	Opens a sheet as a document within an MDI frame window for dockable windows.
OpenSheetDe	o cktæ ger	Opens a sheet docked in a specified position within an MDI frame window for dockable windows.
OpenSheetFr	o lmtDget kingSta	Appens one or more persisted sheets within an MDI frame window for dockable windows.
OpenSheetIn	Tatt Ege rup	Opens a sheet in a tab group within an MDI frame window for dockable windows.
OpenSheetW	i lnRegen	Opens a sheet within an MDI (multiple document interface) frame window and creates a menu item for selecting the sheet on the specified menu, as OpenSheet does and also stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
OpenSheetW	i thRegen AsDoo	for dockable windows and stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
OpenSheetW	i lhRegen Docke	Opens a sheet docked in a specified position within an MDI frame window for dockable windows and stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
OpenSheetW	i ihRegen FromI	Ocking Stater more persisted sheets within an MDI frame window for dockable windows and stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
OpenSheetW	i lhRegen InTab	Open s a sheet in a tab group within an MDI frame window for dockable windows and stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
OpenUserOb	jent eger	Displays the specified user object, making its properties available to scripts.
OpenUserOb	j ent Vgith Parm	Displays the specified user object, making its properties available to scripts, and stores a parameter in the system's Message object.
ParentWindo	wWindow	Returns the parent window of the window.
PointerX	Integer	Returns the distance from the left edge of the screen to the pointer.
PointerY	Integer	Returns the distance from the top of the screen to the pointer.
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for the window.
Print	Integer	Prints the window.
Resize	Integer	Changes the size of the window to the size specified in the width and height arguments.
		The Resize function does not resize a minimized or maximized window.

Window function	Datatype returned	Description
RespondRem	dteteger	Sends a DDE message indicating whether the command or data received from a remote DDE application was acceptable.
SaveDocking	Statteger	Stores the MDI state in the registry.
SetDataDDE	Integer	Sends data to a DDE client application when PowerBuilder is acting as a DDE server.
SetFocus	Integer	Sets focus to the specified window.
SetMicroHelp	Integer	Sets the MicroHelp text in the specified MDI frame window.
SetPosition	Integer	Specifies the position of the window in the front-to-back order of the application.
SetRedraw	Integer	Turns on or off automatic redrawing of the window after every change.
SetRemote	Integer	Asks a DDE server application to accept data and store it in the specified location.
SetSheetID	Integer	Sets the unique identifier for an open sheet.
SetToolbar	Integer	Sets the values of the Visible, Alignment, and Title properties of the toolbar.
SetToolbarPo	Integer	Sets the position of a fixed toolbar.
Show	Integer	Makes the window visible.
StartHotLink	Integer	Establishes a hot link with a DDE server application so that PowerBuilder is notified immediately of any changes in the specified data.
StartServerD	Dh teger	Establishes your application as a DDE server.
StopHotLink	Integer	Terminates a hot link with a DDE server application.
StopServerDl	Dicteger	Causes your application to stop acting as a DDE server application.
TriggerEvent	Integer	Sends an event to a window control and executes the script associated with the event.
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the window.
WorkSpaceH	e ligte tger	Returns the height of the workspace of the specified window.
		The workspace is the area between the sides of the window (not including the thickness of the frame, toolbar, or scroll bar, if any) and the top and bottom of the window (not including the thickness of the border or the title bar, menu bar, toolbar, or scroll bar, if any).
WorkSpaceW	Idtb ger	Returns the width of the workspace of the specified window.
WorkSpaceX	Integer	Returns the distance from the left edge of the screen to the left edge of the workspace of the specified window.

	Datatype returned	Description
WorkSpaceY	Integer	Returns the distance from the top of the screen to the top of the workspace of the specified window.

2.134 WSConnection object (Deprecated)

The WSConnection object lets you set user-related, session-related, and authentication information when you connect to and process data from a Web service data source.

2.134.1 Properties

Table 2.347:

WSConnecti property	Datatype	Description
Authenticatio	nSW finde	Specifies the authentication mode you want to use. This can be "basic" or "digest". These AuthenticationMode values are described on the Microsoft MSDN Web site at http://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/aa833874(VS.80).aspx.
ClassDefinition	o Prower Object	An object of type PowerObject containing information about the class definition of the object or control.
ClientCertific	ættFiile	The name of the certificate file or files you want to use to connect to a Web service. The string value could include local files with a full path and URLs to remote certificate files. You must use a semicolon as a separator for multiple files.
Endpoint	String	Specifies a URL for the remote Web Service and tells the Web Service engine where the Web service resides. If the endpoint is not set, the Web Service engine uses the default endpoint embedded in the WSDL file.
Password	String	Specifies the password of the user who will consume the Web service.
ProxyServerH	l&titiN gme	Specifies the name of the proxy server host if the client machine is behind a firewall.
ProxyServerF	Satsing rd	Specifies a password for the current user if a proxy server requests a user name and password. If the client machine is directly connected to the Internet, this property does not need to be set.
ProxyServerF	W ttnteger	Specifies the port number of a proxy server if the client machine is behind a firewall.
ProxyServerU	J S¢riN gme	Specifies the user name for a proxy server if the client machine is behind a firewall. If the client machine is directly connected to the Internet, this property does not need to be set.
Timeout	Long	Specifies the timeout period in seconds when invoking the Web service. The default value is 0, which does not set a timeout

WSConnecti property	Datatype	Description
		period for the Web service connection on the client side. (The Web service might still have a timeout value on the server side.)
UserDomain	String	Specifies the domain the user is working in. This property is used together with UserName and Password properties for a fully qualified user identification.
UserName	String	Specifies the name of the user who will consume the Web service.
UseWindows	IBtoglexte dAut	Windows authentication. Values are:
		TRUE The application uses Windows authentication.
		FALSE The application does not use Windows authentication.
		If this option is set to true, you do not need to set the UserName, Password, or UserDomain properties.

2.134.2 Events

Table 2.348:

WSConnection event	Occurs
Constructor	Immediately before the Open event occurs in the window
Destructor	Immediately after the Close event occurs in the window

2.134.3 Functions

Table 2.349:

WSConnecti function	Datatype returned	Description
		Determs the name assigned to the control
ClassName	String	Returns the name assigned to the control
GetContextSe	e łnieg er	Creates a reference to a context-specific instance of the
		specified service
GetParent	PowerObject	Returns a reference to the name of the parent object
PostEvent	Boolean	Adds an event to the end of the message queue for control
TriggerEvent	Integer	Triggers a specified event in the control and executes the script for the event
TypeOf	Object	Returns the type of the control

3 Property Descriptions and Usage

About this chapter

This chapter lists the properties for PowerBuilder controls. For properties specific to controls in DataWindow objects, see Section 3.2, "Controls in a DataWindow and their properties".

Contents

The properties are listed alphabetically.

3.1 Accelerator

Applies to

Controls that accept user input, including list boxes, MultiLineEdit, SingleLineEdit, ListView, EditMask, and TreeView

Description

Accelerator keys allow users to select an item (that is, change focus) with a keystroke rather than the mouse. An underlined character in the item's name or label tells the user what key to press. The user presses it in combination with the Alt key. If the currently selected control is not an editable control (such as a SingleLineEdit, MultiLineEdit, ListBox, or DropDownListBox), you need only press the accelerator key.

Accelerator keys are different from shortcut keys, which are defined key combinations that provide a quick way to accomplish certain tasks.

Table 3.1:

PowerBuilder term	Windows term
accelerator key	mnemonic access character
shortcut key	shortcut key or accelerator key

Usage

In a painter

To select a character as an accelerator key

• Type the character into the Accelerator box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

For example, to set m as the accelerator, type m in the box.

Accelerators for unlabeled controls

To show the user what accelerator key to use for an unlabeled control or box, define StaticText to act as a label. Include an ampersand (&) before the character you want underlined. For example, in the StaticText control's General page, set the Text property to a value like Edit &Maintenance Data for a drop-down list that has m as an accelerator key. If you want an ampersand to display in the text, type two ampersands, and if you want an ampersand to display and serve as the accelerator key, type three ampersands.

In scripts

The Accelerator property is an integer consisting of the ASCII value of the accelerator key. Both of the following lines set m as the accelerator character for a MultiLineEdit control:

```
mle_1.Accelerator=77
mle_1.Accelerator = ASC("M")
```

3.2 AccessibleDescription

Applies to

Windows and controls that inherit from DragObject

Description

A description of the control and/or its purpose for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users. You do not need to supply a description if the AccessibleName and AccessibleRole properties adequately describe the control, as in the case of a button with the label OK. You should provide a description for a picture or report control.

Usage

In a painter

On the Other page in the Properties view, type a description in the AccessibleDescription text box.

In a script

The Accessible Description property takes a string value. The following statement sets the AccessibleDescription property for a command button in a Window:

```
cb_1.accessibledescription = "Deletes selected text"
```

3.3 AccessibleName

Applies to

Windows and controls that inherit from DragObject

Description

A label that briefly describes the control, such as the text in a button or the name of a menu item, for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users.

Usage

In a painter

On the Other page in the Properties view, type a name in the AccessibleName text box.

In a script

The AccessibleName property takes a string value. The following statement sets the AccessibleName property for a command button in a Window:

```
cb_1.accessiblename = "Delete"
```

3.4 AccessibleRole

Applies to

Windows and controls that inherit from DragObject

Description

A description of the kind of user interface element that the control is, for use by accessibility tools such as readers for visually impaired users. The description is a member of the AccessibleRole enumerated variable. The default role is defaultrole! and is used when the role cannot be determined. The following table lists the appropriate settings for PowerBuilder controls.

Table 3.2: AccessibleRole values for PowerBuilder controls

Control	AccessibleRole
Animation	animationrole!
CheckBox	checkbuttonrole!
CommandButton	pushbuttonrole!
DataWindow	clientrole!
DropDownListBox	comboboxrole!
DropDownPictureListBox	comboboxrole!
EditMask	textrole!
Graph	diagramrole!
GroupBox	groupingrole!
HProgressBar, VProgressBar	progressbarrole!
HScrollBar, VScrollBar	scrollbarrole!
HTrackBar, VTrackBar	sliderrole!
ListBox	listrole!
ListView	listrole!
MonthCalendar	clientrole!
MultiLineEdit	textrole!
Picture	graphicrole!
PictureButton	pushbuttonrole!
PictureHyperLink	linkrole!
PictureListBox	listrole!
RadioButton	radiobuttonrole!
RichTextEdit	clientrole!
SingleLineEdit	textrole!
StaticHyperLink	linkrole!
StaticText	statictextrole!
Tab	clientrole!
TabPage	clientrole!
TreeView	outlinerole!

Usage

In a painter

On the Other page in the Properties view, select a role from the AccessibleRole drop-down list.

In a script

The AccessibleRole property takes a value of the AccessibleRole enumerated variable. The following statement sets the AccessibleRole property for a command button in a Window:

cb_1.accessiblerole = pushbuttonrole!

3.5 Activation

Applies to

OLE controls

Description

Specifies how the user activates the control. Choices are:

Double Click

When the user double-clicks on the control, the server application is activated.

Get Focus

When the user clicks or tabs to the control, the server is activated. If you also write a script for the GetFocus event, do not call MessageBox or any function that results in a change in focus.

• Manual

The control can be activated programmatically only with the Activate function.

During development, you activate the object in the Window painter.

Usage

In a painter

To specify how the object is activated:

• Select the desired setting from the Activation drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

The control can always be activated programmatically, regardless of the Activation setting.

In scripts

The Activation property takes a value of the omActivation enumerated datatype.

This example changes the Activation property type to ActivateOnGetFocus! for the object ole_1:

ole_1.Activation = ActivateOnGetFocus!

3.6 AdditionalOpts

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies a command line option or a list of command line options for the dbmlsync synchronization command.

For information about available command line options, you can click the Usage button next to the Additional Options text box on the MobiLink Client Additional Options page of the MobiLink wizard, or you could open the chapter on synchronization parameters in the MobiLink Clients book.

Usage

In a painter

To specify additional command line options

• On the Settings page of the object's Properties view, type the options you want in the Additional Options text box.

In scripts

You can include a string with multiple options to be added to a synchronization call.

For example, the following line sets log file verbosity for all messages except connection information and the MobiLink password (-v+), allows you to run in a minimized window (-q), and closes the window on completion of synchronization (-k option):

```
mySync_1.AdditionalOpts = '-v+ -q -k'
```

3.7 Alignment

Applies to

Controls that display text

Description

For most controls that display text, the alignment property specifies the alignment of all the text in the control. Text can be centered, left aligned, or right aligned.

For RichTextEdit controls, each paragraph has its own alignment setting, including Center, Left, Right, and Justify.

Usage

In a painter

To specify text alignment for controls other than RichTextEdit:

• On the General page of the control's Properties view, select an alignment from the Alignment drop-down list, or click the Left, Center, and Right alignment buttons in the StyleBar. Use the StyleBar to set the alignment for several selected objects at once.

To align text in paragraphs in RichTextEdit controls:

- 1. Select text in the paragraphs to be aligned.
- 2. Right-click on the selection to display the text object's property sheet, and select the alignment setting.

To allow alignment at runtime (RichTextEdit only):

• On the Document tab page of the control's Properties view, check either the Toolbar or the PopMenu check box.

At runtime, users select the text to align with the mouse and then right-click on the text to invoke a pop-up menu, or select an alignment button on the StyleBar.

In scripts

The datatype of the Alignment property is the Alignment enumerated datatype. It has four values: Center!, Left!, and Right! apply to all controls with text; Justify! applies only to RichTextEdit controls.

For example, the following line specifies center alignment for a MultiLineEdit control:

mle_1.Alignment = Center!

3.8 AllowEdit

Applies to

DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, and DatePicker controls

Description

When AllowEdit is enabled in a drop-down list, the user can edit the selection in the text box of the control. If AllowEdit is not enabled, the user can only make a selection from the list and cannot edit the selection.

In a DatePicker control, the user can modify the date in the control by picking a date from the drop-down calendar or by modifying the selected part of the date (year, month, or day) in the control if the format of the part is numeric. When AllowEdit is enabled, pressing F2 or placing the cursor in the control selects all the text in the control for editing. When the control loses focus, the text in the control reverts to its original value and the UserString event is fired. In the UserString event script, you can parse the string entered by the user and change the value in the control if the string passes validation.

To change the date by modifying one part of the date at a time when AllowEdit is enabled, the user can tab into the control and use the arrow keys to move between parts of the date.

When a part of the date is changed, the change is retained if it is valid. If the user enters a year, month, or day that is out of the range specified for the control, that value reverts to its previous value. If the user enters a day that is greater than the number of days in the month in the control, or a month greater than 12, the second digit entered is retained in the control.

Usage

In a painter

To allow editing:

• On the General page of the control's Properties view, select the AllowEdit check box.

In scripts

The AllowEdit property takes a boolean value.

This example sets AllowEdit for a DropDownListBox:

ddlb_1.AllowEdit = TRUE

3.9 AnimationName

Applies to

Animation controls

Description

Specifies the name of the AVI file that contains the animation to be associated with the Animation control. The AVI file must be an uncompressed file or a file compressed using run-length encoding (BI_RLE8). You cannot use an AVI file that has a sound channel; it will not display in the control.

Usage

In a painter

To specify an AVI file for the control:

• Click the browse (...) button next to the AnimationName field to select a file.

In scripts

The AutoPlay property takes a string value. The following line sets the AnimationName property for a control called am_1:

am_1.AnimationName = "C:\work\avifiles\Search.AVI"

3.10 AnimationTime

Applies to

Window controls

Description

Specifies the time in milliseconds that an opening or closing animation effect associated with a window takes to complete.

Usage

Use the AnimationTime property to control the number of milliseconds an opening or closing animation takes to execute. The value must be a positive integer in the range 1 to 5000 milliseconds. The default value is 200 milliseconds. While an opening or closing animation executes, the application waits for it to complete, so in general you should keep the animation time short.

In a painter

To set the AnimationTime property on a window:

• Select or type a value in the AnimationTime spin control on the General page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The following statement sets the AnimationTime property for the w_splash window to 500 milliseconds:

```
w_splash.AnimationTime = 300
```

See also

CloseAnimation

OpenAnimation

3.11 AuthenticateParms

Applies to

MLSync and SyncParm objects

Description

Specifies a comma-separated list of authentication parameters for the remote database connection to the MobiLink synchronization server. If you set the AuthenticateParms property on an MLSync object, or if you call SetParm after setting the AuthenticateParms property on a SyncParm object, PowerBuilder inserts a -ap option with the AuthenticateParms value in the MLSync object's subsequent Synchronize call.

Usage

At design time, you can enter AuthenticateParms values on the General tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter AuthenticateParms values on the Subscriptions tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can modify AuthenticateParms values in PowerScript directly on the synchronization object or indirectly, by setting it on the SyncParms object before calling SetParm.

```
SyncParms Parms
MLSync mySync
long rc
mySync = CREATE MLSync
Parms.MLUser = '50'
Parms.MLPass = 'xyz123'
Parms.AuthenticateParams = 'param1, param2, param3'
mySync.SetParm(Parms)
rc = mySync.Synchronize()
```

3.12 AutoArrange

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

When AutoArrange is enabled, PowerBuilder arranges icons automatically in large and small icon views.

Usage

In a painter

To enable automatic icon arrangement:

• Select the AutoArrange check box on the General page of the ListView control's Properties view.

In scripts

The AutoArrange property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies automatic arrangement of icons in a ListView.

lv_1.AutoArrange = TRUE

3.13 AutoHScroll

Applies to

DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, EditMask, MultiLineEdit, SingleLineEdit controls

Description

When automatic horizontal scrolling is enabled, text in the control scrolls left or right automatically when the user enters or deletes data. When automatic horizontal scrolling is not enabled, text does not scroll left or right as the user changes data, and data that exceeds the width of the line provided is ignored.

Usage

In a painter

To enable automatic horizontal scrolling:

Select the AutoHScroll check box on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The AutoHScroll property takes a boolean value.

For example, this statement enables automatic right and left scrolling as the user enters or modifies data in the edit box of a DropDownListBox control:

ddlb_1.AutoHScroll = TRUE

This property cannot be set at runtime for EditMask controls.

3.14 Automatic

Applies to

CheckBox and RadioButton controls

Description

When the Automatic property is enabled, the state of the control changes automatically when the user selects it. Typically, the state toggles between selected and not selected. For check boxes, if the ThreeState property has been enabled, the state of the control also toggles to a third state.

When this property is enabled, a mark is displayed in the control when the control's state is selected and no mark is displayed when the control's state is not selected. For check boxes, if the ThreeState property is enabled, a grayed out mark is displayed for the third state.

Usage

In a painter

To enable automatic state change:

Select the Automatic check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Automatic property takes a boolean value. This example sets a CheckBox so that its state changes each time it is selected.

cbx_1.Automatic = TRUE

3.15 AutoPlay

Applies to

Animation controls

Description

When the AutoPlay property is enabled, the AVI clip starts playing as soon as the animation control is opened.

Usage

In a painter

To start the animation automatically:

Select the Autoplay check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The AutoPlay property takes a boolean value. The following line sets the AutoPlay property to true:

am_1.AutoPlay = TRUE

3.16 AutoReadData

Applies to

HTTPClient objects

Description

When the AutoReadData property is enabled, the program reads the response body automatically. Values are:

TRUE – The program reads the response body automatically.

FALSE – The program will not read the response body automatically.

Usage

In a painter

To read the response body automatically:

• Select the AutoReadData check box on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The AutoReadData property takes a boolean value. The following line sets the AutoReadData property to true:

```
Integer li_rc
Blob lblb_NextData
HttpClient lnv_HttpClient
lnv_HttpClient = Create HttpClient
// Not to read data automatically
lnv_HttpClient.AutoReadData = false
// Send GET request
li_rc = lnv_HttpClient.SendRequest("GET", "http://demo.appeon.com/PB/webapi_client/
employee/102/photo")
// Receive large data
if li_rc = 1 and lnv_HttpClient.GetResponseStatusCode() = 200 then
do while true
 li_rc = lnv_HttpClient.ReadData(lblb_NextData, 1024*16)
 if li_rc = 0 then exit // Finish receiving data
 if li_rc = -1 then exit // Error occurs
loop
end if
```

3.17 AutoScale

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

AutoScale is a property of the Category and Value grAxis objects that are part of graph controls. There are three grAxis objects: Category, Series, and Values.

Autoscale specifies whether or not to scale the axis of the Graph automatically to the minimum and maximum values for the data.

Usage

In a painter

To enable autoscaling:

1. Display the Axis tab page on the graph's Properties view.

- 2. Select the desired Axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Select the AutoScale check box, if it is enabled.

AutoScale is enabled only if it is applicable to the selected graph type and axis.

In scripts

The AutoScale property takes a boolean value.

The following line turns off autoscaling for the Values axis in the Graph gr_emp.

gr_emp.Values.AutoScale = FALSE

3.18 AutoSize

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls and grDispAttr objects within Graph controls

Description

For MonthCalendar controls, when the AutoSize property is on, the calendar is sized to hold a single month. If you change other properties that affect size, such as TextSize and TodaySection, the calendar resizes automatically both at design time and runtime.

For grDispAttr objects, the AutoSize property allows PowerBuilder to change the font size of the text object automatically according to the amount of text being displayed. If automatic sizing is not enabled, you must set the text size.

Usage

In a painter

To enable automatic sizing of calendar controls:

Select the AutoSize check box on the General page in the Properties view.

To enable automatic sizing of text objects in graphs:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Select a text object from the Text Object list.
- 3. Select the AutoSize check box.

If you clear the AutoSize check box for a specific text object, set the text size for that object by selecting a value from the TextSize list.

In scripts

The AutoSize property takes a boolean value.

For the MonthCalendar control, AutoSize is true by default. This example turns autosizing off for a MonthCalendar control:

```
mc_1.AutoSize = false
```

For grDispAttr objects, AutoSize can be set using the grDispAttr object for each text component.

This example turns autosizing off for the graph control's title and then sets a specific text size.

```
gr_1.TitleDispAttr.AutoSize = FALSE
gr_1.TitleDispAttr.TextSize = 10
```

This example turns autosizing off for the label of the Category Axis of the graph control and then sets a specific text size.

```
gr_1.Category.LabelDispAttr.AutoSize = FALSE
gr_1.Category.LabelDispAttr.TextSize = 8
```

3.19 AutoSkip

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

When the AutoSkip property is enabled, the user's cursor automatically skips to the next control in the tabbing order after entering all the characters allowed by the mask. If AutoSkip is not enabled, the cursor does not skip automatically to the next control.

Usage

In a painter

To enable Auto Skip:

 Select the AutoSkip check box on the Mask tab page of the EditMask control's Properties view.

In scripts

The AutoSkip property takes a boolean value. This example enables automatic skipping to the next control.

```
em_1.AutoSkip = TRUE
```

3.20 AutoVScroll

Applies to

EditMask, MultiLineEdit controls

Description

When automatic vertical scrolling is enabled, text in the control scrolls up or down automatically when the user enters or modifies data. When automatic vertical scrolling is not enabled, text does not scroll up or down automatically as the user changes data, and data that exceeds the height of the space provided is ignored.

Usage

In a painter

To enable automatic vertical scrolling:

• Select the AutoVScroll check box on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The AutoVScroll property takes a boolean value. The following example enables automatic vertical scrolling:

```
mle_1.AutoVscroll = TRUE
```

This property cannot be set at runtime for EditMask controls.

3.21 BackColor

Applies to

Windows and most controls

Description

The BackColor property defines the color to be used for the background of an object. When you are defining the background color in a painter, some of the choices take their values from the current Windows color scheme or from custom colors. To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view. You can also choose Transparent.

Usage

In a painter

To set the background color for a window, MonthCalendar control, or graph:

 Select a color from the BackColor drop-down list on the General page in the window's or graph's Properties view.

To set the background color for other controls:

• Select a color from the BackColor drop-down list on the Font tab page in the control's Properties view.

To set the background color for text objects in graphs:

- 1. Select the desired text object in the Text Object list box on the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select a color from the BackColor drop-down list.

 $gr_1.BackColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)$

In scripts

The BackColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color of windows and other objects. The BackColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the background color for a graph control:

```
8 1
```

For text displayed in the graph, BackColor is a property of a text component, such as labels on an axis.

The following example sets background color to blue for text labels on the Category axis of the graph control:

```
gr_1.Category.LabelDispAttr.BackColor = RGB(0, 128, 255)
```

3.22 BeginX

Applies to

Line controls

Description

The BeginX property specifies the X position in PowerBuilder units of the beginning of the line.

The X coordinate is the distance from the left edge of the window or custom user object. If the object is a main window or custom user object, the distance is relative to the screen. If it is not a main window, the distance is relative to the parent window unless it is opened in an MDI frame window, in which case the distance is relative to the MDI frame.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the beginning X coordinate of the line:

• Insert the line. If you want to change the beginning location, change the value of the BeginX field on the Position tab page of the line's Properties view.

In scripts

The BeginX property takes an integer value. The following example sets the beginning of the line at 1000 PowerBuilder units from the left edge of the window or user object and 500 PowerBuilder units from the top edge:

```
ln_1.BeginY = 1000
ln_1.BeginY = 500
```

3.23 BeginY

Applies to

Line controls

Description

The BeginY property specifies the Y position in PowerBuilder units of the beginning of the line.

The Y coordinate is the distance from the top edge of the window or custom user object. If the object is a main window or custom user object, the distance is relative to the screen. If it is not a main window, the distance is relative to the parent window unless it is opened in an MDI frame window, in which case the distance is relative to the MDI frame.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the beginning Y coordinate of the line:

• Insert the line. If you want to change the beginning location, change the value of the BeginY field on the Position tab page of the line's Properties view.

In scripts

The BeginY property takes an integer value. The following example sets the beginning of the line at 500 PowerBuilder units from the top edge of the window or user object and 1000 PowerBuilder units from the left edge:

```
ln_1.BeginY = 500
ln_1.BeginX = 1000
```

3.24 BoldSelectedText

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the BoldSelectedText property is enabled, the label for a tab page becomes bold when the user selects the tab page. If this property is not enabled, the tab text of the selected tab page has the same appearance as the tab text of the other tab pages.

Usage

In a painter

To enable the BoldSelectedText property:

• Select the BoldSelectedText check box on the General page of the Tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The BoldSelectedText property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that labels on tab pages of the tab_1 control are bold when they are selected:

```
tab_1.BoldSelectedText = TRUE
```

3.25 Border

Applies to

Windows, other controls

Description

When the Border property is enabled, the window or control has a border.

Some controls and window types always have borders, whether or not the Border property is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a border:

• Select the Border check box on the General page of the window's or control's Properties view

In scripts

The Border property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that a static text control should display a border and sets the border style to 3D Lowered:

```
st_1.Border = TRUE
st_1.BorderStyle = StyleLowered!
```

3.26 BorderColor

Applies to

StaticText and StaticHyperLink controls

Description

BorderColor defines the color to be used for the border around a StaticText or StaticHyperLink control. The color is visible only with the Box border style.

To add your own colors to the BorderColor list, select Design>Custom Color before displaying the Properties view.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a border color:

- 1. Select the Border check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Select StyleBox! from the BorderStyle list.
- 3. Select the desired color from the BorderColor list on the General page.

In scripts

The BorderColor property takes a long value. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

This example enables the display of a border, specifies the Box border style, and then specifies red as the border color for StaticText control st_1:

```
st_1.Border = TRUE
st_1.BorderStyle = StyleBox!
st_1.BorderColor = RGB(255,0,0)
```

3.27 BorderStyle

Applies to

Most controls

Description

The BorderStyle property lets you define the border appearance of a control. Styles include 3D Lowered, 3D Raised, Box, and Shadow Box.

Usage

In a painter

To set the border style:

• Select the desired style from the BorderStyle list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

To turn the border off, uncheck the Border check box on the General page.

In scripts

To change the appearance of the border, set Border to true and set the BorderStyle property to a value of the BorderStyle enumerated datatype.

The following example sets the border for a DropDownListBox.

```
ddlb_1.Border = TRUE
ddlb_1.BorderStyle = StyleLowered!
```

3.28 BottomMargin

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The BottomMargin property specifies the size in inches of the bottom margin on the printed page.

Usage

In a painter

To set the bottom margin:

• Enter the desired size in inches in the BottomMargin field of the Document tab page of the RichTextEdit control's Properties sheet.

In scripts

The BottomMargin property takes a long value. The following example sets the bottom margin of a printed page of a RichTextEdit control to 1 inch:

```
rte_1.BottomMargin = 1
```

3.29 BringToTop

Applies to

Windows and controls

Description

For windows, this property specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the window to the top of the front-to-back order. For windows, this property can be set only in scripts.

For controls, this property specifies whether PowerBuilder moves the control to the top of the front-to-back order within the window.

Usage

In a painter

To set BringToTop property for controls:

- 1. Select the control.
- 2. Right-click on the control and select Bring to Front or Send to Back from the Pop-up menu, or select Format>Bring to Front or Format>Send to Back from the menu bar.

In scripts

BringToTop takes a boolean value.

This statement brings the window in front of other windows in the application:

 w_1 .BringToTop = TRUE

3.30 ButtonHeader

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

When the ButtonHeader property is enabled, the column titles in a ListView's report view appear as pushable buttons instead of labels.

Usage

In a painter

To set the ButtonHeader property:

 Select the ButtonHeader check box on the General page of the ListView control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ButtonHeader property is only relevant to a report view in a ListView control. To enable report view, you must write a script that establishes columns with the AddColumn and SetColumn functions, and then populate the columns using the SetItem function.

See Chapter 9, *Using Lists in a Window* for more information about using report view.

The ButtonHeader property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies a button header for a report in a ListView:

lv_1.ButtonHeader = TRUE

3.31 Cancel

Applies to

CommandButton, PictureButton, OLECustomControl controls

Description

Cancel defines whether the Esc key activates the button or control. If the Cancel property is enabled, the Esc key triggers the control's Clicked event. If Cancel is not enabled, the control does not respond to the Esc key.

If you enable Cancel for more than one control, the last one set responds to the Esc key.

Usage

In a painter

To enable the Cancel property:

• Select the Cancel check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Cancel property takes a boolean value. The following line allows the CommandButton to respond to the Esc key:

cb_1.Cancel = TRUE

3.32 CalendarBackColor

Applies to

DatePicker and EditMask controls

Description

The CalendarBackColor property defines the color to be used for the background of the calendar that displays when you click on the down arrow in a DatePicker control or an EditMask control with the DropDownCalendar property set to true. When you are defining the background color in a painter, some of the choices take their values from the current Windows color scheme or from custom colors. To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

To set the background color for the calendar in a DatePicker or EditMask control:

• Select a color from the BackColor drop-down list on the Calendar page in the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The CalendarBackColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color. The CalendarBackColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the background color for the calendar in a DatePicker control:

dp_1.CalendarBackColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.33 CalendarTextColor

Applies to

DatePicker and EditMask controls

Description

The CalendarTextColor property specifies the color to be used for text in the calendar in a DatePicker control or an EditMask control with the DropDownCalendar property set to true.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

To set the text color for the calendar in a DatePicker or EditMask control:

• Select a color from the TextColor drop-down list on the Calendar page in the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The CalendarTextColor property is a long indicating the color to be used for the text for an object. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following line sets the text color for the calendar in a DatePicker control to blue:

dp_1.CalendarTextColor = RGB(0,0,255)

3.34 CalendarTitleBackColor

Applies to

DatePicker and EditMask controls

Description

The CalendarTitleBackColor property defines the color to be used for the background of the calendar's title.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select a color from the CalendarTitleBackColor drop-down list on the Calendar page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The CalendarTitleBackColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color of the month or months in a calendar. The CalendarTitleBackColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets pale green as the background color for titles:

dp_1.CalendarTitleBackColor = RGB(128, 255, 128)

3.35 CalendarTitleTextColor

Applies to

DatePicker and EditMask controls

Description

The CalendarTitleTextColor property specifies the color used for text in the calendar's title.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select the desired color from the TitleTextColor drop-down list on the Calendar tab page of the Properties view.

In scripts

The CalendarTitleTextColor property is a long indicating the color to be used for the title for a calendar in a DatePicker control or an EditMask control with the DropDownCalendar property set to true. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

For example, the following line sets the title text color for the control dp 1:

dp_1.CalendarTitleTextColor = RGB(0,0,255)

3.36 CalendarTrailingTextColor

Applies to

DatePicker and EditMask controls

Description

The CalendarTrailingTextColor property specifies the color used for text for leading and trailing days in the calendar.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select the desired color from the TrailingTextColor drop-down list on the Calendar tab page of the Properties view.

In scripts

The CalendarTrailingTextColor property is a long indicating the color to be used for leading and trailing days in the calendar. These are days in months that are partly displayed in the calendar. In a calendar showing a single month, they are the last few days of the preceding month and the next few days of the following month. In a calendar showing the three months July to September, the leading days are the last few days of June and the trailing days are the first few days of October. The default color is the color defined for Disabled Text.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following line sets the trailing text color for the calendar in a DatePicker control to "Inactive Title Bar":

dp_1.CalendarTrailingTextColor = 134217731

3.37 Category

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The Category property of the Graph control allows you to specify the properties of the category axis of the graph. The category axis is an object (of the type grAxis) within the Graph control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the properties of the Category Axis of a graph control:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select Category from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Set the desired values on the Axis tab page.

In scripts

The datatype of the Category property is grAxis, which is a type of object that has its own properties for controlling the appearance of the axis. Use the following syntax to specify values for the category axis:

GraphControlName.Category.grAxisProperty = value

The following example sets the label of the category axis of a graph control:

gr_1.Category.Label = "Types of Products"

3.38 CategorySort

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The CategorySort property specifies how the categories are sorted: ascending, descending, or unsorted.

Usage

In a painter

To specify how the categories are sorted:

• Select the desired sort type from the CategorySort drop-down list on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.

In scripts

The CategorySort property takes a value of the grSortType enumerated datatype, which has the values Ascending!, Descending!, Unsorted!, and UserDefinedSort!.

The following example specifies that the categories should be unsorted:

gr_1.CategorySort = Unsorted!

3.39 Center

Applies to

Windows

Description

Causes the window to be centered on the screen when it is created or sized.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Center property for a window:

• Select the Center check box on the General page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The Center property takes a boolean value. The following example sets the Center property for the window, w_mine:

w_mine.Center = TRUE

3.40 Checked

Applies to

CheckBox, RadioButton controls, and Menu objects

Description

When the value of the Checked property is TRUE, the item or control is selected.

Table 3.3:

Control	Displayed when selected
CheckBox	X displays in the check box
Menu item	Check mark displays next to the item
RadioButton	Center of button becomes dark

If Checked is false, the item or control is not selected.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Checked property on a control:

• Select the Checked check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

To set the Checked property on a menu item:

- 1. Select the menu item in the Menu painter.
- 2. Select the Checked check box on the General page.

In scripts

The Checked property takes a boolean value. The following example sets the Checked property of a RadioButton to true, which causes the button to be selected.

```
rb_1.Checked = TRUE
```

For menu items in drop-down or cascading menus, you can also use the Check and Uncheck functions. See the descriptions of those functions for examples of equivalent syntax.

3.41 ClientId

Applies to

TokenRequest object

Description

Identifier of the registered client issued by the authorization server. If the program sets the "Authorization" request header, this property will be ignored.

Usage

In a script

The ClientId property takes a string value. The following statement sets the ClientId property:

```
string ls_clientid
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.clientid = ls_clientid
```

3.42 ClientSecret

Applies to

TokenRequest object

Description

Password of the registered client issued by the authorization server. If the program sets the "Authorization" request header, this property will be ignored.

Usage

In a script

The ClientSecret property takes a string value. The following statement sets the ClientSecret property:

```
string ls_clientsecret
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.clientsecret = ls_clientsecret
```

3.43 CloseAnimation

Applies to

Window controls

Description

Specifies an optional animation effect that displays when the window closes.

Usage

The CloseAnimation property takes a value of the WindowAnimationStyle enumerated variable. For "slide" values, the whole window appears to slide from the direction selected. For "roll" values, the window does not move but its display is cleared from the direction selected. Values are:

- NoAnimation! (default) -- The window closes with no animation.
- TopSlide! -- The window slides from the top to the bottom of its extent.
- BottomSlide! -- The window slides from the bottom to the top of its extent.
- LeftSlide! -- The window slides from the left to the right of its extent.
- RightSlide! -- The window slides from the right to the left of its extent.
- TopRoll! -- The window rolls from the top to the bottom of its extent.
- BottomRoll! -- The window rolls from the bottom to the top of its extent.

- LeftRoll! -- The window rolls from the left to the right of its extent.
- RightRoll! -- The window rolls from the right to the left of its extent.
- FadeAnimation! -- The window fades out.
- CenterAnimation! -- The window collapses from the center.

You can modify the animation properties at any time and use them for any window type. They are most often used in pop-up windows.

FadeAnimation! can be used only in top-level windows. It does not work in child windows. In MDI applications, you cannot use FadeAnimation! for sheet windows. Fading affects the transparency of the window, and sheet windows in MDI applications always inherit the transparency of the frame window.

Also, if the Transparency property of a frame or main window is set to a value above 0, the TopRoll!, BottomRoll!, LeftRoll!, RightRoll!, and CenterAnimation! settings do not work with sheet windows or child windows. All settings work correctly for frame windows.

While the animation executes, the application waits for it to complete. Use the AnimationTime property to control the number of milliseconds the animation takes to execute.

The window's CloseQuery event is triggered before the animation begins. The Close event is triggered when the animation has completed.

In a painter

To set the CloseAnimation property on a window:

• Select a value from the CloseAnimation drop-down list on the General page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The following example sets the CloseAnimation property of the w_splash window to FadeAnimation!:

w_splash.CloseAnimation = FadeAnimation!

See also

AnimationTime

OpenAnimation

3.44 CollectionMode

Applies to

InkPicture controls

Description

Specifies whether ink only, gestures only, or ink and gestures are collected.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the mode of ink collection:

• Select a value from the CollectionMode drop-down list on the Ink page in the Properties view

In scripts

The CollectionMode property takes a value of the InkCollectionMode enumerated variable. Values are:

- InkOnly! -- Only ink is collected, creating a stroke. The Gesture event is not triggered.
- InkAndGesture! -- Ink and single-stroke gestures are collected (the default).
- GestureOnly! -- Only gestures are collected. Gestures can be single or multiple strokes. CollectionMode must be set to GestureOnly! for the double-tap gesture to be recognized.

This example specifies that the InkPicture control will recognize gestures but not collect ink:

ie_1.InkCollectionMode = GestureOnly!

3.45 ColumnsPerPage

Applies to

Windows and user objects

Description

The ColumnsPerPage property determines the number of columns on a page for scrolling purposes. The default is 0 (10 columns per page). PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerColumn by ColumnsPerPage to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window horizontally when the user clicks in the scroll bar.

For information on calculating ColumnsPerPage and UnitsPerColumn, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u>.

Usage note

To control the vertical scroll bar in a window or user object, use the UnitsPerLine and LinesPerPage properties.

Usage

In a painter

To set the ColumnsPerPage property:

• Enter the desired number (between 1 and 100) in the ColumnsPerPage option on the Scroll tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ColumnsPerPage property takes an integer value between 1 and 100. The following line sets ColumnsPerPage for a window to 20:

This.ColumnsPerPage = 20

3.46 Contents Allowed

Applies to

OLE controls

Description

Specifies whether the OLE object in the control must be embedded or linked or whether either type of OLE object can be inserted at runtime.

Usage

In a painter

To set the ContentsAllowed property:

• Select the desired option from the Contents drop-down list on the General page of the control's property page.

Choices are Any, Embedded, or Linked.

In scripts

The datatype of the ContentsAllowed property is omContentsAllowed. The following example sets the value of the ContentsAllowed property to linked:

ole_1.ContentsAllowed = ContainsLinkedOnly!

3.47 ControlCharsVisible

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

Specifies whether control characters (carriage returns, spaces, and tabs) are visible. This property can be enabled and disabled by the user at runtime from the toolbar and from the Properties item of the pop-up menu, if the PopMenu property is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To make control characters visible:

• Select the ControlCharsVisible check box on the Document tab page in the Properties view of the RichTextEdit control.

In scripts

The ControlCharsVisible property takes a boolean value. The following line enables display of control characters in a RichTextEdit control:

rte_1.ControlCharsVisible = TRUE

3.48 ControlMenu

Applies to

Windows and DataWindow controls

Description

The Control Menu property specifies whether the Control Menu box appears in the title bar of the Window or DataWindow control.

Usage

In a painter

To display the Control Menu box:

• Select the ControlMenu check box on the General page of the window's or DataWindow control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ControlMenu property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that the Control Menu box will appear in the title bar of the DataWindow control dw_1.

dw_1.ControlMenu = TRUE

3.49 CornerHeight

Applies to

RoundRectangle controls

Description

The Corner Height property sets the radius of the vertical part of the corners of a RoundRectangle control. The radius is in PowerBuilder units.

Usage

In a painter

To set the CornerHeight property:

• Enter an integer in the CornerHeight field on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The CornerHeight property takes an integer. This example sets the corner height for a RoundRectangle rr_1:

 $rr_1.CornerHeight = 10$

3.50 CornerWidth

Applies to

RoundRectangle controls

Description

The Corner Width property sets the radius of the horizontal part of the corners of a RoundRectangle control. The radius is in PowerBuilder units.

Usage

In a painter

To set the CornerWidth property:

• Enter an integer in the CornerWidth field on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The CornerWidth property takes an integer. This example sets the corner width for a RoundRectangle rr_1:

rr_1.CornerWidth = 10

3.51 CreateOnDemand

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When CreateOnDemand is enabled, all controls on all tab pages of a Tab control are instantiated when the Tab control is created, but the Constructor event of controls on hidden tab pages is not triggered until the user views the tab page either by clicking on the tab page or by calling the SelectTab function (the SelectTab function sets the SelectedTab property). Until the Constructor event for a control has run, a graphical representation of the control is not created, and its handle is not available. Constructor events for controls on the selected tab page are always triggered when the Tab control is created.

A window opens more quickly if the creation of a graphical representation is delayed for tab pages with many controls. However, scripts cannot refer to a control on a tab page until its Constructor event has run and a graphical representation has been created.

Usage

In a painter

To set the CreateOnDemand property:

• Select the CreateOnDemand check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The CreateOnDemand property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that graphical representations of tab pages are not created until the tab page is selected:

tab_1.CreateOnDemand = TRUE

For more information about using this property in scripts, see Chapter 7, *Using Tab Controls in a Window*.

3.52 CustomFormat

Applies to

DatePicker controls

Description

The CustomFormat property specifies a custom format for the display of the date in a DatePicker control. You must set the Format property to the enumerated value dtfCustom! for the CustomFormat to take effect.

The format strings in the following table can be combined to format the date and time. If you want to include string literals in the CustomFormat string, enclose them in single quotes to ensure that the letters they contain are not interpreted as format strings.

Table 3.4:

Format string	Description
d	The one- or two-digit day.
dd	The two-digit day. Single-digit day values are preceded by 0.
ddd	The three-character weekday abbreviation.
dddd	The full weekday name.
h	The one- or two-digit hour in 12-hour format.
hh	The two-digit hour in 12-hour format. Single-digit values are preceded by 0.
Н	The one- or two-digit hour in 24-hour format.
НН	The two-digit hour in 24-hour format. Single-digit values are preceded by 0.
m	The one- or two-digit minute.
mm	The two-digit minute. Single-digit values are preceded by 0.
M	The one- or two-digit month.
MM	The two-digit month. Single-digit values are preceded by 0.
MMM	The three-character month abbreviation.
MMMM	The full month name.
S	The one- or two-digit second.
SS	The two-digit second. Single-digit values are preceded by 0.
t	The one-letter abbreviation for AM or PM in uppercase (AM displays as A).

Format string	Description
tt	AM or PM in uppercase.
X	A callback field used to query the user for a portion of the custom format. This format string is not supported in PowerBuilder.
У	The one-digit year (2007 displays as "7").
уу	The two-digit year (2007 displays as "07").
yyy or yyyy	The full year (2007 displays as "2007").

Usage

In the painter

To set the CustomFormat property:

- 1. Select dtfcustom! from the Format drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Specify a custom format in the Custom Format field.

This custom format displays the date and time at 8 p.m. on the first day of 2007 as January 1, 2007 08:00:00 PM:

```
MMMM d, yyyy hh:mm:ss tt
```

This custom format displays the same time on the last day of 2006 as December 31, 2007 20:00:00 PM:

```
MMMM d, yyyy HH:mm:ss
```

In scripts

The CustomFormat property takes a string value. The following statements set the Format property to allow a custom format, then set the custom format to display the full month name, the two-digit date followed by a comma, and the full year:

```
dp_1.Format = dtfCustom!
dp_1.CustomFormat = 'MMMM dd, yyyy'
```

3.53 DataObject

Applies to

DataWindow controls and DataStore objects

Description

The DataObject property specifies the name of the DataWindow object or Report object associated with the DataWindow control or DataStore.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the name of the DataWindow object contained in a DataWindow control:

• Enter the name of an existing DataWindow object in the DataObject field on the General property page of the DataWindow control's Properties view, or use the Browse button to select an object.

In scripts

The DataObject property takes a string. This example specifies d_employ as the DataWindow object in the DataWindow control dw_1.

dw_1.DataObject = 'd_employ'

Reinitializing the DataWindow control or DataStore

Setting the DataObject to an empty string reinitializes the DataWindow control or DataStore and removes all storage associated with the previous DataObject.

3.54 DataSource

Applies to

MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the ODBC data source name used to connect to a SQL Anywhere remote database. Setting this property is equivalent to using the -c "dsn=myDSN" dbmlsync option, where myDSN is the data source name.

Usage

This is a required property of the synchronization object. If the property value is not set before a synchronize call, the synchronization fails and an error string is saved to the synchronization object's ErrorText property.

At design time, you can enter a DataSource property value on the SQL Anywhere Connect tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter DataSource values in the DSN text box on the SQL Anywhere tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can modify DataSource values in script as follows:

mlSync.DataSource = 'myDSN'

3.55 DataType

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

DataType is a property of the grAxis objects that can be part of graph controls. There are three grAxis objects: Category, Series, and Values.

DataType specifies the type of data that is assigned to the axis. Possible datatypes are Number, Date, DateTime, Default, Double, Text, and Time.

Usage

In a painter

To specify datatype:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired Axis type from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Select the desired datatype from the DataType drop-down list.

In scripts

The DataType property takes a value of type grAxisDataType.

The following line sets the DataType of the Values axis of a graph:

gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDate!

3.56 DBPass

Applies to

MLSync and SyncParm objects

Description

Password for the SQL Anywhere remote database. Setting this property value is equivalent to including the -c "pwd=myPassword" dbmlsync option, where myPassword is the password for the database connection.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a DBPass value on the SQL Anywhere Connect tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter DBPass values on the SQL Anywhere tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can modify DBPass values in script as follows:

mySync.DBPass = 'myPassword'

3.57 DBUser

Applies to

MLSync and SyncParm objects

Description

User ID for the SQL Anywhere remote database. Setting this property value is equivalent to including the -c "uid=myUserID" dbmlsync option, where myUserID is the user name for the database connection.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a DBUser value on the SQL Anywhere Connect tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter DBUser values on the SQL Anywhere tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can modify DBUser values in script as follows:

mySync.DBUser = 'myUserID'

3.58 Default

Applies to

CommandButton, PictureButton, OLECustomControl controls

Description

The Default property specifies that the control is the default button. If Default is true, the selected control has a thick border and receives a Clicked event when the user presses Enter (unless the user has tabbed to another control). If Default is false, the control is not the default and pressing Enter does not affect it unless the user tabs to it.

Setting focus

If the window contains an editable field, such as a MultiLineEdit, then the default button behaves as expected (receives the Clicked event when the user presses Enter) when focus is on the editable field. When the user presses Tab to move focus to another button (not the default), pressing Enter fires the Clicked event for the button that currently has focus.

If the window does not contain an editable field, use SetFocus or tab order to make sure the default button behaves as documented above.

You can make a CommandButton, PictureButton, or OLECustomControl control the default button so that it responds to the Enter key. If you check Default for more than one control, the last one set acts as the default.

Usage

In a painter

To enable the Default property

• Select the Default check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Default property takes a boolean value. To set a PictureButton as the default button, use a line like the following:

pb_1.Default = TRUE

3.59 Deleteltems

Applies to

ListView, TreeView controls

Description

When the DeleteItems property is true, the user can delete items from the ListView or TreeView with the Delete key. When DeleteItems is false, the user cannot delete items.

Usage

In a painter

To allow users to delete items from the control:

• Select the DeleteItems check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The DeleteItems property takes a boolean value. The following example disables deletion of ListView items by the user:

lv_1.DeleteItems = FALSE

3.60 Depth

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

For 3-D graphs, specifies the depth of the graph as a percentage of its width. The default is 100 percent.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Depth property:

- 1. Display the General page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select a 3-D type of graph from the GraphType drop-down list.
- 3. Use the Depth slider control to set the Depth to the desired percentage of width.

In scripts

The Depth property takes an integer. This example specifies that the depth of the graph is 50% of its width:

 $gr_1.Depth = 50$

3.61 DisabledName

Applies to

PictureButton controls

Description

The DisabledName property specifies the name of a picture file to be displayed when the PictureButton is disabled. The picture can be in the following formats:

- bitmap (.BMP)
- runlength encoded (.RLE)
- Windows metafile (.WMF)
- GIF (.GIF)
- JPEG (.JPG or .JPEG)

Usage

In a painter

To specify a picture to be displayed when the button is disabled:

• Enter the name of the file in the DisabledName field on the General page of the control's Properties view, or use the Browse button next to the DisabledName field to select a file.

In scripts

The DisabledName property takes a string containing the name of a file. The string can include the path. This example specifies the picture controls.bmp for the disabled view of the PictureButton:

pb_1.DisabledName = "d:\pbhelp\controls.bmp"

3.62 DisableDragDrop

Applies to

TreeView controls

Description

The DisableDragDrop property determines whether events for dragging, such as BeginDrag, are triggered when the user clicks on an item within the control and drags. DisableDragDrop affects only the dragging of items within the control.

When DisableDragDrop is true, no drag events occur when the user tries to drag an item. To implement drag and drop, write scripts for the appropriate dragging events.

DisableDragDrop also affects when selection occurs. When it is true, an item the user clicks is selected when the mouse button is pressed down. When it is false, the item is selected when the mouse button is released.

Usage

In a painter

To disable drag and drop within the TreeView control:

 Select the DisableDragDrop check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The DisableDragDrop property takes a boolean value. The following example prevents drag events from being triggered within a TreeView control:

tv_1.DisableDragDrop = TRUE

3.63 DisableNoScroll

Applies to

ListBox and PictureListBox controls

Description

The DisableNoScroll property specifies the behavior of a scroll bar in a list box. If the property is enabled, the scroll bar is always visible, but it is disabled when all the items can be accessed without it. If the property is disabled, the scroll bar is displayed only if it is necessary, based on the number of items and the height of the ListBox or PictureListBox.

Usage

In a painter

To make the scroll bar always visible but disabled when not needed:

• Select the DisableNoScroll check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The DisableNoScroll property takes a boolean value. This example for a ListBox displays the scroll bar only when needed:

lb_1.DisableNoScroll = FALSE

3.64 DisplayEveryNLabels

Applies to

grAxis objects of Graph controls

Description

DisplayEveryNLabels is a property of the grAxis objects that can be part of graph controls. There are three grAxis objects: Category, Series, and Values.

This property specifies which major divisions to label on the selected axis in the graph. For example, a value of 2 means to label every other tick mark. Use 0 to let the graph select the optimum number of labels to use.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the number of major divisions to label:

1. Display the Axis tab page in the graph's Properties view.

- 2. Select the desired Axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Use the spin control to select a number from 0 to 100 in the DisplayEveryNLables field.

In scripts

The DisplayEveryNLabels property takes an integer. The following example sets labeling at every 10 tick marks for the Series Axis:

gr_1.Series.DisplayEveryNLabels = 10

3.65 DisplayExpression

Applies to

grDispAttr objects within Graph controls

Description

The DisplayExpression property specifies an expression whose value is the label for a specified text object within the Graph control.

The default expression is the value of the property containing the text for the graph component.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a display expression for a text object:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the Graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the text object for which you want to define a display expression from the Text Object list box.
 - The default value of the DisplayExpression property is displayed in the DisplayExpression field.
- 3. Specify the display expression in the Display Expression field, or click the More button to display the Modify Expression dialog box.

In scripts

The DisplayExpression property can be set using the grDispAttr object for each text component. DisplayExpression takes a string, which can contain an expression.

The following example appends today's date to the title of the graph:

```
gr_1.TitleDispAttr.DisplayExpression = 'title + " " + Today()'
```

3.66 DisplayName

Applies to

Application object, OLE controls

Description

DisplayName is a user-readable name for your application or OLE control. This name is displayed in OLE dialog boxes and windows that show the object's name. If you do not specify a value, the name of the control (such as ole_1) or application (value of the AppName property) is used for Display Name.

Usage

In a painter

To set a DisplayName for an OLE control:

• Enter the name in the DisplayName field of the General page of the control's Properties view.

To set a DisplayName for an application:

- 1. Open the application in the Application painter.
- 2. Enter the name in the DisplayName field of the General page of the application's Properties view.

In scripts

The DisplayName property takes a string. The following example sets a name for an OLE control:

ole_1.DisplayName = 'My Project'

3.67 DisplayOnly

Applies to

MultiLineEdit, SingleLineEdit, RichTextEdit, EditMask controls

Description

When the Display Only property is enabled, users cannot change the text in an editable control. If the property is not enabled, users can change the text.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that text is display only:

• Select the Display Only check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The DisplayOnly property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that text in a MultiLineEdit control cannot be changed:

mle_1.DisplayOnly = TRUE

3.68 DisplayType

Applies to

OLE controls

Description

The DisplayType property specifies how the OLE object is displayed in the control. The control can display the actual contents, an icon to represent the object, or as an ActiveX document. ActiveX documents fill the space of the object container and have access to all features of the server application.

Usage

In a painter

To set the display type of the control:

• Select the desired value from the Display Type drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The DisplayType property takes a value of the omDisplayType enumerated datatype. Values are:

- DisplayAsContent
- DisplayAsActiveXDocument!
- DisplayAsIcon!

The following example sets the DisplayType to icon:

ole_1.DisplayType = DisplayAsIcon!

3.69 DocumentName

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The Document Name property specifies the name that appears in the print queue when the user prints the contents of the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the document name for printing:

• Enter the document name in the Document Name for Printing field on the Document tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The DocumentName property takes a string. The following example specifies a document name for the print queue for a RichTextEdit control:

```
rte_1.DocumentName = 'Report 1'
```

3.70 DragAuto

Applies to

Draggable controls

Description

The DragAuto property determines whether PowerBuilder puts the control into drag mode automatically. If the property is enabled, when the user clicks the control and starts dragging it, PowerBuilder puts the control in drag mode. Clicking the control triggers a DragDrop event, not a Clicked event.

If DragAuto is not enabled, then when the user clicks the control, PowerBuilder does not put the control in drag mode. You have to call the Drag function to put the control into drag mode.

Usage

In a painter

To set DragAuto:

• Select the DragAuto check box on the Other tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

Most controls have a DragAuto property. It takes a boolean value. The following example sets drag mode for a CommandButton.

cb_1.DragAuto = TRUE

3.71 Draglcon

Applies to

Draggable controls

Description

The DragIcon property specifies the icon to display when the user drags the control. The default icon is a box the size of the control.

When the user drags a control, the icon displays when the cursor is over an area in which the user can drop the control (a valid drop area). When the cursor is over an area that is not a valid drop area, the no-drop icon displays.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the drag icon:

- 1. Display the Other tab page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Click the down arrow on the DragIcon field and select a stock icon from the list of stock icons, or use the Browse button to select another icon (.ICO) file.

In scripts

The DragIcon property takes a string containing the name of the icon file you want to display when the user drags the control. You can specify a stock icon or any icon filename.

The following example sets the drag icon for a ListBox to an icon called arrow.ico:

```
lb_1.DragIcon = 'c:\examples\arrow.ico'
```

This example sets the drag icon to the stock icon Question:

```
lb_1.DragIcon = 'Question!'
```

3.72 DropDownCalendar

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

Specifies that the control uses a drop-down calendar to display and select dates when the MaskDataType is DateMask! or DateTimeMask!.

Usage

In a painter

To set the DropDownCalendar property:

 Select or clear the DropDownCalendar check box on the Mask page in the Properties view

In scripts

The DropDownCalendar property takes a boolean value. The default is false. This example specifies that the EditMask control uses a drop-down calendar:

```
em_1.DropDownCalendar = true
```

3.73 DropDownRight

Applies to

DatePicker and EditMask controls

Description

Specifies whether the drop-down calendar is aligned with the right or left side of the DatePicker or EditMask control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the DropDownRight property:

• Select or clear the DropDownRight check box on the General page in the Properties view for DatePicker controls or the Calendar page for EditMask controls

In scripts

The DropDownRight property takes a boolean value. The default is false (the calendar is left aligned). This example specifies that the calendar is aligned with the right side of the DatePicker control:

dp_1.DropDownRight = true

3.74 DropLines

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

A drop line is a line that extends from a data point to its axis. Drop lines are not available for all graph types.

Usage

In a painter

To set the drop line type:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired Axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Select the type of line desired from the DropLines drop-down list.

In scripts

The DropLines property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype.

The following example sets dashed lines for the drop lines in the Series axis:

gr_1.Series.DropLines = Dash!

3.75 EditLabels

Applies to

ListView and TreeView controls

Description

When EditLabels is enabled, the user can edit labels in the ListView or TreeView by selecting the item, clicking on the label, and then adding or deleting characters. When EditLabels is not enabled, the labels are not editable.

Usage

In a painter

To enable editing of labels:

• Select the Edit Labels check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The EditLabels property takes a boolean value. The following example enables editing of labels in a TreeView:

tv_1.EditLabels = TRUE

3.76 EditMode

Applies to

InkPicture controls

Description

Specifies whether the editing mode of the control is set for drawing ink, editing ink, or deleting ink.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the mode of ink collection:

• Select a value from the EditMode drop-down list on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The EditMode property takes a value of the InkPicEditMode enumerated variable. Values are:

- InkPicDeleteMode! -- Ink is deleted.
- InkPicInkMode! -- Ink can be drawn (default).
- InkPicSelectMode! -- Ink is selected for editing.

This example specifies that the InkPicture control delete any ink under the tip of the stylus:

ie_1.EditMode = InkPicDeleteMode!

3.77 Elevation

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

Elevation determines how much of the full perspective of a 3D graph is visible. It specifies the angle of front-to-back elevation.

Elevation is disabled for 2D graphs.

Usage

In a painter

To change the elevation of a 3-D graph:

• Move the Elevation slider on the General page of the graph's Properties view.

In scripts

The Elevation property takes an integer value. The following example specifies an elevation of 35:

 $gr_1.Elevation = 35$

3.78 Enabled

Applies to

All graphic controls except drawing objects and progress, scroll, and track bars.

Description

When the Enabled property is enabled, the control can have focus. Users can select the control by clicking on it. If the control is included in the tab order, users can tab to it.

If the Enabled property is not enabled, the control cannot have focus and the user cannot select it.

For a MonthCalendar control, the enabled property enables or disables keyboard input.

Enabled does not affect whether the control is visible (see Visible).

Usage

In a painter

To set the Enabled property:

Select the Enabled check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Enabled property takes a boolean value. Most controls have an Enabled property. This example sets Enabled for a CommandButton:

cb_1.Enabled = TRUE

3.79 EncryptionKey

Applies to

MLSynchronization, MLSync, and SyncParm objects

Description

Specifies an encryption key for SQL Anywhere remote database. Setting this property is equivalent to using the -c "dbkey=myKey" dbmlsync option, where myKey is the encryption key for the database.

Usage

At design time, you can enter an encryption key value on the SQL Anywhere Connect tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter encryption key values on the SQL Anywhere tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can modify the EncryptionKey values in script as follows:

mySync_1.EncryptionKey = "myKey"

3.80 EndX

Applies to

Line controls

Description

The EndX property specifies the X coordinate of the end of the line in PowerBuilder units.

The X coordinate is the distance from the left edge of the window or custom user object. If the object is a main window or custom user object, the distance is relative to the screen. If it is not a main window, the distance is relative to the parent window unless it is opened in an MDI frame window, in which case the distance is relative to the MDI frame.

Usage

In a painter

To set the X coordinate of the end of the line:

• Insert the line. If you want to change the ending location, change the value of the EndX field on the Position tab page of the line's Property view.

In scripts

The EndX property takes an integer value. This example sets the X coordinate of the end of the line:

ln 1.EndX = 1200

3.81 EndY

Applies to

Line controls

Description

The EndY property specifies the Y coordinate of the end of the line in PowerBuilder units.

The Y coordinate is the distance from the top edge of the window or custom user object. If the object is a main window or custom user object, the distance is relative to the screen. If it is not a main window, the distance is relative to the parent window unless it is opened in an MDI frame window, in which case the distance is relative to the MDI frame.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Y coordinate of the end of the line:

• Insert the line. If you want to change the ending location, change the value of the EndY field on the Position tab page of the line's Property view.

In scripts

The EndY property takes an integer value. This example sets the Y coordinate of the end of the line:

 $ln_1.EndY = 1200$

3.82 ErrorText

Applies to

MLSynchronization, MLSync objects

Description

Write-only property used to store error and diagnostic messages generated when a synchronization function is called incorrectly.

Usage

The ErrorText value is returned to the synchronization object from the MobiLink Server.

In scripts

In the Clicked event of a command button, you can cause the ErrorText value to display in the multiline edit box of a status window as follows:

parent.mle_error.text = mlsync.errortext

3.83 Escapement

Applies to

grDispAttr objects in a graph control

Description

This property specifies the rotation for the baseline of the Axis text objects in a graph control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the rotation of text objects within a graph:

- 1. Display the Text tab of the graph's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 3. Use the Escapement spin control to set the desired value.

In scripts

Escapement takes an integer value that specifies the rotation in tenths of a degree. 0 is horizontal. A value of 900 rotates the text 90 degrees; 450 rotates the text 45 degrees. The following example sets the rotation of the Value Axis Label to 90 degrees:

gr_1.Value.LabelDispAttr.Escapement = 900

3.84 ExtendedOpts

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies a command line option or a list of command line options for the dbmlsync synchronization command.

For information about available command line options, you can click the Usage button next to the Extended Options text box on the MobiLink Client Additional Options page of the MobiLink wizard, or you can open the chapter on synchronization parameters in the MobiLink Clients book.

Usage

In a painter

On the Settings page of the object's Properties view, type the options you want in the Extended Options text box.

In scripts

You can include a string with extended options to be added to a synchronization call.

For example, the following line sets the script version to "test":

```
mySync_1.ExtendedOpts = "sv = test"
```

On the next Synchronize call from the MLSync object mySync_1, PowerBuilder adds the -e extended option with the value that you set:

```
dbmlsync -e "sv=test"
```

3.85 ExtendedSelect

Applies to

ListBox, PictureListBox, ListView controls

Description

ExtendedSelect specifies whether users can select more than one item in a ListBox or ListView at one time. When ExtendedSelect is enabled, users can select multiple items by clicking on an item and dragging the mouse up or down to select items, using Click or Shift +Click to select a sequential group of items, or using Control+Click on multiple items. When ExtendedSelect is not enabled, users cannot select multiple items.

Usage note

If both MultiSelect and ExtendedSelect are enabled, then the behavior of ExtendedSelect takes precedence.

Usage

In a painter

To enable extended select:

• Select the Extended Select check box on the General page of the control's property page.

In scripts

The ExtendedSelect property takes a boolean value. The following example lets the user select multiple items using extended selection techniques for a ListBox lb_1:

lb_1.ExtendedSelect = TRUE

3.86 FaceName

Applies to

Controls that can display text

Description

The FaceName property specifies the typeface used for text in the control. For tab controls, the property specifies the typeface for text labels on tabs.

The typefaces available for your use are those installed on your system. Keep in mind that the fonts available to you may not be available where you deploy your application.

Usage

This property does not work in MonthCalendar controls on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

To set the typeface of text in a control:

• Select a typeface from the FaceName list box on the Font tab page of the control's Properties view.

To set the typeface of text objects in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 3. Select a typeface from the FaceName list box.

In scripts

The FaceName property takes a string value. The following example sets the font for text labels on tab pages of a tab control to the Arial typeface:

tab_1.FaceName = "Arial"

3.87 Factoid

Applies to

InkEdit controls

Description

Specifies a context for ink recognition in an InkEdit control. Set this property if the input data is of a known datatype, such as a date, to constrain the search for a recognition result.

Possible values include digit, email, Web, date, time, number, currency, percent, and telephone.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a factoid for an InkEdit control:

• Select a factoid from the drop-down list.

The following values are available. After the Default and None factoids, the drop-down list displays factoids for special formats in alphabetical order, followed by single character factoids and Asian language factoids.

Table 3.5:

Factoid	Description
Default	Returns recognizer to the default setting. For Western languages, the default setting includes the user and system dictionaries, various punctuation marks, and the Web and Number factoids. For Eastern languages, the default setting includes all characters supported by the recognizer.
None	Disables all factoids, dictionaries, and the language model.
Currency	Currency in pounds, dollars, euros, and yen.
Date	Dates written in English; for example 8/19/2005, Aug 19, 2005, or Friday, August 19, 2005.
E-mail	Email addresses.
Filename	Windows file name paths. The name cannot include the following characters: /: " <>
Number	Numeric values, including ordinals, decimals, separators, common suffixes, and mathematical symbols. This factoid includes the Currency and Time factoids.
Percent	A number followed by the percent symbol.
Postal Code	Postal codes as written in English, for example 01730 or CT17 9PW.
System Dictionary	Words in the system dictionary only.
Telephone	Telephone numbers as written in English, for example (555) 555 5555 or +44 1234 123456.
Time	Times as written in English, for example 15:05 or 3:05 pm.
Web	Various URL formats.
Word List	Words on the word list associated with the recognizer context only.
Digit	A single digit (0-9).
One Char	A single ANSI character.
Upper Char	A single uppercase character.

In addition, the following Asian language factoids are available:

Table 3.6:

Bopomofo	Kanji Common
Hangul Common	Katakana
Hiragana	Korean Common
Jamo	Simplified Chinese Common
Japanese Common	Traditional Chinese Common

In scripts

The Factoid property takes a string value.

This example sets the Factoid property to Telephone for the control ie_1:

ie_1.Factoid = Telephone

3.88 FillColor

Applies to

Oval, Rectangle, RoundRectangle controls

Description

The FillColor property defines the color used to fill the control. When you are defining the background color in a painter, some of the choices take their values from the current Windows color scheme or from custom colors.

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

Usage

In a painter

To set the fill color:

• Select the desired color from the Fill Color drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The FillColor property takes a long value (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color of windows and other objects. The FillColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

This example specifies yellow as the fill color for the RoundRectangle rr_display:

rr_display.FillColor=RGB(255,255,0)

3.89 FillPattern

Applies to

Oval, Rectangle, RoundRectangle, StaticText, and StaticHyperLink controls

Description

The FillPattern property specifies the hatch pattern used to fill the control.

For drawing objects, the pattern uses the FillColor for the background and the LineColor for the foreground lines.

For StaticText and StaticHyperLink controls, the pattern uses the BackColor for the background and the TextColor for the foreground lines. The text and the pattern lines use the same color.

Usage

In a painter

To set the fill pattern:

• Select the desired hatch pattern from the Fill Pattern drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The FillPattern property takes a value of the FillPattern enumerated datatype.

The following example sets a diamond fill for a StaticText control:

st_1.FillPattern = Diamond!

3.90 FirstDayOfWeek

Applies to

DatePicker, MonthCalendar controls

Description

Specifies which day of the week displays on the left in the calendar.

Usage

In a painter

To set the FirstDayOfWeek property:

 Select a day from the FirstDayOfWeek drop-down list on the Calendar page in the Properties view for DatePicker controls or the General page in the Properties view for MonthCalendar controls.

In scripts

The FirstDayOfWeek property takes a value of the enumerated variable WeekDay. This example sets Monday as the first day of the week for a MonthCalendar control:

mc_1.FirstDayOfWeek = Monday!

3.91 FixedLocations

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

When the FixedLocations property is enabled, the user cannot drag items to new positions in the control. When Fixed Locations is not enabled and DragAuto is enabled, the user can drag items to new positions.

Usage

In a painter

To set the FixedLocation property:

 Select the Fixed Locations check box on the General page of the control's Properties view

In scripts

The FixedLocations property takes a boolean value. The following example enables dragging of items within a ListView.

```
lv_1.DragAuto = TRUE
lv_1.FixedLocations = FALSE
```

3.92 FixedWidth

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the FixedWidth property is enabled, tabs have a fixed width. The width is determined by the longest tab label. When FixedWidth is not enabled, tabs shrink to the length of their text labels.

Usage

In a painter

To set the FixedWidth property:

 Select the Fixed Width check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The FixedWidth property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that tabs in the control tab_1 have a fixed width:

```
tab_1.FixedWidth = TRUE
```

3.93 FocusOnButtonDown

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the FocusOnButtonDown property is enabled, each tab page gets focus when the user clicks on it. A dotted rectangle marks the tab page. If FocusOnButtonDown is not enabled, the clicked tab page does not display the focus rectangle. In either case, the selected tab page comes to the front.

Usage

In a painter

To set the FocusOnButtonDown property:

• Select the Focus On Button Down check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The FocusOnButtonDown property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that tab pages within the control tab_1 display the focus rectangle when clicked:

tab_1.FocusOnButtonDown = TRUE

3.94 FocusRectangle

Applies to

Graph, Picture, PictureHyperLink, OLE, OLE Custom Control, StaticText, and StaticHyperLink controls

Description

When the FocusRectangle property is enabled, a dotted rectangle (the focus rectangle) displays when the control has focus. If this property is not enabled, the focus rectangle does not appear.

Usage

In a painter

To set the FocusRectangle property:

• Select the Focus Rectangle check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The FocusRectangle property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that a focus rectangle will appear when the StaticText control has focus:

st_1.FocusRectangle = TRUE

3.95 FontCharSet

Applies to

Controls that can display text

Description

This property specifies the font character set to be used for the text in the control. Character sets and font typefaces are related, so choosing the wrong character set can cause a different font to be used than the one expected.

When working in a painter, setting the font face name property causes the correct character set to be selected.

Usage

In a painter

To set the font character set:

• Select a font character set from the FontCharSet list box on the Font tab page of the control's Properties view.

To set the font character set of text objects in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 3. Select a font character set from the FontCharSet list box.

In scripts

The FontCharSet takes a value of the FontCharSet enumerated datatype. The following example sets the character set for a static text control to ANSI:

st_1.FontCharSet = ANSI!

3.96 FontFamily

Applies to

Controls that can display text

Description

The FontFamily property sets the type style used for the text in the control.

When working in a painter, setting the font face name causes the correct font family to be selected.

Usage

In a painter

To set the font type style:

• Select a font style from the FontFamily list box on the Font tab page of the control's Properties view.

To set the font type style of text objects in a graph control:

1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.

- 2. Select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 3. Select a font style from the FontFamily list box.

In scripts

The FontFamily property takes a value of the FontFamily enumerated datatype. The following example sets the FontFamily for a static text control to Roman:

st_1.FontFamily = Roman!

3.97 FontPitch

Applies to

Controls that can display text

Description

The FontPitch property specifies the spacing of the font used for the text in the control.

When working in a painter, setting the font face name causes the correct font pitch to be selected.

Usage

In a painter

To set the font spacing:

• Select a font spacing from the FontPitch list box on the Font tab page of the control's Properties view.

To set the font spacing of text objects in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 3. Select a font spacing from the FontPitch list box.

In scripts

The FontPitch property takes a value of the FontPitch enumerated datatype. The following example sets the font pitch for a static text control:

st_1.FontPitch = Fixed!

3.98 FontWeight

Applies to

DatePicker controls

Description

The FontWeight property specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control.

Usage

In the painter

To set the stroke weight of all text in a control:

• Display the Font page in the control's Properties view and select the Bold check box, or select the control and click the B button on the StyleBar.

In scripts

The FontWeight property takes an integer value. A value of 400 indicates a normal weight, and 700 indicates a bold weight. The following example sets the text labels of the tab pages of a tab control to bold:

dp_1.FontWeight = 700

3.99 Format

Applies to

DatePicker controls and grDispAttr objects in a graph control

Description

DatePicker controls

The Format property for DatePicker controls specifies the format of the date displayed in the DatePicker control. The property takes a value of the DateTimeFormat enumerated variable. Long and short date and time formats are determined by the regional settings in the Windows control panel on the local computer. Values are:

DtfCustom! -- use the format specified in the CustomFormat property

DtfLongDate! -- display a long date (default)

DtfShortDate! -- display a short date

DtfTime!-- display a time

grDispAttr objects

The Format property for grDispAttr objects allows you to define display formats for text objects in graphs. Display formats are masks in which certain characters have special significance.

The characters you use for formatting depend on the datatype of the data. PowerBuilder supports four kinds of display formats:

- Numbers
- Strings
- Dates
- Times

You can specify colors in any display format by specifying a color keyword before the format.

For more information about using colors and each kind of display format, see <u>Using colors</u> with <u>display formats</u> and the sections that follow it. For more information about defining display formats, see Section 21.4, "Defining display formats".

Usage

In a painter

To set the display format for a DatePicker control:

• Select a value from the Format drop-down list on the General page in the Properties view.

To set the display format for a text object:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select a text object in the Text Object list box.
- 3. Enter an expression in the DisplayExpression field or select a format from the Format drop-down list.

In scripts

The following line specifies that the DatePicker control should use the short date format:

```
dp 1.Format = dtfShortDate!
```

The CustomFormat property takes a string value. The following statements set the Format property to allow a custom format, then set the custom format to display the full month name and the two-digit date followed by a comma, and the full year:

```
dp_1.Format = dtfCustom!
dp_1.CustomFormat = "MMMM dd, yyyy"
```

For grDispAttr objects, each type of display format uses special characters that have special meaning for that format. The Format property takes a string value composed of these special characters.

The following example specifies a format for numeric data that always displays three digits, with two decimal places:

```
gr_1.Values.DispAttr.Format = "0.00"
```

The following example specifies a string format for alphanumeric data:

```
gr_1.Category.dispAttr.Format = "@@@/AAA"
```

3.100 Frame

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The Frame property specifies the line style used in the frame for an axis of a 3D Graph. The frame is the side of the 3D box associated with the selected axis.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Frame line style of an Axis:

- 1. Select a 3D graph style on the General page of the graph control's Properties view. Not all 3D graph styles support the Frame property.
- 2. Display the Axis tab page of the Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Select the desired line style from the Frame drop-down list in the Line Style group.

In scripts

The Frame property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype.

This example specifies a dashed line for the Series axis frame of Graph gr_1:

gr_1.Series.Frame = Dash!

3.101 FreeDBLibraries

Applies to

Application object

Description

Determines whether PowerBuilder libraries are held in memory after PowerBuilder disconnects from a database.

Usage

Prior to PowerBuilder 8, PowerBuilder automatically freed database interface libraries when it disconnected from the database. To enhance performance and resolve process initialization issues with certain database management systems, PowerBuilder no longer frees the database interface libraries by default when it disconnects. The FreeDBLibraries property on the Application object enables you to force the release of these libraries upon disconnecting from the database.

This is a runtime property only. To free libraries held in memory after PowerBuilder disconnects from a database at design time, select the Free Database Driver Libraries On Disconnect check box on the General page of the System Options dialog box. Design-time and runtime libraries are always cleared from memory on shutdown of PowerBuilder.

For more information on the design-time selection for freeing database interface libraries, see Section 1.2, "Accessing data in PowerBuilder".

In the application painter

To free PowerBuilder libraries upon disconnecting from a database:

• Select the FreeDBLibraries check box on the General page of the application's Properties view.

In scripts

The FreeDBLibraries property takes a boolean value. The following example sets the property to clear memory and release PowerBuilder libraries after disconnecting from a database at runtime:

my_app.FreeDBLibraries = TRUE

3.102 GrantType

Applies to

TokenRequest object

Description

The type of the authorization process. Values are:

- password Resource Owner Password Credentials Grant;
- client_credentials Client Credentials Grant;
- placeholder string Extension Grant.

Usage

In a script

The GrantType property takes a string value. The following statement sets the GrantType property:

```
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.granttype = "client_credentials"
```

3.103 GraphType

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The GraphType property specifies the kind of graph: Area, Bar, Column, Line, Pie, or Scatter.

Usage

In a painter

To select the graph type:

• Select the type of graph desired from the Graph Type drop-down list on the General page of the graph's Properties view.

The graph displayed in the control changes to show an example of the selected type.

The type of graph you select affects what properties are available on other tabs.

In scripts

The GraphType property takes a value of the grGraphType enumerated datatype. The following example defines the Graph gr_1 as a 3D pie chart:

gr_1.GraphType=Pie3D!

3.104 HasButtons

Applies to

TreeView controls

Description

When HasButtons is enabled, PowerBuilder displays + and - buttons next to parent items. The buttons indicate whether an item is expanded (-) or collapsed (+).

Usage

In a painter

To enable the display of buttons:

• Select the HasButtons check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The HasButtons property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that PowerBuilder will display + and - buttons in a TreeView:

tv_1.HasButtons = TRUE

3.105 HasLines

Applies to

TreeView controls

Description

When the HasLines property is enabled, PowerBuilder connects tree items by lines.

Usage

In a painter

To enable connecting TreeView items:

• Select the HasLines check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The HasLines property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that PowerBuilder will display lines connecting tree items:

tv_1.HasLines = TRUE

3.106 HeaderFooter

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The HeaderFooter property specifies whether the control has a header/footer section. You must write a menu or button script to allow users to display the header and footer editing panels.

See Chapter 16, *Implementing Rich Text* for more information about using RichTextEdit controls.

Caution

If the RichTextEdit control does not have a header/footer section and you open a document that has a header and footer section, the header and footer is ignored. If you later save the document from within the control using the same file name, the header and footer in the original document are lost.

Usage

In a painter

To enable the header/footer section in the control:

• Select the Header-Footer check box on the Document tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The HeaderFooter property takes a boolean value, but it can be set only in the control's Properties view. The value cannot be changed during execution.

Use the ShowHeadFoot function to display the header and footer editing panels during runtime.

3.107 Height

Applies to

Visible controls, windows

Description

The Height property specifies the height of a control or window in PowerBuilder units.

Usage

In a painter

To set the height of a control or window

• Enter the desired height in the Height edit box on the Other tab page of the object's Properties view, or select the control or window and resize it with your cursor.

In scripts

The Height property takes an integer value specifying the height of an object in PowerBuilder units. The following example sets the height of a DataWindow control dw_1:

 $dw_1.Height = 750$

It is illegal to resize a minimized or maximized sheet or frame. Changing the Width or Height property for a minimized or maximized window is not supported.

3.108 HideSelection

Applies to

SingleLineEdit, MultiLineEdit, EditMask, ListView, TreeView controls

Description

If the HideSelection property is enabled, selected text does not stay selected (highlighted) when the control does not have focus. If this property is not enabled, selected text stays highlighted when the control loses focus.

Usage

In a painter

To enable HideSelection:

• Select the Hide Selection check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The HideSelection property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that selected text in a SingleLineEdit is always highlighted.

sle_1.HideSelection = FALSE

3.109 Host

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the machine name for the MobiLink synchronization server.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a value for Host on the MLServer tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter a value for the Host machine on the MLServer tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

If the host name is defined by subscriptions in the remote database, you do not need to set this property.

In scripts

You can change the Host name in script as follows:

mySync_1.Host = "myMachineName"

3.110 HScrollBar

Applies to

DataWindow, DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, EditMask, InkEdit, ListBox, PictureListBox, MultiLineEdit, and RichTextEdit controls, user objects, and windows

Description

When the HScroll Bar property is enabled, a horizontal scroll bar appears when all of the data cannot be displayed at one time. If this property is not enabled, no horizontal scroll bar appears.

Usage

In a painter

To set a horizontal scroll bar for controls:

• Select the HScroll Bar check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

To set a horizontal scroll bar for windows or user objects:

• Select the HScroll Bar check box on the Scroll tab page of the window's or object's Properties view.

In scripts

The HScrollBar property takes a boolean value. The following example allows a horizontal scroll bar to appear when needed in a ListBox.

```
lb_1.HScrollBar = TRUE
```

This property cannot be set at runtime for EditMask controls.

3.111 HSplitScroll

Applies to

DataWindow controls

Description

If the HSplit Scroll property is enabled, the user can split the DataWindow control into two panes with separate scroll bars. The user moves the split bar to divide the DataWindow control into two panes.

If this property is not enabled, the user cannot split the DataWindow control.

Usage

In a painter

To allow splitting the control into two panes:

• Select the HSplit Scrolling check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The HSplitScroll property takes a boolean value. The following example allows splitting of a DataWindow control dw 1:

dw_1.HSplitScroll = TRUE

3.112 HTextAlign

Applies to

PictureButton controls

Description

The HTextAlign property specifies whether text in the PictureButton control is right aligned, left aligned, or centered horizontally.

Usage

In a painter

To set the horizontal alignment of text:

• Select the desired alignment from the Horizontal Alignment drop-down list on the General tab of the control's Properties view, or use the Left, Right, and Center alignment buttons on the StyleBar.

In scripts

The HTextAlign property takes a value of the Alignment enumerated datatype.

The following example specifies right alignment for text in a PictureButton.

pb_1.HTextAlign = Right!

3.113 Icon

Applies to

DataWindow controls and windows

Description

The Icon property specifies the icon to display when the DataWindow control or window is minimized. You can specify a stock icon or any icon file name.

Usage

In a painter

To specify an icon for minimization:

- 1. Display the Icon tab page of the window's or control's Properties view.
- 2. Specify an Icon Name by selecting a stock icon from the Stock Icons list box, or use the Browse button to select another icon (.ICO) file.

After you have selected an icon, the image is displayed on the Icon tab page.

In scripts

The Icon property takes a string containing the name of the icon file you want to display when the window or control is minimized. You can specify a stock icon or any icon file name.

This example sets the icon for a window to an icon file called arrow.ico:

```
w_1.Icon = 'c:\examples\arrow.ico'
```

This example sets the icon for a window to the stock icon Rectangle:

```
w_1.Icon = 'Rectangle!'
```

3.114 IgnoreCase

Applies to

JSONPackage controls

Description

Specifies whether to ignore the case for key. Values are:

- TRUE Ignores the case for key. This is the default value.
- FALSE Respects the case for key.

Usage

In scripts

The IgnoreCase property takes a boolean value. The default is true.

The following example specifies that the case for key is respected:

```
boolean lb_exist
JsonPackage lnv_package
lnv_package = create JsonPackage
lnv_package.ignorecase = false

// package the data
lnv_package.SetValue("d_employee", dw_employee)
//lb_exist returns false
lb_exist = lnv_package.ContainsKey("D_EMPLOYEE")
//lb_exist returns true
lb_exist = lnv_package.ContainsKey("d_employee")
```

3.115 IgnoreDefaultButton

Applies to

EditMask, MultiLineEdit controls

Description

The IgnoreDefaultButton property specifies whether the Clicked event for the window's default button is triggered when user presses Enter.

When this property is enabled, pressing Enter does not trigger the Clicked event, but instead adds a new line in the control.

When this property is not enabled, pressing Enter does trigger the Clicked event and a new line is not added in the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the IgnoreDefaultButton property:

• Select the Ignore Default Button check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The IgnoreDefaultButton property takes a boolean value. The default is false.

The following example specifies that pressing Enter does not trigger the Clicked event for the window's default button and adds a new line in the MultiLineEdit control instead:

mle_1.IgnoreDefaultButton = TRUE

3.116 IgnorePressure

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

A drawing attribute that specifies whether the drawn ink gets wider as the pressure of the pen tip on the tablet surface increases.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that the pressure of the pen tip should be ignored:

• Select the IgnorePressure check box on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The IgnorePressure property takes a boolean value.

This example sets the IgnorePressure property to true for the control ie_1:

ie_1.IgnorePressure = TRUE

3.117 Increment

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

When an EditMask control has been defined as a spin control (that is, a control with up and down arrows the user clicks to cycle through predefined values), the Increment property specifies the increment of the spin arrows.

Increment is valid only for numeric and date datatypes. In a date datatype, the increment applies only to the year.

Usage

In a painter

To set the increment of a spin control:

- Select the Spin Control check box on the Mask tab page of the control's Properties view.
 The Increment field becomes active.
- 2. Select the mask datatype from the Type drop-down list.
- 3. Enter an increment value in the Spin Increment field.

In scripts

The Increment property takes a double. The following line specifies an increment of 10 for an EditMask:

em 1.Increment = 10.0

3.118 Indent

Applies to

TreeView controls

Description

The Indent property specifies how far each level of the TreeView is indented. The numeric value you type is the indentation amount in PowerBuilder units.

Usage

In a painter

To set the indentation of items in a tree view control:

• Enter the amount of the indentation, in PowerBuilder units, in the Indentation field of the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Indent property takes an integer value. The following script sets an indentation of 100 PowerBuilder units:

tv_1.Indent = 100

3.119 InkAntiAliased

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

A drawing attribute that specifies whether the foreground and background colors along the edge of the drawn ink are blended (antialiased) to make the stroke smoother and sharper.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that the foreground and background colors are not blended:

• Clear the InkAntiAliased check box on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InkAntiAliased property takes a boolean value.

This example sets the InkAntiAliased property to false for the control ie_1:

ie_1.InkAntiAliased = FALSE

3.120 InkColor

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

A drawing attribute that specifies the current ink color. The default color is black.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a color for the ink drawn in an InkEdit or InkPicture control:

• Select a color from the InkColor drop-down list on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InkColor property takes a long value.

This example sets the InkColor property to the long value for magenta for the control ip_1:

```
ip_1.InkColor = 16711935
```

This example in the Moved event of a trackbar control sets the InkColor property using the RGB function and the scroll position selected by the user:

```
ip_1.InkColor = RGB(scrollpos/4, scrollpos/16, scrollpos/64)
```

3.121 InkEnabled

Applies to

InkPicture controls

Description

Specifies whether ink collection is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that an InkPicture control can collect ink:

• Select the InkEnabled check box on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InkEnabled property takes a boolean value.

The value of the property is always false on systems that do not have the Tablet PC SDK installed. You must set this property to false before changing the MarginX and MarginY properties, and you should set it to false before closing an application. Before changing this property, make sure the control is not collecting ink by checking the Status property.

This example checks that the ip_1 control is not collecting ink, then disables ink collection:

3.122 InkHeight

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

A drawing attribute that specifies the height of the side of the rectangular pen tip in pixels. The default is 53 pixels. This property has no effect on the ball pen tip.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the height of the ink drawn in an InkEdit or InkPicture control:

• Type or select a value in the InkHeight spin control on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InkHeight property takes an integer value.

This example in the Moved event of a trackbar control sets the InkHeight property using the scroll position in the trackbar selected by the user:

```
ip_1.InkHeight = int(scrollpos)
```

3.123 InkMode

Applies to

InkEdit controls

Description

Specifies whether ink collection is enabled and whether ink only or ink and gestures are collected.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the mode of ink collection:

• Select a value from the InkMode drop-down list on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InkMode property takes a value of the InkMode enumerated variable. Values are:

- CollectInk! -- Only ink is collected.
- CollectInkAndGestures! -- Ink and gestures are collected (default).
- InkDisabled! -- Ink collection is disabled.

The value of the property is always InkDisabled! on systems that do not have an ink recognizer installed.

This example specifies that the InkEdit control will collect ink but ignore gestures:

ie_1.InkMode = CollectInk!

3.124 InkWidth

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

A drawing attribute that specifies the width of the pen in pixels. The default is 53 pixels. If the IgnorePressure property is not set, the actual width varies between .5 times the value of the Width property for minimum pressure and 1.5 times its value for maximum pressure.

The pen tip can be a ball or a rectangle. The InkWidth property specifies the diameter of the ball tip and the width of the rectangular tip.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the width of the ink drawn in an InkEdit or InkPicture control:

• Type or select a value in the InkWidth spin control on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InkWidth property takes an integer value.

This example sets the InkWidth property for ie_1 to 106:

ie_1.InkWidth = 106

3.125 InputFieldBackColor

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The InputFieldBackColor property sets the color for the background of input fields in the RichTextEdit control. This item can also be selected by the user at runtime from the Properties item of the pop-up menu.

Usage

In a painter

To set the background color of input fields:

• Select the desired color from the Background Field Color drop-down list on the Document page of the control's Properties view.

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

In scripts

The InputFieldBackColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that defines the background color for input fields. The value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

This statement makes the input fields red.

rte_1.InputFieldBackColor = RGB(255, 0, 0)

3.126 InputFieldNamesVisible

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When the InputFieldNamesVisible property is enabled, the control displays input field names rather than input field values. When this property is not enabled, the RichTextEdit control displays the input field values.

You can set this property in a RichTextEdit control only at runtime using scripts. This property can also be enabled and disabled by the user at runtime from the properties item of the pop-up menu.

Usage

In a painter

The InputFieldNamesVisible property cannot be set at design time for the RichTextEdit control.

In scripts

The InputFieldNamesVisible property takes a boolean value. The following example causes input fields to display data rather than field names:

rte_1.InputFieldNamesVisible = FALSE

3.127 InputFieldsVisible

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When the InputFieldVisible property is enabled, input fields appear on the RichTextEdit control

Usage

In a painter

To make input fields visible:

 Select the Fields Visible check box on the Document tab page of the control's property page.

In scripts

The InputFieldsVisible property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that input fields are visible in a RichTextEdit control:

rte_1.InputFieldsVisible = TRUE

3.128 InsertAsText

Applies to

InkEdit controls

Description

Specifies whether the ink is inserted as text or as ink.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that ink added to the InkEdit control is not converted to text:

• Clear the InsertAsText check box on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The InsertAsText property takes a boolean value. By default, ink is converted to text after a brief pause. If you want the ink to be displayed as ink in the control instead of being converted to text, set the value of the InsertAsText property to false:

ie_1.InsertAsText = FALSE

3.129 Invert

Applies to

Picture and PictureHyperLink controls

Description

If the Invert property is enabled, PowerBuilder displays the picture with its colors inverted. If this property is not enabled, the picture appears in its normal color.

Usage

In a painter

To invert colors in a picture control:

• Select the Invert Image check box on the General page of the control's property page.

In scripts

The Invert property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that a Picture control, p_1, will appear in its normal colors:

```
p_1.Invert = FALSE
```

3.130 Italic

Applies to

Controls that display text

Description

Italic is a property of text in a control.

Usage

In a painter

To italicize all text items in a control:

• Select the Italic check box on the Font tab page of the control's property page, or select the control and then click the I button on the StyleBar.

To italicize a text objects in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 3. Select the Italic check box.

In scripts

The Italic property takes a boolean value. The following example italicizes the text in a StaticText control:

```
st_1.Italic = TRUE
```

This example italicizes the label of the Value axis of a graph control:

```
gr_1.Values.LabelDispAttr.Italic = TRUE
```

3.131 Item[]

Applies to

ListView, ListBox, PictureListBox, DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, and Toolbar controls

Description

The Item property array specifies the items in the control. This array is not updated after initialization.

Usage

In a painter

To add items to a control:

• Enter the items on the Items tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Item[] property is an array of strings, but it is not updated after initialization. Use the AddItem or appropriate InsertItem function instead.

3.132 ItemPictureIndex[]

Applies to

PictureListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, ListView

Description

The ItemPictureIndex property array identifies the pictures associated with items in the control. This array is not updated after initialization.

Usage

In a painter

To associate pictures with list items:

- 1. Display the Pictures tab page in the control's Properties view and add the pictures to be used in the control to the PictureName list.
 - For ListView controls, add pictures to the PictureName lists on the LargePicture, SmallPicture, and State tab pages.
- 2. Display the Items tab page in the Properties view and add text to the Item list.
- 3. In the ItemPictureIndex list, add the index number for a picture (from the PictureName lists) on the appropriate lines for the items with which you want to associate pictures.

In scripts

You add pictures to controls with the AddPicture function and add items to these controls with the AddItem or InsertItem functions. You use picture indexes in the AddItem and InsertItem functions to associate pictures with the items. See Chapter 9, *Using Lists in a Window* for more information.

3.133 Label

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls, ListViewItem objects, TreeViewItem objects

Description

Within graphs

The Label property specifies the label of an axis of the graph.

Within ListView and TreeView controls

The Label property specifies the label associated with a ListViewItem or TreeViewItem object. You cannot manipulate items in TreeView controls in a painter. You must write scripts to add items to a TreeView.

Usage

In a painter

To specify an Axis label in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 3. Enter the label text in the Label text field.

To specify labels for items in a ListView control:

- 1. Display the Items tab page of the ListView control's Properties view.
- 2. For each item, enter label text in the appropriate Text field.

In scripts

The Label property takes a string value. The following example sets text for the label on the Values axis of graph gr_1.

```
gr_1.Values.Label = 'Lawsuits per 1000'
```

To add or insert an item with a label into a ListView control, use the AddItem or InsertItem functions. For example, this line adds an item to ListView control lv_1, specifying the label and picture index for the item:

```
lv_1.AddItem ( "Oranges", 1)
```

To change the label, get the item from the ListView and set the item's Label property:

```
ListViewItem lvi
lv_1.GetItem(4, lvi)
lvi.Label = "Apples"
lv_1.SetItem(4, lvi)
```

To add or insert items in a TreeView control, use the InsertItem, InsertItemFirst, InsertItemLast, or InsertItemSort functions.

For more information, see Chapter 8, *Using TreeView Controls* and Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.134 LabelWrap

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

When the LabelWrap property is enabled, long ListView item labels wrap in a large icon view. If LabelWrap is not enabled, labels are displayed on a single line. LabelWrap does not apply to report, list, or small icon views.

Usage

In a painter

To enable label wrap for a ListView control:

• Select the Label Wrap check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LabelWrap property takes a boolean value. The following line enables word wrapping of labels in a ListView:

lv_1.LabelWrap = TRUE

3.135 LargePictureHeight

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

The LargePictureHeight property specifies the display height of all the pictures in the Large Icon view of the ListView control. The size is specified in pixels.

If you choose the value (Default) in the painter, or set the value to 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture in the array as the height for all the pictures. The other choices in the painter, 16 and 32, are standard pixel heights for icons.

Usage

In a painter

To set the large picture height:

• Select a value from the Height drop-down list on the Large Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LargePictureHeight property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddLargePicture function or after calling DeleteLargePictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture is used to set the size of large pictures.

The following line sets the height for large pictures in a ListView to 32 pixels:

lv_1.LargePictureHeight = 32

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.136 LargePictureMaskColor

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

The mask color is the color in the picture that is transparent when the picture is displayed.

Select the color to mask newly added user-defined bitmaps. In scripts, you can change the mask color before adding each picture. Each image uses the mask color that was in effect when it was added.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a picture mask color:

• Select a color from the Picture Mask Color drop-down list on the Large Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

In scripts

The LargePictureMaskColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color. This property is used when each bitmap is added and, therefore, can be changed between AddLargePicture calls.

The LargePictureMaskColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color. If you do not know the long value for a particular color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the mask color for user-defined bitmaps in a ListView:

lv_1.LargePictureMaskColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.137 LargePictureName[]

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

PowerBuilder stores ListView images in several indexed arrays of images. You can associate an image with a specific ListView item when you create a ListView in the painter or use the AddItem and InsertItem functions at execution time.

You identify a specific image by its index number. Because the same index number refers to both the large picture and the small picture for the item (depending on which view is

selected), you need to make sure the images for each position in the array are compatible. The type of image used is determined by the value of the View property of the control.

Usage

In a painter

To specify images for the Large Icon view

- 1. Select the Large Picture tab page from the ListView control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the rows provided in the Picture Name field, type the complete path and name of the files containing the desired pictures.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Select one or more pictures from the Stock Pictures list.

The order of the picture names specified here should match the picture name order used for the Small Icon view.

3. Use the row numbers from this Picture Name list to specify the Picture Index for each List View Item on the Items tab page.

In scripts

The LargePictureName property takes a string value. You cannot use the LargePictureName property to update the image list during execution. Use the AddLargePicture function to add large pictures to a ListView control. For example:

```
lv_1.AddLargePicture("c:\ArtGal\bmps\celtic.bmp")
```

When you add a large picture to a ListView control, it is given the next available picture index in the ListView.

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.138 LargePictureWidth

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

The LargePictureWidth property specifies the display width of all the pictures in the Large Icon view of the ListView control. The size is specified in pixels.

If you choose the value (Default) in the painter, or set the value to 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture in the array as the width for all the pictures. The other choices in the painter, 16 and 32, are standard pixel widths for icons.

Usage

In a painter

To set the large picture width:

• Select a value from the Width drop-down list on the Large Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LargePictureWidth property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddLargePicture function or after calling DeleteLargePictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture is used to set the size of large pictures.

The following line sets the width for large pictures in a ListView to 32 pixels:

```
lv_1.LargePictureWidth = 32
```

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.139 LayoutRTL

Applies to

ListView and TreeView controls

Description

The LayoutRTL property specifies that the layout of the control should be a mirror image of the standard layout. Scroll bars display at the left of the control. In a ListView, icons are right justified. In a TreeView, the root-level icon is right justified and its label displays to the left of the icon. Lower levels are indented from the right. Unlike the RightToLeft property, which affects the display of characters, the LayoutRTL property does not require an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:

- TRUE -- Elements in the control are right justified.
- FALSE -- Elements in the control are left justified (default).

For best results, set this property in the painter so that you can see its effect. Setting this property at runtime can have unexpected results.

Usage

In a painter

To set the LayoutRTL property:

• Select the RTL Layout check box on the Other page in the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LayoutRTL property takes a boolean value.

The following line sets the LayoutRTL property of a ListView control to true:

lv_1.LayoutRTL = TRUE

The following lines determine the value of the LayoutRTL property for a TreeView control:

```
boolean bRTL
bRTL = tv_1.LayoutRTL
```

3.140 LeftMargin

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The LeftMargin property specifies the size in inches of the left margin on the printed page.

Usage

In a painter

To set the left margin:

• Enter the desired size in inches in the Left Margin field of the Document tab page of the RichTextEdit control's property page.

In scripts

The LeftMargin property takes a long value. The following line sets the left margin of a RichTextEdit to 1 inch:

```
rte_1.LeftMargin = 1
```

3.141 LeftText

Applies to

CheckBox, RadioButton controls

Description

If the LeftText property is enabled, the text for a CheckBox or RadioButton appears to the left of the button. If LeftText is not enabled, the text appears to the right of the control. You can also specify left or right alignment with the left and right StyleBar buttons.

Usage note

When the LeftText property is enabled and you align multiple CheckBoxes or RadioButtons to the left, PowerBuilder may align the text but not the boxes or buttons. This is because PowerBuilder aligns the complete control.

Usage

In a painter

To place text to the left:

• Select the Left Text check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LeftText property takes a boolean value. The following line puts the text for a CheckBox to the left of the box:

cbx_1.LeftText = TRUE

3.142 Legend

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The value of the Legend property specifies the placement of the graph's legend, or that there should be no legend.

Usage

In a painter

To set the location of the legend:

• Select the desired location from the Legend drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Legend property takes a value of the grLegendType enumerated datatype. The following example sets the location of the legend to below the graph:

gr_1.Legend = AtBottom!

3.143 Limit

Applies to

DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, EditMask, InkEdit, MultiLineEdit, SingleLineEdit controls

Description

The Limit property controls the number of characters the user can enter in the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the maximum number of characters allowed:

• Type the number of characters that the user can enter in the control in the Limit field of the General page of the control's Properties view.

0 indicates an unlimited number of characters.

In scripts

The Limit property takes an integer value.

The following example sets 256 as the maximum number of characters for the MultiLineEdit mle 1:

 $mle_1.Limit = 256$

3.144 LineColor

Applies to

Line, Oval, Rectangle, RoundRectangle controls

Description

The line color is the color for the border and the lines in the control's fill pattern.

Usage

In a painter

To change the line color:

• Select a color from the Line Color drop-down list on the General page of the control's property sheet, or select a color from the Background Color option on the Style Bar.

Using the StyleBar lets you change the line color for several selected objects at the same time. To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before opening the Properties view.

In scripts

The LineColor property takes a long value. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following statement specifies red as the line color for a Rectangle:

 $r_1.LineColor = RGB(255,0,0)$

3.145 LinesAtRoot

Applies to

TreeView controls

Description

When LinesAtRoot is enabled, PowerBuilder connects all root items in a TreeView with lines.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that root items in a TreeView are connected:

• Select the Lines At Root check box on the General page of the control's property page.

In scripts

The LinesAtRoot property takes a boolean value.

The following line specifies that all root items in a TreeView are connected:

tv_1.LinesAtRoot = TRUE

3.146 LinesPerPage

Applies to

User objects and windows

Description

The LinesPerPage property determines the number of lines on a page for scrolling purposes. PowerBuilder multiplies Units Per Line by Lines Per Page to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window vertically when the user clicks in the scroll bar.

For information on calculating LinesPerPage and UnitsPerLine, see <u>Scrolling in windows and user objects</u>.

To control the horizontal scroll bar in a window or user object, use the UnitsPerColumn and ColumnsPerPage properties.

Usage

In a painter

To set the LinesPerPage property:

• Enter the desired number (between 1 and 100) in the Lines Per Page option on the Scroll tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The LinesPerPage property takes an integer value between 1 and 100. The following line sets LinesPerPage for a window to 20:

This.LinesPerPage = 20

3.147 LineStyle

Applies to

Line, Oval, Rectangle, RoundRectangle controls

Description

The LineStyle property specifies the appearance of a line object or the border around other drawing objects.

Usage

In a painter

To set the line style:

• Select a line style from the Line Style drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LineStyle property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype. The following example sets a dashed line for a Rectangle:

r_1.LineStyle = Dash!

3.148 LinkUpdateOptions

Applies to

OLE controls

Description

The LinkUpdateOptions property specifies how a linked object in an OLE control is updated. There are two options: automatic and manual. If automatic is chosen, the link is updated when the object is opened and whenever the object changes in the server application. If manual is chosen, the link is not updated.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Link Update option:

• Choose Automatic or Manual from the Link Update drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LinkUpdateOptions property takes a value of the omLinkUpdateOptions enumerated datatype.

The following example sets the OLE control's update option to automatic:

ole_1.LinkUpdateOptions = LinkUpdateAutomatic!

3.149 LiveScroll

Applies to

DataWindow controls

Description

When the LiveScroll property is enabled, the rows in the DataWindow control scroll while the user is moving the scroll box. If this property is not enabled, the rows do not scroll until the user releases the scroll box.

Usage

In a painter

To enable live scrolling in a DataWindow control:

• Select the Live Scrolling check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The LiveScroll property takes a boolean value.

The following example allows scrolling while the user moves the scroll box in the DataWindow control:

This.LiveScroll = TRUE

3.150 LogFileName

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the full name of the log file for the synchronization process.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a value for the log file name on the Logging tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter a value for the log file name on the Settings tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can change the log file name in script as follows:

mySync_1.logfilename = "c:\documents\mylogfile.txt"

3.151 LogOpts

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies dbmlsync options to control logging output.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a value for LogOpts in the Log Options text box on the Logging tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter a value for LogOpts in the Logging text box on the Settings tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

Logging options are indicated with a short text description on the MobiLink Client Logging Options page of the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can change the logging options in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.LogOpts = "-v+"
```

The -v+ value logs all synchronization information except the connection string and the MobiLink password.

3.152 MajorGridLine

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The major grid for an axis extends from the tick marks on the axis across the data area of the graph. The minor grid lines fall between the tick marks and display when the number of divisions is 2 or greater.

The MajorGridLine property specifies the line style for the major grid.

Usage

In a painter

To set the line style for a major grid line:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Select the desired line style from the MajorGridLine drop-down list in the Major Divisions group.

In scripts

The MajorGridLine property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype.

This example specifies a dashed line for the major grid line on the Value axis of Graph gr_1:

gr_1.Value.MajorGridLine = Dash!

3.153 Major Divisions

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MajorDivisions property specifies the number of divisions or ticks on the axis, not counting the origin point.

The default value of 0 means the graph uses a MajorDivision value optimized for the data and suppresses MinorDivision ticks.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the number of major divisions on an axis:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page from the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Use the spin control in the MajorDivisions field of the Major Divisions group to specify the desired number of divisions.

In scripts

The MajorDivisions property takes an integer specifying the number of major divisions on an axis.

The following example sets 10 ticks on the major grid of the Values axis of a graph.

gr_1.Values.MajorDivisions = 10

3.154 MajorTic

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MajorTic property specifies how ticks overlap the axis for the major grid. Ticks can be placed on the inside of the axis line, on the outside, or straddling it; or there can be no ticks visible.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the type of major tick marks:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Select the desired type of tick mark from the MajorTick drop-down list box in the Major Division group.

In scripts

The MajorTic property takes a value of the grTicType enumerated datatype.

The following line sets ticks on the major grid to straddle the grid:

gr_1.Values.MajorTic = Straddle!

3.155 Map3DColors

Applies to

Picture, PictureHyperlink, and PictureButton controls

Description

Maps the silver and other gray colors in the bitmap associated with the control to the button highlight, button face, or button shadow colors set in the Windows control panel. When this property is false (the default), the control uses the standard PowerBuilder button colors defined in the bitmap.

Use this feature if you want to place a control containing a picture on a window and have the picture blend in with the background color of the window when the window's background is using Button Face for a 3D effect. The control's picture then takes on the 3D colors the user has selected on the Appearance page of the Display Properties dialog box in the Windows control panel.

The window's background must be set to Button Face. To make the image blend in with the window, give it a background color in the range between RGB(160,160,160) and RGB(223,223,223), such as silver. Lighter shades of gray map to the button highlight color and darker shades to the button shadow color.

This option can affect other colors used in the bitmap. It does not affect the control's border settings, and it has no effect if there is no image associated with the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set 3DColor mapping:

• Select the 3D Color check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Map3DColors property takes a boolean value. The following example sets 3D color mapping for a PictureButton:

pb_1.Map3DColors = TRUE

3.156 Mask

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

The Mask property controls the characters the user can enter in the control and also the formatting of the characters. You must use special characters to define the mask, depending on the mask type defined with the MaskDataType property.

PowerBuilder supports six mask types:

- DateMask!
- DateTimeMask!
- · DecimalMask!
- NumericMask!
- StringMask!
- TimeMask!

Characters that have special significance for each mask type display in the Mask drop-down list. Characters that do not have special meaning for the format appear as is in the EditMask control.

For most mask types, the special characters you can use in a mask are the same as those you can use in a display format. For more information about using each kind of display format, see <u>About Display Formats and Scrolling</u>. For more information about defining display formats, see Section 21.4, "Defining display formats".

The special characters you can use in string edit masks are different from those you can use in string display formats.

Table 3.7: Special characters for string edit masks

Character	Meaning
!	Uppercase displays all characters with letters in uppercase
^	Lowercase displays all characters with letters in lowercase
#	Number displays only numbers
a	Alphanumeric displays only letters and numbers
X	Any character displays all characters

If you use the "#" or "a" special characters in a mask, then Unicode characters, spaces, and other characters that are not alphanumeric do not display.

Usage

In a painter

To specify an edit mask:

- 1. Display the Mask tab page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the mask datatype from the MaskDataType drop-down list.
- 3. Type the mask characters in the Mask field, or click the right arrow at the end of the Mask field and select one or more of the mask character examples displayed in the popup menu.

The pop-up menu examples change based on the mask datatype you selected in the MaskDataType list.

In scripts

The Mask property takes a string value and can be used to obtain the value of a mask. It cannot be used to set the value.

The following example uses the SetMask function to set the datatype and string format for a mask, and then uses the Mask property to obtain the value of the string format. The mask specifies that the first letter in the string is displayed in uppercase and the next nine characters in lowercase. If the string has more than ten characters, they do not display:

```
string ls_mask

em_1.SetMask(StringMask!, '!^^^^^^')

ls_mask = em_1.Mask
```

3.157 MaskDataType

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

This property specifies the datatype of the control. The special characters used to define the mask differ depending on the datatype of the mask control.

Usage

In a painter

To select the mask datatype:

• Select the desired type from the Type drop-down list box in the Options group on the Mask tab.

The examples of special characters displayed in the Masks field change to show the characters relevant to the selected mask datatype.

In scripts

The MaskDataType property takes a value of the MaskDataType enumerated datatype and can be used to obtain the datatype of a mask. It cannot be used to set the datatype.

The following example uses the SetMask function to set the datatype and date format for a mask, and then uses the Mask property to obtain the value of the date format:

```
MaskDataType l_mdt
em_1.SetMask(DateMask!, 'mm/dd/yy')
l_mdt = em_1.MaskDataType
```

3.158 MaxBox

Applies to

DataWindow controls, Windows

Description

The MaxBox property specifies whether a Maximize box is displayed on the control's title bar.

Usage

In a painter

To display a Maximize box on a DataWindow control:

- 1. Select the TitleBar check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the MaxBox check box on the General page.

To display a Maximize box in a window:

• If the MaxBox check box is grayed out, select the Title Bar check box on the General page of the window's Properties view, then select the MaxBox check box.

For certain types of windows, having a title bar is not the default and therefore the MaxBox check box can be grayed out until you select the TitleBar check box.

In scripts

The MaxBox property takes a boolean value.

The following example specifies that the DataWindow control should have a title bar with a Maximize box:

```
dw_1.TitleBar = TRUE
dw_1.MaxBox = TRUE
```

3.159 MaximumValue

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MaximumValue property specifies the maximum value for an axis when the axis datatype is numeric. This property is not used if the Autoscale property is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To set the maximum value of an axis with a numeric datatype:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Make sure that the Autoscale check box is not checked.
- 3. Select adtDouble! from the DataType drop-down list.
- 4. Specify the desired maximum numeric value in the MaximumValue field. This value should be larger than the maximum data value being graphed.

In scripts

The MaximumValue property takes a double value.

The following line sets a maximum value for an Axis with a datatype of double.

```
gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDouble!
gr_1.Values.MaximumValue = 500000.00
```

3.160 MaxDate

Applies to

DatePicker controls

Description

Specifies the maximum date that the user can select in the calendar.

Usage

In a painter

To set the MaxDate property:

• Select a date from the drop-down calendar or type a date in the MaxDate field on the General page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The MaxDate property takes a Date value. The default is December 31, 2999. You can change this setting to restrict the range of dates a user can select. This example sets MaxDate to June 30, 2007:

dp_1.MaxDate = Date("2007/06/30")

3.161 MaxPosition

Applies to

HProgressBar, VProgressBar, HScrollBar, VScrollBar, HTrackBar, VTrackBar controls

Description

The MaxPosition property specifies the value of the Position property when the progress indicator, scroll box, or slider is at the bottom of the vertical control or the right edge of the horizontal control. For a progress bar, this value can be different from the end of the control's range, set with the SetRange function.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the maximum position of the progress indicator, scroll box, or slider:

 Enter an integer value into the Max Position field of the General tab of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The MaxPosition property takes an integer value.

The following example specifies that the value of the Position property is 120 when a scroll box is in the maximum position:

vsb_1.MaxPosition = 120

3.162 MaxSelectCount

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls

Description

Specifies the maximum number of days the user can select in the calendar.

Usage

In a painter

To set the MaxSelectCount property:

• Select a number from the MaxSelectCount spin control on the General page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The MaxSelectCount property takes an integer value between 1 and 360. The default is 31. You can change this setting to enable users to select fewer or more than 31 days in the calendar and before calling the SetSelectedRange function if you want to set a different limit. This example sets MaxSelectCount to 7:

```
mc_1.MaxSelectCount = 7
```

3.163 MaxValDateTime

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MaxValDateTime property specifies the maximum value for an axis when the axis datatype is date or time. This property is not used if the Autoscale property is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To set the maximum value of an axis with a date or time datatype:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Make sure that the Autoscale check box is not checked.
- 3. Select adtDate!, adtTime!, or adtDateTime! from the DataType drop-down list.
- 4. Specify the desired maximum date or time value in the MaximumValue field.

 This value should be larger than the maximum data value being graphed.

In scripts

The MaxValDateTime property takes a value of the DateTime datatype.

The following example sets the MaxValDateTime property for an Axis with a datatype of date:

```
gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDate!
gr_1.Values.MaxValDateTime = 12/31/1999
```

3.164 MenuName

Applies to

Windows

Description

The MenuName property specifies the menu object that is the menu for the window.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a menu:

• Enter a menu name in the Menu Name field on the General page of the window's Properties view, or use the Browse button to choose a menu object from the current or another PBL.

In scripts

The MenuName property takes a string containing the name of a menu object. PowerBuilder uses it internally to identify the menu. Do not change this property in a script. Instead, use the ChangeMenu or PopMenu functions to display a menu.

3.165 Method

Applies to

TokenRequest and OAuthRequest objects

Description

HTTP method for sending the authentication request. Values are:

GET – HTTP get method;

POST – HTTP post method.

Usage

In a script

The Method property takes a string value. The following statement sets the Method property to "POST":

```
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.method = "POST"
```

3.166 MinBox

Applies to

DataWindow controls, Windows

Description

The MinBox property specifies whether a Minimize box is displayed on the control's title bar.

Usage

In a painter

To display a Minimize box on a DataWindow control:

- 1. Select the TitleBar check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the MinBox check box on the General page.

To display a Minimize box in a window:

• If the MinBox check box is grayed out, select the TitleBar check box on the General page of the window's Properties view, then select the MinBox check box.

For certain types of windows, having a title bar is not the default and therefore the MinBox check box can be grayed out until you select the TitleBar check box.

In scripts

The MinBox property takes a boolean value.

The following example specifies that the DataWindow control should have a title bar with a Minimize box:

```
dw_1.TitleBar = TRUE
dw_1.MinBox = TRUE
```

3.167 MinDate

Applies to

DatePicker controls

Description

Specifies the minimum date that the user can select in the calendar.

Usage

In a painter

To set the MinDate property:

• Select a date from the drop-down calendar or type a date in the MinDate field on the General page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The MinDate property takes a Date value. The default is January 1, 1800. You can change this setting to restrict the range of dates a user can select. This example sets MinDate to September 1, 2006:

```
dp_1.MinDate = Date("2006/09/01")
```

3.168 Minimum Value

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The Minimum Value property specifies the minimum value for an axis when the axis datatype is numeric. This property is not used if the Autoscale property is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To set the minimum value of an axis with a numeric datatype:

1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.

- 2. Make sure that the Autoscale check box is not checked.
- 3. Select adtDouble! from the DataType drop-down list.
- 4. Specify the desired minimum numeric value in the Minimum Value field.

This value should be smaller than the minimum data value being graphed.

In scripts

The MinimumValue property takes a double value.

The following line sets a minimum value for an Axis with a datatype of double:

```
gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDouble!
gr_1.Values.MinimumValue = 0.00
```

3.169 MinMax

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

The value of the MinMax property specifies the minimum and maximum values allowed when the EditMask functions as a spin control.

You can specify minimum and maximum values only for date and numeric datatypes. For dates, enter a full date (for example, 1/1/2003), although the minimum and maximum values affect only the year. The user can scroll freely through the days and months.

Usage

In a painter

To set the minimum and maximum spin values:

- 1. Select the Spin Control check box on the Mask tab page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Enter minimum and maximum values in the Min and Max fields in the Spin Range group.

In scripts

The MinMax property takes a string value. The values are separated with two tildes (~~).

The following example sets the minimum and maximum spin for an Edit Mask em_1:

```
em_1.MinMax = ("100 \sim 10000")
```

3.170 Minor Divisions

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MinorDivisions property specifies the number of spaces between major ticks. To see minor ticks, specify a value of two or greater because the last minor tick is overlaid by the next major tick.

The default value of 0 in the MajorDivisions field means the graph uses a MajorDivision value optimized for the data and suppresses MinorDivision ticks.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the number of minor divisions on an axis:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page from the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Use the spin control in the MinorDivisions field of the Minor Divisions group to specify the desired number of divisions.

In scripts

The MinorDivisions property takes an integer specifying the number of minor divisions on an axis.

The following example sets 10 ticks on the minor grid of the Values axis of a graph.

gr_1.Values.MinorDivisions = 10

3.171 MinorGridLine

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The minor grid for an axis extends from the tick marks on the axis across the data area of the graph. The minor grid lines fall between the tick marks and display when the number of divisions is two or greater.

The MinorGridLine property specifies the line style for the minor grid.

Usage

In a painter

To set the line style for a minor grid line:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Select the desired line style from the MinorGridLine drop-down list in the Minor Divisions group.

In scripts

The MinorGridLine property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype.

This example specifies a dotted line for the minor grid line on the Value axis of Graph gr_1:

gr_1.Value.MinorGridLine = Dot!

3.172 MinorTic

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MinorTic property specifies how ticks overlap the axis for the minor grid. Ticks can be placed on the inside of the axis line, on the outside, or straddling it; or there can be no ticks visible.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the type of minor tick marks:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Select the desired type of tick mark from the MinorTicks drop-down list box in the Minor Division group.

In scripts

The MinorTic property takes a value of the grTicType enumerated datatype.

The following line sets ticks on the minor grid to outside the grid:

gr_1.Values.MinorTic = Outside!

3.173 MinPosition

Applies to

HProgressBar, VProgressBar, HScrollBar, VScrollBar, HTrackBar, VTrackBar controls

Description

The MinPosition property specifies the value of the Position property when the progress indicator, scroll box, or slider is at the top of the vertical control or the left edge of the horizontal control. For a progress bar, this value can be different from the start of the control's range, set with the SetRange function.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the minimum position of the progress indicator, scroll box, or slider:

• Enter an integer value into the Min Position field of the General tab of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The MinPosition property takes an integer value.

The following example specifies that the value of the Position property will be 0 when a scroll box is in the minimum position:

 $vsb_1.MinPosition = 0$

3.174 MinValDateTime

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The MinValDateTime property specifies the minimum value for an axis when the axis datatype is date or time. This property is not used if the Autoscale property is enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To set the minimum value of an axis with a date or time datatype:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis list.
- 2. Make sure that the Autoscale check box is not checked.
- 3. Select adtDate!, adtTime!, or adtDateTime! from the DataType drop-down list.
- 4. Specify the desired minimum date or time value in the MinimumValue field. This value should be smaller than the minimum data value being graphed.

In scripts

The MinValDateTime property takes a value of the DateTime datatype.

The following example sets the MinValDateTime property for an Axis with a datatype of date:

```
gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDate!
gr_1.Values.MinValDateTime = 01/31/1900
```

3.175 MLPass

Applies to

MLSynchronization, MLSync, and SyncParm objects

Description

Specifies the MobiLink password passed to the synchronization server.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a value for MLPass on the General tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter a value for MLPass in the MLPassword text box on the Subscriptions tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can set the MobiLink password in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.MLPass = "myMLPassword"
```

You can also set a new MobiLink password with the SetNewMobiLinkPassword function.

3.176 MLServerVersion

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the MobiLink server version. You can use 9, 10, 11, 12, 16, or 17 as the server version.

Usage

This is a required property of the synchronization object. If the property value has not been set before a synchronize call, the synchronization fails and an error string is saved to the synchronization object's ErrorText property.

At design time, you can enter a value for MLServerVersion on the General tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object.

In scripts

You can set the MobiLink server version in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.MLServerVersion = 17
```

3.177 MLUser

Applies to

MLSynchronization, MLSync, and SyncParm objects

Description

Specifies the user name passed to the MobiLink synchronization server.

Usage

This is a required property of the synchronization object. If the property value has not been set before a synchronize call, the synchronization fails and an error string is saved to the synchronization object's ErrorText property.

At design time, you can enter a value for MLUser on the General tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter a value for MLUser in the MLUser text box on the Subscriptions tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can set the MobiLink password in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.MLUser = "me"
```

3.178 Modified

Applies to

InkEdit, RichText controls

Description

Specifies whether the text in the control has been modified since it was opened or last saved. Modified is the control's "dirty" flag, indicating that the control is in an unsaved state.

Usage

The value of the Modified property controls the Modified event. If the property is false, the event occurs when the first change occurs to the contents of the control. The change also causes the property to be set to true, which suppresses the Modified event. You can restart checking for changes by setting the property back to false.

In scripts

The Modified property takes a boolean value. The following example sets the Modified property of the InkEdit control ie_1 to false so that the Modified event is enabled:

ie_1.Modified = FALSE

3.179 MonthBackColor

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls

Description

The MonthBackColor property defines the color to be used for the background of a month in the calendar.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select a color from the MonthBackColor drop-down list on the General page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The MonthBackColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color of the month or months in a calendar. The MonthBackColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the background color for months:

mc_1.MonthBackColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.180 MultiSelect

Applies to

ListBox, PictureListBox controls

Description

The MultiSelect property specifies whether users can select multiple items in the list box at one time. When it is enabled, users can select multiple items by clicking them. When MultiSelect is not enabled, users cannot select multiple items at once.

If MultiSelect and ExtendedSelect are both enabled, then the behavior of ExtendedSelect takes precedence. For ExtendedSelect, the user must press Shift or Ctrl when clicking additional items.

Usage

In a painter

To enable multiple selections from the list:

• Select the MultiSelect check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The MultiSelect property takes a boolean value. The following example allows multiple selections in the ListBox lb_1:

lb_1.MultiSelect = TRUE

3.181 Multiline

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When Multiline is enabled, the tabs can appear in more than one row if there is not room for all the tabs in a single row. When Multiline is not enabled, a dual arrow control appears to allow the user to scroll to tabs that do not fit.

Usage

In a painter

To enable multiline display of tabs:

Select the Multiline check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Multiline property takes a boolean value. The following line allows tabs to be arranged in multiple rows when necessary:

tab_1.Multiline = TRUE

3.182 ObjectRevision

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the build number for synchronization property values that are stored in the client registry.

Usage

When you deploy a new version of an application that includes a wizard-generated synchronization object, you can make sure that values for synchronization object properties are written to the application user's registry by incrementing the value of the ObjectRevision property. Code in the synchonization object's Contructor event checks the value of this property against the value stored during a previous synchronization.

If the value of the ObjectRevision property is higher than the value stored in the registry, property values of the synchronization object are written to the registry, replacing any values previously stored there. The property values written to the registry are: AdditionalOpts, DownloadOnly, ExtendedOpts, Host, LogFileName, LogOpts, MLServerVersion, MLUser, ObjectRevision, Port, Publication, UploadOnly, UseLogFile, and UseWindow.

Secured properties such as AuthenticateParms, DBPass, and EncryptionKey are never written to the registry.

In a painter

On the Settings tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object, type the value you want for the ObjectRevision property in the Object Revision Number text box.

In scripts

The following code is similar to code in the Constructor event of the MLSync object generated by the MobiLink synchronization wizard. It checks the ObjectRevision value against the revision number stored in the registry. If the registry value is less than the value of the ObjectRevision value, the object's synchronization properties are written to the registry. Otherwise, the synchronization object retrieves the values stored in the registry:

```
long    rc = 1
long    RegistryRevision
if this.ObjectRevision > 0 and &
    this.SyncRegistryKey <> "" then
        RegistryRevision = &
            this.GetObjectRevisionFromRegistry()
    if RegistryRevision < this.ObjectRevision then
        rc = this.SetSyncRegistryProperties()
    else
        rc = this.GetSyncRegistryProperties()
    end if
end if
return rc</pre>
```

3.183 OpenAnimation

Applies to

Window controls

Description

Specifies an optional animation effect that displays when the window opens.

Usage

The OpenAnimation property takes a value of the WindowAnimationStyle enumerated variable. For "slide" values, the whole window appears to slide into view from the direction selected. For "roll" values, the window is painted from the direction selected. Values are:

- NoAnimation! (default) -- The window displays with no animation.
- TopSlide! -- The window slides from the top to the bottom of its extent.
- BottomSlide! -- The window slides from the bottom to the top of its extent.
- LeftSlide! -- The window slides from the left to the right of its extent.
- RightSlide! -- The window slides from the right to the left of its extent.
- TopRoll! -- The window rolls from the top to the bottom of its extent.
- BottomRoll! -- The window rolls from the bottom to the top of its extent.
- LeftRoll! -- The window rolls from the left to the right of its extent.
- RightRoll! -- The window rolls from the right to the left of its extent.
- FadeAnimation! -- The window fades in.
- CenterAnimation! -- The window expands from the center.

You can modify the animation properties at any time and use them for any window type. They are most often used in pop-up windows. FadeAnimation! can be used only in top-level windows. It does not work in child windows. In MDI applications, you cannot use FadeAnimation! for sheet windows. Fading affects the transparency of the window, and sheet windows in MDI applications always inherit the transparency of the frame window.

Some controls, such as InkEdit, InkPicture, and RichTextEdit controls, may not paint properly when you use animation features. For example, if you place an InkPicture control on a window, the image in the control does not display when the animation completes until the control is clicked.

While the animation executes, the application waits for it to complete. Use the AnimationTime property to control the number of milliseconds the animation takes to execute.

The window's Open event is triggered before the animation starts, allowing any code that changes the size or layout of the window to complete before it is painted.

In a painter

To set the OpenAnimation property on a window:

• Select a value from the OpenAnimation drop-down list on the General page of the window's Properties view

In scripts

The following example sets the OpenAnimation property of the w_about window to CenterAnimation!:

w_about.OpenAnimation = CenterAnimation!

See also

AnimationTime

CloseAnimation

3.184 OriginalSize

Applies to

Picture, PictureButton, PictureHyperLink, and Animation controls

Description

The OriginalSize property specifies whether the width and height of the picture are set to their original values.

For Animation controls, it specifies whether the width and height properties of the Animation control are set to the size of the AVI clip.

In the painter, if you use the mouse to resize the control or if you set the Width or Height properties on the Position tab, the OriginalSize property becomes disabled and the check box becomes unchecked.

Usage

In a painter

To set the picture to its original size:

• Select the OriginalSize check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The OriginalSize property takes a boolean value. The following line sets the OriginalSize property to false:

```
p_1.OriginalSize = FALSE
```

You should not try to change the width or height of a picture control when OriginalSize is set to true, because it can lead to unexpected behavior. In this example, the OriginalSize property is checked and set to false before the control is doubled in size:

```
integer li_width, li_height
li_width = p_1.width * 2
li_height = p_1.height * 2
parent.setredraw(false)
p_1.setredraw(false)

if p_1.originalsize then p_1.originalsize = FALSE
p_1.width = li_width
p_1.height = li_height
p_1.setredraw(TRUE)
parent.setredraw(TRUE)
```

The SetRedraw function must be called only when the image is very large. Before performing multiple resize operations of large JPEG images, set the name of the picture to an empty string temporarily to avoid unnecessary lengthy recompilations.

3.185 OriginLine

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The OriginLine property specifies the style of the line that represents the value zero for that axis in the graph. In the painter, the line style settings for an axis are disabled if the axis is not appropriate for the graph type.

Usage

In a painter

To select an origin line style:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page from the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Select the desired line style from the OriginLine list in the Line Style group.

In scripts

The OriginLine property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype. The following statement makes the Values axis origin line a dashed line:

```
gr_1.Values.OriginLine = Dash!
```

3.186 OverlapPercent

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

Overlap specifies how much 2D bar and column data markers in different series in a graph overlap. The number you specify is a percentage of the width of the data marker. This property is not applicable to all graph types.

Usage

In a painter

To set overlap for bar or column graphs:

- 1. Select the desired 2D graph type from the GraphType list on the General page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Use the OverlapPercent slide control to select the desired percentage of overlap.

In scripts

The OverlapPercent property takes an integer value. The following line sets the overlap to 10%:

```
gr_1.OverlapPercent = 10
```

3.187 PaperHeight

Applies to

RichTextEdit

Description

Sets the value for the display height of pages inside the control.

Usage

By default, the value you set for display height is multiplied by 1/1000 of an inch. An application user can change the display units at runtime when you enable the PopMenu property of the RichTextEdit control. This allows the application user to bring up the Rich Text Object dialog box and change the current units to 1/1000 of a centimeter. If the user switches the current units to centimeters, the values you set for PaperHeight and PaperWidth are multiplied by 2.54.

By default, the value you set for PaperHeight is used for printing as well as for screen display. When you set this value or the PaperWidth value, the default value in the Size dropdown list on the Print Specifications page of the Rich Text Object dialog box changes to Customized. Application users can modify the print specifications from the Rich Text Object dialog box at runtime, but only if you set the PopMenu property of the rich text object to true.

In scripts

The PaperHeight property takes a long value.

The following line sets the display height of a RichTextEdit to 11 inches.

rte_1.PaperHeight = 11000

3.188 PaperOrientation

Applies to

RichTextEdit

Description

Sets the orientation of document pages inside the control by switching the values for PaperHeight and PaperWidth.

Usage

In scripts

The PaperOrientation property takes an OrientationType enumerated value. Permitted values are PaperPortrait! and PaperLandscape!.

If you set the value to PaperPortrait! and the current PaperWidth is larger than the current PaperHeight, PowerBuilder switches these values so that the PaperHeight is larger. If you set the value to PaperPortrait! and the current PaperWidth is smaller than the current PaperHeight, PowerBuilder does not exchange these values.

If you set the value to PaperLandscape! and the current PaperHeight is larger than the current PaperWidth, PowerBuilder switches these values so that the PaperWidth is larger. If you set the value to PaperLandscape! and the current PaperHeight is smaller than the current PaperWidth, PowerBuilder does not exchange these values.

The following line sets the display orientation of a RichTextEdit to landscape.

rte_1.PaperOrientation = PaperLandscape!

By default, the value you set for PaperOrientation is used for printing as well as for screen display. The value in the Orientation drop-down list on the Print Specifications page of the Rich Text Object dialog box changes to the orientation value that you set for this property. Application users can modify print specifications from the Rich Text Object dialog box at runtime, but only if you set the PopMenu property of the rich text object to true.

3.189 PaperWidth

Applies to

RichTextEdit

Description

Sets the value for the display width of pages inside the control.

Usage

By default, the value you set for display width is multiplied by 1/1000 of an inch. An application user can change the display units at runtime when you enable the PopMenu property of the RichTextEdit control. This allows the application user to bring up the Rich Text Object dialog box and change the current units to 1/1000 of a centimeter. If the user switches the current units to centimeters, the values you set for PaperHeight and PaperWidth are multiplied by 2.54.

By default, the value you set for PaperWidth is used for printing as well as for screen display. When you set this value or the PaperHeight value, the default value in the Size drop-down list on the Print Specifications page of the Rich Text Object dialog box changes to Customized. Application users can modify the print specifications from the Rich Text Object dialog box at runtime, but only if you set the PopMenu property of the rich text object to true.

In scripts

The PaperWidth property takes a long value.

The following line sets the display width of a RichTextEdit to 8 inches.

rte_1.PaperWidth = 8000

3.190 Password

Applies to

SingleLineEdit controls

Description

The Password property specifies whether the control is a password field, in which characters the user types appear as asterisks (*). If Password is not enabled, the characters appear as the user types them.

Usage

In a painter

To make the control a password field:

• Select the Password check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Password property takes a boolean value.

The following example sets the SingleLineEdit to a password field so that characters typed in appear as asterisks.

```
sle_1.Password = TRUE
```

3.191 Password

Applies to

TokenRequest object

Description

The password of the resource owner.

Usage

In a script

The Password property takes a string value. The following statement sets the Password property:

```
string ls_password
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.password = ls_password
```

3.192 PerpendicularText

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When PerpendicularText is enabled, the tab labels are drawn perpendicular to the tab page, resulting in narrower tabs. When PerpendicularText is not enabled, text runs parallel to the edge of the tab page, resulting in wider tabs.

Usage

In a painter

To select a perpendicular orientation for tab text:

• Select the Perpendicular Text check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The PerpendicularText property takes a boolean value.

The following line specifies that tab labels are perpendicular to the tab page.

tab_1.PerpendicularText = TRUE

3.193 Perspective

Applies to

Graph controls Properties view

Description

Perspective controls the distance of a 3D graph from the front of the window. Perspective is not available for 2D graphs.

Usage

In a painter

To change the perspective of a 3D graph:

- 1. Select the desired 3D graph type from the GraphType list on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Use the Perspective slide control to change the graph perspective.

In scripts

The Perspective property takes an integer value from 1 to 100. The larger the number, the greater the distance from the front of the window and the smaller the graph appears.

To set the distance (and size) of the graph, use a line like the following:

 $gr_1.Perspective = 25$

3.194 PicturesAsFrame

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When PicturesAsFrame is enabled, any bitmaps used in the control appear as empty frames. If this property is not enabled, graphics appear normally.

PicturesAsFrame can also be enabled by the user at runtime from the properties item on the pop-up menu.

Usage

In a painter

To display graphics as empty frames:

• Select the PicturesAsFrame check box on the Document tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The PicturesAsFrame property takes a boolean value.

The following line specifies that graphics in a RichTextEdit appear as frames:

rte_1.PicturesAsFrame = TRUE

3.195 PictureHeight

Applies to

PictureListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, TreeView, Toolbar controls

Description

The PictureHeight property specifies in pixels the display height of all the pictures in the control. In a script, this property can be set only if there are no images in the PictureName property array. In the painter, you can change this value whether or not there are images in the Picture list.

Usage

In a painter

To set the picture height:

• Select the desired value from the Height drop-down list on the Pictures tab page of the control's Properties view.

The choices of 16 and 32 are standard pixel heights for icons. If you select Default, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture in the PictureName array as the height for all the pictures.

In scripts

The PictureHeight property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddPicture function or after calling DeletePictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture in the PictureName property array is used as the height for all the pictures.

The following line sets the height for a TreeView's pictures to 16 pixels.

tv_1.PictureHeight = 16

3.196 PictureIndex

Applies to

ListViewItem, TreeViewItem

Description

The PictureIndex property identifies pictures in the control's Picture list. For ListViewItems, the index identifies the large, small, and state picture associated with the item.

For TreeViewItems, the index identifies the picture displayed to the left of the item label. If the index is 0, no picture is displayed. You can set the PictureIndex property only for TreeViewItems with scripts, but you can add pictures to the control's Picture list in the painter.

Usage

In a painter

To associate pictures with a Listview item:

- 1. Select the Large Picture tab page, Small Picture tab page, or State tab page from the ListView control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the rows provided in the Picture Name field, type the complete path and name of the files containing the desired pictures.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Select one or more pictures from the Stock Pictures list.
- 3. Select the Items tab page from the ListView control's Properties view.
- 4. Use the row numbers from the Picture Name list to specify the Picture Index for each List View Item on the Items tab page.

To add pictures to a TreeView control's picture list:

- 1. Select the Pictures tab page from the TreeView control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the rows provided in the Picture Name field, type the complete path and name of the files containing the desired pictures.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Select one or more pictures from the Stock Pictures list.

You associate pictures in the TreeView control's picture list with TreeViewItems using scripts.

In scripts

This example illustrates how to get a ListViewItem object and change the value of PictureIndex:

```
listviewitem lvi
lv_1.GetItem(4, lvi)
lvi.PictureIndex = 2
lv_1.SetItem(4, lvi)
```

For more information about scripting ListView and TreeView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls" and Chapter 8, *Using TreeView Controls*.

3.197 PictureMaskColor

Applies to

PictureListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, TreeView controls, TabPage user objects

Description

The PictureMaskColor property specifies the color in the picture that is transparent when the picture is displayed. You can change the mask color before adding each picture. Each image uses the mask color that was in effect when it was added.

Usage

In a painter

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

To set the picture mask color for ListBox and TreeView controls:

- 1. Select the Pictures tab page of the control's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired color from the Picture Mask Color drop-down list box.

To set the picture mask color for TabPage objects in a tab control:

- 1. Select the desired TabPage object of the tab control.
- 2. Select the Picture tab page of the TabPage object's Properties view.
- 3. Select the desired color from the Picture Mask Color drop-down list box.

To set the picture mask color for a TabPage user object:

- 1. Select the TabPage tab page of the user object's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired color from the Picture Mask Color drop-down list box.

The mask color selected for the user object can be changed after it has been inserted into a tab control.

In scripts

The PictureMaskColor property takes a long value (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the mask color. The PictureMaskColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color. If you do not know the long value for a particular color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script. In scripts, this property is used when each picture is added and, therefore, can be changed between AddPicture calls.

The following example sets yellow as the mask color for pictures in a DropDownPictureListBox:

ddplb_1.PictureMaskColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.198 PictureName

Applies to

Picture, PictureButton, and PictureHyperLink controls, UserObject used as tab page

Description

The PictureName property specifies the name of the file that contains the picture displayed in the control. For PictureButton controls, the picture specified by the PictureName property is the one that is displayed when the button is enabled.

The picture can be in the following formats:

- bitmap (.BMP)
- runlength encoded (.RLE)
- Windows metafile (.WMF)
- GIF (.GIF)
- JPEG (.JPG or .JPEG)

Usage

In a painter

To specify the picture for a Picture control and for the enabled state of a PictureButton:

• Enter the name of the file in the PictureName field on the General page of the control's Properties view, or use the Browse button next to the PictureName field to select a file.

In scripts

The PictureName property takes a string value.

The following line selects a picture file for a PictureButton pb_1:

```
pb_1.PictureName = "c:\pictures\pb1.bmp"
```

3.199 PictureName[]

Applies to

TreeView, PictureListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, Toolbar controls

Description

The PictureName[] property specifies an indexed array of files containing the pictures used in the control. You can add pictures to the array in the painter, or use the AddPicture function at execution. However, adding or deleting pictures during execution does not update the PictureName property array.

The pictures can be in the following formats:

- bitmap (.BMP)
- GIF (.GIF)
- JPEG (.JPG or .JPEG)
- icon (.ICO)

Usage

In a painter

To add pictures to the PictureName array:

- 1. Select the Pictures tab page from the control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the rows provided in the Picture Name field, type the complete path and name of the files containing the desired pictures.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Select one or more pictures from the Stock Pictures list.

In scripts

The PictureName property array is populated at initialization and cannot be updated during execution.

The following example adds a picture to a TreeView control and associates it with a new TreeView item:

```
long ll_tvi
integer li_pic
li_pic = tv_1.AddPicture("c:\images\new.gif")
ll_tvi = tv_1.FindItem(RootTreeItem!, 0)
tv_1.InsertItemFirst(ll_tvi, "New", li_picture)
```

3.200 PictureOnRight

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the PictureOnRight property is enabled, the picture, if any, that is part of the tab label is to the right of the text. When PictureOnRight is not enabled, the picture is to the left of the tab label text.

Usage

In a painter

To specify pictures to the right of text on tab labels:

• Select the Pictures on Right check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The PictureOnRight property takes a boolean value.

The following line puts pictures to the right of the tab labels:

tab_1.PictureOnRight = TRUE

3.201 PictureWidth

Applies to

PictureListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, TreeView, Toolbar controls

Description

The PictureWidth property specifies in pixels the display width of all the pictures in the control. In a script, this property can be set only if there are no images in the PictureName property array. In the painter, you can change this value whether or not there are images in the Picture list.

Usage

In a painter

To set the picture width:

• Select the desired value from the Width drop-down list on the Pictures tab page of the control's Properties view.

The choices of 16 and 32 are standard pixel widths for icons. If you select Default, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture in the PictureName array as the width for all the pictures.

In scripts

The PictureWidth property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddPicture function or after calling DeletePictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture in the PictureName property array is used as the width for all the pictures.

The following line sets the width for a TreeView's pictures to 16 pixels:

tv_1.PictureWidth = 16

3.202 Pointer

Applies to

All controls

Description

The Pointer property specifies the pointer image displayed when the pointer is over a control.

Rich text objects

The RichTextEdit control supports only the pointers included in the list of stock pointers on the Other tab of the Properties view. The RichText DataWindow supports only the pointers listed on the Pointer tab page of the Rich Text Object property sheet.

If no pointer is specified, the default pointer is "IBeam!" when the rich text control is editable and "Arrow!" when the control is read-only.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a pointer:

- 1. Select the Other tab page from the control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - Type the complete path and name of the file containing the pointer image in the Pointer text box.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Click the down arrow to display a list of stock pointers and select a pointer from the list.

In scripts

The Pointer property takes a string containing either a file name or the name of one of the Pointer enumerated datatypes.

Both of the following lines set the I-beam as the pointer for CommandButton cb_1.

```
cb_1.Pointer = 'Beam!'
cb_1.Pointer = 'd:\archive\IBEAM.BMP'
```

3.203 PopMenu

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When PopMenu is enabled, the user has access to a pop-up menu by clicking the right mouse button on the control. The pop-up menu allows the user to cut and paste, insert a file, and select formatting properties.

The pop-up menu can be disabled by the user at runtime from the Properties item on the menu itself.

Usage

In a painter

To enable the pop-up menu:

• Select the Pop-up Menu check box on the Document tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The PopMenu property takes a boolean value.

The following line enables the pop-up menu for a RichTextEdit:

rte_1.PopMenu = TRUE

3.204 Port

Applies to

MLSynchronization, MLSync, and SyncParm objects

Description

Specifies the port used for the MobiLink synchronization server.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a value for Port on the MLServer tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. At runtime, application users can enter a value for the port on the MLServer tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

If the port is defined by subscriptions in the remote database, you do not need to set this property. Default ports are 2439 for TCP/IP connections, 80 for HTTP connections, and 443 for HTTPS connections.

In scripts

You can change the port name in script as follows:

 $mySync_1.port = 443$

3.205 Position

Applies to

HProgressBar, VProgressBar, HScrollBar, VScrollBar, HTrackBar, VTrackBar controls

Description

Position specifies where the scroll box or slider appears when the scroll bar or track bar is first displayed at runtime. For a progress bar, Position specifies the value of the current position within the range of the control (set with the SetRange function). The control uses the range and the current position to determine the percentage of the progress bar to fill with the highlight color.

Usage

In a painter

To set the initial position of the progress indicator, scroll box, or slider:

 Type a number that is between the values you have specified in MinPosition and MaxPosition.

In scripts

The Position property takes an integer value. It must be used in conjunction with MaxPosition and MinPosition.

For example, if a vertical scroll bar's minimum is 0 and maximum is 100, this statement positions the scroll box 80 percent of the way toward the bottom:

 $vsb_1.Position = 80$

3.206 PowerTipText

Applies to

InkPicture, Picture, PictureButton, and PictureHyperlink controls, and UserObjects with tab pages

Description

Displays a PowerTip when the user moves a cursor over the control or over the tab area of the tab page.

Usage

In a painter

To set the PowerTip:

- 1. In the Window painter, display the General page of the control's Properties view, or in the User Object painter, display the TabPage tab of the UserObject's Properties view.
- 2. Type a PowerTip in the box for the PowerTipText field.

In scripts

The PowerTipText property takes a string value.

The following line adds a PowerTip for tabpage_2 on tab control tab_1:

```
tab_1.tabpage_2.PowerTipText = "Cancel the operation"
```

This adds a PowerTip for a PictureButton control:

pb_1.PowerTipText = "This button opens a new form"

3.207 PowerTips

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the PowerTips property is enabled, any PowerTip text defined for a tab page is displayed as pop-up text when the mouse pointer pauses over the tab. PowerTips are useful if the tabs are labeled with pictures.

Usage

In a painter

To enable the display of PowerTip text:

• Select the Power Tips check box on the General page of the Tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The PowerTips property takes a boolean value. The following line allows display of PowerTips for each tab page.

tab_1.PowerTips = TRUE

3.208 PrimaryLine

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The PrimaryLine property specifies the line style for the primary line used for the axis itself. The line style settings for an axis are disabled if the axis is not appropriate for the graph type. Primary lines are not visible if the line style is set to transparent!.

Usage

In a painter

To set the primary line style for an axis:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page from the graph's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis drop-down list.
- 2. Select the desired line style from the PrimaryLine drop-down list in the Line Style group.

In scripts

The PrimaryLine property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype. The following line sets the PrimaryLine property for the Values axis of a Graph to a dash:

gr_1.Values.PrimaryLine = Dash!

3.209 ProcessOption

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the direction for synchronization events. This property takes a value of the enumerated datatype SyncProcessType. Setting this property is equivalent to including the uo dbmlsync option.

Usage

In a painter

On the Settings page of the object's Properties view, select the ProcessOption value that you want from the Process Option drop-down list. Values are UploadOnly!, DownloadOnly!, or Bidirectional!.

In scripts

You can modify ProcessOption values in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.ProcessOption = UploadOnly!
```

3.210 ProgressWindowName

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the name of a progress or status window used by the MobiLink synchronization application.

Usage

The MobiLink wizard generates a progress window that you can modify and use with all your MobiLink applications.

At design time, you can enter a value for ProgressWindowName on the Logging tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. The progress window displays during synchronization only if the UseWindow property is set to true.

In scripts

You can change the progress window name in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.progresswindowname = &
    "w_mycustomized_progress_window"
```

3.211 Publication

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the publication or publications to be updated during a synchronization. Setting this property is equivalent to including the -n dbmlsync option.

Usage

This is a required property of the synchronization object. If the property value has not been set before a synchronize call, the synchronization fails and an error string is saved to the synchronization object's ErrorText property.

At design time, you can enter the Publication property value on the General tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object.

The default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard contains a Publications text box that is visible but disabled. At runtime, application users can view Publication values on the Subscriptions tab page of the default synchronization options window, but they cannot change those values unless you enable the text box field.

In scripts

You can modify Publication values in script as follows:

```
mlSync.Publication = "pubs1, pubs2"
```

3.212 RaggedRight

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When RaggedRight is enabled, tab size is determined by the label text and the Fixed Width setting. If RaggedRight is not enabled, tabs are stretched so that they fill space along the edge of the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the RaggedRight property:

 Select the Ragged Right check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

When this check box is selected, the tabs are sized based on their label text and whether the Fixed Width check box is selected.

In scripts

The RaggedRight property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that tabs are stretched to fill the edge of the control:

tab_1.RaggedRight = FALSE

3.213 RecognitionTimer

Applies to

InkEdit controls

Description

Specifies the time period in milliseconds between the last ink stroke and the start of text recognition.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that ink added to the InkEdit control is not converted to text:

• Clear the InsertAsText check box on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The RecognitionTimer property takes a long value. By default, ink is converted to text after two seconds (2000 milliseconds). If you want to give the user more time to enter text, increase the RecognitionTimer value.

This example sets the interval between the last stroke and the beginning of text recognition to one minute (60000 milliseconds):

ie_1.RecognitionTimer = 60000

3.214 Render3D

Applies to

Graph controls and Graph DataWindows

Description

You can check this option to render 3D graphs in the DirectX style.

Usage

In a painter

To change a graph to the DirectX style

• Select the Render3D check box on the General page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The Render3D property takes a boolean value.

This statement sets a Graph control gr_1 to the DirectX 3D style.

```
gr_1.Render3D = TRUE
```

This statement sets a DataWindow in the Graph presentation style to the DirectX 3D style.

```
dw_1.Object.gr_1.Render3D = TRUE
```

3.215 Resizable

Applies to

DataWindow, OLE, and RichTextEdit controls and windows

Description

A resizable window or control has a thick border, and the user can use the mouse or the keyboard to resize it.

Usage

In a painter

To allow a user to resize a window or control:

 Select the Resizeable check box on the General page of the window's or control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Resizable property takes a boolean value.

This statement makes the DataWindow control dw_1 resizable.

```
dw_1.Resizable = TRUE
```

3.216 ReturnCode

Applies to

SyncParm objects

Description

Stores the return code from a synchronization operation.

Usage

You can check the return code to determine whether synchronization was successful. The code returned is 0 for success, -1 for failure, and 100 if the synchronization was cancelled.

3.217 Returns Visible (obsolete)

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When the ReturnsVisible property is enabled, characters for carriage returns in the text will display.

Obsolete property

This property is replaced by the **ControlCharsVisible** property.

3.218 RightMargin

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The RightMargin property specifies the size in inches of the right margin on the printed page.

Usage

In a painter

To set the right margin:

• Enter the desired size in inches in the Right Margin field of the Document tab page of the RichTextEdit control's property page.

In scripts

The RightMargin property takes a long value.

The following line sets the right margin of a RichTextEdit to 1 inch.

 $rte_1.RightMargin = 1$

3.219 RightToLeft

Applies to

Application and Window objects, and CheckBox, DataWindow, DatePicker, DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, EditMask, GroupBox, InkEdit, ListBox,

ListView, MonthCalendar, MultiLineEdit, PictureListBox, RadioButton, SingleLineEdit, StaticHyperLink, StaticText, and TreeView controls

Description

The RightToLeft property specifies that characters should be displayed in right-to-left order. The application must be running on an operating system that supports right-to-left display. Values are:

- TRUE -- Characters display in right-to-left order.
- FALSE -- Characters display in left-to-right order (default).

When you want to display Arabic or Hebrew text for message and buttons, set the RightToLeft property of the Application object to true. The characters of the message display from right to left. However, the button text continues to display in English unless you are running a localized version of PowerBuilder.

This property has no effect on other aspects of the control's layout. For ListView and TreeView controls, use the LayoutRTL property to display a mirror image of the standard layout.

For best results, set this property in the painter so that you can see its effect. Setting this property at runtime can have unexpected results.

For the TreeView DataWindow style, this property can be set in the development environment but it cannot be set at runtime.

Usage

In a painter

To set the RightToLeft property:

• Select the RightToLeft check box on the General page in the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The RightToLeft property takes a boolean value.

The following line sets the RightToLeft property of a SingleLineEdit control to true:

sle_1.RightToLeft = TRUE

3.220 Rotation

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The Rotation property specifies the rotation from left to right of 3D graphs. Rotation is disabled for 2D graphs.

Usage

In a painter

To set the rotation of the graph:

- 1. Select a 3D graph type from the GraphType list on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Move the Rotation slider to change the graph's rotation.

In scripts

The Rotation property takes an integer value.

The following example rotates the graph 45 degrees to the left:

 $gr_1.Rotation = -45$

3.221 RulerBar

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When the RulerBar property is enabled, a ruler bar appears above the editing area of the control. The user can use it to set tabs and margins on the tab bar.

The ruler bar can also be enabled and disabled by the user at runtime from the Properties item on the pop-up menu, if the PopMenu property of the control has been set to true.

Usage

In a painter

To make the ruler bar visible:

• Select the Ruler Bar check box on the Document tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The RulerBar property takes a boolean value.

The following line makes the ruler bar appear in a RichTextEdit:

rte_1.RulerBar = TRUE

3.222 RoundTo

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

When the AutoScale property is enabled, the RoundTo and RoundToUnit properties specify how to round the end points and tick marks of an axis. Rounding affects axis labels, not graph data.

The RoundTo property specifies the value to which you want to round the axis values, in the units specified by the RoundToUnit property.

Usage

In a painter

To set the value to which to round axis values:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page from the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis list.
- 2. Turn on autoscaling by checking the AutoScale check box.
- 3. Choose the datatype of the axis by selecting an option from the DataType drop-down list.
- 4. Enter a value in the RoundTo edit field.

In scripts

The RoundTo property takes a double value indicating the multiple to which you want to round axis tick marks.

The following example sets the datatype of the Values axis to date, sets the unit for rounding to months, and then sets the rounding value to six months:

```
gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDate!
gr_1.Values.RoundToUnit = RndMonths!
gr_1.Values.RoundTo = 6
```

3.223 RoundToUnit

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

When the AutoScale property is enabled, the RoundTo and RoundToUnit properties specify how to round the end points and tick marks of an axis. Rounding affects axis labels, not graph data.

The RoundToUnit property specifies the type of units that should be used for the rounding. The type of units that can be specified are based on the datatype of the axis. For example, for a date axis, you might round tick marks to the nearest five years or to every third month.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the type of unit to be used for rounding:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis list.
- 2. Turn on autoscaling by checking the AutoScale check box.
- 3. Choose the datatype of the axis by selecting an option from the DataType drop-down list.

4. Choose the desired unit from the RoundToUnit drop-down list.

In scripts

The RoundToUnit property takes a value of the enumerated datatype grRoundToType. When you set this property in scripts, make sure the value is compatible with the datatype of the axis.

The following example sets the datatype of the Values axis to date and then sets the unit for rounding to months and the number of months to which to round:

```
gr_1.Values.DataType = AdtDate!
gr_1.Values.RoundToUnit = RndMonths!
gr_1.Values.RoundTo = 6
```

3.224 ScaleType

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The ScaleType property specifies the scale used for an axis. An axis can have linear or logarithmic scaling. The default is Linear. Other values are Log10 and LogE.

Usage

In a painter

To select the scale type for an axis:

- 1. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis list.
- 2. Select the desired type from the ScaleType drop-down list in the Scale group.

In scripts

The ScaleType property takes a value of the grScaleType enumerated datatype.

To set the scale type of the Values axis of gr_1 to log 10, use a line like the following:

```
gr_1.Values.ScaleType=Log10!
```

3.225 ScaleValue

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The ScaleValue property specifies the scale of values on the axis. You cannot set this property in the painter.

Usage

In scripts

The ScaleValue property takes a value of the grScaleValue enumerated datatype.

The following line sets the ScaleValue of the Values axis of a graph:

```
gr_1.Values.ScaleValue = Actual!
```

3.226 Scope

Applies to

TokenRequest object

Description

The scope of the access request.

Usage

In a script

The Scope property takes a string value. The following statement sets the Scope property:

```
string ls_scope
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.scope = ls_scope
```

3.227 Scrolling

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

When Scrolling is enabled, the user can scroll vertically when some of the items in a ListView control are not visible. When Scrolling is not enabled, the user cannot scroll.

Usage

In a painter

To enable scrolling:

Select the Scrolling check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Scrolling property takes a boolean value. The following line enables scrolling when necessary in a ListView:

```
lv_1.Scrolling = TRUE
```

3.228 ScrollRate

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls

Description

Specifies the number of months the calendar scrolls when the user clicks a scroll button.

Usage

In a painter

To set the ScrollRate property:

• Select a number from the ScrollRate spin control on the General page in the Properties view

In scripts

The ScrollRate property takes an integer value. The default is 1, which means that the calendar scrolls by one month, regardless of how many months display. This example sets ScrollRate to 3:

mc_1.ScrollRate = 3

3.229 SecondaryLine

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

The SecondaryLine property specifies the style of the lines used in the axis parallel to and opposite the primary axis in the graph.

Usage

In a painter

The line style settings for an axis are disabled in the painter if the axis is not appropriate for the graph type.

To set the secondary line style:

- 1. Display the Axis tab from the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis list.
- 2. Select the desired line style from the SecondaryLine drop-down list in the Line Style group.

In scripts

The SecondaryLine property takes a value of the LineStyle enumerated datatype. The following example sets the SecondaryLine property of the Values axis of a graph to a dash:

gr_1.Values.SecondaryLine = Dash!

3.230 SecureProtocol

Applies to

HTTPClient and RestClient objects

Description

The SecureProtocol property specifies the secure protocol. Values are:

0 – All secure protocols. This is the default value. It will detect and use the secure protocol in the following order: TLS 1.2, TLS 1.1, SSL 2.0/SSL 3.0/TLS 1.0.

```
1 - SSL 2
```

2 - SSL 3

3 - TLS 1.0

4 - TLS 1.1

5 - TLS 1.2

Usage

In a painter

To set the secure protocol:

• Select the secure protocol from the secureProtocol list on the General page in the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The SecureProtocol property takes an integer value. The following example sets the SecureProtocol property to TLS 1.0:

```
HttpClient lnv_HttpClient
lnv_HttpClient = Create HttpClient

Constant Integer SECURE_PROTOCOL_TLS1 = 3

// Set secure protocol to TLS1.0
lnv_HttpClient.SecureProtocol = SECURE_PROTOCOL_TLS1 // default is 0, means all secure protocols

// Send GET request
lnv_HttpClient.SendRequest("GET", "https://demo.appeon.com/PB/webapi_client/employee/102")
```

3.231 SecureProtocol

Applies to

TokenRequest and OAuthRequest objects

Description

Specifies the secure protocol with the integer value. Values are:

0 – All secure protocols. This is a default value.

1 - TLS1.0;

2 - TLS1.1;

3 - TLS1.2.

Usage

In scripts

The SecureProtocol property takes an integer value. The following example sets the SecureProtocol property to TLS 1.0:

```
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.secureprotocol = 1
```

3.232 SelectedStartPos

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The SelectedStartPos property specifies the starting position in a selected text string.

Usage

Typically, you use the SelectedStartPos property to set the starting position of a selected text string to the first letter of a word that is flagged by a supported ActiveX spell checking control.

See Chapter 16, *Implementing Rich Text* for more information about spell checking text in RichTextEdit controls.

In a painter

The SelectedStartPos property cannot be set in a design-time painter.

In scripts

The SelectedStartPos property takes a long value.

The following code in a ReplaceWord event for the Wintertree Software WSpell ActiveX control sets the starting position in the text string that is being spell checked to the offset position of a misspelled word. After setting the starting position, the SelectedTextLength setting causes the entire misspelled word to be highlighted, and the ReplaceText call replaces it with a word that the user selects in a WSpell dialog box.

```
string str
str = wspell.object.MisspelledWord
rte_1.SelectedStartPos = wspell.object.WordOffset
rte_1.SelectedTextLength = Len(str)
rte_1.ReplaceText(wspell.object.ReplacementWord)
```

3.233 SelectedTab

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

The SelectedTab property specifies the index number of the selected tab page in the tab control. As the user selects tabs in the Tab control, the value of SelectedTab changes to reflect the currently selected tab.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the selected tab:

• Enter a number in the Selected Tab field on the General page of the control's Properties view.

The number should be in the range 1 to N where N is the number of tab pages in the tab control.

In scripts

The SelectedTab property takes an integer value. The default value is 1, and the integer must be in the range 1 to N, where N is the number of tab pages.

The following line sets the index number of the selected tab page in the Tab control tab_1 to 3:

```
tab 1.SelectedTab = 3
```

3.234 SelectedTextLength

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The SelectedTextLength property specifies the length of text you want to highlight in a selected text string.

Usage

Typically you use this property to obtain the length of a misspelled word that is flagged after passing the selected text string to a supported ActiveX spell checking control.

See Chapter 16, *Implementing Rich Text* for more information about spell checking text in RichTextEdit controls.

In a painter

The SelectedTextLength property cannot be set in a design-time painter.

In scripts

The SelectedTextLength property takes a long value. The following code in a MixedCaseWord or ReplaceWord event for the Wintertree Software WSpell ActiveX control causes a word flagged by the control to be highlighted for its entire length, beginning with the word's offset position in the text string that you are spell checking:

```
string strword
strword = wspell.object.MisspelledWord
rte_1.SelectedStartPos = wspell.object.WordOffset
rte_1.SelectedTextLength = Len(strword)
```

3.235 Series

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The Series property is used to define the properties of the Series axis in a graph. The Series axis is valid for 3D graphs only.

Usage

In a painter

To define the properties of the Series axis of a 3D graph:

- 1. Select a 3D graph type from the GraphType list on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select Series in the Axis list.

All the properties of the Series axis can be set from the Axis tab page.

In scripts

The Series axis is an object of type grAxis within the Graph control. The Series object has its own properties for controlling the appearance of the axis.

The following line sets the scale type of the Series axis of gr_1 to log 10:

```
gr_1.Series.Scaletype = Log10!
```

3.236 SeriesSort

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

The SeriesSort property specifies how the series are sorted: ascending, descending, or unsorted.

Usage

In a painter

To specify how the series are sorted:

• Select the desired sort type from the SeriesSort drop-down list on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.

In scripts

The datatype of the CategorySort property is the grSortType enumerated datatype, which has the values Ascending!, Descending!, Unsorted!, and UserDefinedSort!.

The following example specifies that the series should be unsorted:

```
gr_1.SeriesSort = Unsorted!
```

3.237 SetStep

Applies to

HProgressBar and VProgressBar controls

Description

A progress bar has a range and a current position. The SetStep property allows you to set the size of the increments by which the current position advances as progress is shown. The default value is 10.

Usage

In a painter

To set the increment size:

• Use the spin control or enter an integer in the SetStep text box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In a script

SetStep takes an integer value. In the following example, the range of the progress bar is set to 0 to 500, and the step value is set to 50:

```
hpb_1.setrange(0,500)
hpb_1.setstep = 50
```

3.238 ShadeBackEdge

Applies to

grAxis objects in Graph controls

Description

Specifies whether the back edge of an axis is shaded. Applies only to 3D graphs. The shade color is a property of the graph, not the axis.

Usage

In a painter

To shade the back edge of an axis in a 3D graph:

- 1. Select a 3D graph type from the GraphType list on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.
- 2. Select a shade color from the ShadeColor list on the General page.
- 3. Display the Axis tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired axis from the Axis list.
- 4. Select the ShadeBackEdge check box on the Axis tab page.

In scripts

The ShadeBackEdge property takes a boolean value. The following example selects the shade color for the graph and then specifies that the back edge of the Category axis in a 3D graph is shaded:

```
gr_1.ShadeColor = RGB(240,250,150)
```

gr_1.Category.ShadeBackEdge = TRUE

3.239 ShowList

Applies to

DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox controls

Description

If the ShowList property is enabled, the option list is always displayed. If this property is not enabled, the list is displayed only when the user clicks on the control's down arrow.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that the option list should always be displayed:

• Select the Always Show List check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ShowList property takes a boolean value. The following example specifies that the list of choices for the DropDownListBox should always be displayed:

```
ddlb_1.ShowList = TRUE
```

Note that the AllowEdit property must also be true when ShowList is true.

3.240 ShowHeader

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

When the ShowHeader property is enabled, column titles appear in the report view of a ListView control. When ShowHeader is not enabled, column titles do not appear in the report view.

To enable report view in a ListView control, you must write a script that establishes and populates columns. See Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls" for more information about enabling report view.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a header for report view:

Select the Show Header check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ShowHeader property takes a boolean value. The following line enables display of a header in report view.

lv_1.ShowHeader = TRUE

3.241 ShowPicture

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the ShowPicture property is enabled, the picture specified for each tab, if any, is displayed. When this property is not enabled, no pictures appear.

You can use ShowPicture with ShowText to display a picture and a text label, picture only, text label only, or no label at all.

Usage

In a painter

To show the pictures on the tab pages in the tab control:

• Select the Show Pictures check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ShowPicture property takes a boolean value. The following line allows the picture, if any, to appear for each tab:

tab_1.ShowPicture = TRUE

3.242 ShowText

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

When the ShowText property is enabled, the text specified for each tab, if any, is displayed. When this property is not enabled, no text appears.

You can use ShowText with ShowPicture to display a picture and a text label, picture only, text label only, or no label at all.

Usage

In a painter

To show the text on the tab pages in the tab control:

Select the Show Text check box on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ShowText property takes a boolean value. The following line allows the text, if any, to appear for each tab:

tab_1.ShowText = TRUE

3.243 ShowUpDown

Applies to

DatePicker controls

Description

Specifies whether an up-down control is used to change the date in the DatePicker control.

The ShowUpDown property takes a boolean value. The default is false. When ShowUpDown is set to true, the drop-down arrow in the DatePicker control is replaced with an up-down control. The user can select individual elements in the date and/or time in the control (year, month, day, hours, minutes, and seconds) and increase or decrease them by one unit using the up or down arrows.

This property cannot be changed at runtime.

Usage

In a painter

To set the ShowUpDown property:

• Select or clear the ShowUpDown check box on the General page in the Properties view

3.244 SmallPictureHeight

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

The SmallPictureHeight property specifies the display height of all the pictures in the Small Icon view of the ListView control. The size is specified in pixels.

If you choose the value (Default) in the painter, or set the value to 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture in the array as the height for all the pictures. The other choices in the painter, 16 and 32, are standard pixel heights for icons.

The type of picture used is determined by the value of the View property of the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the small picture height:

• Select a value from the Height drop-down list on the Small Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The SmallPictureHeight property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddSmallPicture function or after calling DeleteSmallPictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture is used to set the size of small pictures.

The following line sets the height for small pictures in a ListView to 16 pixels:

lv_1.SmallPictureHeight = 16

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.245 SmallPictureMaskColor

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

The mask color is the color in the picture that is transparent when the picture is displayed.

Select the color to mask newly added user-defined bitmaps. In scripts, you can change the mask color before adding each picture. Each image uses the mask color that was in effect when it was added.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a picture mask color:

 Select a color from the Picture Mask Color drop-down list on the Small Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

In scripts

The SmallPictureMaskColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color. This property is used when each bitmap is added and, therefore, can be changed between AddSmallPicture calls.

The SmallPictureMaskColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color. If you do not know the long value for a particular color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the mask color for user-defined bitmaps in a ListView:

lv_1.SmallPictureMaskColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.246 SmallPictureName[]

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

PowerBuilder stores ListView images in several indexed arrays of images. You can associate an image with a specific ListView item when you create a ListView in the painter or use the AddItem and InsertItem functions at execution time.

You identify a specific image by its index number. Because the same index number refers to both the large picture and the small picture for the item (depending on which view is

selected), you need to make sure the images for each position in the array are compatible. The type of picture used in the control is determined by the value of the control's View property.

Usage

In a painter

To specify images for the Small Icon view

- 1. Select the Small Picture tab page from the ListView control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the rows provided in the Picture Name field, type the complete path and name of the files containing the desired pictures.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Select one or more pictures from the Stock Pictures list.

The order of the picture names specified here should match the picture name order used for the Large Icon view.

3. Use the row numbers from this Picture Name list to specify the Picture Index for each List View Item on the Items tab page.

In scripts

The SmallPictureName property takes a string value. You cannot use the SmallPictureName property to update the image list during execution. Use the AddSmallPicture function to add small pictures to a ListView control. For example:

```
lv_1.AddSmallPicture("c:\ArtGal\bmps\celtic.bmp")
```

When you add a small picture to a ListView control, it is given the next available picture index in the ListView.

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.247 SmallPictureWidth

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

The SmallPictureWidth property specifies the display width of all the pictures in the Small Icon view of the ListView control. The size is specified in pixels.

If you choose the value (Default) in the painter, or set the value to 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture in the array as the width for all the pictures. The other choices in the painter, 16 and 32, are standard pixel widths for icons.

Usage

In a painter

To set the small picture width:

• Select a value from the Width drop-down list on the Small Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The SmallPictureWidth property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddSmallPicture function or after calling DeleteSmallPictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture is used to set the size of small pictures.

The following line sets the width for small pictures in a ListView to 16 pixels.

```
lv 1.SmallPictureWidth = 16
```

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.248 Sorted

Applies to

DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, ListBox, PictureListBox controls

Description

Items in a list box can be sorted alphabetically. If the Sorted property is enabled, the items in the list box are sorted in ascending order. If this property is not enabled, the items in the list box are not sorted and are displayed in the order in which they were added.

Usage

In a painter

To enable automatic sorting:

• Select the Sorted check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Sorted property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that items in the ListBox lb_1 are sorted:

```
lb_1.Sorted = TRUE
```

3.249 SortType

Applies to

ListView, TreeView controls

Description

The SortType property specifies how items should be sorted. Items can be sorted alphabetically based on the item names or according to user-defined rules. If you specify a user-defined or unsorted sort type, define your sort criteria in the Sort event of the control.

In TreeView controls, each parent item's children form their own sorted list. For more information, see Section 8.3.4, "Sorting items".

Usage

In a painter

To specify how items should be sorted:

• Select the desired sort type from the Sort drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The SortType property takes a value of the grSortType enumerated datatype. The following line specifies Unsorted for the items in a ListView.

lv_1.SortType = Unsorted!

3.250 SpacesVisible (obsolete)

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When Spaces Visible is enabled, spaces in the text are marked by a dot in the RichTextEdit control. If this property is not enabled, spaces appear as blanks only.

Obsolete property

This property is replaced by the ControlCharsVisible property.

3.251 Spacing

Applies to

Graph controls

Description

Spacing defines the gap (space) between data markers in a graph as a percent of the width of the markers. For example, in a bar graph, 100 is the width of one bar; 50 is half a bar.

Usage

In a painter

To change the spacing of data markers:

• Select the desired spacing percentage using the Spacing slider on the General page of the graph control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Spacing property takes an integer value.

The following line specifies 120 percent of the bar width as the space between bars in a bar Graph:

 $gr_1.Spacing = 120$

3.252 Spin

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

The Spin property specifies whether the control is defined as a spin control that contains up and down arrows that the user can click to cycle through fixed values.

Usage

In a painter

To make an EditMask into a spin control:

• Select the Spin Control check box on the Mask tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Spin property takes a boolean value.

The following line specifies that the user can cycle through values in an EditMask:

em_1.Spin = TRUE

3.253 StatePictureHeight

Applies to

ListView, TreeView controls

Description

The StatePictureHeight property specifies the display height of all the state pictures. The size is specified in pixels.

If you choose the value (Default) in the painter, or set the value to 0, PowerBuilder uses the height of the first picture in the array as the height for all the pictures. The other choices in the painter, 16 and 32, are standard pixel heights for icons.

Usage

In a painter

To set the state picture height:

• Select a value from the Height drop-down list on the State tab page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The StatePictureHeight property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddStatePicture function or after calling DeleteStatePictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture is used to set the size of state pictures.

The following line sets the height for state pictures in a ListView to 16 pixels.

lv_1.StatePictureHeight = 16

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.254 StatePictureMaskColor

Applies to

ListView, TreeView controls

Description

The mask color is the color in the picture that is transparent when the picture is displayed.

Select the color to mask newly added user-defined bitmaps. You can change the mask color before adding each picture. Each image uses the mask color that was in effect when it was added.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a picture mask color:

• Select a color from the Picture Mask Color drop-down list on the State Picture tab page of the control's Properties view.

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

In scripts

The StatePictureMaskColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color. This property is used when each bitmap is added and, therefore, can be changed between AddStatePicture calls.

The StatePictureMaskColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color. If you do not know the long value for a particular color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the mask color for user-defined bitmaps in a ListView:

lv_1.StatePictureMaskColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.255 StatePictureName[]

Applies to

ListView, TreeView controls

Description

PowerBuilder stores ListView images in several indexed arrays of images. State pictures are displayed to the left of ListView items and their pictures, if they have them.

You can associate a state image with a ListView control only with scripts.

You identify a specific image by its index number.

Usage

In a painter

To specify State images:

- 1. Select the State tab page from the ListView control's Properties view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the rows provided in the Picture Name field, type the complete path and name of the files containing the desired pictures.
 - Use the Browse button.
 - Select one or more pictures from the Stock Pictures list.
- 3. Use the row numbers from this Picture Name list as the index number when setting the State picture index in scripts.

In scripts

The StatePictureName property takes a string value. You cannot use the StatePictureName property to update the image list during execution. Use the AddStatePicture function to add State pictures to a ListView control. For example:

```
integer index
index = lv_1.AddStatePicture("c:\ArtGal\ico\star.ico")
lv_1.StatePictureIndex = index
```

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.256 StatePictureWidth

Applies to

ListView, TreeView controls

Description

The StatePictureWidth property specifies the display width of all the state pictures. The size is specified in pixels.

If you choose the value (Default) in the painter, or set the value to 0, PowerBuilder uses the width of the first picture in the array as the width for all the pictures. The other choices in the painter, 16 and 32, are standard pixel widths for icons.

Usage

In a painter

To set the state picture width:

• Select a value from the Width drop-down list on the State tab page of the control's Properties view.

The StatePictureWidth property takes an integer value. This value can be set only before the first call to the AddStatePicture function or after calling DeleteStatePictures. If this value is set to 0, then the size of the first picture is used to set the size of state pictures.

The following line sets the width for state pictures in a ListView to 16 pixels:

```
lv_1.StatePictureWidth = 16
```

For more information about scripting ListView controls, see Section 9.4, "Using ListView controls".

3.257 Status

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

A read-only property available at runtime that provides the current status of the control so that the user does not need to monitor the Stroke event to be sure that a stroke has been completed.

Usage

In scripts

The Status property for InkEdit controls takes a value of the InkEditStatus enumerated variable. Values are InkEditCollectingInk!, InkEditRecognizingInk!, and InkEditIdle!.

The Status property for InkPicture controls takes a value of the InkPicStatus enumerated variable. Values are CollectingInk! and Idle!.

This code in a button's Clicked event checks that the status of the InkEdit control is idle before setting the UseMouseForInput property to true:

```
IF ie_1.Status = InkEditIdle! THEN    ie_1.UseMouseForInput = TRUE
ELSE    MessageBox("Please try again later", &
        "Text is being recognized.")
END IF
```

3.258 StdHeight

Applies to

HScrollBar

Description

If you enable the StdHeight property, the HScrollBar displays with the standard height for your system.

Usage

In a painter

To enable standard height:

• Select the StdHeight check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

The StdHeight property takes a boolean value. At runtime, as long as StdHeight is true, setting the Height property has no effect. If you set the StdHeight property to true, the scroll bar displays with the standard height. If you set the StdHeight property to false, the scroll bar displays with the height specified in the Height property.

The following line specifies that height for an HScrollBar, instead of being standard, is set to the height specified in the Height property.

hsb_1.StdHeight = FALSE

3.259 StdWidth

Applies to

VScrollBar controls

Description

If you enable the StdWidth option, the VScrollBar displays with the standard width for your system.

Usage

In a painter

To enable standard width:

• Select the StdWidth check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The StdWidth property takes a boolean value. At runtime, as long as StdWidth is true, setting the Width property has no effect. If you set the StdWidth property to true, the scroll bar displays with the standard width. If you set the StdWidth property to false, the scroll bar displays with the width specified in the Width property.

The following line specifies that width for a VScrollBar, instead of being standard, is set to the width specified in the Width property.

vsb_1.StdWidth = FALSE

3.260 SyncRegistryKey

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies the Windows registry key on the client computer where synchronization property values are stored.

Usage

At design time, you can enter a value for SyncRegistryKey on the Settings tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object.

In scripts

You can enter a synchronization registry key in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.syncregistrykey = &
    "Software\Sybase\PowerBuilder\17.0\myApp"
```

PowerBuilder prepends an "HKEY_CURRENT_USER\" prefix to the value you enter, and a "MobiLink" suffix.

3.261 TabBackColor

Applies to

TabPage objects and UserObjects when they are tab pages

Description

The TabBackColor property allows you to select the color of the tab on the tab page.

Windows XP

This property in not supported on Windows XP because the current XP theme controls the appearance of the tab on a tab page.

Usage

In a painter

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

To set the background color for the tab:

- 1. Select the desired tab page on the tab control.
- 2. Select the TabPage tab in the Properties view.
- 3. Select the desired color in the TabBackColor drop-down list.

You can set the color of the body of the tab page on its General tab.

In scripts

The TabBackColor property takes a long value (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of a color. The TabBackColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets blue as the background color for a tab:

```
tab_1.tabpage_2.TabBackColor = RGB(0, 0, 255)
```

3.262 TabOrder

Applies to

Visible controls within a window.

Description

TabOrder specifies the order in which the control receives focus when the user tabs among controls within a window. Setting the TabOrder for a control to 0 means that the control cannot be tabbed to.

Usage

In a painter

To set tab order for controls within a window:

1. Select Format>Tab Order from the menu bar.

Numbers indicating the tab order for each visible control are displayed in red on the window.

- Select the number you want to change and type in a new number between 0 and 9999.
 The actual value of the number does not matter; only the relative values among controls matter.
- 3. Select Format>Tab Order from the menu bar again to save the tab order.

In scripts

The TabOrder property takes an integer value between 0 and 9999. The value of 0 removes the control from the tab order.

The following example sets the tab order for three controls. The EditMask control is tabbed to after the ListView control and before the CommandButton:

```
lv_1.TabOrder = 10
em_1.TabOrder = 15
cb_1.TabOrder = 20
```

3.263 TabPosition

Applies to

Tab controls

Description

Tabs can appear on any side of the Tab control (top, bottom, left, right) or on opposite sides.

When you select two sides (for example, top and bottom), the selected tab divides the tabs so that tabs before it appear on one side and tabs after it appear on the opposite side. The selected tab itself appears on the first side of the pair.

Usage

In a painter

To set the position of tab pages in a tab control:

• Select the desired type of position from the TabPosition drop-down list on the General page of the tab control's Properties view.

The datatype of the TabPosition property is the TabPosition enumerated datatype.

The following example positions tabs on the top and bottom of the Tab control. Tabs before the selected tab and the selected tab itself are on top. Tabs after the selected tab are on the bottom.

```
tab_1.TabPosition = TabsOnTopAndBottom!
```

3.264 TabStop[]

Applies to

MultiLineEdit, EditMask, ListBox, PictureListBox controls

Description

The TabStop property array allows you to specify a repeating tab stop or tab stops at arbitrary positions. The tab stops are indicated by character positions.

If you specify one value, the tab stops are equally spaced using that value. If more than one tab stop is specified, tab stops are located in the character positions entered. The default is tab stops every 8 character positions.

Usage

In a painter

To specify tab stops:

• Enter the character positions for each tab stop desired in the TabStop field on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The TabStop[] property is a signed integer array containing the positions of the tab stops. The tab stops are in character positions.

The following lines define two tab stops at character positions 5 and 15.

```
lb_1.tabstop[1] = 5
lb_1.tabstop[2] = 15
```

3.265 TabTextColor

Applies to

TabPage objects and UserObjects when they are tab pages

Description

The TabTextColor property allows you to select the color for the tab's text.

Usage

In a painter

To add your own colors to the color drop-down list, select Design>Custom Colors before displaying the Properties view.

To change the tab text color:

- 1. Select the desired tab page on the tab control.
- 2. Select the TabPage tab in the Properties view.
- 3. Select the desired color in the TabTextColor drop-down list.

In scripts

The TabTextColor property takes a long value (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of a color. The TabTextColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets yellow as the text color for a tab.

tab_1.tabpage_2.TabTextColor = RGB(255, 255, 0)

3.266 TabsVisible (obsolete)

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When the TabsVisible property is enabled, a text symbol appears for tabs in text in the RichTextEdit control.

Obsolete property

This property is replaced by the ControlCharsVisible property.

3.267 Tag

Applies to

All controls, user objects, and menus

Description

The Tag property can hold any text you want to associate with the control. It is up to you how you use that text.

Usage

In a painter

To specify a tag for a control:

• Enter the desired text in the Tag field on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The tag property takes a string value.

The following line uses the object's Tag property to set MicroHelp in an MDI frame (the code could be in a GetFocus event or, for a Menu object, the Selected event).

```
w_frame.SetMicroHelp(This.Tag)
```

3.268 Text

Applies to

Menus and controls that display text and DatePicker controls

Description

The Text property specifies the text displayed in the menu object or control.

If a Menu item has a shortcut key (for example, F1 or Alt+a), Text includes the shortcut key. If the Text property of a Menu item is a single dash (-), the item displays as a separator (a horizontal line the width of the menu), and all other properties for the item are ignored.

In DatePicker controls, the Text property is a read-only property that is equivalent to the Value property with the specified Format or CustomFormat applied. The Text property set for a DatePicker control must be capable of being converted to a DateTime value. This property cannot be set in the painter.

Usage

In a painter

To specify text to be displayed in a Menu item or control:

• Enter the desired text in the Text field on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The Text property takes a string value. The following line specifies that the text of a check box is Male:

```
cb_1.Text = "Male"
```

The following statements set the Format property to allow a custom format, then set the custom format, then return the text of the DatePicker control to the string variable ls_text:

```
string ls_text
dp_1.Format = dtfCustom!
dp_1.CustomFormat = "MMMM dd, yyyy"
ls_text = dp_1.text
```

3.269 TextCase

Applies to

EditMask, MultiLineEdit, SingleLineEdit controls

Description

The TextCase property lets you constrain the case of text entered by the user. The text can be displayed as the user types it, as all lowercase, or as all uppercase.

Usage

In a painter

To select the case used to display text entered by users:

• Select the desired text case from the TextCase drop-down list on the General tag page in the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The TextCase property takes a value of the TextCase enumerated datatype. The following line sets the case for a MultiLineEdit to all uppercase:

mle_1.TextCase = Upper!

3.270 TextColor

Applies to

Controls and objects that display text

Description

The TextColor property specifies the color to be used for text in the control.

For the MonthCalendar control, TextColor is the color used to display text within a month.

Usage

This property does not work in MonthCalendar controls on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

To set the text color for most controls:

• Select the desired color from the TextColor drop-down list on the Font tab page for the control.

To set the text color for graph objects and MonthCalendar controls:

• Select the desired color from the TextColor drop-down list on the General page of the Properties view.

To set the text color for text objects within graphs:

- 1. Select the Text tab page from the graph's Properties view.
- 2. Select the desired text object from TextObject drop-down list.
- 3. Select a color from the TextColor drop-down list.

In scripts

The TextColor property is a long indicating the color to be used for the background for an object. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to

determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

In graphs, the TextColor property is a property of the graph object as well as of grDistAttr objects within the graph. For example, the following line sets text color for all the text objects in the Series Axis:

gr_1.Series.DispAttr.TextColor = RGB(0,0,255)

3.271 TextSize

Applies to

Controls that can display text

Description

The TextSize property specifies the point size of the text in the control.

Usage

This property does not work in MonthCalendar controls on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

To set the size of all the text in a control:

• Display the Font tab page of the control's Properties view and select the desired point size from the Size drop-down list, or select the control and then set the point size using the Font Size list box on the StyleBar.

To set the size of a text object in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired text object from the Text Object list.
- 2. Select the desired point size from the TextSize list.

To set the size of text in a menu:

 Display the Appearance tab page of the top-level menu object's Properties view, select contemporarymenu! from the Menu Style list, and select the desired point size from the TextSize list.

This property does not apply to menu items in the menu bar, which have a fixed size of 8 points.

In scripts

The TextSize property takes an integer value that indicates the point size. The following example sets the point size of a static text control:

```
st_1.TextSize = 12
```

This example sets the point size of the label of the Value axis of a graph control:

gr_1.Values.LabelDispAttr.TextSize = 12

3.272 ThreeState

Applies to

CheckBox controls

Description

The ThreeState property specifies whether or not the control can have three states. Typically, the state toggles between selected and not selected. For check boxes, if the ThreeState property has been enabled, the state of the control also toggles to a third state. A grayed-out mark is displayed for the third state.

Usage

In a painter

To allow the check box to have three states:

• Select the ThreeState check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ThreeState property takes a boolean value. The following lines specify that a CheckBox can have three states and that it starts out in the third state:

```
cbx_1.ThreeState = TRUE
cbx_1.ThirdState = TRUE
```

3.273 ThirdState

Applies to

CheckBox controls

Description

The ThirdState property specifies whether the CheckBox is in the third state (neither selected nor unselected).

For a check box to be in the third state, the ThreeState property must also be enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that a check box is in the third state:

• Check both the ThreeState and the ThirdState check boxes on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The ThirdState property takes a boolean value. The following lines specify that a CheckBox can have three states and that it starts out in the third state:

```
cbx_1.ThreeState = TRUE
cbx_1.ThirdState = TRUE
```

3.274 TimeOut

Applies to

HTTPClient, RestClient, TokenRequest, OAuthRequest objects

Description

The TimeOut property specifies the timeout seconds. The default value is 60 and 0 means no timeout.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the timeout seconds:

• Use the spin control or enter a long value in the timeout text box on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The TimeOut property takes a long value. The following line sets the TimeOut property to 30 seconds:

```
HttpClient lnv_HttpClient
lnv_HttpClient = Create HttpClient

//Set timeout to 30 seconds
lnv_HttpClient.Timeout = 30

//Send GET request
lnv_HttpClient.SendRequest("GET", " http://demo.appeon.com/PB/webapi_client/employee/102")
```

3.275 Title

Applies to

DataWindow controls, Graph controls, Windows

Description

The Title property specifies the title text of the control or window. In a window or DataWindow control, this value is displayed only if the TitleBar property is also enabled.

Usage

In a painter

To specify title text:

• Type the title text in the Title field and select the TitleBar check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Title property takes a string value. The following lines set a title for a DataWindow control dw 1:

```
dw_1.TitleBar = TRUE
```

dw_1.Title = "Monthly Report"

3.276 TitleBackColor

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls

Description

The TitleBackColor property defines the color to be used for the background of the calendar's title.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select a color from the TitleBackColor drop-down list on the General page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The TitleBackColor property takes a long (-2 to 16,777,215) that specifies the numerical value of the background color of the month or months in a calendar. The TitleBackColor value is a combination of values for the red, green, and blue components of the color.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following example sets pale green as the background color for titles:

mc_1.TitleBackColor = RGB(128, 255, 128)

3.277 TitleBar

Applies to

DataWindow controls, Windows

Description

The TitleBar property specifies whether the DataWindow control or window displays a title bar. The user can move a window or DataWindow control only if it has a title bar.

If the window type is a main or MDI frame window with or without MicroHelp, the TitleBar property is always enabled. When the title bar is enabled, you can choose whether to include the control menu and the maximize and minimize boxes in the title bar.

Usage

In a painter

To display a title bar:

• Select the TitleBar check box on the General page of the DataWindow control's or window's Properties view.

In scripts

For DataWindow controls, the TitleBar property can be modified in a script. It cannot be modified for Windows.

The TitleBar property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that a title bar will appear in a DataWindow control dw_1:

dw_1.TitleBar = TRUE

3.278 TitleTextColor

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls

Description

The TitleTextColor property specifies the color used for text in the calendar's title.

Usage

This property does not work in MonthCalendar controls on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select the desired color from the TitleTextColor drop-down list on the General tab page of the Properties view.

In scripts

The TitleTextColor property is a long indicating the color to be used for the title for a calendar. If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

For example, the following line sets the title text color for the control mc 1:

mc_1.TitleTextColor = RGB(0,0,255)

3.279 TodayCircle

Applies to

DatePicker, MonthCalendar controls

Description

Specifies whether a red circle or rectangle displays to highlight today's date on the calendar. The shape of the indicator depends on your operating system and display settings. If the TodaySection property is true, the indicator displays to its left.

Usage

In a painter

To set the TodayCircle property:

 Select or clear the TodayCircle check box on the Calendar page in the Properties view for a DatePicker control or the General page in the Properties view for a MonthCalendar control.

The TodayCircle property takes a boolean value. The default is true. This example turns the TodayCircle off in a DatePicker control:

dp_1.TodayCircle = false

3.280 TodaySection

Applies to

DatePicker, MonthCalendar controls

Description

Specifies whether the label "Today:" followed by the current date displays at the bottom of the calendar. If the TodayCircle property is true, a red rectangle displays to the left of the Today section.

Usage

In a painter

To set the TodaySection property:

 Select or clear the TodaySection check box on the Calendar page in the Properties view for a DatePicker control or the General page in the Properties view for a MonthCalendar control.

In scripts

The TodaySection property takes a boolean value. The default is true. This example turns the TodaySection off in the calendar for a DatePicker control:

dp_1.TodaySection = false

3.281 TokenLocation

Applies to

TokenRequest objects

Description

The URL of the authorization server.

Usage

In scripts

The TokenLocation property takes a string value. The following line sets the TokenLocation property:

TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest = "http://192.0.3.177/oauth2/connect/token"

3.282 ToolbarAlignment

Applies to

Windows

Description

In an MDI frame window, Alignment specifies where the toolbar displays.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the toolbar alignment:

• Select the desired alignment type from the ToolbarAlignment drop-down list on the Toolbar tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ToolbarAlignment property takes a value of the ToolbarAlignment enumerated datatype.

The following line specifies how the toolbar for window w_1 is aligned in the toolbar dock:

This.ToolbarAlignment = AlignAtRight!

3.283 ToolbarHeight

Applies to

Windows

Description

For MDI frame windows, the ToolbarHeight property specifies the height of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar.

Usage

In a painter

To specify toolbar height:

• Enter the desired height in the ToolbarHeight field on the Toolbar tab page in the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ToolbarHeight property takes an integer value. The following line sets toolbar height for a window:

This.ToolbarHeight = 100

3.284 ToolbarVisible

Applies to

Windows

Description

For MDI frame windows, ToolbarVisible specifies whether the toolbar is displayed.

Usage

The ToolbarVisible property overrides the ToolbarItemVisible property for individual toolbar items.

In a painter

To make the toolbar visible:

• Select the ToolbarVisible check box on the Toolbar tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ToolbarVisible property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that the toolbar for a window displays:

This.ToolbarVisible = TRUE

3.285 ToolbarWidth

Applies to

Windows

Description

For MDI frame windows, the ToolbarWidth property specifies the width of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar.

Usage

In a painter

To specify toolbar width:

• Enter the desired width in the ToolbarWidth field on the Toolbar tab page in the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ToolbarWidth property takes an integer value. The following line sets toolbar width for a window:

This.ToolbarWidth = 500

3.286 ToolbarX

Applies to

Windows

Description

The ToolbarX property specifies the X coordinate in PowerBuilder units of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar. The X coordinate is the distance from the left edge of the window or screen.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the X coordinate of the toolbar:

• Enter the desired value, in PowerBuilder units, in the ToolbarX field on the Toolbar tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ToolbarX property takes an integer value.

The following line specifies a distance of approximately 5 pixels from the left edge of the window for a toolbar:

This.ToolbarX = 20

3.287 ToolbarY

Applies to

Windows

Description

The ToolbarY property specifies the Y coordinate in PowerBuilder units of the toolbar when it is a floating toolbar. The Y coordinate is the distance from the top of the window or screen.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the Y coordinate of the toolbar:

• Enter the desired value, in PowerBuilder units, in the ToolbarY field on the Toolbar tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The ToolbarY property takes an integer value. The following line specifies a distance of approximately 4 pixels from the top of the window for a toolbar:

This.ToolbarX = 15

3.288 ToolBar

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

When the ToolBar property is enabled, a toolbar for formatting text displays above the editing area of the RichTextEdit control. The toolbar includes bolding, italics, underscore, strikeout, alignment, spacing, superscript, subscript, tabs, display of text symbols such as paragraph returns, and text color. If the control is not wide enough, the tool bar is truncated.

The toolbar can also be enabled and disabled at runtime by the user from the Properties item on the pop-up menu, if the PopMenu property has been set to true.

Usage

In a painter

To display the toolbar in a RichTextEdit control:

• Select the ToolBar check box on the Document tab page of the control's Property view.

In scripts

The ToolBar property takes a boolean value. The following line makes a toolbar display in a RichTextEdit:

rte_1.ToolBar = TRUE

3.289 TopMargin

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The TopMargin property specifies the size in inches of the top margin on the printed page.

Usage

In a painter

To set the top margin:

• Enter the desired size in inches in the Top Margin field of the Document tab page of the RichTextEdit control's Property view.

In scripts

The TopMargin property takes a long value. The following line sets the top margin of a RichTextEdit to 1 inch:

 $rte_1.TopMargin = 1$

3.290 TrailingTextColor

Applies to

MonthCalendar controls

Description

The TrailingTextColor property specifies the color used for text for leading and trailing days in the calendar.

Usage

This property does not work on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

Select the desired color from the TrailingTextColor drop-down list on the General tab page of the Properties view.

In scripts

The TrailingTextColor property is a long indicating the color to be used for leading and trailing days in the calendar. These are days in months that are partly displayed in the

calendar. In a calendar showing a single month, they are the last few days of the preceding month and the next few days of the following month. In a calendar showing the three months July to September, the leading days are the last few days of June and the trailing days are the first few days of October. The default color is Disabled Text.

If you do not know the long value for the color, choose Design>Custom Colors to determine the red, green, and blue values and then call the RGB function to specify the color in a script.

The following line sets the trailing text color for the control mc_1 to "Inactive Title Bar":

mc_1.TrailingTextColor = 134217731

3.291 Transparency

Applies to

CheckBox, DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, EditMask, Graph, GroupBox, ListView, MultiLineEdit, PictureButton, RadioButton, RichTextEdit, SingleLineEdit, StaticHyperlink, Tab, TreeView, UserObject, and Window controls

Description

Specifies the transparency of a window.

Usage

The Transparency property takes an integer value in the range 0 to 100, where 0 means that the window is opaque and 100 that is completely transparent. This property is useful when you want a non-modal dialog box or window to remain visible but become semi-transparent when the user's focus has shifted to another area.

In MDI applications, sheet windows always have the same transparency as the frame window. The transparency setting of the sheet window is ignored.

In a painter

To make the window transparent:

• Select or type a value in the Transparency spin control on the General page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

Changes in the Transparency property take effect immediately.

The following statement sets Transparency to 25%:

```
w_popup.Transparency = 25
```

The following statement in the Moved event of a HTrackbar control sets the transparency based on the setting in the track bar:

w_popup.Transparency = scrollpos

3.292 Transparent

Applies to

Animation controls

Description

When the Transparent property is enabled, the animation control uses the same background color as its container, giving it a transparent appearance. You should also set the Border property to false.

Usage

In a painter

To make the control appear to be transparent:

• Select the Transparent check box on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The Transparent property takes a boolean value. The following line sets the Transparent property to true:

am_1.Transparent = TRUE

3.293 ULTrans

Applies to

SyncParm objects

Description

Not currently used.

Usage

Reserved for the connected transaction object to an UltraLite remote database.

3.294 Underline

Applies to

Controls that display text

Description

Underline is a property of text in a control.

Usage

This property does not work in MonthCalendar controls on the Windows 7/8.1/10 operating system.

In a painter

To underline all text items in a control:

• Select the Underline check box on the Font tab page of the control's property page, or select the control and then click the U button on the StyleBar.

To underline a text object in a graph control:

1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired text object from the Text Object list.

2. Select the Underline check box on the Text tab page.

In scripts

The Underline property takes a boolean value. The following example underlines the text in a StaticText control:

```
st_1.Underline = TRUE
```

This example underlines the label of the Value axis of a graph control:

gr_1.Values.LabelDispAttr.Underline = TRUE

3.295 UndoDepth (obsolete)

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

The UndoDepth property specifies the maximum number of editing changes that the Undo function will undo. Each time you call Undo, one more editing change is restored. The CanUndo function returns false when there are no more changes to undo.

Obsolete property

This property is ignored. The maximum undo depth is 50. This value cannot be changed at either design time or runtime.

3.296 UnitsPerColumn

Applies to

Windows and user objects

Description

UnitsPerColumn specifies the number of PowerBuilder units you want to scroll right or left when the user clicks the left or right arrow in the horizontal scroll bar in a window or user object. The default is 0 (1/100 of the width of the window or user object). PowerBuilder controls horizontal scrolling automatically when Units Per Column is 0.

PowerBuilder multiplies Units Per Column by Columns Per Page to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window horizontally when the user clicks in the scroll bar.

For information on calculating ColumnsPerPage and UnitsPerColumn, see <u>Scrolling in</u> windows and user objects.

Usage note

To control the vertical scroll bar in a window or user object, use the UnitsPerLine and LinesPerPage properties.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the UnitsPerColumn property:

• Enter the desired number of PowerBuilder units in the UnitsPerColumn field on the Scroll tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The UnitsPerColumn property takes an integer value.

The following statement sets Units Per Column to 12, which is appropriate for a content width of 1650:

This.UnitsPerColumn = 12

3.297 UnitsPerLine

Applies to

Windows, user objects

Description

UnitsPerLine specifies the number of PowerBuilder units you want to scroll up or down when the user clicks the up or down arrow in the vertical scroll bar in a window or user object. The default is 0 (1/100 of the window or user object height). When UnitsPerLine is 0, PowerBuilder controls vertical scrolling automatically.

PowerBuilder multiplies UnitsPerPage by UnitsPerLine to determine the number of PowerBuilder units to scroll the window or user object vertically when the user clicks in the scroll bar.

For information on calculating LinesPerPage and UnitsPerLine, see <u>Scrolling in windows and</u> user objects.

Usage note

To control horizontal scrolling in a window or user object, use the UnitsPerColumn and ColumnsPerPage properties.

Usage

In a painter

To set the UnitsPerLine property:

• Enter the desired number of PowerBuilder units in the UnitsPerLine field on the Scroll tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

The UnitsPerLine property takes an integer value.

The following statement sets UnitsPerLine to 17, which is appropriate for a content length of 2400:

lb_1.UnitsPerLine = 17

3.298 URL

Applies to

OAuthRequest objects

Description

Specifies the request URL.

Usage

In scripts

The URL property takes a string value. The following line sets the URL property:

```
OAuthRequest lnv_OAuthRequest
lnv_OAuthRequest.url = "https://192.0.3.177/appeon/api/dept"
```

3.299 UseCodeTable

Applies to

EditMask controls

Description

When an EditMask control has been defined as a spin control (that is, a control with up and down arrows the user clicks to cycle through predefined values), a code table can be used to validate data.

The UseCodeTable property specifies whether the control uses a code table to validate data.

Usage

In a painter

To specify use of a code table for an EditMask control:

1. Select the Spin Control and Code Table check boxes on the Mask tab page of the control's Properties view.

An area appears on the lower half of the tab page where you can enter values for the code table.

2. Specify Display Values and their corresponding Data Values.

Use the Insert button to insert items within this list.

In scripts

The UseCodeTable property takes a boolean value. This example specifies that the EditMask control should use its code table to validate data:

```
em_1.UseCodeTable = TRUE
```

You can specify the contents of the code table in scripts by using the DisplayData property. Enter the Display values and their corresponding Data values as a text string, with the Display and Data pairs separated by tabs and the pairs separated by slashes. For example:

```
em_1.DisplayData = "Black 1/White 2/Red 3"
```

3.300 UseLogFile

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies whether to log synchronization processing information.

Usage

At design time, you can select the Save to Log File check box on the Logging tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. You must also supply a log file name or set the LogFileName property if you want to save synchronization information.

At runtime, application users can select or clear the Use Log File check box on the Settings tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard.

In scripts

You can change the UseLogFile value in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.UseLogFile = true
```

3.301 UseMouseForInput

Applies to

InkEdit, InkPicture controls

Description

Specifies whether the mouse can be used for input on a Tablet PC. This property has no effect on other computers.

Usage

In a painter

To specify that ink can be added using a mouse:

• Select the UseMouseForInput check box on the Ink page in the Properties view.

In scripts

The UseMouseForInput property takes a boolean value. Do not change this property at runtime while the control is collecting or recognizing ink.

This code in a button's Clicked event checks that the status of the InkEdit control is idle before setting the UseMouseForInput property to true:

```
IF ie_1.Status = InkEditIdle! THEN  ie_1.UseMouseForInput = TRUE
ELSE    MessageBox("Please try again later", &
        "Text is being recognized.")
END IF
```

3.302 UserName

Applies to

TokenRequest objects

Description

The name of the resource owner.

Usage

In scripts

The UserName property takes a string value. The following line sets the UserName property:

```
string ls_username
TokenRequest lnv_TokenRequest
lnv_TokenRequest.username = ls_username
```

3.303 UseWindow

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies whether to display a progress window during synchronization.

Usage

At design time, you can select the Use Progress Window check box on the Logging tab of the Properties view for an MLSync object. You must also supply a progress window name or set the ProgressWindowName property if you want to display a progress window.

At runtime, application users can select the Display if Available radio button option on the Settings tab page of the default synchronization options window generated by the MobiLink wizard. Otherwise users can select the Do Not Display radio button option to prevent a progress window from displaying.

In scripts

You can change the UseWindow value in script as follows:

```
mySync_1.UseWindow = true
```

3.304 Value

Applies to

DatePicker controls

Description

Specifies the date/time value assigned to the control. The date part of the Value property uses the format for short dates specified in the regional settings in the Windows control panel on the local computer. The time part of the Value property uses the time format specified in regional settings.

The Value defaults to the current date and time.

Usage

In the painter

To set the Value property:

• Select a date from the Value drop-down calendar on the General page of the Properties view or type a date and optional time into the Value box.

In scripts

The Value property takes a DateTime value. The value you assign must be capable of being interpreted as a DateTime value. You can use the DateValue and TimeValue properties to extract the date and time parts of the Value property.

This example sets the Value property to midday on July 1, 2005. The display format depends on the value of the Format and CustomFormat properties and the regional settings for date and time on the local computer:

dp_1.Value = DateTime(Date("2005/07/01"),Time("12:00:00"))

3.305 View

Applies to

ListView controls

Description

A ListView has four ways to display its items:

Large icon view

Items are arranged from left to right and the user can move items around when drag and drop is enabled. Each item's picture is taken from the large picture list, and the item label is below the picture.

· Small icon view

Same as large icon view except each item's picture is taken from the small picture list, and the item label is to the right of the picture.

• List view

Items are arranged from top to bottom. Each item's picture is taken from the small picture array.

· Report view

Items are arranged from top to bottom with one or more columns of information for each item. You must write a script to set up the columns.

Usage

In a painter

To select the view type:

• Select the desired view type from the View drop-down list on the General page of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The View property takes a value of the ListViewView enumerated datatype.

The following line specifies that small pictures appear for the items in the ListBox:

lv_1.View = ListViewSmallIcon!

3.306 Visible

Applies to

Controls, windows, user objects, menus

Description

The Visible property specifies whether the object, window object, or Menu object is visible.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Visible property:

• Select the Visible check box on the General page of the object's Properties view.

In scripts

The Visible property takes a boolean value. The following line specifies that MultiLineEdit mle_1 is visible:

mle_1.Visible = TRUE

You can use the Show and Hide functions to change the visibility of an object.

Usage note

You cannot use the Visible property or the Show or Hide functions to show or hide an MDI sheet or a drop-down or cascading menu or any menu that has an MDI frame window as its parent window.

3.307 VScrollBar

Applies to

DataWindow, DropDownListBox, DropDownPictureListBox, EditMask, InkEdit, ListBox, MultiLineEdit, PictureListBox, RichTextEdit controls, windows, user objects

Description

When the VScrollBar property is enabled, PowerBuilder adds a vertical scroll bar to the right of a window or other control when the contents of the object are outside the borders.

Usage

In a painter

To allow display of a vertical scroll bar:

• Select the VScrollBar check box on the General or Scroll tab page of the object's Properties view.

The VScrollBar property is a boolean value.

This example displays a vertical scroll bar in a DataWindow control:

```
dw_1.VScrollBar = TRUE
```

This property cannot be set at runtime for EditMask controls.

3.308 VTextAlign

Applies to

PictureButton controls

Description

The HTextAlign property specifies how the text label for the PictureButton control is aligned in relation to the picture.

Usage

In a painter

To set the vertical alignment of text:

• Select the desired alignment from the VTextAlign drop-down list on the General tab of the control's Properties view.

In scripts

The VTextAlign property takes a value of the VTextAlign enumerated datatype.

The following example specifies bottom alignment for text in a PictureButton:

```
pb_1.VTextAlign = Bottom!
```

3.309 WeekNumbers

Applies to

DatePicker, MonthCalendar controls

Description

Specifies whether a number displays to the left of each row of dates to indicate the number of the week in the year. For example, January 1 falls in the first week in the year, so the number 1 would display to the left of its row of data if this property is set to true.

Usage

In a painter

To set the WeekNumbers property:

 Select or clear the WeekNumbers check box on the Calendar page in the Properties view for DatePicker controls or the General page in the Properties view for MonthCalendar controls.

The WeekNumbers property takes a boolean value. The default is false. These statements turn the WeekNumbers property on for a DatePicker control and a MonthCalendar control:

```
dp_1.WeekNumbers = true
mc_1.WeekNumbers = true
```

3.310 Weight

Applies to

Controls that can display text

Description

The Weight property specifies the stroke weight of the text in the control.

Usage

In a painter

To set the stroke weight of all text in a control:

• Display the Font tab page of the control's Properties view and select the Bold check box, or select the control and then click the B button on the StyleBar.

To set the stroke weight of a text object in a graph control:

- 1. Display the Text tab page of the graph control's Properties view and select the desired text object from the Text Object list box.
- 2. Select the Bold check box.

In scripts

The Weight property takes an integer value. 400 indicates a normal weight and 700 indicates a bold weight. The following example sets the text labels of the tab pages of a tab control to bold:

```
tab_1.Weight = 700
```

3.311 Width

Applies to

Visible controls, windows

Description

The Width property specifies the width of a control or window in PowerBuilder units.

Usage

In a painter

To set the width of a control or window

• Enter the desired width in the Width edit box on the Other tab page of the object's Properties view, or select the control or window and resize it with your cursor.

The Width property takes an integer value specifying the width of an object in PowerBuilder units. The following example sets the width of a DataWindow control dw_1:

```
dw_1.Width = 750
```

It is illegal to resize a minimized or maximized sheet or frame. Changing the Width or Height property for a minimized or maximized window is not supported.

3.312 WindowDockOptions

Applies to

Child Windows

Description

WindowDockOptions are for child windows to specify how they can be opened:

- WindowDockOptionAll!
- WindowDockOptionTabbedDocumentOnly!
- WindowDockOptionDockedOnly!
- WindowDockOptionFloatOnly!
- WindowDockOptionTabbedDocumentAndDockedOnly!
- WindowDockOptionTabbedDocumentAndFloatOnly!
- WindowDockOptionDockedAndFloatOnly!

Usage

In a painter

To set the window docking:

• Select the desired state from the WindowDockOptions drop-down list on the Docking tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

You cannot specify the initial state of the window before it has been opened. You can change its display state afterwards while the window is open.

The WindowDockOptions property takes a value of the WindowDockOptions enumerated datatype. The following line sets the dock options for the current window:

This.WindowDockOptions = windowdockoptionfloatonly!

3.313 WindowDockState

Applies to

Windows

Description

The WindowDockState property specifies how the MDI windows are first displayed. The state can be:

Docked

The sheet is open and fixed in position relative to the Window object. The docked state is the default.

Floating

Users can move a floating sheet around or even outside the Window object.

TabbedDocument

Sheets that appear tabbed in the same area of the Window.

• TabbedWindow

Docked windows that occupy the same area of the Window are in a tabbed group. The tabs are at the bottom.

Usage

In a painter

To set the window state:

• Select the desired option from the WindowDockState drop-down list on the Position tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

You cannot specify the initial state of the window before it has been opened. You can change its display state afterwards while the window is open.

The WindowDockState property takes a value of the WindowDockState enumerated datatype. The following line sets the Docked state for the current window:

This.WindowDockState = WindowDockStateDocked!

3.314 WindowObject

Applies to

MLSynchronization and MLSync objects

Description

Specifies an instance of a synchronization progress window. The class name of WindowObject must match the value of the ProgressWindowName property.

Usage

In scripts

You can set the WindowObject value in script as follows:

mySync_1.WindowObject = w_myProgressWindow

3.315 WindowState

Applies to

Windows

Description

The WindowState property specifies how the window is first displayed. The state can be:

Maximized

Enlarge the window to its maximum size.

· Minimized

Shrink the window to an icon.

• Normal (Default)

Display the window as it is defined in the painter.

Usage

In a painter

To set the window state:

• Select the desired state from the WindowState drop-down list on the Position tab page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

You cannot specify the initial state of the window before it has been opened. You can change its display state afterwards while the window is open.

The WindowState property takes a value of the WindowState enumerated datatype. The following line sets the Maximized state for the current window:

This.WindowState = Maximized!

3.316 WindowType

Applies to

Windows

Description

The value of this property specifies the type of window.

Table 3.8: Window types

Child	A window that is dependent on a main window and can exist only within the main (parent) window.
Main	A standalone overlapped window that can be independent of all other windows.

MDI	An MDI frame without a MicroHelp status bar.
MDIHelp	An MDI frame with a MicroHelp status bar.
MDIDock	A dockable MDI frame without a MicroHelp status bar.
MDIDockHell	A dockable MDI frame with a MicroHelp status bar.
Popup	A window that usually displays in response to an event within a window, but can exist outside of the window and, in some cases, after the window that opened it is closed.
Response	A window that displays to obtain information from the user and cannot lose focus or be closed until the user responds.

Usage

In a painter

To specify the window type:

• Select the desired type from the WindowType drop-down list on the General page of the window's Properties view.

In scripts

You cannot change a window's WindowType property dynamically at runtime.

3.317 WordWrap

Applies to

RichTextEdit controls

Description

WordWrap determines how a rich text control displays large blocks of text that do not contain spaces or other word-breaking characters (tab characters or end-of-line markers, but not hyphens). If the last word in a block of text is too large to fit on a line when WordWrap is enabled, the rich text control splits the word and displays the nonfitting characters on the following line.

When WordWrap is disabled, users cannot enter characters (other than word-breaking characters) beyond the right margin, and must move the cursor to a new line to continue entering text. If a document is inserted when WordWrap is disabled, and the document conatins a block of text too large to fit on a line, the rich text control hides the nonfitting characters, even when the text eventually breaks to a new line because of a space or other word-breaking character.

WordWrap can be enabled or disabled by the user at runtime from the Properties item on the pop-up menu when the PopMenu property is enabled. If characters from an inserted text are hidden because WordWrap is disabled, and the user subsequently enables WordWrap, the hidden characters will be displayed on the next line of the rich text control. If the same text is inserted when WordWrap is enabled, and the user subsequently disables WordWrap, the rich text control hides previously visible characters that had wrapped to the next line.

Usage

In a painter

To enable word wrap:

• Select the WordWrap check box on the Document tab page of the control's Properties view

In scripts

The WordWrap property takes a boolean value.

The following line enables word wrapping for a RichTextEdit control:

rte_1.WordWrap = TRUE

3.318 X

Applies to

Controls, windows

Description

The X property specifies the X coordinate of an object or control in PowerBuilder units.

The X coordinate is the distance from the left edge of the window or custom user object. If the object is a main window or custom user object, the distance is relative to the screen. If it is not a main window, the distance is relative to the parent window unless it is opened in an MDI frame window, in which case the distance is relative to the MDI frame.

Usage

In a painter

To set the X coordinate:

• Enter the desired X coordinate, in PowerBuilder units, in the X field of the Other tab page of the object's Properties view, or drag and drop the control to the desired location.

In scripts

The X property takes an integer value. The following line sets the distance from the left edge of a window for a DataWindow control dw_1:

```
dw_1.X = 215
```

You can also set the X and Y properties of a control using the Move function.

It is illegal to move a maximized sheet or frame. Changing the X or Y property for a maximized window is ignored.

3.319 Y

Applies to

Controls, windows

Description

The Y property specifies the Y coordinate of an object or control in PowerBuilder units. The Y coordinate is the distance from the top of the window or user object. If the object is a main window or custom user object, the distance is relative to the screen. If it is not a main window, the distance is relative to the parent window unless it is opened in an MDI frame window, in which case the distance is relative to the MDI frame.

Usage

In a painter

To set the Y coordinate:

• Enter the desired Y coordinate, in PowerBuilder units, in the Y field of the Other tab page of the object's Properties view, or drag and drop the control to the desired location.

In scripts

The Y property takes an integer value. The following line sets the distance from the top of the window for a DataWindow control dw_1:

 $dw_1.Y = 215$

You can also set the X and Y properties of a control using the Move function.

It is illegal to move a maximized sheet or frame. Changing the X or Y property for a maximized window is ignored.

4 About Display Formats and Scrolling

About this chapter

This chapter describes how to use specific display formats with PowerBuilder controls and provides information about scrolling in PowerBuilder windows and user objects.

4.1 Using colors with display formats

Applies to

Display formats

Description

You can define a color for each display format section by specifying a color keyword before the format. The color keyword is the name of the color, or a number that is the color's RGB value, enclosed in square brackets. For example:

[RED]m/d/yy
[255]m/d/yy

The following table lists the named color keywords.

Table 4.1: Named color keywords

[BLACK]	[MAGENTA]
[BLUE]	[RED]
[CYAN]	[WHITE]
[GREEN]	[YELLOW]

The formula for combining primary color values into a number is:

256 * 256 * blue + 256 * green + red = number

where the amount of each primary color is specified as a value from 0 to 255. For example, to specify cyan, substitute 255 for blue, 255 for green, and 0 for red. The result is 16776960.

The following table lists the blue, green, and red values you can use in the formula to specify other colors.

Table 4.2: Values used to specify colors

Blue	Green	Red	Number	Color
0	0	255	255	Red
0	255	0	65280	Green
0	128	255	32768	Dark Green
255	0	0	16711680	Blue
0	255	255	65535	Yellow
0	128	128	328896	Brown
255	255	0	16776960	Cyan

Blue	Green	Red	Number	Color
192	192	192	12632256	Light Gray

4.2 Using date display formats

Applies to

Display formats

Description

A date display format can have two sections. The first section is required. The second section is optional and specifies how to represent NULLs:

date-format; null-format

The following table shows characters that have special meaning in date display formats.

Table 4.3: Special characters in date display formats

Character	Meaning	Example
d	Day number with no leading zero	9
dd	Day number with leading zero if appropriate	09
ddd	Day name abbreviation	Mon
dddd	Day name	Monday
m	Month number with no leading zero	6
mm	Month number with leading zero if appropriate	06
mmm	Month name abbreviation	Jun
mmmm	Month name	June
уу	Two-digit year	97
уууу	Four-digit year	1997

Colons, slashes, and spaces display as entered in the mask.

Usage

If users specify a two-digit year in a DataWindow object, PowerBuilder assumes the date is the 20th century if the year is greater than or equal to 50. If the year is less than 50, PowerBuilder assumes the 21st century.

For example:

- 1/1/85 is interpreted as January 1, 1985
- 1/1/40 is interpreted as January 1, 2040

Examples

The following table shows how the date Friday, Jan. 30, 2003, displays when different format masks are applied.

Table 4.4: Date format examples

Format	Displays
[red]m/d/yy	1/30/03 (in red)
d-mmm-yy	30-Jan-03
dd-mmmm	30-January
mmm-yy	Jan-03
dddd, mmm d, yyyy	Friday, Jan 30, 2003

4.3 Using number display formats

Applies to

Display formats

Description

A number display format can have up to four sections. Only the first is required.

Positive-format; negative-format; zero-format; null-format

The following table shows characters that have special meaning in number display formats.

Table 4.5: Special characters in number display formats

Character	Meaning
#	A number
	A required number; a number will display for every 0 in the mask

Dollar signs, percent signs, decimal points, parentheses, and spaces display as entered in the mask.

These keywords tell PowerBuilder to determine an appropriate format based on system settings:

- [General]
- [Currency]

Examples

The following table shows how the values 5, -5, and .5 display when different format masks are applied.

Table 4.6: Number format examples

Sample format	5	-5	.5
[General]	5	-5	0.5
0	5	-5	1

Sample format	5	-5	.5
0.00	5.00	-5.00	0.50
#,##0	5	-5	1
#,##0.00	5.00	-5.00	0.50
\$#,##0;(\$#,##0)	\$5	(\$5)	\$1
\$#,##0;-\$#,##0	\$5	-\$5	\$1
\$#,##0;[RED] (\$#,##0)	\$5	(\$5)	\$1
\$#,##0.00; (\$#,##0.00)	\$5.00	(\$5.00)	\$0.50
\$#,##0.00;[RED] (\$#,##0.00)	\$5.00	(\$5.00)	\$0.50
0%	500%	-500%	50%
0.00%	500.00%	-500.00%	50.00%
0.00E+00	5.00E+00	-5.00E+00	5.00E-01

4.4 Using string display formats

Applies to

Display formats

Description

A string display format can have two sections. The first section is required. The second section is optional and specifies how to represent NULLs.

string-format; null-format

The following table shows characters that have special meaning in string display formats.

Table 4.7: Special characters in string display formats

Character	Meaning
@	A character

All other characters (including spaces) display as entered in the mask.

Examples

This format mask:

[red](@@@) @@@-@@@@

displays the string 800YESCELT in red as:

(800) YES-CELT

4.5 Using time display formats

Applies to

Display formats

Description

A time display format can have two sections. The first section is required and contains the format for times. The second section is optional and specifies how to represent NULLs.

time-format; null-format

The following table shows characters that have special meaning in time display formats.

Table 4.8: Special characters in time display formats

Character	Meaning
h	Hour with no leading zero (for example, 1).
hh	Hour with leading zero if appropriate (for example, 01).
m	Minute with no leading zero (must follow h or hh).
mm	Minute with leading zero if appropriate (must follow h or hh).
S	Second with no leading zero (must follow m or mm).
SS	Second with leading zero (must follow m or mm).
ffffff	Microseconds with no leading zeros. You can enter one to six f's; each f represents a fraction of a second (must follow s or ss).
AM/PM	Two-character, upper-case abbreviation (AM or PM as appropriate).
am/pm	Two-character, lower-case abbreviation (am or pm as appropriate).
A/P	One-character, upper-case abbreviation (A or P as appropriate).
a/p	One-character, lower-case abbreviation (a or p as appropriate).

Colons, slashes, and spaces display as entered in the mask.

The keyword [Time] tells PowerBuilder to use the time format specified in the Microsoft Windows control panel.

Usage

24-hour format is the default. Times display in 24-hour format unless you specify AM/PM, am/pm, A/P, or a/p.

Examples

The following table shows how the time 9:45:33:234567 PM displays when different format masks are applied.

Table 4.9: Time format examples

Format	Displays
h:mm AM/PM	9:45 PM
hh:mm A/P	09:45 P
h:mm:ss am/pm	9:45:33 pm
h:mm	21:45
h:mm:ss	21:45:33

Format	Displays
h:mm:ss:f	21:45:33:2
h:mm:ss:fff	21:45:33:234
h:mm:ss:ffffff	21:45:33:234567
m/d/yy h:mm	1/30/03 21:45

4.6 Scrolling in windows and user objects

For scrolling purposes, PowerBuilder divides the window content into 100 lines and 100 columns. Lines, columns, and pages for scrolling do not correlate with any visible aspect of the window (such as the viewable area).

A line or a column is the amount scrolled by clicking a scroll bar arrow. There are 100 lines and 100 columns in the control being scrolled, regardless of the area occupied by the content of the window or user object. To get to the end of the scroll bar, the user can click 100 times on the scroll bar arrow.

A page is the amount scrolled by clicking in the scroll bar, not on the scroll bar arrows.

Vertical versus horizontal scrolling

The procedures in the following sections define vertical scrolling, determined by the UnitsPerLine and LinesPerPage properties, but the same formulas apply to horizontal scrolling, determined by the UnitsPerColumn and ColumnsPerPage properties.

Relating scrolling to height of content

If you want the bottommost content in the window to be visible when the user reaches the end of the scroll bar, you need to set the value of the control's UnitsPerLine property so that 100 lines cover the entire contents.

To determine the value for UnitsPerLine:

- 1. Resize the window to include all the contents.
- 2. Look at the value of the Height option on the Position tab page of the window's Properties view.
 - The height is shown in PowerBuilder units (PBUs).
- 3. Divide 75% of the value of the Height option by 100 to get the number of PBUs each line should include:

```
UnitsPerLine = height * .75 / 100
```

Using 75% of the total height in this calculation keeps the end of the contents visible when the scroll bar reaches the end, instead of scrolling just out of sight.

Relating scrolling to page size

When the user clicks in the scroll bar, not on the scroll bar arrows, the control scrolls by a page. The page size is calculated using this formula:

```
pagesize = LinesPerPage * UnitsPerLine
```

Therefore, you can use the LinesPerPage property in conjunction with the UnitsPerLine property to set the page size for scrolling.

To determine the value for LinesPerPage

- 1. Calculate the value of the UnitsPerLine property, as shown above.
- 2. Size the window to its desired final size.
- 3. Determine the height of the visible window area by looking at the value of the Height option on the Position tab page of the window's Properties view.
- 4. Decide how much of the window you want to have scroll every time the scroll bar is clicked. This will give you the page size in PBUs.
 - For example, if the visible window area height is 1200 PBUs and you want 1/4 of the window to scroll with each click, then the page size should be 300 PBUs.
- 5. Calculate the value of the LinesPerPage property.

For example:

LinesPerPage = 300 / UnitsPerLine

Scrolling using a fixed number of clicks

Alternatively, if you want to let the user get to the bottom of the content in a given number of clicks, regardless of the visible window area, set LinesPerPage using this formula:

LinesPerPage = 100 / number of clicks

Index

A

Accelerator (property for PowerScript controls), <u>385</u>

AccessibleDescription (property for PowerScript controls), 386

AccessibleName (property for PowerScript controls), 386

AccessibleRole (property for PowerScript controls), 386

Activation (property for PowerScript controls), 388

AdditionalOpts (property for PowerScript controls), 389

ADOResultSet object, 4

Alignment (property for PowerScript controls), 389

AllowEdit (property for PowerScript controls), 390

Animation control, 5

AnimationName (property for PowerScript controls), 391

AnimationTime (property for PowerScript controls), 391

Application object, 8

ArrayBounds object, 11

AuthenticateParms (property for PowerScript controls), 392

AutoArrange (property for PowerScript controls), 392

AutoHScroll (property for PowerScript controls), 393

Automatic (property for PowerScript controls), 393

AutoPlay (property for PowerScript controls), <u>394</u>

AutoReadData (property for PowerScript controls), 394

AutoScale (property for PowerScript controls), 395

AutoSize (property for PowerScript controls), 396

AutoSkip (property for PowerScript controls), 397

AutoVScroll (property for PowerScript controls), 397

В

BackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 398

BeginX (property for PowerScript controls), 399

BeginY (property for PowerScript controls), 399

BoldSelectedText (property for PowerScript controls), 400

Border (property for PowerScript controls), 400

BorderColor (property for PowerScript controls), 401

BorderStyle (property for PowerScript controls), <u>401</u>

BottomMargin (property for PowerScript controls), 402

BringToTop (property for PowerScript controls), 402

ButtonHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 403

C

CalendarBackColor (property for

PowerScript controls), 404

CalendarTextColor (property for PowerScript controls), 405

CalendarTitleBackColor (property for

PowerScript controls), 405

CalendarTitleTextColor (property for

PowerScript controls), 406

CalendarTrailingTextColor (property for

PowerScript controls), 406

Cancel (property for PowerScript controls), 404

Category (property for PowerScript controls), 407

CategorySort (property for PowerScript controls), 408

Center (property for PowerScript controls), 408

CheckBox control, 12

Checked (property for PowerScript controls), 408

ClassDefinition object, 16

ClientId (property for PowerScript controls), 409

ClientSecret (property for PowerScript	Default (property for PowerScript controls), 420
controls), <u>410</u> CloseAnimation (property for PowerScript	DeleteItems (property for PowerScript
controls), 410	controls), 420
CoderObject object, <u>18</u>	Depth (property for PowerScript controls),
CollectionMode (property for PowerScript	421
controls), 411	DisabledName (property for PowerScript
ColumnsPerPage (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>421</u>
controls), 412	DisableDragDrop (property for PowerScript
CommandButton control, 19	controls), <u>422</u>
Connection object, <u>24</u>	DisableNoScroll (property for PowerScript
ContentsAllowed (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>423</u>
controls), 413	display formats
ContextInformation object, <u>29</u>	date, <u>569</u>
ContextKeyword object, <u>30</u>	number, <u>570</u>
ControlCharsVisible (property for	string, <u>571</u>
PowerScript controls), <u>413</u>	time, <u>571</u>
ControlMenu (property for PowerScript	use colors, <u>568</u>
controls), <u>414</u>	DisplayEveryNLabels (property for
CORBACurrent object, <u>31</u>	PowerScript controls), <u>423</u>
CORBAObject object, <u>32</u>	DisplayExpression (property for PowerScript
CornerHeight (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>424</u>
controls), <u>414</u>	DisplayName (property for PowerScript
CornerWidth (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>424</u>
controls), <u>414</u>	DisplayOnly (property for PowerScript
CreateOnDemand (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>425</u>
controls), <u>415</u>	DisplayType (property for PowerScript
CrypterObject object, <u>33</u>	controls), <u>425</u>
CustomFormat (property for PowerScript	DocumentName (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>416</u>	controls), <u>426</u>
	DragAuto (property for PowerScript
D	controls), <u>427</u>
DataObject (property for PowerScript	DragIcon (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>417</u>	controls), <u>427</u>
DataSource (property for PowerScript	DropDownCalendar (property for
controls), 418	PowerScript controls), <u>428</u>
DataStore object, <u>35</u>	DropDownListBox control, 77
DataType (property for PowerScript	DropDownPictureListBox control, <u>83</u>
controls), 418	DropDownRight (property for PowerScript
DataWindow control, 44	controls), <u>428</u>
DataWindowChild object, <u>62</u>	DropLines (property for PowerScript
date display formats, <u>569</u>	controls), <u>429</u>
DatePicker control, <u>68</u>	DynamicDescriptionArea object, 91
DBPass (property for PowerScript controls), 419	DynamicStagingArea object, 93
DBUser (property for PowerScript controls),	${f E}$
<u>419</u>	EditLabels (property for PowerScript controls), <u>429</u>

EditMask control, 94	FontCharSet (property for PowerScript
EditMode (property for PowerScript	controls), 440
controls), 430	FontFamily (property for PowerScript
Elevation (property for PowerScript	controls), 441
controls), 430	FontPitch (property for PowerScript
Enabled (property for PowerScript controls),	controls), 442
431	FontWeight (property for PowerScript
EncryptionKey (property for PowerScript	controls), 442
controls), 431	Format (property for PowerScript controls),
EndX (property for PowerScript controls),	443
432	Frame (property for PowerScript controls),
EndY (property for PowerScript controls),	444
432	FreeDBLibraries (property for PowerScript
EnumerationDefinition object, <u>102</u>	controls), 445
EnumerationItemDefinition object, 104	Controls), <u>4+5</u>
Environment object, 104	G
Error object, 106	GrantType (property for PowerScript
ErrorLogging object, <u>107</u>	controls), 446
ErrorText (property for PowerScript	Graph object, 109
controls), 433	Graph Object, 102 GraphType (property for PowerScript
•	
Escapement (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>446</u>
controls), <u>433</u> Exact to chicat 108	grAxis object, 116
Exception object, 108 Extended Onto (property for Power Script	grDispAttr object, 119
ExtendedOpts (property for PowerScript	GroupBox control, <u>121</u>
controls), <u>433</u> Extended Salact (property for Power Serint	Н
ExtendedSelect (property for PowerScript	
controls), <u>434</u>	HasButtons (property for PowerScript
${f F}$	controls), 447
	HasLines (property for PowerScript
FaceName (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>447</u>
controls), <u>435</u>	HeaderFooter (property for PowerScript
Factoid (property for PowerScript controls),	controls), <u>447</u>
435 EUC 1 (Height (property for PowerScript controls),
FillColor (property for PowerScript	448 W1 8 1 vi (
controls), <u>437</u>	HideSelection (property for PowerScript
FillPattern (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>449</u>
controls), 437	Host (property for PowerScript controls), 449
FirstDayOfWeek (property for PowerScript	HProgressBar control, 125
controls), <u>438</u>	HScrollBar (property for PowerScript
FixedLocations (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>449</u>
controls), <u>438</u>	HScrollBar control, <u>128</u>
FixedWidth (property for PowerScript	HSplitScroll (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>439</u>	controls), <u>450</u>
FocusOnButtonDown (property for	HTextAlign (property for PowerScript
PowerScript controls), <u>439</u>	controls), <u>451</u>
FocusRectangle (property for PowerScript	HTrackBar control, <u>131</u>
controls), <u>440</u>	HTTPClient object, <u>135</u>

I	JSONParser object, <u>154</u>
Icon (property for PowerScript controls), <u>451</u>	_
IgnoreCase (property for PowerScript	${f L}$
controls), 452	Label (property for PowerScript controls),
IgnoreDefaultButton (property for	<u>462</u>
PowerScript controls), 452	LabelWrap (property for PowerScript
IgnorePressure (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>463</u>
controls), 453	LargePictureHeight (property for
Increment (property for PowerScript	PowerScript controls), <u>463</u>
controls), 453	LargePictureMaskColor (property for
Indent (property for PowerScript controls),	PowerScript controls), <u>464</u>
454	LargePictureName[] (property for
Inet object, <u>136</u>	PowerScript controls), <u>464</u>
InkAntiAliased (property for PowerScript	LargePictureWidth (property for PowerScript
controls), 454	controls), <u>465</u>
InkColor (property for PowerScript controls),	LayoutRTL (property for PowerScript
455	controls), <u>466</u>
InkEdit control, 137	LeftMargin (property for PowerScript
InkEnabled (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>467</u>
controls), 455	LeftText (property for PowerScript controls),
InkHeight (property for PowerScript	<u>467</u>
controls), 456	Legend (property for PowerScript controls),
InkMode (property for PowerScript controls),	<u>468</u>
456	Limit (property for PowerScript controls),
InkPicture control, 144	<u>468</u>
InkWidth (property for PowerScript	Line control, <u>155</u>
controls), 457	LineColor (property for PowerScript
InputFieldBackColor (property for	controls), <u>469</u>
PowerScript controls), 457	LinesAtRoot (property for PowerScript
InputFieldNamesVisible (property for	controls), <u>469</u>
PowerScript controls), 458	LinesPerPage (property for PowerScript
InputFieldsVisible (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>470</u>
controls), 459	LineStyle (property for PowerScript
InsertAsText (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>470</u>
controls), 459	LinkUpdateOptions (property for
InternetResult object, <u>150</u>	PowerScript controls), 471
Invert (property for PowerScript controls),	ListBox control, 157
<u>459</u>	ListView control, 163
Italic (property for PowerScript controls),	ListViewItem object, <u>174</u>
<u>460</u>	LiveScroll (property for PowerScript
<pre>Item[] (property for PowerScript controls),</pre>	controls), 471
<u>461</u>	LogFileName (property for PowerScript
<pre>ItemPictureIndex[] (property for</pre>	controls), <u>472</u>
PowerScript controls), <u>461</u>	LogOpts (property for PowerScript controls), 472
J	M
JSONGenerator object, <u>151</u>	mailFileDescription object, <u>176</u>
JSONPackage object, <u>152</u>	mailMessage object, 176

mailRecipient object, <u>178</u>	MinPosition (property for PowerScript
mailSession object, <u>179</u>	controls), <u>485</u>
MajorDivisions (property for PowerScript	MinValDateTime (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>473</u>	controls), <u>486</u>
MajorGridLine (property for PowerScript	MLPass (property for PowerScript controls),
controls), <u>472</u>	<u>486</u>
MajorTic (property for PowerScript	MLServerVersion (property for PowerScript
controls), 474	controls), 487
Map3DColors (property for PowerScript	MLSync object, 191
controls), 474	MLSynchronization object, 194
Mask (property for PowerScript controls),	MLUser (property for PowerScript controls),
47 <u>5</u>	487
MaskDataType (property for PowerScript	Modified (property for PowerScript
controls), 476	controls), <u>488</u>
MaxBox (property for PowerScript controls),	MonthBackColor (property for PowerScript
477	controls), 488
MaxDate (property for PowerScript	MonthCalendar control, 197
controls), <u>478</u>	Multiline (property for PowerScript
MaximumValue (property for PowerScript	controls), 489
controls), 478	MultiLineEdit control, 202
MaxPosition (property for PowerScript	MultiSelect (property for PowerScript
controls), 479	controls), 488
	controls), <u>488</u>
MaxSelectCount (property for PowerScript	N T
aontrola) 470	
controls), <u>479</u> May Val Data Times (property for PoyerSprint	N
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript	number display formats, <u>570</u>
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), <u>480</u>	number display formats, <u>570</u>
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), <u>480</u> MDIClient object, <u>180</u>	number display formats, <u>570</u>
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181	number display formats, <u>570</u> O OAuthClient object, <u>209</u>
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), <u>480</u> MDIClient object, <u>180</u> Menu object, <u>181</u> MenuCascade object, <u>186</u>	number display formats, <u>570</u> O OAuthClient object, <u>209</u> OAuthRequest object, <u>209</u>
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript	number display formats, <u>570</u> O OAuthClient object, <u>209</u> OAuthRequest object, <u>209</u> ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480	OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls),	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls),	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls),	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls),	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript controls), 492
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls),	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript controls), 492 OriginLine (property for PowerScript controls), 493
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorDivisions (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorDivisions (property for PowerScript controls), 483	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript controls), 492 OriginLine (property for PowerScript
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorDivisions (property for PowerScript	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript controls), 492 OriginLine (property for PowerScript controls), 493
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorDivisions (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorDivisions (property for PowerScript controls), 483	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript controls), 492 OriginLine (property for PowerScript controls), 493 Oval control, 228
MaxValDateTime (property for PowerScript controls), 480 MDIClient object, 180 Menu object, 181 MenuCascade object, 186 MenuName (property for PowerScript controls), 480 Message object, 190 Method (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinBox (property for PowerScript controls), 481 MinDate (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinimumValue (property for PowerScript controls), 482 MinMax (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorDivisions (property for PowerScript controls), 483 MinorGridLine (property for PowerScript	O OAuthClient object, 209 OAuthRequest object, 209 ObjectRevision (property for PowerScript controls), 489 OLEControl control, 211 OLECustomControl control (OCX), 216 OLEObject object, 222 OLEStorage object, 224 OLEStream object, 226 OLETxnObject object, 227 OpenAnimation (property for PowerScript controls), 490 OriginalSize (property for PowerScript controls), 492 OriginLine (property for PowerScript controls), 493 Oval control, 228 OverlapPercent (property for PowerScript

P	PrimaryLine (property for PowerScript
PaperHeight (property for PowerScript	controls), 507
controls), 494	ProcessOption (property for PowerScript
PaperOrientation (property for PowerScript	controls), 507
controls), 494	ProfileCall object, 252
PaperWidth (property for PowerScript	ProfileClass object, 253
controls), 495	ProfileLine object, 254
Password (property for PowerScript	ProfileRoutine object, 255
controls), 495, 496	Profiling object, 257
PerpendicularText (property for PowerScript	ProgressWindowName (property for
controls), <u>496</u>	PowerScript controls), 508
Perspective (property for PowerScript	Publication (property for PowerScript
controls), 497	controls), 508
Picture control, 230	,, <u> </u>
PictureButton control, 234	R
PictureHeight (property for PowerScript	RadioButton control, <u>258</u>
controls), 498	RaggedRight (property for PowerScript
PictureHyperLink control, 239	controls), 509
PictureIndex (property for PowerScript	RecognitionTimer (property for PowerScript
controls), 498	controls), 509
PictureListBox control, 243	Rectangle control, 263
PictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript	Render3D (property for PowerScript
controls), 499	controls), 510
PictureName (property for PowerScript	Resizable (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>500</u>	controls), 510
PictureName[] (property for PowerScript	ResourceResponse object, 265
controls), <u>501</u>	RESTClient object, 265
PictureOnRight (property for PowerScript	ResultSet object, <u>267</u>
controls), <u>502</u>	ResultSets object, 268
PicturesAsFrame (property for PowerScript	ReturnCode (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>497</u>	controls), <u>510</u>
PictureWidth (property for PowerScript	Returns Visible (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>503</u>	controls), <u>511</u>
Pipeline object, <u>251</u>	RichTextEdit control, 268
Pointer (property for PowerScript controls),	RightMargin (property for PowerScript
<u>503</u>	controls), 511
PopMenu (property for PowerScript	RightToLeft (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>504</u>	controls), <u>511</u>
Port (property for PowerScript controls), <u>505</u>	Rotation (property for PowerScript controls),
Position (property for PowerScript controls),	<u>512</u>
<u>505</u>	RoundRectangle control, <u>280</u>
PowerBuilder controls	RoundTo (property for PowerScript
properties, <u>385</u>	controls), <u>513</u>
PowerTips (property for PowerScript	RoundToUnit (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>506</u>	controls), <u>514</u>
PowerTipText (property for PowerScript	RulerBar (property for PowerScript controls),
controls), <u>506</u>	<u>513</u>
	RuntimeError object, 282

Scope (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScriptDefinition object, 284 scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScrollRate (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedTextlor(property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextlength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 Setiste (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 284 SortType (property for PowerScript controls), 528 SpacesVisible (property for PowerScript controls), 529 Spacing (property for PowerScript controls), 530 SSLCallBack object, 292 Spin (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureWankColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureWankColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureWank (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureWank (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureWank (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureWank (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureWank (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureWank (property for PowerScript controls), 53	\mathbf{S}	SmallPictureName[] (property for
controls), 515 ScaleValue (property for PowerScript controls), 515 Scope (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScriptDefinition object, 284 scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScoondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecuteProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ScaleVallBack (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SchadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowHeature (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMidth (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ScriptDefinition object, 284 SortType (property for PowerScript controls), 522 SpacesVisible (property for PowerScript controls), 529 SpacesVisible (property for PowerScript controls), 520 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript cont	ScaleType (property for PowerScript	PowerScript controls), <u>526</u>
Scale Value (property for PowerScript controls), 515 Scrope (property for PowerScript controls), 516 Scrope (property for PowerScript controls), 516 Scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 518 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScrollRate (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDest (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 284 SortType (property for PowerScript controls), 529 SpacesVisible (property for PowerScript controls), 529 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls),		•
controls), 515 Scope (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScriptDefinition object, 284 scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 518 SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTaxtLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTaxtLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 521 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 522 StaticHyerLink control, 294 StaticText control, 299 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 523 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowEater (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowDeficture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDepDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabCorder (property for PowerScript cont		
Scope (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScriptDefinition object, 284 scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScrollRate (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTat (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 Setiste (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SomallBeiture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabDackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabCrall Back (property for PowerScript controls), 528 Spacing (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Spacing (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureNane [[property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureNane [prop	controls), <u>515</u>	Sorted (property for PowerScript controls),
Scroll in windows and user objects, \$73 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), \$21 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), \$21 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), \$22 Scries (property for PowerScript controls), \$22 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), \$23 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), \$25 SmallPictureMeight (p	Scope (property for PowerScript controls),	
ScriptDefinition object, 284 scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScrollRate (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScendaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SelectedFatrPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTat (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTat (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTat (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowFext (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 536 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 536 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 536		SortType (property for PowerScript
Scroll in windows and user objects, 573 Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls), 516 ScrollRate (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedTextlength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SchadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTyeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 521 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureMaskColor (property for	ScriptDefinition object, 284	
Spacing (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SelectedProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedTatPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 534 Spin (property for PowerScript controls), 530 SstatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StaticHyperLink control, 299 StaticText control, 299 StaticPictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (pr	-	
Spacing (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SelectedProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedTatPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowDicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 534 Spow Text (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StaticHyperLink control, 299 Status (property for PowerScript contr	Scrolling (property for PowerScript controls),	controls), <u>529</u>
ScrollRate (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUext (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUext (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls),	<u>516</u>	Spacing (property for PowerScript controls),
secondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 516 SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript controls), 517 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTaxtLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDex (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDex (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StateP	ScrollRate (property for PowerScript	
SSLServiceProvider object, 293 SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTath (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SlatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 St	controls), <u>516</u>	Spin (property for PowerScript controls), <u>530</u>
SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript controls), 517, 518 SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTatLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 530 StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript	SecondaryLine (property for PowerScript	SSLCallBack object, 292
controls), 517, 518 SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTatLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowDest (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StatePictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls),	controls), <u>517</u>	SSLServiceProvider object, 293
SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowPett (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDett (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureWidth (property f	SecureProtocol (property for PowerScript	StatePictureHeight (property for PowerScript
Controls), 519 SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowDicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StaticHyperLink control, 299 Static HyperLink control, 299 Static HyperLink control, 299 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 string display formats, 571 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab controls), 535 Tab Controls), 535 Tab Order (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>517</u> , <u>518</u>	controls), <u>530</u>
SelectedTab (property for PowerScript controls), 519 SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowDicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowPext (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 StatePictureName[] (property for PowerScript controls), 531 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StatePictureNard, (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScr	SelectedStartPos (property for PowerScript	StatePictureMaskColor (property for
SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StatePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StaticHyperLink control, 299 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StricText control, 299 Statuc (Property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StricHyperLink control, 299 StatucHyperLink control, 299 Statuc (Property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StricHyperLink control, 299 Statuc (Property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWi	controls), <u>519</u>	PowerScript controls), <u>531</u>
SelectedTextLength (property for PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StatlePictureWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 532 StaticText control, 299 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 SyncParm object, 304 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab control, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript		·
PowerScript controls), 520 Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StaticHyperLink control, 299 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdWidth (property for PowerScript string display formats, 571 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab controls, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript		•
Series (property for PowerScript controls), 520 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StatlHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript string display formats, 571 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 Tab control, 305 Tab control, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript for PowerScrip	<u> </u>	
StaticText control, 299 SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 Stripg display formats, 571 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab control, 305 Tab control, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript	•	
SeriesSort (property for PowerScript controls), 521 SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 Status (property for PowerScript controls), 533 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for Pow		
SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 StdHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript string display formats, 571 SyncParm object, 304 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab control, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript for Power		
SetStep (property for PowerScript controls), 521 ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 536 StdMidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 SpokeagistryKey (property for PowerScrip		
ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 StdWidth (property for PowerScript controls), 534 string display formats, 571 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab control, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript		
ShadeBackEdge (property for PowerScript controls), 522 controls), 523 string display formats, 571 syncParm object, 304 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 523 controls), 523 showPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 smallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls)		
controls), 522 ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 String display formats, 571 SyncRegistryKey (property for PowerScript controls), 534 system objects about, 1 inheritance hierarchy, 2 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 T Tab control, 305 TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript		
ShowHeader (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript for PowerScrip		
ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for DowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for DowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for DowerScript controls), 525 TabOrder (property for PowerScript Ta		
ShowList (property for PowerScript controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript f		
controls), 523 ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 535	· · · ——	•
ShowPicture (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript for PowerScript controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript for PowerSc	4 1 .	
controls), 524 ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript TabOrder (property for PowerScript TabOrder (property for PowerScript Controls), 535		
ShowText (property for PowerScript controls), 524 properties; events; and functions, 1 view, 3 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript PowerScript PowerScript TabOrder (property for PowerScript PowerScri	4 1 1	· ·
controls), 524 ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript PowerScript PowerScript TabOrder (property for PowerScript Pow		, -
ShowUpDown (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript TabOrder (propert	4 1 .	• •
controls), 525 SimpleTypeDefinition object, 287 SingleLineEdit control, 287 Tab control, 305 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript		1 1
SimpleTypeDefinition object, <u>287</u> SingleLineEdit control, <u>287</u> SmallPictureHeight (property for TabBackColor (property for PowerScript controls), <u>525</u> SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript		, ie, i, <u>e</u>
SingleLineEdit control, 287 SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), 525 SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript Controls), 535 TabOrder (property for PowerScript Controls)		${f T}$
SmallPictureHeight (property for PowerScript controls), <u>525</u> controls), <u>535</u> SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript TabOrder (property for PowerScript Controls)	2 22	
PowerScript controls), <u>525</u> controls), <u>535</u> SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript		
SmallPictureMaskColor (property for TabOrder (property for PowerScript		
	PowerScript controls), 526	

TabPosition (property for PowerScript	ToolbarWidth (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>536</u>	controls), <u>548</u>
TabStop[] (property for PowerScript	ToolbarX (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>537</u>	controls), <u>548</u>
TabsVisible (property for PowerScript	ToolbarY (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>538</u>	controls), <u>549</u>
TabTextColor (property for PowerScript	TopMargin (property for PowerScript
controls), <u>537</u>	controls), <u>550</u>
Tag (property for PowerScript controls), <u>538</u>	TraceActivityNode object, 316
Text (property for PowerScript controls), <u>539</u>	TraceBeginEnd object, 318
TextCase (property for PowerScript	TraceError object, 318
controls), <u>539</u>	TraceESQL object, 319
TextColor (property for PowerScript	TraceFile object, 320
controls), <u>540</u>	TraceGarbageCollect object, 321
	9
TextSize (property for PowerScript controls),	TraceLine object, 322
541 Third State (compared for Decrease Society	TraceObject object, 323
ThirdState (property for PowerScript	TraceRoutine object, <u>324</u>
controls), <u>542</u>	TraceTree object, 325
ThreeState (property for PowerScript	TraceTreeError object, 326
controls), <u>542</u>	TraceTreeESQL object, 327
Throwable object, 312	TraceTreeGarbageCollect object, 328
time display formats, <u>571</u>	TraceTreeLine object, 329
TimeOut (property for PowerScript controls),	TraceTreeNode object, <u>330</u>
<u>543</u>	TraceTreeObject object, 331
Timing object, <u>313</u>	TraceTreeRoutine object, <u>332</u>
Title (property for PowerScript controls), <u>543</u>	TraceTreeUser object, 333
TitleBackColor (property for PowerScript	TraceUser object, <u>334</u>
controls), <u>544</u>	TrailingTextColor (property for PowerScript
TitleBar (property for PowerScript controls),	controls), <u>550</u>
<u>544</u>	Transaction object, <u>334</u>
TitleTextColor (property for PowerScript	TransactionServer object, <u>336</u>
controls), <u>545</u>	Transparency (property for PowerScript
TodayCircle (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>551</u>
controls), <u>545</u>	Transparent (property for PowerScript
TodaySection (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>551</u>
controls), <u>546</u>	TreeView control, <u>338</u>
TokenLocation (property for PowerScript	TreeViewItem object, <u>348</u>
controls), <u>546</u>	TypeDefinition object, <u>349</u>
TokenRequest object, 314	
TokenResponse object, <u>315</u>	${f U}$
ToolBar (property for PowerScript controls),	ULSync object, <u>351</u>
549	ULTrans (property for PowerScript controls),
ToolbarAlignment (property for PowerScript	552
controls), <u>546</u>	Underline (property for PowerScript
ToolbarHeight (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>552</u>
controls), <u>547</u>	UndoDepth (property for PowerScript
ToolbarVisible (property for PowerScript	controls), <u>553</u>
controls), <u>547</u>	,, <u> </u>
, · 	

UnitsPerColumn (property for PowerScript controls), <u>553</u>
UnitsPerLine (property for PowerScript

controls), <u>554</u>

URL (property for PowerScript controls), 555

UseCodeTable (property for PowerScript controls), <u>555</u>

UseLogFile (property for PowerScript controls), 556

UseMouseForInput (property for PowerScript controls), 556

UserName (property for PowerScript controls), <u>556</u>

UserObject object, 351

UseWindow (property for PowerScript controls), <u>557</u>

V

Value (property for PowerScript controls), 557

VariableCardinalityDefinition object, <u>356</u>

VariableDefinition object, 357

View (property for PowerScript controls), 558

Visible (property for PowerScript controls), 559

VProgressBar control, <u>359</u>

VScrollBar (property for PowerScript controls), 559

VScrollBar control, 362

VTextAlign (property for PowerScript controls), 560

VTrackBar control, <u>365</u>

W

WeekNumbers (property for PowerScript controls), 560

Weight (property for PowerScript controls), 561

Width (property for PowerScript controls), 561

Window control, 369

WindowDockOptions (property for

PowerScript controls), <u>562</u>

WindowDockState (property for PowerScript

controls), 562

WindowObject (property for PowerScript controls), 563

WindowState (property for PowerScript controls), 564

WindowType (property for PowerScript controls), 564

WordWrap (property for PowerScript controls), <u>565</u>

WSConnection object, <u>383</u>

X

X (property for PowerScript controls), 566

Y

Y (property for PowerScript controls), <u>566</u>